
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2022 adopted budget for Safety Building Fund 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022 


Fiscal Impact:   $2,612.80 


File Number: R-172-2022 Date 8/23/2022  
044/26/24/02020


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton’s general ledger has included expenditures for the 
Public Safety Building maintenance and utilities expenditures in a special revenue fund (Fund 212 
Safety Building Fund) since at least 2007; and, 


WHEREAS, the only revenues in this special revenue fund to offset these expenditures 
hav been transfers from either the General Fund or Stoughton Utilities; and,  


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 54 – Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions 
(“GASB 54”) during calendar year 2011; and, 


WHEREAS, the activity in the Safety Building Fund does not qualify as a special revenue 
fund under GASB 54; and, 


WHEREAS, Baker Tilly US, LLP has been correctly combining the General Fund and 
Safety Building Fund together in the audited financial statements; and, 


WHEREAS, the expenditures in the Safety Building Fund have previously been classified 
as Public Works expenditures rather than Public Safety expenditures, thus potentially overstating 
the allowed expenditures related to General Transportation Aids; and, 


WHEREAS, the Safety Building Fund had a negative fund balance of $2,612.80 at 
December 31, 2021 that needs to be adjusted for; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended so 
that Safety Building Fund expenditures of $41,960 be transferred to the General Fund; and, 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended so that the 
General Fund shall transfer $2,612.80 to the Safety Building Fund to adjust for the negative fund 
balance of the Safety Building Fund as of December 31, 2021; and, 







 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the allowed expenditures in the 2022 budget be 
decreased by $39,347 as indicated below: 


 
Account Account


Number Description Increase Decrease Increase Decrease


Police ‐ Public Safety Building


100‐52120‐50220 Utilities 32,960      


100‐52120‐50350 Repairs/maintenance 9,000        


Transfers to Other Funds


100‐59500‐50932 Transfer to PS Building (41,960)      


General Revenues


100‐88888‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers 2,613        


100‐88888‐59740 Fund closure transfer 2,613        


     General Fund totals 2,613         2,613        


Public Safety Building


212‐00000‐49210 Transfer in General Fund (41,960)      


212‐53271‐49740 Fund closure transfer 2,613        


212‐53271‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers (2,613)        


212‐53271‐50220‐4190Utilities (32,960)      


212‐53271‐50340‐4190Operating expenses (9,000)        


     Safety Building Fund (41,960)       (41,960)      


Grand total (39,347)       (39,347)      


Revenue Expenditures


Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require two-thirds (2/3) vote of members elected. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/03/2022 06:33 AM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


Period Ending 12/31/2022


                                     Fund 212 SAFETY BUILDING FUND


Balance
Current Year
Beg. BalanceDescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


(3,070.50)28.50 PRIMARY CHECKING212-00000-11100


(3,070.50)28.50 Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


0.00 2,641.30 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE212-00000-21100


0.00 2,641.30 Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


(2,612.80)(2,612.80)FUND BALANCE212-00000-39000


(2,612.80)(2,612.80)Total Fund Balance


(2,612.80)Beginning Fund Balance


(457.70)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
(3,070.50)Ending Fund Balance
(3,070.50)Total Liabilities And Fund Balance





		12 R-172-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for Safety Building Fund

		12a - Safety Building Fund documentation






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2022 adopted budget for Technology Fund and Information Technology/Media 
Services Department 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022 


Fiscal Impact:   $6,352 


File Number: R-173-2022 Date 8/23/2022  
044/26/24/02020


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton established Fund 413 Technology Fund under R-104-
2019 dated July 9, 2019 with an initial funding of $100,000 and without any subsequent funding; 
and, 


WHEREAS, the Technology Fund has $31,936 remaining in the fund at year end 2021; 
and 


WHEREAS, no funds were included in the Technology Fund budget for calendar year 
2022: and, 


WHEREAS, the Information Technology/Media Services Department made a 
presentation to the Common Council on July 26, 2022 for the use of ARPA (American Rescue 
Plan Act) funds for (a) Bullwall Ransomware at $13,288 and (b) Telvue Broadcasting Services 
technology at $25,000; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends using the remaining 
monies in the Technology Fund along with a transfer from the General Fund Unassigned Fund 
Balance to pay for the requested expenditures rather than using ARPA funds at this time; 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Information Technology/Media 
Services Department’s 2022 be amended to include an additional $38,288 in expenditures for the 
purchase of Bullwall Ransomware and Telvue Broadcasting Services technology; and, 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that funding for these additional expenditures shall be 
(a) $31,396 transferred from Fund 413 Technology Fund and (b) $6,352 transferred from General
Fund Unassigned Fund Balance; and,


BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the total expenditures and revenues be increased in 
the 2022 budget by $76,576 as indicated on the following table: 







Account Account


Number Description Increase Decreased Increase Decreased


Technology Fund


413‐55500‐59740 Fund closure transfer 31,936      


413‐55500‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers 31,936      


Subtotals 31,936       31,936      


IT/Media Services


100‐55500‐49740 Fund closure transfer 31,936      


100‐55500‐49261 Transfer from General Fund 6,352        


100‐55500‐50401 Software and support 13,288      


100‐55500‐50401 Software and support 25,000      


Subtotals 38,288       38,288      


General Revenues


100‐88888‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers 6,352        


100‐88888‐50920 Intrafund transfer out 6,352


Subtotals 6,352         6,352        


Grand total 76,576       76,576      


Revenue Expenditures


 


Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require two-thirds (2/3) vote of members elected. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       











     City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Fund Balance Policy 


(REVISED NOVEMBER 13, 2018) 


 
A formal written policy governing the purpose and acceptable range of the City’s various fund 


balances is an effective financial management tool to responsibly utilize the City’s resources, to 


ensure the continued provision of services to residents, and to demonstrate a commitment to long 


term financial planning.   


 


Although fund balance primarily focuses on the City’s general fund, financial resources available 


in other funds should also be considered in assessing the adequacy of unrestricted fund balance 


(i.e. the total of the amounts in the various fund balances reported as committed, assigned, and 


unassigned).  It is essential that the City maintain adequate levels of fund balance in the various 


funds to mitigate current and future risks (e.g., revenue shortfalls and unanticipated 


expenditures). 


 


Credit rating agencies monitor levels of fund balance and unrestricted fund balance in a 


government’s general fund to evaluate continued creditworthiness.  Likewise, laws and 


regulations often govern appropriate levels of fund balance and unrestricted fund balance for 


state and local governments. 


 


Fund balance will be classified into the following five categories depicting the relative strength 


of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used, with the 


highest level of constraint being “nonspendable,” and the lowest being “unassigned.” 


1.   NONSPENDABLE 


Nonspendable fund balance amounts are those not in a spendable form or are required to be 


maintained intact.  Examples are: 


 Assets that will never be converted to cash (i.e. inventories). 


 Assets that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the current period (i.e. long-


term portion of receivables and the nonfinancial assets held for resale such as land). 


 Resources that must be maintained intact based on legal or contractual requirements (i.e. 


principal of an endowment or the capital of a revolving loan fund). 


 


2.  RESTRICTED 


Restricted fund balance amounts are constrained to specific purposes by their providers, through 


constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.  If amounts collected from the long-term 


portion of receivables or from other long-term assets held for sale are also limited externally in 


how they can be spent, they would be shown as restricted instead of nonspendable.  Funds can 


become restricted because of or through: 


 







 Other governments through laws and regulations. 


 Grantors or contributors through agreements. 


 Creditors through debt covenants or other contracts. 


 Enabling legislation that limits how revenue can be used. 


 


3.  COMMITTED 


 


Committed fund balance amounts are constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its 


highest level of decision-making authority.  Committed fund balance amounts cannot be used for 


any other purpose unless the City takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the 


constraint.  (Super Majority Vote) 


 


 The action to commit the resources must be taken by the end of the reporting period. 


 Note that any resources accumulated as “stabilization funds” are sometimes reported as 


“committed.” 


 If amounts collected from the long-term portion of receivables or from other long-term 


assets held for sale are also limited internally, they would be shown as “committed” 


instead of “nonspendable.” 


 


4.  ASSIGNED 


 


Assigned fund balance amounts are funds the City intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent 


can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body 


delegates the authority.  The City Finance Director is authorized to designate funds as “assigned” 


if the governing body does not express the intent of the fund. 


 


 Assigned fund balance does not have to come from the governing body. 


 Assigned fund balance does not have to have formal action to be considered assigned. 


 Amounts in excess of “nonspendable,” “restricted,” and “committed” fund balance in 


funds other than the general fund automatically will be reported as “assigned” fund 


balance. 


 If amounts collected from the long-term portion of receivables or from other long-term 


assets held for sale are limited in this manner, they would be shown as “assigned” instead 


of “nonspendable.” 


 Amounts in “assigned” fund balance can never cause “unassigned” fund balance to be a 


deficit. 


 This is the category used to reflect the portion of existing fund balance that is planned for 


use to eliminate a projected deficit in the subsequent year’s budget. 


 


5.  UNASSIGNED  


 


Unassigned fund balance amounts are available for any purpose.  If the general fund has net 


resources in excess of the other four categories that surplus is considered “unassigned.”  


 “Unassigned” fund balances are typically reported only in the general fund.   


 







The order in which unrestricted resources are to be used when any of these amounts are available 


for expenditure will be “committed,” “assigned,” and then “unassigned.” 


GENERAL FUND BALANCE (RESERVE FUND *) 


 


An adequate general fund (Reserve Fund *) balance provides resources to: 


 Maintain sufficient working capital to finance operating expenditures without short-term 


borrowing for cash flow purposes.   


 Temporarily finance unanticipated expenditures or unusual fluctuation in the City’s 


revenue sources. 


 


In determining the acceptable range of general fund (Reserve Fund *) balance, the City considers 


the following: 


 


 Historical stability of the City’s revenues, expenditures, and mill rate. 


 Timing of revenue collections in relation to payments made for operational expenditures. 


 Anticipated growth in the City’s valuation and/or services and programs to be provided to 


City residents. 


 Perceived exposure to significant one-time outlays (e.g. disasters, immediate capital 


needs, state budget cuts) 


 The potential drain upon general fund resources from other funds as well as the 


availability of resources in other funds (i.e. deficits in other funds may require that a 


higher level of unrestricted fund balance be maintained in the general fund, just as, the 


availability of resources in other funds may reduce the amount of unrestricted fund 


balance needed in the general fund). 


 Liquidity (i.e. a disparity between when financial resources actually become available to 


make payments and the average maturity of related liabilities may require that a higher 


level of resources be maintained). 


 Commitments and assignments (i.e. governments may wish to maintain higher levels of 


unrestricted fund balance to compensate for any portion of unrestricted fund balance 


already committed or assigned by the government for a specific purpose). 


 It is appropriate to exclude from consideration resources that have been committed or 


assigned to some other purpose and focus on unassigned fund balance rather than on 


unrestricted fund balance.   


 


Accordingly, the City seeks to maintain its “unassigned” general fund balance (Reserve Fund *) 


at 20-25% of total general fund annual budgeted expenditures.  In addition, any amount at year 


end in excess of the 25% will be allocated in the following manner: 


  


1.) Funds in excess of the anticipated year end fund balance over the 25% will be 


committed to stabilization of the City’s Maintenance Reserve funds (Equipment 


Maintenance, Building Maintenance and IT Maintenance Funds). 


2.) The remaining balance of the unused excess fund balance (Reserve Fund *) each year 


will be committed to “one-time” equipment purchases, projects, or expenses as 


recommended by the Director of Finance and approved by the Common Council. 







The Finance Committee will review the Reserve Fund * annually following the City’s Annual 


Audit to recommend allocations of excess Reserve Fund * to the Common Council. 


 


A 2/3 vote of the entire Common Council is required to allocate fund balance (Reserve Fund *). 


 


To maintain the City’s general fund balance (Reserve fund *), the City shall: 


 


 Strive to eliminate the budgeted use of fund balance.   


 Allocate any operational surplus at the end of the fiscal year as detailed above, with 


Council consideration given to requested carry over amounts, yet ensuring this policy’s 


requirements are maintained. 


 Caution shall be exercised to ensure the utilization of fund balance (Reserve Fund *) does 


not result in a spike in the required subsequent year tax levy. 


 Annually where the “unassigned” fund balance (Reserve Fund *) is in excess of the 


recommended amount, the allocation of the excess shall be in accordance with the 


previously stated section of this policy. 


 


In addition, the City Council shall establish a contingency reserve account in the annual 


operating budget to provide for unanticipated expenditures of a nonrecurring nature, or to meet 


unexpected small increases in service delivery costs for any budget year.  This account shall be 


funded at a minimum of 0.1% (.001) and a maximum of 1.0% (.01) of the annual general fund 


budgeted expenditures.  The City Council may fund the contingency reserve account at a level 


higher than the maximum 1.0% of the annual general fund budgeted expenditures if it deems the 


action necessary.  


 


It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director to monitor the aforementioned reserve 


balances on a regular basis and report material deviations to the City Council. 


 


* -Defined as General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance less Unassigned Fund Balance amounts 


for any Other Governmental Fund not specifically shown as Nonspendable Fund Balance in the 


General Fund. 


 







City of Stoughton


General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance Analysis


As of December 31, 2018 and previously


2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012


General Fund 


Fund Balance


Nonspendable 1,159,444$   1,016,502$   991,095$      1,052,968$   947,919$      921,928$      896,264$      


Restricted -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    


Committed -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    


Assigned 1,206,970     1,119,700     1,069,756     1,038,261     1,017,182     909,706        871,225        


Unassigned 3,884,355     3,743,097     3,364,758     3,231,239     2,930,387     2,965,631     2,767,691     


6,250,769$   5,879,299$   5,425,609$   5,322,468$   4,895,488$   4,797,265$   4,535,180$   


Other Governmental Funds


Unassigned Deficit Fund Balances 


 - Potiental funded by General Fund's unassigned category (does not include TIF Deficits the City has already setup Advances between General Fund and TIF's).  


    The amount of advances are shown within Nonspendable Fund Balance in the General Fund.


Opera House (285,304)$     (331,496)$     (247,842)$     (215,827)$     (129,534)$     (88,272)$       (56,359)$       


Economic Development (8,109)           (15,741)         (6,746)           -                    -                    -                    -                    


Redevelopment Authority (67,849)         (35,692)         (65,843)         -                    -                    -                    -                    


(361,262)$     (382,929)$     (320,431)$     (215,827)$     (129,534)$     (88,272)$       (56,359)$       


General Fund


Available Unassigned Fund Balance 3,523,093$   3,360,168$   3,044,327$   3,015,412$   2,800,853$   2,877,359$   2,711,332$   


Budgeted Expenditures 13,128,988$ 12,934,046$ 12,636,498$ 12,188,004$ 11,725,862$ 11,150,755$ 11,159,034$ 


Compliance


 with Minimum Fund Balance Policy 26.83% 25.98% 24.09% 24.74% 23.89% 25.80% 24.30%


Availability to 25% with unassigned monies 240,846$      


Availability to 20% with unassigned monies 897,295$      







Bullwall RansomCare
ARPA Presentation


Stoughton Common Council Meeting


Tuesday July 26, 2022







What is Ransomware?


• Ransomware is a malware designed to deny a user or organization 
access to files on their computer. By encrypting these files and 
demanding a ransom payment for the decryption key, cyber attackers 
place organizations in a position where paying the ransom is the 
easiest and cheapest way to regain access to their files. Some variants 
have added additional functionality – such as data theft – to provide 
further incentive for ransomware victims to pay the ransom.


• Ransomware has quickly become the most prominent and visible type 
of malware. Recent ransomware attacks have impacted hospitals’ 
ability to provide crucial services, crippled public services in cities, 
and caused significant damage to various organizations.







Bullwall Response 
Workflow


Bullwall is an inline software application that 
acts as a supplement to our various existing 
end‐point protection. 


Barracuda and Symantec guard against and 
filter many of the obvious threats but does 
not however take action once a threat has 
been introduced.  As you will see, Bullwall
has the means to effectively prevent a 
malware threat from taking hold of our file 
systems.


The flowchart to the right follows a logic plan 
of ‘if‐then‐else’ to filter out normal activity 
from false positives.







Passive State


Bullwall passively monitors all 
network shares to ensure file 
integrity and detects any usual 
file changes.







Several thresholds exist that trigger a 
reaction within the software algorithms. 
Each trigger raises the awareness threat 
level.


Active State







Active attack executed
The IT department launched an attack 
manually against a network user’s 
computer.


The files attacked in this exercise were 
stored on one file server that contains:


All city department H:\, S:\ drives and T:\. 
(excluding PD)


871 GB of data
835,153 files
70,337 folders


In this exercise, only 27 files were 
encrypted before the user was:


1. Locked out of all shared folders
2. Removed from Active Directory (the 
domain).
3. Their workstation powered off







Average weekly attacks per organization, by industry 
2021, compared to 2020


Threat origins 6/15 – 7/14, 2022


Source: Checkpoint Research







Cost of a Ransomware Attack


IT ARPA REQUEST


The example shown is based 
on both hard and soft costs 
of a recovery from a 
ransomware attack.


The cost of this software for 
year one is $13,288.32 and  
one year agreement. Each 
additional year would be 
$9,688.32 unless a multi‐
year agreement is executed. 


Considering the loss 
potential I am requesting 
ARPA funds be provided and 
applied to the first year. 







Thank you for your consideration.







 


 


 
 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY AND MEDIA SERVICES 
321 S. Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


 
 
JOHN T. MONTGOMERY 
DIRECTOR 
jmontgomery@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


DATE:  July 14, 2022 


TO:  Stoughton City Council Members 
 
RE:  ARPA Funds Request – Broadcasting Apps ‐ $25,000 


 
Good Evening Alders, 
We would like to request funding from the available ARPA funds to purchase hardware and services to 
expand the availability of WSTO programming from Telvue Corporation for a cost not to exceed $25,000.  
 
As many of you know, cable subscribership continues to decline and use of smart television are on the 
rise utilizing applications for on‐demand viewing.  WSTO TV would like to purchase the hardware and 
services from Telvue Corporation to build and maintain applications for Roku, Amazon Fire, AppleTV, 
Android and iOS devices.  Our broadcasting server is from Telvue so these services work seamlessly with 
our devices.  These apps will include select programming on demand as well as a live stream of the 
broadcast channel available on for most smart devices in app form. 
 
The availability of these apps will allow for us to expand our viewership leading to a more informed 
community.  These apps will also make it easier for Spectrum Cable Subscribers to view our content as 
WSTO is in an area that is extremely difficult to find on their service on channel 981. 
 
If you have any questions feel free to reach out. 
 


 
Derek Westby 
Senior Network Administrator 
dwestby@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 





		13 R-173-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for Technology Fund and IT-Media Services

		13a - R-104-2019-Creating the Technology Fund-signed

		06b-Fund Balance Policy.pdf

		06c-Unassigned Fund Balance Analysis.pdf



		13b - IT-Media - Bullwall Ransomcare

		13c - IT-Media - Telvue broadcast services






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2022 adopted budget for Tourism Fund 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022 


Fiscal Impact:   $25,927.22 


File Number: R-174-2022 Date 8/23/2022  
044/26/24/02020


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton reports room tax revenues in both Fund 100 General 
Fund (10%) and Fund 247 Tourism Fund (90%); and, 


WHEREAS, the expenditures in the Tourism Fund are disbursements to the Stoughton 
Chamber of Commerce (20%) and Stoughton Visitor Services (70%); and, 


WHEREAS, Tru by Hilton submitted their delinquent fourth quarter 2021 room taxes in 
April 2022 which resulted in unbudgeted expenditures of $17,870 in the Tourism Fund; and, 


WHEREAS, fund balance has been accumulated in the Tourism Fund over the years 
without any authorized expenditures other than Stoughton Chamber of Commerce and Stoughton 
Visitor Services in the amount of $25,927.22 which is broken down as follows: 


Life to date activity prior to BS&A Software (through 2006) 23,564.84
Interest income 2007 through 2021 493.56
Excess room tax revenue 2007 through 2021 1,868.82
Assigned fund balance as of 12/31/2021 25,927.22 ; and,


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the entire fund balance in 
the Tourism Fund be transferred back to the General Fund as the majority cannot be easily 
researched to determine all the applicable revenues and expenditures, 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2022 budget be amended to increase 
expenditures for the Tourism Fund by $17,870 due to (assumed) five quarters of activity in 
calendar year 2022 for Tru by Hilton; and, 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 budget be amended to transfer $25,957.22 
from the Tourism Fund to the General Fund; and, 







 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the 2022 budget be amended so that total 
expenditures and revenues be increased by $43,797 as indicated on the following table: 


Account Account


Number Description Increase Decreased Increase Decreased


Tourism Fund


247‐56710‐41210 Room taxes 17,870      


247‐56710‐50215 Outside services / contracts 17,870      


247‐56710‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers 25,927      


247‐56710‐50930 Transfer to other funds 25,927      


Subtotals 43,797       43,797      


General Fund


100‐88888‐49210 Transfer in ‐ General Fund 25,927      


100‐88888‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers (25,927)        


Subtotals 0


Grand total 43,797       43,797      


Revenue Expenditures


Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require two-thirds (2/3) vote of members elected. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/02/2022 09:36 AM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


Period Ending 12/31/2022


                                     Fund 247 TOURISM FUND


Balance
Current Year
Beg. BalanceDescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


13,450.27 24,260.70 PRIMARY CHECKING247-00000-11100
348.18 0.00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE247-00000-13010


0.00 16,665.17 RECEIVABLES-PRIOR YEAR247-00000-13012


13,798.45 40,925.87 Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


0.00 14,998.65 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE247-00000-21100


0.00 14,998.65 Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


0.00 25,927.22 FUND BALANCE247-00000-39000
25,927.22 0.00 FUND BALANCE ASSIGNED247-00000-39800


25,927.22 25,927.22 Total Fund Balance


25,927.22 Beginning Fund Balance


(12,128.77)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
13,798.45 Ending Fund Balance
13,798.45 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance





		14 R-174-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for Tourism Fund

		14a - Tourism Fund documentation






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2022 adopted budget for vested compensated absences 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022 


Fiscal Impact:   $85,000 


File Number: R-175-2022 Date 8/23/2022  
044/26/24/02020


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities calculates a Payment In Lieu of Taxes (PILT) each 
calendar year due to the City of Stoughton; and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton typically receives the PILT payment within 60 to 120 
days after year end each year; and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton correctly recognizes this revenue each year under 
modified accrual accounting within the General Fund; and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has historically set aside Assigned Fund Balance in the 
General Fund for this interfund receivable at year end without there being any required reason to 
do so; and, 


WHEREAS, the General Fund Assigned Fund Balance at December 31, 2021 was 
$850,067; and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has accrued liabilities for sick and vacation pay that 
are considered vested employee benefits under multiple Wisconsin case law; and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton’s governmental funds have accrued liabilities for these 
compensated absences of $1,244,764 at December 31, 2021; and 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 16 – Accounting for Compensated Absences (effective 01/01/1994) which 
indicates that expenditures for these compensated absences be recognized when actually paid out 
during the year and/or when a termination/retirement is known for certain; and, 


WHEREAS, the pending GASB Statement No. 101 – Compensated Absences (effective 
01/01/2024) will supersede GASB Statement No. 16 but will not change when governmental funds 
recognize the related expenditures; and, 







 


 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton does not currently budget for known 
termination/retirement sick leave payouts in order to keep within the current levy limit statutes as 
well as to keep the mill rate somewhat flat; and, 


 WHEREAS, not budgeting for known terminations/retirement sick leave payouts causes 
the departments to experience deficits when they occur unless positions are held open which 
therefore causes inefficiencies and stresses on the departmental operations due to staffing 
shortages; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends (a) stopping the practice 
of setting aside Assigned Fund Balance for PILTs, (b) reclassing the current General Fund 
Assigned Fund Balance of $850,067 from PILTs to vested compensation; (c) amend the 2022 
adopted budget to increase allowed expenditures in Dept. 88888 General Revenues by $85,000 for 
sick leave payouts, and (d) transfer the applicable funds from Dept. 88888 General Revenues when 
known terminations/retirements, 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton hereby discontinue 
the practice of setting aside Assigned Fund Balance for PILTs due from Stoughton Utilities; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the current General Fund Assigned Fund Balance 
for PILTs be reclassed to Assigned Fund Balance for vested compensation; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the adopted 2022 budget be amended to increase 
expenditures in Dept. 88888 General Revenues by $85,000 for sick leave payouts; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Director of Finance/Comptroller is hereby 
authorized to amend the 2022 budget as necessary to transfer sick leave payouts from Dept. 88888 
General Revenues to the appropriate departments as retirement/terminations are announced; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the monthly Finance Department reports to the 
Finance Committee shall note the amounts transferred on a year-to-date basis; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the intent is that budgets for 2023 and beyond be 
created utilizing this sick leave payout reserve; and, 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the total expenditures and revenues in the 2022 
budget be increased by $85,000 as indicated on the following table: 


Account Account


Number Description Increase Decreased Increase Decreased


100‐88888‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers 85,000      


100‐88888‐50169 HSA retirement payout 85,000      


Total 85,000       85,000      


Revenue Expenditures


 


Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require two-thirds (2/3) vote of members elected.  The City’s 
proprietary funds (Storm Sewer, Emergency Medical Services, and Stoughton Utilities) use full 







 


 


accrual accounting, which means that vested benefits are already a recognized expense.  As such, 
GASB 16 and GASB 101 are not applicable for these departments and thus are not included in the 
resolution.   


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021


Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects them to the fund
that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in
the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.


Long-Term Obligations  


Long-term obligations activity for the year ended December 31, 2021, was as follows:


Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases


Ending
Balance


Amounts Due
Within One


Year


Governmental Activities
Bonds and notes payable:


General obligation debt $ 33,789,470 $ 2,175,000 $ 3,114,084 $ 32,850,386 $ 3,864,643
General obligation debt from direct


borrowings and direct placements 755,213 - 36,021 719,192 37,282
Premiums 829,549 - 82,629 746,920 -


Total bonds and notes payable 35,374,232 2,175,000 3,232,734 34,316,498 3,901,925


Other liabilities:
Compensated absences 1,190,077 136,850 82,163 1,244,764 -
Fire pension liability  1,067,144 164,783 35,781 1,196,146 -
Other post-employment benefits - 1,557,849 - 1,557,849 -


Total other liabilities 2,257,221 1,859,482 117,944 3,998,759 -


Total governmental activities long-
term liabilities $ 37,631,453 $ 4,034,482 $ 3,350,678 $ 38,315,257 $ 3,901,925


Business-Type Activities
Bonds and notes payable:


General obligation debt $ 2,135,530 $ 150,000 $ 320,916 $ 1,964,614 $ 327,813
Revenue bonds 6,815,000 - 1,075,000 5,740,000 1,080,000
Revenue debt from direct borrowings and


direct placements 3,786,472 - 371,721 3,414,751 381,501
Unamortized premium on debt 124,615 - 21,586 103,029 -


Total bonds and notes payable 12,861,617 150,000 1,789,223 11,222,394 1,789,314


Other liabilities:
Vested compensated absences 397,476 94,986 96,146 396,316 -
Customer advances for construction 1,349,916 199,649 1,320,500 229,065 -
Other post-employment benefits - 286,702 - 286,702 -


Total other liabilities 1,747,392 581,337 1,416,646 912,083 -


Total business-type activities long-
term liabilities $ 14,609,009 $ 731,337 $ 3,205,869 $ 12,134,477 $ 1,789,314


In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the City may not
exceed 5% of the equalized value of taxable property within the City's jurisdiction. The debt limit as of
December 31, 2021, was $67,063,905. Total general obligation debt outstanding at year end was
$35,534,192. 


48


DRAFT 07/22/2022



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight







City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021


General
Fund Debt Service Construction


Nonmajor
Funds Total


Committed to:
Seniors in need $ - $ - $ - $ 63,614 $ 63,614
Senior center wood


shop - - - 9,963 9,963
Food pantry - - - 389,139 389,139
K9 unit - - - 19,511 19,511
Tree commission - - - 3,012 3,012
Cemetery - - - 23,810 23,810
Revolving loans - - - 272,656 272,656
Refuse - - - 7,187 7,187
Ambulance - - - 18,224 18,224
Fire department special - - - 56,921 56,921
Opera house repair - - - 6,778 6,778
Township outreach - - - 14,123 14,123
Tourism - - - 25,927 25,927
Landmarks - - - 9,101 9,101
Senior center special - - - 616,798 616,798
Opera house - - - 41,234 41,234
Capital projects - - - 629,286 629,286
Affordable housing - - - 512,649 512,649


Subtotal - - - 2,719,933 2,719,933


Assigned to:
Safety camp 31,745 - - - 31,745
Youth gift 20,221 - - - 20,221
Bryant grant 129,341 - - - 129,341
Pool sinking fund 21,233 - - - 21,233
Shop with a cop 6,790 - - - 6,790
Tree plantings


developer 36,395 - - - 36,395
Police federal grants 2,599 - - - 2,599
Paul Kraby memorial 4,576 - - - 4,576
Utility payment in lieu of


taxes 850,067 - - - 850,067
Virgin lake boardwalk 148 - - - 148
Buddy bags 46 - - - 46
Arts council 6,442 - - - 6,442
National night out 2,170 - - - 2,170
Fire equipments - - - 16,613 16,613
Equipment replacement - - - 182,620 182,620
Capital projects - - 1,903,579 403,606 2,307,185
Outlay - - - 674,206 674,206
Technology - - - 31,936 31,936


Subtotal 1,111,773 - 1,903,579 1,308,981 4,324,333


Unassigned (deficit): 4,887,570 - - (695,666) 4,191,904


Total fund
balances
(deficit) $ 7,319,997 $ 682,468 $ 2,077,443 $ 6,405,012 $ 16,484,920


54


DRAFT 07/22/2022



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight







City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


General
Fund


Debt
Service Construction


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


Assigned to:
Safety camp $ 28,836 $ - $ - $ - $ 28,836
Youth gift 19,871 - - - 19,871
Bryant grant 102,760 - - - 102,760
Pool sinking fund 15,233 - - - 15,233
Shop with a cop 6,728 - - - 6,728
Tree plantings developer 21,184 - - - 21,184
Police federal grants 5,176 - - - 5,176
Paul Kraby memorial 3,032 - - - 3,032
Utility payment in lieu of taxes 883,261 - - - 883,261
Virgin lake boardwalk 148 - - - 148
Buddy bags 46 - - - 46
Arts council 3,251 - - - 3,251
Buddy benches 625 - - - 625
Fire equipments - - - 16,609 16,609
Equipment replacement - - - 251,874 251,874
Capital projects - - 2,005,994 533,557 2,539,551
Outlay - - - 578,292 578,292
Technology - - - 95,146 95,146


Subtotal 1,090,151 - 2,005,994 1,475,478 4,571,623


Unassigned (deficit): 4,482,473 - - (1,052,419) 3,430,054


Total fund balances (deficit) $ 7,030,962 $ 696,580 $ 2,005,994 $ 5,566,437 $15,299,973


Business-Type Activities
Net investment in capital assets:


Land $ 784,481
Construction in progress 1,002,263
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 59,496,001
Less long-term debt outstanding (excluding unspent capital related debt


proceeds) (12,371,955)
Less unamortized debt premium (124,615)


Total net investment in capital assets $ 48,786,175


5. Other Information 


Employees' Retirement System


Plan Description


The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS benefits and
other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit terms may
only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of
Wisconsin, local government and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a
participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1,200 hours a
year (880 hours teachers and school district educational support employees) and expected to be
employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. 


ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be found at
http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.


54



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight







CITY OF STOUGHTON


NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019


NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)


G. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (cont.)


General Fund
Debt


Service Construction Outlay


TIF
District
No. 7


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


 Assigned to:
Safety camp $ 28,336 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 28,336
Youth gift 19,421 - - - - - 19,421
Bryant grant 101,049 - - - - - 101,049
Pool sinking fund 19,659 - - - - - 19,659
Shop with a cop 6,146 - - - - - 6,146
Tree plantings


developer 24,180 - - - - - 24,180
Police federal


grants 4,299 - - - - - 4,299
Paul Kraby


memorial 652 - - - - - 652
Utility payment in


lieu of taxes 883,974 - - - - - 883,974
Liability insurance


loss 70,000 - - - - - 70,000
Virgin lake


boardwalk 409 - - - - - 409
Buddy bags 46 - - - - - 46
Arts council 1,799 - - - - - 1,799
Buddy benches 625 - - - - - 625
Fire equipment - - - - - 20,783 20,783
Equipment


replacement - - - - - 527,768 527,768
Building


replacement - - - - - 567,713 567,713
Capital Projects - - 1,959,282 - - - 1,959,282
Outlay - - - 1,307,532 - - 1,307,532
Technology - - - - - 100,394 100,394
Sub-total 1,160,595 - 1,959,282 1,307,532 - 1,216,658 5,644,067


  Unassigned
(deficit): 4,248,928 - - - - (1,124,324) 3,124,604


Total Fund
Balances
(Deficit) $ 6,803,581 $ 832,401 $ 2,403,116 $ 1,307,532 $ 438,407 $ 5,592,091 $ 17,377,128


66



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight



DEhlinger

Highlight





		15 R-175-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for vested compensated absences

		15a - Compensated absences - Utility PILT documentation

		254030915-City of Stoughton AUD 12-31-2021 DRAFT 07222022.pdf

		City of Stoughton 2020 GAAS FS Audit FINAL.pdf

		Stoughton, City FS Final 2019.pdf












CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2022 adopted budget for the Sick Leave Fund 


Committee 
Action: 


Fiscal Impact:   


Finance Committee recommended approval ___ on 
08/23/2022 


TME SENSITIVE ITEM 


$31,754 increase for Sick Leave Program 
File Number: R-176-2022 Date 8/23/2022  


044/26/24/02020


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton’s general ledger has recorded expenditures for 
retirement sick leave payouts into a single expenditure account within a special revenue fund (Fund 
250 Sick Leave Fund) since at least 2007; and, 


WHEREAS, the only revenues in this special revenue fund to offset these expenditures 
have been transfers from the General Fund; and,  


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement No. 54 – Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions 
(“GASB 54”) during calendar year 2011; and, 


WHEREAS, the activity in the Sick Leave Fund does not qualify as a special revenue fund 
under GASB 54; and, 


WHEREAS, Baker Tilly US, LLP has been correctly combining the General Fund and 
Sick Leave Fund together in the audited financial statements; and, 


WHEREAS, additional audit fees have been incurred by the City of Stoughton for 
reclassification of sick leave retirement payouts into the correct expenditure category for both the 
audited financial statements and the Wisconsin Department of Revenue Form C report; and 


WHEREAS, Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures (GAAP) for governmental 
accounting dictates that there should be consistency between the audited financial statements, 
general ledger and the adopted/amended budget; and, 


WHEREAS, the Sick Leave Fund had a fund balance of $144,753.89 at December 31, 
2021; and, 


WHEREAS, the Sick Leave Fund has reflected current year payouts totaling $164,600.55 
for police officers who retired during calendar year 2022 as of August 4, 2022; and, 







 WHEREAS, the Sick Leave Fund adopted budget assumed a reduction in fund balance of 
$113,000; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that the sick leave payout 
within Dept. 88888 General Revenues be returned to the balance of $85,000 as previously 
approved by the Common Council in a separate resolution by the Common Council on August 23, 
2022;  


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended so 
that Sick Leave Fund expenditures of $164,601 be transferred to the Police Department within the 
General Fund; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended to transfer 
$164,601 from the General Revenues sick leave program to the Police Department to offset the 
increased expenditures for current year employee retirements; and; 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended to increase 
the General Fund Assigned Fund Balance for sick leave payouts by $31,754 as a net result of all 
activities within this resolution while returning the sick leave payout reserve to $85,000 for 
calendar year 2022 as previously approved by the Common Council in a separate resolution on 
August 23, 2022; and 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended to transfer 
$111,754 from the Sick Leave Fund Committed Fund Balance to General Revenues for the prior 
year fund balance within the Sick Leave Fund as of December 31, 2021; and, 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the allowed expenditures in the 2022 budget be 
increase by $277,601 as indicated on the table below: 


 







Account Account


Number Description Increase Decrease Increase Decrease


Sick Leave Fund


250‐00000‐49210 Transfer In ‐ General Fund (52,000)       A


250‐51935‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers 144,754   


250‐51938‐50535 Retiree health insurance payout (165,000)    B


250‐51938‐59740 Fund closure transfer 144,754    C


Sick Leave Fund totals 92,754       (20,246)      


Amendment is out of balance because the adopted budget did not have equal revenues and expenditures.


Police Department


100‐52100‐49750 Retirement transfer in 164,601    D


100‐52100‐50169 H.S.A. retirement payout 164,601    B


     Subtotal 164,601 164,601


Transfer to other funds


100‐59500‐50930 Transfer to sick leave fund (52,000)       A


     Subtotal (52,000)      


General Revenues


100‐88888‐49740 Fund closure transfer 144,754    C


100‐88888‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers (31,754)      


100‐88888‐50169 H.S.A. retirement payout 399             B


100‐88888‐59750 Retirement transfer out 164,601    D


     Subtotal 113,000    165,000   


General Fund subtotals 277,601    277,601   


Revenue Expenditures


Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require two-thirds (2/3) vote of members elected. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/07/2022 07:12 AM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


Period Ending 12/31/2022


                                     Fund 250 SICK LEAVE FUND


Balance
Current Year
Beg. BalanceDescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


0.00 144,753.89 PRIMARY CHECKING250-00000-11100


0.00 144,753.89 Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


0.00 0.00 Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


144,753.89 144,753.89 FUND BALANCE250-00000-39000


144,753.89 144,753.89 Total Fund Balance


144,753.89 Beginning Fund Balance


(144,753.89)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
0.00 Ending Fund Balance
0.00 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance







REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/07/2022 07:32 AM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORM (ABNORM)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/22


INCR (DECR)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022


NORM (ABNORM)
2022


AMENDED BUDGET


2022
ORIGINAL


BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 250 - SICK LEAVE FUND
Revenues
Dept 00000 - REVENUE


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 52,000.00 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND250-00000-49210


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 52,000.00 Total Dept 00000 - REVENUE


Dept 51938 - GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES
0.00 144,754.00 0.00 0.00 144,754.00 0.00 FUND BAL APPLIED - TRANSFERS250-51938-49920


0.00 144,754.00 0.00 0.00 144,754.00 0.00 Total Dept 51938 - GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES


0.00 144,754.00 0.00 0.00 144,754.00 52,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Expenditures
Dept 51938 - GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 165,000.00 RETIREE HEALTH INS-PAYOUT250-51938-50535
100.00 0.11 0.00 144,753.89 144,754.00 0.00 FUND CLOSURE TRANSFER250-51938-59740


100.00 0.11 0.00 144,753.89 144,754.00 165,000.00 Total Dept 51938 - GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES


100.00 0.11 0.00 144,753.89 144,754.00 165,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES


100.00 144,753.89 0.00 (144,753.89)0.00 (113,000.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


100.00 0.11 0.00 144,753.89 144,754.00 165,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 144,754.00 0.00 0.00 144,754.00 52,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 250 - SICK LEAVE FUND:





		16 R-176-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for Sick Leave Fund

		16a - Fund 250 Sick Leave Fund

		Fund 250 balance.pdf

		Fund 250 rev exp.pdf








 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2022 adopted budget for WRS unfunded pension liability 


 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ____ on 08/23/2022 
                                           TME SENSITIVE ITEM 


 
Fiscal Impact:   $108,658.07 


 
File Number: 


 
R-xxx-2022 


 
Date 8/23/2022  
044/26/24/02020


 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS: 


 WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) was created in 1982 as the result 
of the merger of a number of governmental pension plans in the State of Wisconsin; and, 


 WHEREAS, as a result of this merger the combined Unfunded Pension Liability (UPL) 
was allocated to all participating employers of which the City of Stoughton and Stoughton Utilities 
are both participating employers; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton elected to borrow $554,744.25 from the Electric Utility 
Fund of Stoughton Utilities on April 1, 2012 at 3.0% interest with a thirteen-year amortization 
schedule rather than paying higher interest rates to the State of Wisconsin Department of Employee 
Trust Funds (ETF), who administers the WRS; and, 


 WHEREAS, the scheduled payment for 2022 was received by Stoughton Utilities on 
February 21, 2022 leaving an outstanding principal balance of $106,969.89 on that date; and, 


 WHEREAS, the scheduled principal and interest payment due in calendar year 2023 
would be $56,860 and this expenditure amount would be included in the tax levy for budget year 
2023; and, 


 WHEREAS, the both the Mayor and the Director of Finance/Comptroller anticipate the 
creation of the 2023 budget will be difficult due to the current statutory levy limits even with the 
record net new construction values recently released by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue; 
and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the City of Stoughton pay 
this unfunded pension liability in full plus accrued interest through August 31, 2022 to Stoughton 
Utilities with funding to come from the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance; and, 


 WHEREAS, the payoff of this unfunded pension liability would allow the City of 
Stoughton to no longer levy for unfunded pension liability payments and therefore allowing the 







 


 


City of Stoughton to levy for other expenditures; and. 


 WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has correctly accounted for this outstanding receivable 
from the City of Stoughton; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has not included this outstanding liability in the general 
ledger at all since 2012; and, 


 WHEREAS, Baker Tilly US, LLP has correctly reported the City of Stoughton’s 
outstanding liability activity through an internal service fund on the audited financial statements; 
and, 


 WHEREAS, additional audit fees have been incurred by the City of Stoughton for the 
necessary reclassification entries needed in the audited financial statements; and, 


 WHEREAS, Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures (GAAP) for governmental 
accounting dictates that there should be consistency between the audited financial statements, 
general ledger and the adopted/amended budget; and, 


 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends the City of Stoughton 
create Fund 699 WRS Unfunded Pension Liability in the general ledger to track the 2022 activity; 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended to 
transfer $108,658 from the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance in order to pay Stoughton 
Utilities the total principal and interest payments due as of August 31, 2022; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended to adjust for 
the life to date negative Unrestricted Net Position in the 2021 audited financial statements of 
$157,976; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget for the WRS Unfunded 
Pension Liability Fund be amended to adjust for both the February 2022 and August 2022 
payments to Stoughton Utilities; and, 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the allowed expenditures in the 2022 budget be 
decreased by $49,318 as indicated on the table below: 


 







 


 


Account Account


Number Description Increase Decrease Increase Decrease


Other General Government


100‐51900‐50300 Miscellaneous expense (55,745)       A


General Revenues


100‐88888‐50414 WRS unfunded liability 51,006       A


100‐88888‐50620 Interest 4,739         A


100‐88888‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers 108,658    


100‐88888‐50414 WRS unfunded liability 106,970    


100‐88888‐50620 Interest 1,688        


Fund 100 subtotals 108,658     108,658    


WRS Unfunded Pension Liability


699‐51900‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers (157,976)    


699‐51900‐50414 WRS unfunded liability (51,006)      


699‐51900‐50414 WRS unfunded liability (106,970)    


Fund 699 subtotals (157,976)     (157,976)    


Grand total (49,318)       (49,318)      


Revenue Expenditures


 


Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require two-thirds (2/3) vote of members elected. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       








 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Utilities Re-alignment. 


 


 


Committee Action: Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0 
 
File Number: R-178-2022 Date Introduced: August 23, 2022 


 


 
WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities Re-alignment includes changes to the reporting structure, position 
descriptions and compensation.  The Re-alignment creates an efficient and effective way for the 
Utility to operate as well as retain and attract staff.  The organization chart has been updated, new 
and updated position descriptions have been completed as well as a new compensation plan. The 
2021 Utilities Budget was approved to cover the compensation changes.  This funding was approved 
to be carried into the 2022 Budget as the re-alignment was not completed in 2021.  The 
compensation plan will be reviewed annually by Human Resources to ensure the compensation plan 
reflects the current salary ranges and stays competitive, and 


 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on Tuesday, August 16, 2022, and the entire re-alignment 
was presented to them, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval (4-0) of the re-alignment now therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 
hereby authorized and directed to approve the Utilities Re-alignment. 


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote    ______ 
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                                                                 
Timothy Swadley, Mayor                  Date 


 
 
 
Council Action:     _______   Override  Vote    ______ 















City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.  This position is identical to other Advanced Certified Operator positions in terms of 


job scope and required qualifications and certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally-responsibleenvironmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and 


testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant 


operations and tank volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring 


and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants.   


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other 


equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


• Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for complete and 


effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory activities analysis 


including sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic 


acid, and other analysis as directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports 


from sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations 


and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results.etc. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 


• Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Operates and maintains the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment 


readings, operate controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same. 


Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response. 


Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Performs custodial tasks. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Paints surfaces. 


•  


• At the discretion of the Utilities Director, this position may temporarily be assigned as the designated Operator in Charge 


of the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility and assume all obligations and responsibility for regulatory 


compliance. 


• Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


• Assist with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and four three or moreto six years water and/or wastewater operator experience.   


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


• Successful completion of the DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above DNR Operator operator and laboratory 


certifications- Advanced certification. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; engineering reports; 


technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 


regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and 


information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance 


manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, DNR 


personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and 


spatial relationships.  


• Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood 


chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, cement mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, 


voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making 


multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery..   


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping  equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate veryto heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofover 100 pounds. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms shape, 


sounds, texture, and odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe  conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness,  machinerydusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical 


currents, and disease.   and/or dustThis exposure  may cause or causing discomfort and presents a high and where there 


is a risk of injury requiring extended recoveryor death. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Water System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Water Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Water System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on water 


distribution operations.  This position is identical to other Advanced Certified Operator positions in terms of job scope and 


required qualifications and certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments.  This position requires 


a Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


(WDNR).   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally-responsibleenvironmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and 


testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant 


operations and tank volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring 


and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment 


as directed.  Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other equipment at the wastewater treatment 


facility. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory analysis including 


sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, 


phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, 


and other analysis as directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from 


sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 


calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop according to Public Service Commission rules.  Investigates zero/low 


meter readings and reports findings.  Installs new, and replaces existing water meters. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage report and wastewater treatment reports, and submits 


to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  Prepares, or assists with the preparation of water meter 


change program reports. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


Formatted: Bottom:  0.44"







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate 


controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same.Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via 


computerized systems as required. 


• Field notifies customers regarding construction and disconnection of service. 


• Disconnects water service to customers with delinquent accounts, or upon customer request. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; recommends and performs corrective action as needed. 


• Maintains material inventories; recommends material purchases. 


• Serves on call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Assists with wastewater and electric operations as required. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 


guidelines and regulations. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and 


snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, or similar tasks as assigned. 


•  


• At the discretion of the Utilities Director, this position may temporarily be assigned as the designated Operator in Charge 


of the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility and assume all obligations and responsibility for regulatory 


compliance. Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent with and three to fiveor more years water and/or wastewater operator plumbing or 


water utility experience.,  


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.  A Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D from the Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources (WDNR) for the Stoughton Waterworks, and a commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake 


certification are required.   


• Successful completion of the Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above DNR operator and laboratory certifications. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


  







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; engineering reports; 


technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 


regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability 


to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as well readings, meter records, DNR reports and 


bulletins, water samples, distribution equipment reports, charts, policy manuals, maintenance records, WDNR rules and 


regulations, vehicle manuals, equipment manuals, water main diagrams and maps. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with Department personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, City employees, law 


enforcement, and WDNR personnel. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to add, subtract, multiply and divide; calculate percentages, fractions and decimals.  


Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work 


activities. 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of information 


against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump 


truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation hand 







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid 


adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.   


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically involving some combination 


of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, 


and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, shape, sound, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks.Ability to carry out directives without direct 


supervision. 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as backhoe, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, meter test bench, air hammers, 


blacktop rollers, compactors, saws, hand tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, freezing/thawing 


machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, axes, etc.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repair of water 


distribution equipment. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, 


balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture and odor associated with job-related objects, materials and ingredients. 


  







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odorshigh winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, disease, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage and 


electrical currents, and disease.  This exposure may cause discomfort where there isand presents a high a risk of injury 


or death. 


•  


  







Advanced Certified Water Operator 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the 


City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective 


and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 


 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Apprentice Lineworkerman Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: AprilMarch, 202204 Reports To: Utilities Electric System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely assist in performing electrical distribution line 


construction, maintenance, and repair tasks for the City of Stoughton, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction 


specifications and standards.   


Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual responsibility as the employee 


progresses through the utility’s apprentice lineworker program.   


This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to jJourneyman lLineworkerman status and 


requires continual progression, and is not considered a permanent employment status.  Advancement to Journeyman 


Lineworker status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-job training hours, and demonstration 


of job knowledge and competency. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Assists Operatesin operating diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Assists 


in oOperatinges live-line tools to connect and disconnect distribution lines and components.  AssistsInstalls in installing 


primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 


expected of an apprentice lineworker. 


•  


• Assists in operating and maintaining the electric SCADA system. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of .  Erects warning signs and 


cones, traffic control and direction, and secures areasmore.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and 


Maintains knowledge of and implements safety procedures. 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator. 


• Assists in operatingOperates and maintaining the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and 


equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


• Receives and rResponds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective actionmeasures.  Communicates 


with customers as required to resolve  in response to customer inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned 


system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Installs, Rrepairs, and maintains municipal street lightsing. 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance program compliance.  Works with division 


employees to trim and remove trees and brush.  Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 


clearance projects, and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


• Participates in the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including soliciting and receiving education and mentorship, 


and working towards advancement through the program. 







Apprentice Lineworkerman   


 
• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, 


inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts 


system inspections and records findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 


overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Locates underground electric faults for repair. 


• Assists in installing primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems. 


• Participates in on-call status for emergencies. 


• Assists in planning and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Assists in recommending on-site operation changes. 


• Contacts customers regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


• Assists with public education and assists with performing Wires and Fires demonstrations. 


• Repairs and maintains street lights. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Trims trees and removes and chips brush. 


• Operates loaders, backhoes, dump trucks, jack hammers, wood chipper, chain saws, cutting torch and welders. 


• Reconnects meters and transfers meters. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective action in response to 


customer inquiries and complaints. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, times sheets, etc. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Completes weekly/monthly substation readings and inspection reports. 


• Recommends material purchases. 


• Maintains material inventories. 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight stays up to a week in length to complete 


the required apprenticeship classroom and hands-on training. 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call.  As progression 


through the apprenticeship program occurs, maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 


rotational basis within the Electric System Division.     


• Complies with all Stoughton Municipal Utilities sSafety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin 


Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 







Apprentice Lineworkerman   


 
• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 


premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 


of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  


Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains Stoughton Municipal Utilities facilities. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water Division as required. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High school diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in electrical systems, or any combination of 


education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


• Successful completion of a nine-month electric power distribution technical course, or e, with preference given to 


candidates who possess one or more of the following:  enrollment in the State of Wisconsin a local four-year llineworker 


technician apprenticeship program preferred, vocational/technical training in electrical systems, two to three years 


electrical system maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent 


knowledge, skills, and abilities leading to journeyman lineman status.   


• Ability to maintain enrollment in the State of Wisconsin lineworker apprenticeship program is required.   


• Ability to obtain and maintain fCertification in CPR, first aid, Hilti gun, forklift certification and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required. 


• Ability to obtain and maintain a , and ccommercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required.  


also preferred or will be required to be obtained after hire.  A valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required at hire. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 


diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 


non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and 


manuals. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 







Apprentice Lineworkerman   


 
• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


electricians, contractors, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to 


determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure and/or sort data; assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, 


compute, and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as work orders, staking sheets, maps, outage reports, 


hazardous materials lists, safety manuals and procedures, construction specifications, transformer manuals, PCB 


manual, time sheets, vehicle logs, accident reports, technical operating manuals, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, co-workers, law enforcement personnel, electricians, contractors, 


tree trimmers and other city employees. 


• Ability to graduate from a State of Wisconsin Four-Year Lineman Apprenticeship program. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplicationy,, and division;de, calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals;, interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with fractions and decimalsalgebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives both with and without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent 


judgementjudgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgementjudgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid 


adjustments, such as Hilti gun, Ampactimpact tools,  tool, aerial bucket truck, digger /derrick, forklift, wood chipper, 


chain saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and 


blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid 


adjustmentshooks and belts, air hammers, census, dump truck, wood chipper, forklift, loaders, backhoes, cutting torch, 


welder, volt meter, hot sticks, extension sticks, hoists and blocks, phasing tool, cable locator, bolt cutters, winches, 


mechanic’s hand tools, carpenter hand tools, slings, hand lines, impact tools, grinders, etc.  Ability to repair complex 


equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repairsuch as high 


voltage electrical work. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate tovery heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, and crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of up to 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify harmonious degrees of similarities or differences between or contrasting combinations, 


as well as recognize individual characteristics of colors, formsshape, sounds, odors and textures, and odor  associated 


with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 







Apprentice Lineworkerman   


 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where that require exposure 


to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, 


vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, disease, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  


This exposure may , vehicular traffic and/or dust can cause discomfort and presents a high where there is risk of serious 


injury or death. 


•  


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Water SystemTechnical 


Operations Division 


Title: Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter 


Technician 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Billing & Metering 


SupervisorWater System Supervisor 


 


 


Purpose of Position  


The purpose of this position is to assist in the maintainmaintenance, repairs, testing, installation, and reading of electric and 


water meters; maintain and operate the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system; and maintain 


and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and to complete water cross connection inspections for 


the City of Stoughton.  This position shall be responsible for assisting in the evaluation of electric and water services and 


determination of the appropriate metering design, procurement and maintenance of electric and water meters and test 


equipment, maintenance of electric and water meter records, and installation of electric and water meters and equipment.  


Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual responsibility as the employee 


progresses through the utility’s apprentice meter technician program.   


This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to Journeyman Meter Technician status and 


requires continual progression, and is not considered a permanent employment status.  Advancement to Journeyman Meter 


Technician status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-job training hours, and demonstration 


of job knowledge and competency. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions, safe wastewater conveyance and discharge, and safe electric enclosures to 


protect Stoughton Utilities customers. 


• Maintains the utility’s electric and water meter testing programs to ensure compliance with Wisconsin Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) regulations and periodic test schedules.   


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC rules.  Maintains, 


and repairs meters, current transformers (CTs), and voltage transformers (VTs).  Prepares and issues reports on electric 


meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs water 


meters.  Prepares and issues reports on water meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, customer service 


staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


• Manages the utility water and electric meter inventory.  Establishes and maintains metering standardization programs, 


and collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain meter inventory, including the procurement of new 


meters and the discarding of damaged and retired meters.  Prepares and issues reports on meter inventory and annual 


activity to division supervisors, financial staff, and regulatory agencies as directed.  Completes the year-end inventory 


process for electric and water meters, CTs, and VTs.    


• Reviews applications for new and upgraded electric service connections, and determines proper meter type, cabinet size 


and type, and need for CTs and VTs, and wires customer meter sockets at commercial properties.  Conveys cabinet and 







Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter Technician 


 
socket requirements to customers and electrical contractors.  Collaborates with the Electric System Supervisor to 


coordinate electric meter sizing, installation, and repair. 


• Installs electric and water meters – including CTs and VTs as necessary – at customer premises, including temporary 


and permanent services.   


• Reviews applications for new water service connections, and determines the proper meter sizing and type.  Conveys 


plumbing requirements to customers and plumbing contractors. Collaborates with the Water System Supervisor to 


coordinate water meter sizing, installation, and repair. 


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission (WPSC) rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs meters, CTs and VTs. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with WPSC rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs 


water meters.   


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric and water meter inventory, electric and water 


meter testing history, electric and water service connection details and meter history, and other records as directed. 


• Assists in the management of Manages the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program to eliminate existing and 


prevent future cross-connections, in accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules.  


Performs household and business inspections, issues corrective orders, and performs follow-up inspections as necessary. 


• Assists with utility billing operations by investigating zero/low meter readings for both electric and water, and reports 


findings.  Reviews customer history and consumption trends to detect potential meter issues.  Performs meter rereads 


upon receipt of workorders. 


• Completes the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for cycle billing purposes.  Maintains ability to 


work a flexible schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working hours 


one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 


• Completes the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer accounts.  Processes all daily meter 


workorders.   


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Monitors and tests water and wastewater quality conditions. 


• Coordinates field delinquent collections operations, including disconnecting utility service to customers as upon receipt 


of disconnection workorders.directed. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and recommends and performs corrective action in 


response to customer inquiries and complaints.   


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials, and participates in 


outreach efforts. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight stays up to a week in length to complete 


the required apprenticeship classroom and hands-on training. 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


•  


• Repairs and maintains water mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and maintains water and 


wastewater service connections.  


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meter and other work orders. 







Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter Technician 


 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer system. 


• Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via computerized 


systems as required. 


• Participates in emergency on-call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities sSafety programs, and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 


guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). 


•  


 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages. 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: processing customer payments, preparation 


of committee meeting packets, preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred payment 


agreements, etc. 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various physical and electronic methods, including 


but not limited to, banking lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night deposit box, 


in-person, energy assistance, etc. 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and process incoming 


and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and distributes received 


postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


• Maintains Stoughton Utilitiesgrounds and facilities, including such as painting surfaces, snow and ice removal, custodial 


tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. of ice 


and snow from walkways and drives, and general maintenance tasks. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and Water System Divisions, including basic 


system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response.Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for 


electric, water, and wastewater operations as directed. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for all other divisions as directedelectric, water, and wastewater operations as 


directed. 


•  


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


•  High School diploma or equivalent, with one or more years electric metering experience and basic water metering 


experience required, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.. 


•  


• Four to six years wastewater operator experience, three to five years water operator experience, and three to five years 


electric metering experience.   


• Successful completion ofEnrollment in the State of Wisconsin three-year Electric Meter Technician apprenticeship 


required, or the ability to begin enrollment immediately upon employment. 







Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter Technician 


 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification 


for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Basic knowledge of drinking water distribution systems required; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


(WDNR) Grade T or Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification for the Stoughton Waterworks, with subclasses G and 


D, preferred.  Ability to obtain and maintain such certification required. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the WDNR Wastewater Operator - Advanced and 


Grade 1 Waterworks certifications. 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license required; Ccommercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification 


requiredpreferred.   


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference 


to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, 


copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as well readings, meter records, city ordinances, WDNR 


PSC and DNR reports and bulletins, water samples, distribution equipment reports, charts, policy manuals, maintenance 


records, WDNR PSC and DNR rules and regulations, vehicle manuals, equipment manuals, water main meter and CT 


wiring diagrams, construction specifications and plans, service applications, electric service rules, safety manuals and 


codes, and maps. 


• Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with Ddepartment personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, 


City employees, law enforcement, and WDNR PSC and DNR statistical reports. 


• Ability to prepare narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, and correspondence using prescribed 


formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtractsubtraction, multiplicationy, and divisionde; calculate percentages, fractions,, 


fractions and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform 


mathematical operations with fractions and algebra.  Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of information 


against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as motor vehicles, backhoe, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, meter test bench, 


air hammers, blacktop rollers, compactors, saws, hand tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, 


freezing/thawing machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, axes, etc.   


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 







Operations SpecialistApprentice Meter Technician 


 


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinerymeters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, 


potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repair of water 


distribution equipmentsuch as electrical work. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, 


balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and moderately potentially unsafe and uncomfortable conditions that requirewhere 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, 


noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, disease, machinery, explosives, gas, and high voltage electrical currents.  This 


exposure may cause discomfort and presents a highwhere there is a risk of injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Apprentice Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: March, 2022 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.   


Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual responsibility as the employee 


progresses through the utility’s Advanced Certified Operator Apprenticeship program.   


This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to Advanced Certified Operator status and 


requires continual progression, and is not considered a permanent employment status.  Advancement to Advanced Certified 


Operator status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-job training hours, and demonstration of 


job knowledge and competency.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other equipment at the wastewater treatment 


facility. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory analysis including 


sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, 


phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, 


and other analysis as directed.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes 


adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and calculates amount of chemical additives 


according to test results. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 







Apprentice Operator 


 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate 


controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight stays up to a week in length to complete 


the required apprenticeship classroom and hands-on training. 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call.  As progression 


through the apprenticeship program occurs, maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 


rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent with demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude. 


• Successful completion of wastewater treatment technical courses, or enrollment in the State of Wisconsin wastewater 


treatment plant operator apprenticeship program preferred.   







Apprentice Operator 


 


• Ability to maintain enrollment in the State of Wisconsin wastewater treatment plant operator apprenticeship program is 


required.   


• Ability to obtain and maintain CPR/First Aid certification is required. 


• Ability to obtain and maintain a commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required.  A valid 


motor vehicle operator’s license is required at hire. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, 


measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump 


truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation hand 


tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid 


adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.   


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically involving some combination 


of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, 


and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 







Apprentice Operator 


 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, shape, sound, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to severe environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 


machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical currents, and disease.  This exposure may cause 


discomfort and presents a high risk of injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Planning DivisionTechnical 


Operations Division 


Title: Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & 


Facilities Coordinator 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: JuneMarch, 202215 Reports To: Assistant Utilities DirectorOperations 


Superintendent 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to coordinate inventory and construction management tasks for Stoughton Utilities, including 


contract maintenance, public bidding and requests for quotations, purchasing, warehousing, asset installation and retirement 


records, and inventory maintenance.  This position is also responsible for the coordination of the construction workorder 


process from start to finish, including participating in the development of initial estimates, project closeout, and billing. 


This position also coordinates Stoughton Utilities vehicle procurement and maintenance programs, participates in the 


maintenance of the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), participates in the operation and maintenance of the 


utilities Outage Management System (OMS), and participates in the operation and maintenance of the utilities Supervisory 


Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems.  perform technical planning, development tasks, and coordinate utility 


construction and maintenance projects; to perform field duties including field engineering, electrical and water system 


construction and maintenance; and to serve as the Stoughton Utilities This position serves as the designated facilities 


coordinator manager.and the safety program coordinator.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Performs Coordinates a variety of technical planning tasks for maintenance and construction projects, such as preparing 


the preparation and distributing distribution of materials and equipment specifications, the preparation of work orders, 


and staking sheets, and the solicitation of ; soliciting materials and equipment proposals.  ; pCoordinates the purchasing 


and retiring retirement of materials.  ; and Assigns, schedules, and performsing basic engineering construction 


management tasks in the office and the field. 


 Coordinates electric, water, and wastewater projects from conception through construction, including design, materials 


issuance and retirement, inventory, pay request disbursement recommendations, and project close out.  Assigns costs 


and monitors job orders for material sheets and places data into the continuing property records systems.  Opens and 


closes construction and maintenance workorders, and allocates inventory.  Prepares forms, records, and written 


correspondence necessary to complete project file information.  Conducts yearend storeroom inventory of electric and 


water utility materials. 


• Coordinates and maintains contracts with vendors, including assisting with the evaluation of proposals, solicitation of 


bids and/or quotations, review and negotiation of contract terms, follow up action to address contract deficiencies or 


violations, and all other contract management requirements.  Participates in third-party service selection.  Coordinates 


contract execution. 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities Electric, Water, and Wastewater standard construction specifications.  Conducts periodic 


reviews of the specification documents to ensure they remain accurate and up to date, collaborating with utilities division 


supervisors to obtain input.  Shares construction specifications with project developers, engineering consultants, 


construction contractors, and others.   


• Participates in the planning of electric, water, and wastewater projects from conception through completion, in 


collaboration with the Distribution System Coordinator.  Makes recommendations for new development design and 


system expansion.  Coordinates customer construction estimating and new development design review process in the 


absence of the Distribution System Coordinator. 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


• Assigns costs and monitors job orders for material sheets and places data into the GIS and financial continuing property 


records systems.  Opens and closes construction and maintenance workorders, and allocates inventory.  Prepares forms, 


records, and written correspondence necessary to complete project file information.  Follows all accounting procedures 


to track materials, supplies, and equipment.   


• Collaborates with utilities division supervisors to maintain material inventory and procurement, including general 


construction, maintenance, safety, and vehicle items.  Receives input and recommendations for material quality 


standards and specifications.  Coordinates the evaluation of proposals and material acquisition.    Coordinates the year-


end inventory process for electric, water, and wastewater utility materials, collaborating with utilities division 


supervisors through completion of the assignment. 


• Conducts construction project plan and specification reviews, including utility easement review.  Obtains, reviews, and 


approves as-built plans, quantities, and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land 


developments.  Obtains and reviews private building construction projects, including reviewing compliance with 


existing utility easements and assisting in the acquisition of new utility easements as necessary. 


• Processes customer inquiries and requests for maintenance related to the electric utility; investigates complaints and 


performs corrective measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues.  Receives customer 


inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for 


resolution.  Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of 


planned service interruptions. 


• Conducts plan and specification reviews.Obtains, reviews and approves as-built plans, quantities, and acceptance 


certifications.  Conducts plan and specification reviews.  Coordinates Stoughton Utilities operations with engineering 


consultants and contractors, and participates in third-party service selection 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to maintain and improve the utility Geographic Information 


System (GIS), including updating asset data and locations for the electric, water, and wastewater divisions, developing 


maps and mobile services for utility employees and engineering consultants, and completing basic maintenance of GIS 


software, databases, geometric networks, and add-on systems.  Collaborates with utility division supervisors to obtain, 


process, and verify data updates.  Develops system documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the 


GIS team. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain the Supervisory Control and Data 


Acquisition (SCADA) systems for the electric system and the water/wastewater system.  Participates in SCADA system 


maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, remote facility networking 


projects, and OMS system integration.  Provides training to utility operators.  Develops system documentation.  


Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain the Outage Management System (OMS).  


Participates in OMS system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, 


and SCADA system integration.  Provides training to field employees on mobile system use, office employees on data 


collection and entry, and all other software operators.  Develops system documentation.  Participates on and reports 


system changes to the SCADA & OMS team.  


Process customer requests for maintenance and construction projects related to the electric utility.  Receives customer 


inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for 


resolution. 


Assigns costs and monitors job orders for material sheets and places data into the continuing property records systems.  


Opens and closes construction and maintenance workorders, and allocates inventory.  Prepares forms, records, and 


written correspondence necessary to complete project file information.  Conducts yearend storeroom inventory of 


electric and water utility materials. 


Follows all accounting procedures to track materials, supplies, and equipment.  Maintains inventory and product cost 


information in GIS.  Works with the Utilities GIS Analyst to update utility facilities and equipment in the GIS database, 


as well as modify existing data to incorporate new infrastructure and developments. 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


Purchase construction and maintenance materials for the electric and water divisions.  Purchases safety equipment for all 


Stoughton Utilities divisions; initiates and monitors their use.   


Directs water system engineering studies.  Prepares the annual drinking water Consumer Confidence Report. 


Assists in budget planning.  Participates in capital projects program development and implementation. 


Represents the Department on the Technical Advisory Committee.  Participates in public hearings and informational 


meetings regarding utility projects. 


• Serves as the Stoughton Utilities facilities coordinator for the administration building, wastewater treatment facility 


office, wells, and lift station buildings; schedules maintenance and repair efforts, mowing and landscaping services, 


snow removal, and janitorial services.  Responds to all operational requirements of the occupants. 


• Serves as the Stoughton Utilities facilities safety program coordinator.   Coordinates employee safety training programs 


to ensure regulatory compliance and maintains documentation of employee training history.  Conducts periodic job site 


inspections upon request and documents observations.  Manages written safety programs and conducts periodic reviews 


to ensure they remain up to date.  Serves as the Safety Team Leader and schedules and participates in periodic meetings.  


manager; schedules Rand responds to all operational safety requirements, requests, and concerns of the occupantsutility 


employees. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 


Safety Code (NESC). 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position 


and may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Serves as a backup for the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for cycle billing purposes.  Maintains 


ability to work a flexible schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working 


hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 


• Serves as a backup to collect the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer accounts.  Processes all 


daily meter workorders.   


• Serves as the backup outage coordinator during routine work hours, including scheduled outages and service 


disconnections.   


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and Water System Divisions, including basic 


system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Maintains active certificate of appointment as a State of Wisconsin Notary Public.  


• Performs electrical system maintenance and construction tasks such as connecting new services and service upgrades, 


chipping brush, substation inspections, electric and/or water service disconnection and reconnection, etc. 


• Ensures that all safety standards are met, and complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


• AssistsPerforms other all Sttoughton Utilities divisions as required, and performs other tasks as directed. 


•  


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in Civil Engineeringelectrical distribution, civil 


engineering, information technology, or related another field that provides relevant experience, three to five years utility 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


engineering technician experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, 


skills, and abilities.   


• Vocational or utility industry training in one or more of the following is preferred: facilities management, cost 


accounting, project management, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic Information 


Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), basic networking and information technology. 


• Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grade I-GD Waterworks Operator License. 


• A vValid motor vehicle operator’s license and commercial driver’s license is required.   


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate and categorize data. and information, following a prescribed plan requiring 


the exercise of significant individual judgment.  analyze and categorize data and information to determine the 


relationship of the date with reference to established criteria.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and/or 


sort information, as well as data, assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, 


compute, tabulate and categorize data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


• Ability to comprehend, interpret, approve, and utilize a variety of advisory and design data and information such as 


billing invoices, vehicle maintenance reports, applications for service, correspondence, capital plans, regulations and 


legal statutes, job authorization forms, purchase orders, ordinances, material sheets, staking sheets, computer software 


operating manuals, and safety rules and manuals.  Ability to utilize and interpret environmental, electrical engineering, 


water and wastewater engineering, computer software systems, geographical information systems, and accounting 


terminology. 


• Ability to advise, apply, and explain policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as contractor pay requests, construction specifications, 


construction plans, service applications, sanitary sewer extension submittals, inspection reports, safety training reports, 


transformer test reports, inventory lists, construction standards, capital project plans, maps, ordinances, vehicle 


maintenance reports, technical hand books, electric service rules, and Wisconsin Statutes and Administrative Codes. 


• Ability to communicate orally and in writing and orally effectively with Department personnel, customers, department 


and all levels of City personnel, contractors, developers, engineering consultants, legal consultants, regulatory agency 


personnel, City employees, and law enforcementthe general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, and 


other correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the Aability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplymultiplication, and dividedivision; and to calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals, volumes, ratios and spatial relationships; .   


• Ability to interpret and develop basic detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra.. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directions without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, and 


controlling. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against measurable or judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire 


program or multiple programs.evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


•  


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, 


complexcomplex, and rapid adjustments, such as motor vehicles,  dump truck, front end loader, fork liftforklift, bucket 


truck, digger derrick, etc. 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as computer terminal 


usetyping, repair, and operation. 


• Ability to exert moderate heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of 


climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, and crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing orand pulling over 100 


pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors color, and sound, 


taste, texture, and odors associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to review the work of others and provide recommendations. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe 


conditions that require exposure to under typically safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to construction site 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, and vehicular traffic hazards and electrical currents.  This exposure may  can cause 


discomfort and pose presents a risk of injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 


 


 







Utilities Engineering TechnicianAsset & Facilities Coordinator 


 


 







   


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Stoughton Utilities 


Title: Assistant Utilities Director Pay Grade:  FLSA: Exempt 


Date: MayMarch, 20162022 Reports To: Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to assist the Utilities Director with the coordination and administration of Stoughton Utilities, 


and assume the responsibilities of the Director in his/hertheir absence.  This position will also implement, administer, and 


monitormanage information and operational technology solutions for all Stoughton Utilities divisions, and be responsible 


for the management of the Electric System, Technical Operations, Wastewater System, and Water System Divisions. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Acts as Utilities Director in their absence and maintains continuity of day-to-day and long-term utility vision and goals, 


and ensures utility operations continue without interruption.  


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, 


Common Council, Utilities Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team.  Participate in required Utilities 


Committee and Common Council meetings.  Prepares monthly status reports as requested, in addition to other scheduled 


and unscheduled presentations and reports.Supervises and directsManages the activities of the Electric System Division, 


Technical Operations Division, Wastewater System Division, and Water System Division personnel.  Establishes and 


maintains productivity reports, assigns and reviews work, coordinates continuing education/training and professional 


development programs, schedules and approves overtime and leave, reviews work performed for accuracy and 


effectiveness, completes performance evaluations, etc. 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities information and operational technology systems, including internal and customer-facing 


software solutions, automation platforms, data networking and communications systems, computing hardware and 


peripheral devices, mobile device management, and user account management. 


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, 


Common Council, Utilities Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team.  Participates in required Utilities 


Committee and Common Council meetings.  Prepares monthly meeting agendas and notices, status reports, and other 


scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports. 


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents Stoughton Utilities in participation and 


communications with industry partners including WPPI Energy and Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW), 


lobbying organizations, regulatory agencies, legal representation, and elected officials.  Serves as the Alternate Director 


on the WPPI Energy Board of Directors. 


• Provides input regarding the activities of all divisions of Stoughton Utilities.  Establishes and maintains productivity 


reports, coordinates continuing education/training, provides assistance regarding professional development programs, 


assists with the preparation of performance evaluations, etc.   


• WorksIn conjunction with the Utilities Director and the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management , makes 


recommendations regarding and participates in staff hiring and promotions, employee feedback and coaching, 


disciplinary actions, personnel evaluations, staff development, and terminations.  


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, 


Common Council, Utilities Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team.  Participate in required Utilities 


Committee and Common Council meetings.  Prepares monthly status reports as requested, in addition to other scheduled 


and unscheduled presentations and reports. 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


• Manage the institutional knowledge of Stoughton Utilities.  Coordinates team meetings, peer discussions, and on-the-


job training, and promotes multigenerational communications. 


• Receives and responds to high-level customer inquiries and complaints, including those from elected officials and the 


Wisconsin Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and performs resulting corrective action and/or policy revisions. 


• Manages technology inventory to include procurement and disposal.  Assists with preparation and monitors annual 


budget, 10-year capital projects program, and 20-year capital operations program.  Maintains contacts with vendors, 


prepares proposal requests, receives and evaluates proposals, prepares purchase orders, and acquires material as 


required. 


• Ensures technology documents/certificates such as product registrations, software licensing and contracts, SSL 


certificates, maintenance agreements, service contracts, etc. related to technology operations and/or technology services 


are evaluated, processed, and maintained. 


• Manages phone and data network system operations.  Installs & maintains hardware; adds and maintains user accounts 


for SU staff and external contractors; assigns rights and access; assesses and reports upon operational status; performs 


system monitoring and performance analysis and tuning; troubleshoots system hardware, software, networks, and 


operating and system management systems, etc. 


• Establishes and maintains a well-run phone and data network system by planning and executing the selection, 


installation, configuration, and testing of PC and server hardware, software, wired and wireless LAN and WAN 


networks, telephone system hardware, internal and external telephone lines and circuits, and operating and system 


management systems; and defining system and operational policies and procedures. 


• Manages utility cybersecurity protection efforts and Ssecures phone and data network systems by developing system 


access, monitoring, control, and evaluation procedures; establishing, implementing, and testing disaster recovery 


policies and procedures; monitoring network input and output; and reviewing application and performance logs. 


• Configures and maintains workstations, software, printers, desktop and mobile devices, and other peripherals. Provides 


written and verbal instruction and education to end users on computer/device use, and problem solving.Manages utility 


physical security protection efforts and secures utility facilities by developing facility access, monitoring, control, and 


evaluation procedures, and reviewing physical security protections. 


• Manages the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), including asset data for the electric, water, and wastewater 


system divisions, developing maps and services for utility employees and engineering consultants, and completing 


advanced maintenance of software, databases, geometric networks, and add-on systems.  Develops system 


documentation. Coordinates and reports system changes to the GIS team. 


• Manages the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems and the Outage Management System (OMS).  


Manages system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, remote facility 


networking projects, and system integrations.  Provides training to utility operators.  Develops system documentation.  


Coordinates and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities billing, metering, collections, and customer service, and ensures compliance with all 


regulatory requirements. 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities customer outreach campaigns, long-term strategic planning of customer outreach and 


education efforts, public event planning, and other education and outreach efforts. 


• Manages technical planning tasks for maintenance and construction projects, construction and development project 


plans and specifications, and system outage and reliability reporting. 


• Manages the Stoughton Utilities facilities coordination for the administration building, wastewater treatment facility 


office, wells, and lift station buildings.  Responds to all operational requirements of the occupants. 


• Manages the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordination.   Participates on the Safety Team.  Responds to all safety 


requirements, requests, and concerns of utility employees.Designs, develops, and maintains web-based applications 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


including public websites and internal applications, including graphic design and programming.  Supports existing web-


based applications programmed in ASP.NET, VB.NET, HTML/XHTML, CSS, and JavaScript. 


•  


• Designs, develops, and maintains database solutions for internal applications.  Supports existing databases in Microsoft 


Access, Microsoft SQL, ESRI ArcSDE geodatabase, MySQL, and XML formats. 


• Designs, develops, and maintains custom programming and database solutions for internal and customer-facing 


applications and websites.  Supports existing custom programming in VB, VB.NET, and C#.NET. 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain technology inventory and procurement.  Provides input 


and prepares recommendations for material quality standards and specifications.  Assists in the evaluation of proposals 


and material acquisition.  Cooperates in the year-end inventory process. 


• Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement Program, including conducting reviews of 


system reliability and determining system improvements.  Assists with the preparation and ongoing monitoring of the 


Utilities annual budget. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and the National Electric Safety Code. 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and significant event response, including but 


not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies.Oversees 


Geographic Information System (GIS) systems, data, and projects.  Provides recommendations and assists in the 


coordination of system improvements. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages. 


• Assist other division personnel as required. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, and conducts system demonstrations and tours. 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required.Develop and implement effective customer service operations 


and positive customer relations, as well as assist with public education. 


• Develop and implement a public information program to promote a positive Utility environment in the City and service 


territory. 


• Works with MEUW to ensure that all safety standards are met, and complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety 


Programs. 


•  


• Works collectively with staff to maintain Stoughton Utilities facilities, assists all Stoughton Utilities divisions as 


required, and performs other tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


• Associate’s or VocationalBachelor’s degree in Computer Science or Network Administrationengineering or business 


management, or a related field.   with aA minimum of ten to fifteen years of responsible electric, water, and wastewater 


utilityies experience.  A track record of successful management, including a minimum of five years of and supervisory 


experience.  , oOr any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


• Significant knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, including experience with Supervisory 


Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic Information Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), 


and Customer Information Systems (CIS).   


• Significant knowledge of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, Access, Outlook, and PowerPoint) including 


scripting and automation.  Significant knowledge of Microsoft desktop and server operating systems, Exchange and 


SQL Server platforms, and Hyper-V virtualization systems. 


• Knowledge of scripting and programming concepts and commonly used coding languages.   


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Requires the aAbility to perform mid-levelcomplex data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, 


conclude, and appraise, analyze, and interpret an extensive variety of technical information and governmental 


regulations.  Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 


develop alternatives. 


• Requires the aAbility to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convincecreate consensus and collaboration, 


and train others.  Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and 


standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 


assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Requires the aAbility to utilize a wide variety of reference, descriptive and/or advisory data and information such as 


billing reports and statements; financial reports and statements; budgets; accounting and billing systems; computer 


software operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 


regulations; State of Wisconsin  legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 


• reports and records, studies, logs, timesheets, service rules, manuals, handbooks, procedures, guidelines, payments due 


lists, engineering studies, capital projects plans, Administrative Codes, State Statutes, Federal Register, and non-routine 


correspondence. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within established policies, procedures, and standards, as well as 


the ability to follow specific instructions and to respond to complex requests where established policies and procedures 


may not exist. 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, give and follow instructions, use and interpret civil, 


environmental, and electrical engineering and accounting terminology. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with Utilities division supervisors and other staff, customers, 


department and all levels of  City personnel, the Mayor, City Alderpersons, other City officialsinformation technology 


and systems consultants and contractors, software engineers, engineering and legal consultants, financial auditors, 


regulatory agenciess, congressional delegateselected and appointed government officials, and the general public, 


vendors and contractors, and others verbally and in writing. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assessconduct performance reviews, and implement procedures 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


• Ability to make decisions recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge 


of employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


Mathematical Ability 


• ARequires the ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals; interpret and develop detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 


operations make use of the principles ofwith algebra, trigonometrygeometry, and descriptive statistics. 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial data. 


  







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems such as supervision, managing, supervising, leading, 


teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to 


apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


  


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the 


evaluation of information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire 


program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, 


and rapid adjustments, such as motor vehicles. 


• Ability to operate a motor vehicle. 


• Ability to maintain and operate all Stoughton Utilities technologies. 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, calculator/adding machine, remittance processing system, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper 


cutter, hand punch, and telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as typing, electronics repair, 


and installation of computing hardware and cabling. 


• Ability to perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary moderate to light heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching,  and crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing, and or 


pulling over 50 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervision, managing, leading, teaching, directing, 


planning, disciplining, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for 


developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the direction, 


control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment and in public meetings under safe and comfortable conditions, as 


well as in the field under under safe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions where that require exposure 


to environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, noise, vibrations, machinery, and high voltage electrical 


currents.  This exposure may cause discomfortis minimal and poses little topresents no a risk of injury or death. 


•  


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, at construction job sites, and in public meetings. 







Assistant Utilities Director 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.  This position is identical to other Basic Certified Operator positions in terms of job 


scope and required qualifications and certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally -responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants.   


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other 


equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


• Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for complete and 


effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory activities analysis 


including sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic 


acid, and other analysis as directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports 


from sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations 


and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results.etc. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 


• Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Operates and maintains the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment 


readings, operate controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same. 


Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response. 


Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Performs custodial tasks. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


• Assist with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and four one or moreto six years water and/or wastewater operator experience.   


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced Basic 


certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above DNR Operator operator certifications- 


Advanced certification. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


  







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission 


of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; and 


safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and 


information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance 


manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, DNR 


personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and 


spatial relationships.  


• Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood 


chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, cement mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, 


voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making 


multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery..   


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping  equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate veryto heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofover 100 pounds. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms shape, 


sounds, texture, and odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


  







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe  conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness,  machinerydusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical 


currents, and disease.   and/or dustThis exposure  may cause or causing discomfort and presents a high and where there 


is a risk of injury requiring extended recoveryor death. 


  







Advanced Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Water System Division 


Title: Basic Certified Water Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Water System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on water 


distribution operations.  This position is identical to other Basic Certified Operator positions in terms of job scope and 


required qualifications and certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments.  This position requires 


a Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


(WDNR).   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally -responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment 


as directed.  Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other equipment at the wastewater treatment 


facility. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory analysis including 


sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, 


phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, 


and other analysis as directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from 


sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 


calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop according to Public Service Commission rules.  Investigates zero/low 


meter readings and reports findings.  Installs new, and replaces existing water meters. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage report and wastewater treatment reports, and submits 


to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  Prepares, or assists with the preparation of water meter 


change program reports. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate 


controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same.Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via 


computerized systems as required. 


• Field notifies customers regarding construction and disconnection of service. 


• Disconnects water service to customers with delinquent accounts, or upon customer request. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; recommends and performs corrective action as needed. 


• Maintains material inventories; recommends material purchases. 


• Serves on call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Assists with wastewater and electric operations as required. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 


guidelines and regulations. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and 


snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, or similar tasks as assigned. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent with and three one to fiveor more years water and/or wastewater operator plumbing 


or water utility experience.,  


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Basic certification for the 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.  A Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D from the Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources (WDNR) for the Stoughton Waterworks, and a commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake 


certification are required.   


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above DNR operator certifications. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


  







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission 


of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; and 


safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability 


to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as well readings, meter records, DNR reports and 


bulletins, water samples, distribution equipment reports, charts, policy manuals, maintenance records, WDNR rules and 


regulations, vehicle manuals, equipment manuals, water main diagrams and maps. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with Department personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, City employees, law 


enforcement, and WDNR personnel. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to add, subtract, multiply and divide; calculate percentages, fractions and decimals.  


Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work 


activities. 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of information 


against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump 


truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation hand 







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid 


adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.   


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically involving some combination 


of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, 


and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, shape, sound, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks.Ability to carry out directives without direct 


supervision. 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as backhoe, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, meter test bench, air hammers, 


blacktop rollers, compactors, saws, hand tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, freezing/thawing 


machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, axes, etc.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repair of water 


distribution equipment. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, 


balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture and odor associated with job-related objects, materials and ingredients. 


  







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odorshigh winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, disease, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage and 


electrical currents, and disease.  This exposure may cause discomfort where there isand presents a high a risk of injury 


or death. 


•  


  







Basic Certified Water Operator 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities –Technical Operations Division 


Title: Utilities  Billing & Metering 
SpecialistSupervisor 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: ExemptN 


Date: FebruaryMarch, 202216 Reports To: Assistant Utilities DirectorTechnical 
Operations Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Classification: 


The purpose of position is to supervise and perform specialized billing, metering, collections, and customer service tasks 
for Stoughton Utilities, including but not limited to: preparation and distribution of daily and monthly utility billing 
statements, maintenance of customer billing and metering records, review of electric and water meter data, and specialized 
customer service as it relates to municipal utility billing and collections, and general customer service as it relates to 
municipal utility operations and activities.   


This position is responsible for the supervision of Stoughton Utilities billing, metering, and collections personnel and daily 
operations, projects and development, and strategic planning, under the direction of the Assistant Utilities Director. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities: 
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 
be required and assigned. 


 Supervises the billing, metering, and collections activities and personnel within the Technical Operations Division.  
Establishes and maintains productivity reports, assigns and reviews work, recommends continuing education/training 
and professional development programs, schedules and approves overtime and leave, reviews work performed for 
accuracy and effectiveness, assists in the completion of performance evaluations, etc. 


 Supervises the completion ofPerform all tasks necessary to prepare and distribute accurate and timely billing statements 
for electric, water and wastewater service, and all other billed charges, including sStormwater uUtility charges for the 
City of Stoughton.  Supervises and/or pPerforms all tasks necessary to ensure proper accounting and reporting of billed 
charges. 


 Prepare all systems used to obtain scheduled electric and water meter readings.  Once obtained, review all meter readings 
for accuracy and process for customer billings.   


 Supervises the maintenance Maintain of accurate customer billing and metering information in the customer information 
system (CIS).  Supervises and/or pPerforms periodic account reviews for proper rate classifications and application of 
utility rate and rule tariffs, customer setups, responsible parties, meter installation details, tax exempt status, and all 
other reviews necessary to ensure accuracy. 


 Supervises the pProcessing of all electric and water meter installations, removals, and replacements, and completes the 
records of such actions in the CIS and on customer accounts.  Verifiesy all metering setups to ensure accuracy, including 
.  Perform field verification as necessarydirected.  Creates new accounts in the CIS upon completion of newly 
constructed metered services.  


 Supervises the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program, in accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) requirements.  Assists meter technician with maintaining program records, producing reports and 
statistics, and issuing customer notifications. 


 Supervises the utility water and electric meter inventory, including the oversight of metering standardization programs, 
meter procurement and disposal, and inventory reporting. 


 Supervises the delinquent account collection methods and policies, including customer outreach and notification, 
service disconnections, small claims court, and outside collection agencies.  Reviews and implements recommendations 
for new collection methods and policies. 







Utilities Billing Specialist& Metering Supervisor 
 
 Supervises the annual fall disconnection reporting in accordance with Wisconsin Public Service Commission of 


Wisconsin (PSCW) requirements. 


 Leads in-house training and support of CIS to other division personnel; creates/modifies customer reporting templates 
upon request.  Creates new and maintains existing CIS and metering procedures and instructional documentation.  
Maintains CIS and metering policies and procedures manuals. 


  


 Prepares all systems used to obtain scheduled electric and water meter readings.  Once obtained, reviews all meter 
readings for accuracy and processes readings for customer billings.   


 Calculates the monthly Power Cost Adjustment Clause (PCAC), updates the CIS for billing purposes, and prepares 
monthly reports for power supply and regulatory purposes. 


 Calculates account billing corrections, including back-billings and customer credits, and submits the calculations for 
approval and processing.  Prepares explanatory letters and spreadsheets for customer and regulatory review.  Maintains 
records of all corrections and supporting documentation, and submits annual report to the Wisconsin Public Service 
CommissionPSCW. 


 Reviews and approves customer account corrections not related to billed charges, including payment adjustments, 
deposit refunds, late penalty reversals, balance transfers, and submits the corrections for processing.  


 Verify and maintain property owner and tenant data for all new and existing accounts.  Review and consolidate customer 
and account numbers as appropriate. 


 Maintains utility rate and rules tariffs.  Updates rate information in the CIS and on the Stoughton Utilities website, and 
maintains physical copies of all tariffs for customer review. 


 Prepares and processes customer applications for residential and commercial utility service, contractor applications for 
new and temporary service, work orders, complaint forms, meter change out forms and reports, letters and other 
communications to and from customers and property owners, and more. 


 Coordinate customer outreach and marketing efforts.  Organize, create, and prepare monthly billing statement inserts 
and messages regarding energy efficiency, optional programs, utility education, etc. 


 Provide in-house training and support of CIS to other division personnel; create/modify reports upon request. 


 Prepares and issues reports, including but not limited to customer data, meter data, consumption statistics, financial 
statistics, trends and behavioral analysis, and inspection records, and reports findings to division supervisors, financial 
employees, third-party auditors, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


 Receives written and verbal requests, inquiries, and complaints;, coordinates actions required;, and responds to inquirer.  
Maintain files of customer complaints and inquiries.   


 Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 
outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


 Compliesy with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities: 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 
may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Assist with event planning including but not limited to: public power week, vendor/contractor meetings, utilities 
committee meetings , etc. 


 Assist with preparation of application materials for utility recognition, such as Reliable Public Power Provider (RP3), 
safety awards, etc. 


 Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.  Provide information and/or reports 
from customer account data as requested. 







Utilities Billing Specialist& Metering Supervisor 
 
 Perform related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, computer operation, maintenance of mailing 


equipment, and procurement of general office supplies. 


 Process customer payments received through various physical and electronic methods, including but not limited to, 
banking lockbox, online E-PayMy Account payments, Autopay (ACH and recurring credit card), night deposit box, in- 
person, energy assistance, etc. 


 Ensures performance of and may Pperforms visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and 
process incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients.  


 Provide back up forCEnsures completion and may completes various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: 
processing customer payments, preparation distribution of committee meeting packets, preparation of daily bank 
deposits, organizational filing, negotiating Ddeferred Ppayment Aagreements, reviewing and completing customer 
corrections and adjustments, issuing customer refunds, processing utility accounts receivable, balancing utility billing 
general ledger, etc. 


 Receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail.  


 Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies. 


 Assist other division personnel as required.  Provide assistance during monthly disconnection processes, annual 
financial audit, and public events. 


 Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


 Perform other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


 Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies. 


  







Utilities Billing Specialist& Metering Supervisor 
 
Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions: 


 High school diploma, associate degree in  accounting or related, with 5 or more -years utility billing, collections, 
metering, and customer service  experience required, or any combination of education and experience that provides 
equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.  A valid driver’s license is required. 


 One or more years electric metering experience and basic water metering experience required. 


 Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 
professional environment. 


 A vValid driver’smotor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions: 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  
Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 
alternatives. 


 Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  Ability to 
advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


 Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 
significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as . 
Ability to assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


 Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, 
as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; customer billing information; 
billing statements; meter data output and reports; computer billing journals; computer software operating manuals; city 
and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; State of 
Wisconsin legal statutes,; and safety rules and manuals. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 
as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


 Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, financial 
auditors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 


 Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 
prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of others. 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, and discipline, advancement, and discharge of 
employees. 


 Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


  







Utilities Billing Specialist& Metering Supervisor 
 
Mathematical Ability: 


 Ability to perform addition, and subtractsubtraction, multiplication,y and divisionde;, and calculate percentages, 
fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform 
mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability: 


 Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 
facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


 Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems such as supervisionsupervising, leading, teaching, 
planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.   


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 
information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs.. 


Physical Requirements: 


 Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 
terminal, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, typewriter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, 
telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions.and two-way radio. 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing. 


 Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of 
stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


Environmental Adaptability: 
 Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is minimal and poses 


little to no risk of injury. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the 
County will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective 
and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   


 


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Technical Operations Division 


Title: 
Utilities Collections Customer Service 


Technician 
Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: AprilMarch, 202215 Reports To: 
Utilities Technical OperationsBilling & 


Metering Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to perform collections and customer service and collections tasks for Stoughton Utilities 


including, but not limited to: maintenance of customer records, assisting phone and walk-in customers, collection of 


delinquent accounts through existing methods and policies, researching and recommending new collection methods and 


policies, coordinating processing customer deposits and deferred payment agreements, and handling a variety of customer 


payments.  In addition, this position will also perform general administrative tasks.  specialized customer service as it relates 


to utilities delinquent account collections. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Greets and directs visitors.  Answers, directs, and routes telephone calls and messages, and email inquiries received 


through the general customer service address.   


• Assists customers with verbal and written customer service inquiries, including general account inquiries, high-bill 


complaints, and questions about utility policies.  Documents all inquiries and complaints. Prepares work orders, 


customer inquiry/complaint forms, and service applications. 


• Processes payments received in-person at the front counter and issues receipts. Processes and posts payments received 


via mail and curbside deposit box.  Processes returned payments due to insufficient funds or other causes. 


• Coordinates payment of delinquent accounts through existing methods and policies, including: proactive customer 


outreach, printed delinquency notifications, service disconnections, small claims court, and outside collection agencies.  


Researches and recommends new collection methods and policies. 


• Coordinates Negotiates and maintains customer deferred payment arrangementsagreements for eligible customers 


pursuant to applicable Stoughton Utilities rule tariffs, including: negotiation, regular reviews for arrangement agreement 


default, and issuance of follow-up notification/disconnection as necessary.  Follows Wisconsin Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) requirements for customer notification following rejection of customer-proposed 


agreements. 


• Coordinates Calculates and collects customer deposits, including: proactive customer outreach, regular reviews of 


account eligibility, printed notices, account status updates, and negotiation of deferred payment arrangement 


agreementsnegotiation. 


• Coordinates Facilitates the electric and water service disconnection process.  Reviews all accounts for eligibility, 


processes creates printed and automated telephone warning notices, processes disconnect and reconnect workorders, 


and negotiates payments for reconnection. 


• Processes bankruptcies,  updates and maintains bankruptcy files and customer’s accounts, and processes and files court 


documents seeking reimbursementas necessary to file creditor claims. 


• Processes returned payments due to insufficient funds or other causes.  Provides written notices, refers accounts to the 


police department, and participates in court proceedings as necessary. 







Utilities Collection Customer Service Technician 


 


 


• Completes daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and process incoming and 


outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and distributes received postal 


and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


• Processes small claims collections through the court system.  Coordinates filings, notifications, and court appearances. 


• Processes new customer applications. Reviews credit history, verifies Verifies identities, researches prior account status 


as applicable, and calculates industrial, commercial and residential deposits as applicable.  Verifies and maintains 


property owner data for all new and existing accounts. 


• Maintains customer accounts.  Conducts periodic reviews for balance corrections and transfers. Conducts periodic 


review for uncollectable debt write-offs.  Conducts periodic reviews of unclaimed funds, and assists with submission 


of account information. 


• Maintains historical collections-related financial data. 


• Maintains medical/protective services list.  Issues annual renewal notices and processes customer response. 


• Reviews and implements regulatory requirements as they relate to customer collections.  Review collection and 


bankruptcy law changes and recommend policy changes as needed. 


• Receives written and verbal requests, inquiries, and complaints; coordinates actions required; and responds to inquirer.  


Maintains files of customer complaints and inquiries.  


• Greets and directs visitors.  Answers, directs, and routes telephone calls and messages.  Provides information and/or 


reports from customer account data as requested. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Municipal Utilities Safety Programs. 


• Perform other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members.  


• Participates in the creation and distribution of informational mailings.  Assists with public education. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials, and participates in 


outreach efforts. 


• Performs related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, typing, and computer operation. 


• Receives and processes incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail.   


• Assists with event planning including but not limited to: public power week, vendor/contractor meetings, open houses, 


etc.. 


• Provides back-up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: processing customer payments, processing 


monthly auto-pay (ACH) and recurring credit card, daily final customer billing, preparation of committee meeting 


packets, etc.. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies. 


 Perform other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


•  


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  







Utilities Collection Customer Service Technician 


 


 


• High school diploma, vocational training in bookkeeping, accounting or related, with 24- years of utility customer 


service or account collections experience required, or any combination of education and experience that provides 


equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   


• A vValid drivers motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions: 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some judgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and sort information. Ability to assemble, copy, record 


and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders, customer billing information, 


billing statements, computer billing journals, computer software operating manuals, city and utility policies and 


procedures, guidelines, non-routine correspondence, Wisconsin Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules and 


regulations, State of Wisconsin legal statutes, Stoughton municipal code of ordinances, bankruptcy laws, and safety 


manuals. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, bank 


personnel, title company representatives, bankruptcy and small claims court personnel, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, and subtraction, multiply multiplication, and dividedivision;, and calculate percentages, 


fractions, and decimals; and interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against measurable criteria. 


  







Utilities Collection Customer Service Technician 


 


 


Physical Requirements  


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, typewriter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, 


telephone, and two-way radioother items used in performing essential functions. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing. 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of 


stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is minimal and poses 


little to no risk of injury. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the 


County will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective 


and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Technical Operations 


DivisionStoughton Utilities 


Title: Utilities Distribution System 


CoordinatorOperations Superintendent 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: EN 


Date: JanuaryMarch, 202215 Reports To: Assistant Utilities Director 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to supervise, direct and coordinate Electric System Division, Meter Division, Planning 


Division and Water Division, personnel and operations, assist and coordinate other Stoughton Utilities Divisionsthe strategic 


planning and design of developments, projects, and system improvements, and supervise, direct and coordinate Stoughton 


Utilities in the absence of the Utilities Director.  This position is also responsible for the coordination of a variety of technical 


planning tasks from project preparation through completion. 


This position also participates in the maintenance of the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), participates in the 


operation and maintenance of the utilities Outage Management System (OMS), and participates in the operation and 


maintenance of the utilities Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems.  This position serves as the 


primary system outage coordinator for planned routine system interruptions as well as during major system events. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


• Supervises, directs and coordinates Electric System, Meter, Planning Division and Water Division operations and assist 


and coordinates other Stoughton Utilities Divisions.  Coordinates a variety of technical planning tasks for maintenance 


and construction projects, such as the preparation of customer construction estimating, new development design review 


processes, preparation and distribution of materials and equipment specifications, and preparation of work orders and 


staking sheets.  Assigns, schedules, and performs construction management tasks in the office and the field.Prepares 


and monitors budgets, plans and goals.  Develops, implements and eEvaluates policies and procedures.  Conducts and 


implementsParticipates in operational studies and assists in the implementation of recommendations.   


• Coordinates the planning of electric, water, and wastewater projects from conception through completion, in 


collaboration with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator.  Solicits comments and recommendations for new development 


design and system expansion from utilities division supervisors.  Prepares construction cost estimates for proposed 


projects and developments, and coordinates project scheduling with developers and contractors.     


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to review construction project plans and specifications to ensure 


compliance with utility specifications.  Upon project completion, reviews and approves as-built plans, quantities, and 


acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land developments.  Maintains construction project 


files and manages their long-term storage to ensure regulatory compliance. 


• Conducts construction project plan and specification reviews, including utility easement review.  Obtains, reviews, and 


approves as-built plans, quantities, and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land 


developments.  Obtains and reviews private building construction projects, including reviewing compliance with 


existing utility easements and assisting in the acquisition of new utility easements as necessary.  Files records of 


easement updates with the County Register of Deeds. 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain Stoughton Utilities Electric, Water, and Wastewater 


construction specifications.  Participates in the periodic review of the specification documents to ensure they remain 


accurate and up to date.  Shares construction specifications with project developers, engineering consultants, 


construction contractors, and others. 


• Coordinates system outages, planned and unplanned, and service disconnections during routine work hours, acting as 


the primary outage coordinator and point of contact.  Receives outage reports from customer service staff and outage 







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
management system.  Monitors locations of active outages and dispatches field crews as needed to address simultaneous 


outage locations.  Reports outage status updates to utility management and customer service.  Obtains outage report 


forms from field employees and logs outage duration and extent.  Compiles reliability reporting and statistics in 


accordance with regulatory and industry standards. 


 Maintains and improves utility service quality standards.  Directs all electric and water operations and  


• Processes customer inquiries and requests for maintenance related to the electric utility; investigates complaints and 


performs corrective measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues.  Receives customer 


inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for 


resolution.  Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of 


planned service interruptions. 


• Aassists with wastewater operations and Stoughton Utilities development programs.  Ensures compliance with local, 


State and Federal mandates. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to maintain and improve the utility Geographic Information 


System (GIS), including updating asset data and locations for the electric, water, and wastewater divisions, developing 


maps and mobile services for utility employees and engineering consultants, and completing basic maintenance of GIS 


software, databases, geometric networks, and add-on systems.  Collaborates with utility division supervisors to obtain, 


process, and verify data updates.  Develops system documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the 


GIS team. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain the Supervisory Control and Data 


Acquisition (SCADA) systems for the electric system and the water/wastewater system.  Participates in SCADA system 


maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, remote facility networking 


projects, and OMS system integration.  Provides training to utility operators.  Develops system documentation.  


Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain the Outage Management System (OMS).  


Participates in OMS system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security upgrades, 


and SCADA system integration.  Provides training to field employees on mobile system use, office employees on data 


collection and entry, and all other software operators.  Develops system documentation.  Participates on and reports 


system changes to the SCADA & OMS team.  


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 


Safety Code (NESC). 


• Serves as purchasing agent for the Electric Utility and Water Utility and other Stoughton Utilities Divisions when 


required.    Supervises all equipment, stock material and vehicle purchases, mandated inspections, and maintenance for 


Stoughton Utilities. 


• Supervising, directing, developing Develops and implementing implements capital project programs, engineering 


studies, utilities safety programs, , and Facilities facilities Management maintenance programs, SCADA, PCB program, 


substation maintenance program, tree trimming program, well abandonment and wellhead protection programs, cross 


connection control program, and other programs.  Provides direction and, assistance , coordinate and assigns activities 


withto other divisions, consultants, auditors, regulatory agencies, customers, etc. 


• Supervises, directs and cCoordinates electric, metering and waterStoughton Utilities capital projects upon request.  


Prepares and implements long-range plans and assists in the oversight of the work completed by contracted oversees 


consultant’s work. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position 


and may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Supports the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordinator.   Participates in periodic meetings of the Safety Team.  


Responds to all safety requirements, requests, and concerns of utility employees. 


• Serves as a backup for the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for cycle billing purposes.  Maintains 


ability to work a flexible schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working 


hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 


• Serves as a backup to collect the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer accounts.  Processes all 


daily meter workorders.   


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and Water System Divisions, including basic 


system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Maintains active certificate of appointment as a State of Wisconsin Notary Public.  


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training Associate degree in electrical distribution, Public 


Works, Ccivil Engineeringengineering, information technology, Electrical Engineering or related another field that 


provides relevant experience, a minimum of tenthree to five years electric utility experience,  including supervisory 


experience and data base/spread sheet experience or any combination of education and experience that provides 


equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   


• Vocational or utility industry training in one or more of the following is preferred: electric distribution system design, 


cost accounting, project management, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic Information 


Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), basic networking and information technology. 


• A vValid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


•  


• A DNR Grade 1 Groundwater/Distribution UGD Waterworks operator license and a DNR Wastewater Operator 


License are required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define decide the time, place, and 


sequence of operations, and the ability to oversee their execution.  Ability to analyze and categorize data and information 


using unestablished criteria, to determine consequences and to identify and selectdevelop alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 


assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.manage and direct Stoughton Utilities, including the ability 


to provide counseling and mediation.   


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests.Ability to persuade, convince and train 


others.  Ability to develop, advise and interpret policies, procedures and standards to specific situations.  


• Ability to comprehend, interpret, approve, and utilize a variety of advisory and design data and information such as 


activity reports, time sheets, billing invoices, training forms, vehicle maintenance reports, applications for service, non-


routine correspondence, capital plans, State Statutes, regulations and legal statutes, computer network operating 


software manuals, engineering manuals, job authorization forms, purchase orders, Federal Register and Administrative 







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
Codes, ordinances, performance evaluations, policy/procedure manuals, material sheets, and staking sheets, computer 


software operating manuals, and safety rules and manuals.  Ability to utilize and interpret environmental, electrical 


engineering, water and, wastewater engineering, computer software systems, geographical information systems, and 


accounting terminology. 


• Ability to communicate orally and in writing and orally effectively with customers, Stoughton Utilities Division 


personnel and supervisors, Utilities Director, other City Ddepartment Headsand all levels of City personnel, 


engineering, accounting and computer consultants, Mayor, Common Council members, City Officials, electric 


wholesale supplier representatives, other municipal utilities representatives, Wisconsin Public Power Inc., Municipal 


Electric Utilities of Wisconsin,  Wisconsin Rural Water Association and American Waterworks Association 


representatives, sales representatives, contractors, developers, engineering consultants, legal consultants, regulatory 


agency representativespersonnel, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare performance evaluations, training forms, time sheets, itineraries, letters, statements, notices, memos, 


narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, and other correspondence and a variety of other documents 


using prescribed and self-developed formats according to the rules of punctuation, grammar and style.  Ability to 


develop written document and computerized-media formats. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the Ability ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, 


fractions, and decimals, ; volumes, ratios, present values and spatial relationships.   


• Ability to interpret and develop basic detailed descriptive statistical projections and reports; and the ability to perform 


mathematical operations with algebra.. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directions without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use apply principles offunctional reasoning in performing influence functions systems, such as supervising, 


managing, leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinatingdisciplining, and controlling. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against measurable sensory and/or judgmental criteria; make decisions, and follow through on the 


consequences, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate, maneuver and/or steer equipment and machinery requiring monitoring adjustments requiring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complexcomplex, and rapid adjustments, such as bucket truck, digger derrick, motor 


vehicles, dump truck, front end loader, fork lift, etc. 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as meter reading 


equipment, volt meter, electrical equipment,  computer terminal, computer printer, photocopier, Facilities Management 


systems, CAD system, SCADA system, computer network, fax machinepaper cutter, hand punch, and telephone.  


Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in typing, repair, and 


operation. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing 


and, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, and crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and or pulling up toover 100 


pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, sounds, 


taste, and textures, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and tasks. 


•  







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, improve and implement procedures to improve the work of others.   


• Ability to select, train, monitor, discipline and discharge employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field under mildly unsafe and uncomfortable and 


potentially unsafe conditions where that require exposure to environmental factors such as temperature variations, 


winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, smoke, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, disease, electrical 


currents, and vehicular traffic.  This exposure may cause discomfort and presents  and where there is a risk of serious 


injury or death. 


  







Utilities Operations SuperintendentDistribution System Coordinator 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Technical Operations Division 


Title: Utilities Customer Service 


TechnicianEducation & Outreach Coordinator 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: Exempt 


Date: AprilMarch, 202215 Reports To: Assistant Utilities DirectorTechnical 


Operations Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to design and create utility customer outreach campaigns, utilizing traditional and digital 


platforms, design and create utility educational materials and programs, and design and create utility public information 


campaigns.  This position is responsible for the short and long-term strategic planning of customer outreach and education 


efforts, including maintaining current efforts as well as continuing to evolve them to match customer expectations and 


market trends.  perform customer service tasks for Stoughton Utilities including but not limited to: maintenance of customer 


records, assisting phone and walk-in customers with their account, and handling a variety of customer payments.  In addition, 


this position will also perform general administrative tasks. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Coordinates and creates customer outreach campaigns, utilizing traditional and digital platforms such as direct mailings, 


inserts, social media, email, and newspapers, with topics to include electric, water, and wastewater customer outreach, 


conservation tips and education, energy safety education, customer feedback requests, customer engagement, and other 


topics that arise. 


• Coordinates brand consistency in informational, educational, promotional, and social media publications and messages 


by maintaining and implementing design standards.  Reviews and updates materials created by other utility staff to 


ensure consistent design standards and branding. 


• Provides training and guidance to utility employees on acceptable social media use and platform operation, and keeps 


Stoughton Utilities social media team members up to date on current social media best practices and strategies. 


• Collects and analyzes customer data, including visits, interactions, and consumption and billing, and payment patterns, 


and uses this information to create comprehensive reports to improve future educational and outreach strategies and 


campaigns.  Analyzes customer demographics and tailors outreach efforts to ensure they are reaching the most 


customers and stakeholders possible.  Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities social media team members. 


• Grows and expands utility social media presence into new social media platforms according to customer interest and 


current platform trends, plus increases presence on existing social media platforms, including but not limited to 


Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, LinkedIn, and YouTube.  Researches emerging social media platforms and trends. 


• Researches and monitors activities of utility peers, partners, and other regional utilities.  Customizes Stoughton Utilities 


educational and outreach efforts to provide similar campaigns and strategies as offered by other regional electric, water, 


and wastewater utilities. 


• Creates and distributes engaging written and/or graphic content in the form of bill statement inserts, direct mailings, 


consumer and/or regulatory reports, e-newsletters, web page and blog content, infographics, presentations, and social 


media messages.  Updates materials regularly to follow current design trends and brand consistency. 







Customer Service TechnicianUtilities Education & Outreach Coordinator  
 


• Maintains partnerships with commercial printers, content creators, and marketing partners to assist in outreach material 


design.  Obtains stock photography and illustrations, and solicits content use permission from authors and trademark 


holders.  Maintains records of licensing and use agreements. 


• Coordinates event planning leading up to and during utility-sponsored events, including but not limited to Public Power 


Week, Drinking Water Week, Lineworker Appreciation Day, peer organization visits, Utilities Committee meetings, 


presentations and open houses for utility customers, public tours and educational training, staff meetings and events, 


etc. 


• Acts as public relations coordinator during sustained education efforts, such as utility construction projects, regulatory 


rate reviews and adjustments, conservation efforts, drinking water quality advisories, customer engagement programs, 


and more.  Creates and distributes press releases to regional media providers. 


• Coordinates school appearances, utility tours, and other educational partnerships with area educational entities, 


including but not limited to Stoughton Area School District, technical colleges, and private organizations. 


• Researches and provides customer education on new utility industry trends, including renewable energy, increased 


electrification efforts, safe water distribution and treatment, responsible and efficient energy use and expansion, etc. 


• Assists in economic development efforts for Stoughton Utilities, with a focus on informing potential new utility 


customers of the benefits of locating in the utility’s service territory, including rate competitiveness, reliability, and 


programs. 


• Prepares application materials for employee and utility recognition, such as APPA Reliable Public Power Provider 


(RP3) and Smart Energy Provider designations, MEUW and APPA safety awards, MEUW and WPPI Energy employee 


and elected official recognitions of service, etc. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.   


• Provide information to customers regarding their accounts over the telephone, by email, and in-person. 


• Assist customers with general inquiries, including high-bill complaints and questions about utility policies.  Document 


all inquiries and complaints. 


• Prepare work orders, customer inquiries, complaint forms, and service applications. 


• Process payments received in-person at the front counter and issue receipts. Process and post payments received via 


mail and night deposit box. 


• Prepare reports from account data as requested.   


• Perform related administrative tasks such as filing, faxing, typing, and photocopying. 


• Verify and maintain property owner data for all new and existing accounts. 


• Assist billing and collections staff as needed. 


• Assist billing and collections staff as needed. 


• Maintains ability to work a flexible schedule in order to respond to planned and unplanned customer engagement 


opportunities and significant event response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather events, 


and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies.  


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.   







Customer Service TechnicianUtilities Education & Outreach Coordinator  
 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: processing customer payments, preparation 


of committee meeting packets, preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred payment 


agreements, etc. 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and process incoming 


and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and distributes received 


postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various physical and electronic methods, including 


but not limited to, banking lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night deposit box, 


in-person, energy assistance, etc. 


• Perform related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, computer operation, maintenance of mailing 


equipment, and procurement of general office supplies. 


• Assist other division personnel as required.  Provides assistance during monthly billing and disconnection processes, 


annual financial audit, etc. 


• Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


• Assist with public education. 


• Comply with all Stoughton Municipal Utilities Safety Programs. 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


• High school diploma, bachelor’s degree in communications or marketing with vocational training in customer service 


outreach and education or related, with 13-years utility experience and 1-2 years social media management and content 


creation with experience of major social media platforms, or any combination of education and experience that provides 


equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


• Working knowledge of Microsoft Windows and other software in a business environment, including but not limited to 


Microsoft Word, Excel, and Outlook.   


• Working knowledge of computer graphic design and publication layout/design software, including but not limited to 


Adobe Creative Cloud, including InDesign and Photoshop. 


• Working knowledge of internet content design and layout, including HTML and CSS. 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Strong verbal and written communication skills, and ability to issue public-facing communications without secondary 


review.  Ability to communicate orallyverbally and in writing with customers, department and all levels of City 


personnel, bank personnel, title company representatives, law enforcement personnel, and the general public. 


• Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding 


the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well 


as . Ability to assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 







Customer Service TechnicianUtilities Education & Outreach Coordinator  
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders, customer billing information, 


meter reading slips, billing statements, complaint forms, billing journals, maps, computer software operating manuals, 


PSC rules and regulations, municipal code, procedures, guidelines, and non-routine correspondence. 


• Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate, inform,  and clarify to others within well- established policies, procedures, and 


standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders, customer billing information, 


meter reading slips, billing statements, complaint forms, billing journals, maps, computer software operating manuals, 


PSC rules and regulations, municipal code, procedures, guidelines, and non-routine correspondence.Ability to prepare 


posts, publications, color graphics, narrative and statistical reports, speeches, scripts, videos, letters, memos, and other 


correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


• Ability to communicate orally with customers, department personnel, bank personnel, 


title company representatives, law enforcement personnel, and the general public. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, and subtraction, multiplication,y and divisionde,; and calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals; interpret detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical operations with 


fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as persuading, leading, teaching, and planning.  Ability 


to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to 


problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity in situations involving the evaluation of information against 


measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs.. 


  







Customer Service TechnicianUtilities Education & Outreach Coordinator  
 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


workstation, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, telephone, 


camera, cellular communication devices including touchscreen phones and tablets, and two-way radio. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing and photography. 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of 


stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is minimal and poses 


little to no risk of injury. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the 


County will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective 


and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 


 







City of Stoughton 
Position Description 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Electric System Supervisor Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Assistant Utilities Operations 
SuperintendentDirector 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to provide field supervision to the Electric System and Metering Division, including personnel 
and daily operations, projects and development, and strategic plannings, under the direction of the Utilities Operations 
SuperintendentDirector.   


This position also efficiently and safely performs electrical distribution line construction, maintenance, and repair tasks, in 
accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 
be required and assigned. 


 Supervises and directs the operation and maintenance of the electric utility and distribution system.  Ensures compliance 
with regulatory agency requirements and, utility policies, etc.  Provides recommendations and assists with the 
coordination and implementation of electric distribution system improvements. 


 Coordinates Supervises the activities of Electric System Division personnel.  Conducts regular Division division staff 
meetings, establishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares and assigns work orders, conducts performance 
evaluations, coordinates introductory and continuing training programs, reviews and recommends the approval ofes 
timesheets, and establishes and maintains staff work and leave schedules, and assists in the completion of performance 
evaluations.  Plans short and long-term division work plans and projects, and guides the division’s goals and vision. 


 Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings and safety manual review.  Conducts routine safety compliance 
checks on active job sites.  Oversees division operations to ensure safety policy compliance.  Report out findings to 
Stoughton Utilities management and safety compliance teams. and reports to the Operations Superintendent. 


 Assists with the preparation, and ongoing monitoring, of the Utilities annual budget.  Assists with the preparation of the 
Utilities 20 year Capital Improvement Program.Assists with the preparation, and ongoing monitoring, of the Utilities 
annual budget.   


 Provides input and prepares recommendations for materials purchases and quality standards.  Maintains contacts with 
vendors, assists with the evaluation of proposals, prepares purchase orders, and acquires materials as required. 


 Provides input on vehicle standards and maintenance, and schedules all vehicle maintenance work.Supervises the 
division tool and equipment inventory, and evaluates and approves or denies requests from division staff for the 
procurement of new tools and equipment. 


 Monitors Supervises the Substation substation Maintenance maintenance Program program, and maintains all substation 
equipment, conducts routine substation inspections, ; and takes records weekly system readings and data.  Assists 
withEvaluates and recommends long-term planning for substation maintenance and system expansion requirements. 


 Supervises the electric line clearance program.  Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and maintains the 
annual schedule to ensure clearance program compliance.  Works with division employees to trim and remove trees and 
brush.  Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line clearance projects, and resolves line clearance 
complaints and inquiries. 


 Supervises the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing education and mentorship, evaluating 
apprentice performance and competence, maintaining apprenticeship registrations and program compliance, conducting 
routine reviews and assessments, and recommending advancement through the program. 







Electric System Supervisor    
 
 Supervises and maintains overhead and underground electric construction specifications and drawings. 


 Routinely performs lineworker work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and supervise system and equipment 
maintenance and repair tasks.  Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 
evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 


 Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 
connect and disconnect distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground 
electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults for repair.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 
expected of a journeyman lineworker. 


 Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of warning signs and cones, traffic 
control and direction, and more.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 


 Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator, or supervises 
staking completed by other lineworkers as appropriate. 


 Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate controls, 
evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


 Manages electric distribution system switching procedures and documentation.  Collaborates with the Distribution 
System Coordinator to ensure mapping and outage management system accuracy, and to maintain up to date switching 
workflows.  Provides updates and training on switching procedures to division staff, and ensures policies are followed.  


 Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material inventory and procurement.  Provides input 
and prepares recommendations for material quality standards and specifications.  Assists in the evaluation of proposals 
and material acquisition.  Cooperates in the year-end inventory process. 


 Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement Program, including conducting reviews of 
system reliability and making recommendations for system improvements.  Assists with the preparation and ongoing 
monitoring of the Utilities annual budget.   


 Makes recommendations for electric division vehicle replacements, additions, and retirements.  Provides input on 
vehicle standards and specifications.  Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle 
safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle maintenance work.   


 Maintains material inventory, receives packages, places material in stock, and approves payment. 


 Assists in ensuring compliance with Chapter 113 of the Public Service Commission rules and regulations. 


 Assists Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator with to developing estimates for new, replacement, and 
upgraded electric services, and makes recommendations for new development design and system expansion.   


 Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures, or schedules and assigns workorders 
to resolve customer issues.  Responds to customer inquiries and complaints.  ProvidesCommunicates information towith 
customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system .  Contacts customers 
regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


 Assist with cCoordinatinges and schedules the work of sub-contractors working on the electric distribution system.  
Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors to ensure compliance with utility construction specifications 
and contract requirements and expectations.  Communicates with subcontractors to discuss complaints and issues. 


 Maintains overhead and underground specifications book. 


 Operates and maintains the Electric SCADA system. 


 Maintains Standby status until at least five Journeyman Linemen are available. 


 Monitors district tree trimming needs and provides schedule to the Operations Superintendent.  Trims trees; removes 
and chips brush.   


 Provides input on vehicle standards and maintenance, and schedules all vehicle maintenance work. 







Electric System Supervisor    
 
 Responds to all daily outages and performs corrective work; handles all daily secondary/service needs. 


 Operates diggers, bucket trucks, hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 
connect and disconnect distribution lines and components. 


 Prepares work sites.  Erects warning signs and secures areas.  Maintains knowledge of and implements safety 
procedures.  Plans and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Recommends on-site operational changes. 


 Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults 
for repair. 


 AssistsAttends and assists with utility-sponsored with public education events, prepares public educational materials 
and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours,and performs Wires and Fires 
demonstrations and gives electrical safety presentations. 


 Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 
overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


 Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 
including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 
changes and tasks. 


 Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 
Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 
Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC).  Ensures full Electric 
System Division compliance of the same. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position 
and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 
violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


 Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 
premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 
of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric metersReconnects meters and transfers meters. 


 Repairs and maintains street lights.  


 Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


 Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 
commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, andor similar tasks as assigned. 


 Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 
traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  
Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


 Repairs and maintains street lightsstreetlights.  


 Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


 Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent and, completion of a four-year Electrical Lineman apprenticeship, 
vocational/technical training in electrical systems, with a minimum of five five years electrical system maintenance 
experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   







Electric System Supervisor    
 
 Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is required, or verifiable regional 


equivalent. 


 Journeyman Lineman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift Certification, and CPR/First 
Aid Certification is required.  


 Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 
professional environment. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  
Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 
alternatives. 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference 
to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, 
copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


 Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaborationpersuade, convince, and train 
others.  Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to 
specific situations. 


 Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate analyze and categorize data and information, following a prescribed plan 
requiring the exercise of significant individual judgementjudgment.  in order to determine the relationship of the data 
with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and/or sort 
datainformation, as well as assemble, copy, records, and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute 
and tabulate data. 


 Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 
diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 
non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well establishedwell-established policies, procedures, and 
standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


 Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, electricians, 
contractors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 


 Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convince, and train others.  Ability to advise and provide 
interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of reference, descriptive and/or advisory data and information such as reports and records, 
studies, logs, maps, timesheets, service rules, manuals, handbooks, procedures, guidelines and non-routine 
correspondence. 


 Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and time sheetsother 
correspondence, using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and  the work of others and implement 
disciplinerecommendations to improve the work of others. 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 
employees. 







Electric System Supervisor    
 
 Ability to assist in the preparation ofconduct meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such 


reviews. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 
interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 
with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 
principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


 Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, managing, leading, teaching, directing, planning, 
coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for 
developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 
information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as Hilti gun, impact tools, aerial bucket truck, digger/derrick, forklift, 
wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power tools, 
snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 
and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as high voltage electrical work. 


 Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


 Tasks involve the aAbility to exert regular and sustained extremely heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically 
involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, or crawling, and as well as lifting, 
carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 


 Requires the aAbility to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of color, 
shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials and tasks. 


 Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Journeyman Lineworker position description. 


Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others and implement discipline. 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


 Ability to conduct meaningful performance reviews. 


Environmental Adaptability 


Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to severe environmental 
factors, such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 
machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure may cause some discomfort 
and presents a high risk of injury or death. 







Electric System Supervisor    
 
  


  







Electric System Supervisor    
 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 
will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 
current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Stoughton Utilities 


Title: Utilities Finance Manager Pay Grade:  FLSA: Exempt 


Date: OctoberMarch, 20221 Reports To: Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to be accountable for the overall planning, organizing, controlling, and directing of the 


financial activities of the Utility, including coordination of all customer accounting with the Assistant Utilities Director and 


general accounting functions and information processing, and performing critical accounting and fiscal management 


functions in accordance with Stoughton Utilities goals and objectives. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Direct the operation of a central accounting system in a manner consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 


and practices, and in sufficient detail to produce accurate cost, financial and statistical data for both management and 


statutory requirements. 


• Implement and maintain a proper set of internal controls.  Makes recommendations for organizational changes including 


staffing and structure to maintain proper internal controls. 


• Develop and maintain financial systems, policies, and procedures to ensure effective fiscal management. 


• Develop and maintain optimal investment, borrowing, and other funding strategies. 


• Research and share grant funding opportunities for utility divisions and customers, prepare grant applications, and 


maintain post-compliance monitoring and reporting, including opportunities for principal loan forgiveness programs. 


• Administers state and federal funding program requirements, submits program applications, and submits all reports 


required for program compliance and disbursement. 


• Prepare and maintain short, mid, and long-term cash flow forecasts.  Collaborates with utility leadership to ensure 


fiscally responsible operations in line with current forecasts. 


• Directs the preparation of the annual Utilities budget and capital improvement program, including advising utility 


leadership in the review of estimates and the preparation of individual budget requests. 


• Manages relationships with financial consultants.  Collaborates with the Utilities Asset & Facilities Coordinator to 


Review review service fees, negotiate and develop contracts with service providers. 


• Prepare for andO oversee the annual third-party audits, including the annual financial audit and all other audits required 


by project funding agencies, including completing internal auditing in preparation, and submit all required regulatory 


reports.   


• Prepares and submits Public Service Commission of Wisconsin Annual Reports, and all other periodic reporting 


required by PSCW. 


• Administer the purchase card program. 


• Direct treasury management operations, online banking, and fraud protection programs. 


• Perform electric, water, and wastewater retail rate analyses, develop rate structures that ensure all sufficient revenue 


recovery, and obtain necessary local and regulatory approvals. 


• Process and close work orders including time, material, and equipment allocations, and asset retirements.  Manages 


prepayment reconciliation and customer invoicing. 







Utilities Finance Manager 


 


• Prepares and interprets financial statements, cost reports, and statements of receipts and expenditures at regular intervals 


for use by the Utilities Director, Utilities Operations Superintendent and utilities leadership, Utilities Committee, and 


Common Council. 


• Direct preparation of employee payroll, tax and benefit withholding, and periodic reporting. 


• Participate in required Utility Utilities Committee meetings, and other city committee and Common Council meetings 


as required.  Prepare monthly status reports as well as other scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports.   


• Leads in-house training and support of financial and workorder management software; creates/modifies reporting 


templates upon request.  Creates new and maintains existing procedures and instructional documentation.  Maintains 


financial and workorder processing policies and procedures manuals. 


• Assist in development and implementation of public education programs to promote a positive Utility environment in 


the City and service territory. 


• Maintain and review utility rate benchmarking; analyze and report on findings.  


• Provide support for personnel management functions including recruitment. 


• Provides backup for duties of the Assistant Director of Utilities. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and significant event response, including but 


not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.   


• Assist other division personnel as required. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials, and participates in 


outreach efforts. 


• Assists electric, wastewater, and waterall other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


• Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, Accounting, or Financial Management, with . 


• Ppreference for a Certified Public Accountant.  


• Minimum of seven years of management or project managementexperience related to financial/accounting operations, 


preferably in the utility environment. 


• Significant knowledge of generally accepted financial management and accounting principles and practices, including 


the ability to independently initiate analysis and solve a variety of accounting and fiscal issues from both long-term and 


daily operational perspectives. 


• Significant knowledge of Governmental Accounting Standards is preferred, but not required. 


• Significant knowledge of computer hardware and software used in the Utility utility environment, including experience 


with automated accounting, financial, and billing systems.  Advanced user of Microsoft Office applications (Word, 


Excel, Access, and PowerPoint) preferred. 







Utilities Finance Manager 


 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required, or the ability to obtain independent transport for required training 


and events. 


• Familiarity with State and Federal rules and regulations regarding utility systems. 


• Proven success and experience in teambuilding and collaboration, and experience with effective 


supervisory/management and human resource principles and techniques. 


• Understanding of effective customer service principles and techniques. 


• Comprehensive knowledge of electric, wastewater and water systems. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Requires the aAbility to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, 


analyze, and interpret an extensive variety of technical information and governmental regulations. Audit, deduce, assess, 


conclude and appraise.   


• Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Requires the aAbility to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convincecreate consensus and collaboration, 


and train others.  Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and 


standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 


assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw conclusions.  Good decision-making and problem 


solving skills. 


• Ability to promote teambuilding and maintain good working relationships within the Utility and other City Departments. 


• Ability to develop and maintain good working relationships with contractors, community members, elected officials, 


and regulatory staff. 


• Requires the ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convince, and train others.  Ability to advise 


and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Requires the aAbility to utilize a wide variety of reference, descriptive, advisory and/or design data and information 


such as work orders, financial statements,; billing reports and statements,; financial reports and, ledgers,; journals, 


summaries, regulatory rate review applications,; budgets,; manuals/texts, codes, accounting systems,; computer 


software operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; procedures and non-routine 


correspondence.; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin  legal statutes; and safety rules and 


manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


•  


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, effectively with the Utilities Director, Utilities Operations 


Superintendent, and all Utilitydepartment and all levels of  personnel, other City departmentspersonnel, Utilities 


Committee,financial auditors, technical support contractorsregulatory agencies, elected and appointed government 


officials, and the general public verbally and in written form. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 







Utilities Finance Manager 


 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of 


others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplyication, and dividedivision, ; calculate decimals and percentages, 


fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed descriptive statistical reports;  and make use of the principles of 


descriptive statisticsthe ability to perform mathematical operations with algebra. 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial and performance data. 


JudgementJudgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems such as managing, supervisionsupervising, managing, 


leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.   


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to 


problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the 


directionevaluation of information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an 


entire program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Requires the aAbility to operate office equipment and machinery requiring , maneuver, and/or provide simple but 


continuous adjustments,  on equipment, machinery, and tools such as a computer terminal, calculator/adding machine, 


cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, telephone, and other office machines, and/or 


materialsitems used in performing essential functions. 


• Requires the aAbility to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing coordinated semi-skilled movements such 


as typing. 


• Tasks involve the aAbility to exert light very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving 


some combination of but which may involve somestooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling,  lifting, carrying, 


pushing, and pulling of objects weighing five to ten pounds. 


•  


• Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, shapes and 


sounds associated with job-related objects, materials and tasks. 


• Supervisory Skills 


Ability to assign, supervise, and review the work of others. 


Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 







Utilities Finance Manager 


 


• Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors may cause 


discomfortis minimal and poses little to noa limited risk of injury. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Journeyman Lineworkerman Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Electric System Supervisor 
 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely perform electrical distribution line construction, 


maintenance, and repair tasks for the City of Stoughton, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications 


and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 


connect and disconnect distribution lines and components.  Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground 


electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults for repair.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 


expected of a journey-level lineworker. 


• Operates and maintains the electric SCADA system. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of .  Erects warning signs and 


cones, traffic control and direction, and more.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects andsecures areas.  


Maintains knowledge of and implements safety procedures. 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator. 


• Operates and maintains the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, 


operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.Locates underground 


electric cable faults for repair. 


•  


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Installs, repairs, and maintains municipal street lighting. 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance program compliance.  Works with division 


employees to trim and remove trees and brush.  Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 


clearance projects, and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing education and mentorship, 


and recommending advancement through the program. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, 


inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts 


system inspections and records findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 


overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 







Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 


Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC).  Ensures full Electric 


System Division compliance of the same.Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems. 


•  


• Participates in on-call status for emergencies. 


• Plans and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Recommends on-site operational changes. 


• Contacts customers regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


• Assists with public education and performs Wires and Fires demonstrations. 


• Repairs and maintains street lights. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Trims trees and removes and chips brush. 


• Operates loaders, backhoes, dump trucks, jack hammers, wood chippers, chain saws, cutting torch and welders. 


• Reconnects meters and transfers meters. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective action in response to customer 


inquiries and complaints. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, etc. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Completes weekly/monthly substation readings and inspection reports. 


• Recommends material purchases and maintains material inventories. 


• Provide leadership/training to the Apprentice Lineman.  


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 


premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 


of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  


Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 







Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains Stoughton Municipal Utilities facilities. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water Divisions as required. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and completion of a four-year electrical lineman apprenticeshipvocational/technical 


training in electrical systems, with a minimum of four years electrical system maintenance experience, or any 


combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is required, or verifiable regional 


equivalent. 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift certification, and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required.  


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required.Certification in CPR, first aid, Hilti gun, 


and forklift certification required.  Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 


diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 


non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and 


manuals. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship 


of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and/or 


sort datainformation, as well as ; assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, 


compute, and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well establishedwell-established policies, procedures, and 


standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as work orders, staking sheets, maps, outage reports, 


hazardous materials lists, safety manuals and procedures, construction specifications, transformer manuals, PCB 


manual, time sheets, vehicle logs, accident reports, technical operating manuals, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


co-workers, law enforcement personnel, electricians, contractors, tree trimmers and other city employeesthe general 


public. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplicationy, and dividedivision, ; calculate percentages, fractions,, fractions 


and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform 


mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


•  







Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.  Ability to use functional reasoning and 


apply rational judgementjudgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid 


adjustments, such as Hilti gun, Impactimpact tools, aerial bucket truck, digger /derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain 


saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable hcutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and 


blowers, ooks and belts, air hammers, census, dump truck, wood chipper, forklift, loaders, backhoes, cutting torch, 


welder, volt meter, hot sticks, extension sticks, hoists and blocks, phasing tool, cable locator, bolt cutters, winches, 


mechanic’s hand tools, carpenter hand tools, slings, hand lines, impact tools, grinders, etcand other equipment requiring 


monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex 


equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repairsuch as high 


voltage electrical work. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


•  


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate tovery heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching and, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging,  and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofup to 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between harmonious or contrasting combinations, 


as well as recognize individual characteristics of colors, formsshape, sounds, odors and texture, and odors associated 


with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require where exposure to severe 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, diseasegas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure 


may, vehicular traffic and/or dust can cause discomfort and presents where there isa high risk of serious injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


 
Name:  Department: Utilities – Water SystemTechnical 


Operations Division 


Title: Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter 


Technician 


Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Billing & Metering 


SupervisorWater System Supervisor 


 


 


Purpose of Position  


The purpose of this position is to maintain, repair, test, install, and read electric and water meters; maintain and operate the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system; and maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 


and distribution systems, and to complete water cross connection inspections for the City of Stoughton.  This position shall 


be responsible for evaluating electric and water services and determining the appropriate metering design, procurement and 


maintenance of electric and water meters and test equipment, maintenance of electric and water meter records, and 


installation of electric and water meters and equipment.  


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions, safe wastewater conveyance and discharge, and safe electric enclosures to 


protect Stoughton Utilities customers. 


• Maintains the utility’s electric and water meter testing programs to ensure compliance with Wisconsin Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) regulations and periodic test schedules.   


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC rules.  Maintains, 


and repairs meters, current transformers (CTs), and voltage transformers (VTs).  Prepares and issues reports on electric 


meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs water 


meters.  Prepares and issues reports on water meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, customer service 


staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


• Manages the utility water and electric meter inventory.  Establishes and maintains metering standardization programs, 


and collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain meter inventory, including the procurement of new 


meters and the discarding of damaged and retired meters.  Prepares and issues reports on meter inventory and annual 


activity to division supervisors, financial staff, and regulatory agencies as directed.  Completes the year-end inventory 


process for electric and water meters, CTs, and VTs.    


• Reviews applications for new and upgraded electric service connections, and determines proper meter type, cabinet size 


and type, and need for CTs and VTs, and wires customer meter sockets at commercial properties.  Conveys cabinet and 


socket requirements to customers and electrical contractors.  Collaborates with the Electric System Supervisor to 


coordinate electric meter sizing, installation, and repair. 


• Installs electric and water meters – including CTs and VTs as necessary – at customer premises, including temporary 


and permanent services.   


• Reviews applications for new water service connections, and determines the proper meter sizing and type.  Conveys 


plumbing requirements to customers and plumbing contractors. Collaborates with the Water System Supervisor to 


coordinate water meter sizing, installation, and repair. 







Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter Technician 


 


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission (WPSC) rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs meters, CTs and VTs. 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with WPSC rules.  Installs, maintains, and repairs 


water meters.   


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric and water meter inventory, electric and water 


meter testing history, electric and water service connection details and meter history, and other records as directed. 


• Manages the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program to eliminate existing and prevent future cross-


connections, in accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules.  Performs household and 


business inspections, issues corrective orders, and performs follow-up inspections as necessary. 


• Completes the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for cycle billing purposes.  Maintains ability to 


work a flexible schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working hours 


one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 


• Completes the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer accounts.  Processes all daily meter 


workorders.   


• Assists with utility billing operations by investigating zero/low meter readings for both electric and water, and reports 


findings.  Reviews customer history and consumption trends to detect potential meter issues.  Performs meter rereads 


upon receipt of workorders. 


•  


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Monitors and tests water and wastewater quality conditions. 


• Coordinates field delinquent collections operations, including disconnecting utility service to customers as upon receipt 


of disconnection workorders.directed. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and recommends and performs corrective action in 


response to customer inquiries and complaints.   


• Mentors, educates, and trains Apprentice Meter Technician employees when employed by the utility. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials, and participates in 


outreach efforts.  


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


• Repairs and maintains water mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and maintains water and 


wastewater service connections.  


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meter and other work orders. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer system. 


• Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via computerized 


systems as required. 


• Participates in emergency on-call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 


guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). 







Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter Technician 


 


•  


 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages. 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: processing customer payments, preparation 


of committee meeting packets, preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred payment 


agreements, etc. 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various physical and electronic methods, including 


but not limited to, banking lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night deposit box, 


in-person, energy assistance, etc. 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to receive and process incoming 


and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit.  Sorts and distributes received 


postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


• Maintains Stoughton Utilitiesgrounds and facilities, including such as painting surfaces,removal of ice and snow and 


ice removalfrom walkways and drives, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical maintenance, basic 


plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned.and general maintenance tasks. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and Water System Divisions, including basic 


system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for electric, water, and wastewater operations as directed. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for all other divisions as directedelectric, water, and wastewater operations as 


directed. 


  







Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter Technician 


 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for electric, water, and wastewater operations as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


•  High School diploma or equivalent, with three or more years electric metering experience and basic water metering 


experience required, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.. 


•  


• Four to six years wastewater operator experience, three to five years water operator experience, and three to five years 


electric metering experience.   


• Successful completion of the State of Wisconsin three-year Electric Meter Technician apprenticeship required. 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification 


for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Basic knowledge of drinking water distribution systems required; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


(WDNR) Grade T or Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification for the Stoughton Waterworks, with subclasses G and 


D, preferred.  Ability to obtain and maintain such certification required. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the WDNR Wastewater Operator - Advanced and 


Grade 1 Waterworks certifications. 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license required; Ccommercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification 


requiredpreferred.   


•  


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference 


to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, 


copy, records and transcribe data.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as well readings, meter records, city ordinances, WDNR 


PSC and DNR reports and bulletins, water samples, distribution equipment reports, charts, policy manuals, maintenance 


records, WDNR PSC and DNR rules and regulations, vehicle manuals, equipment manuals, water main meter and CT 


wiring diagrams, construction specifications and plans, service applications, electric service rules, safety manuals and 


codes, and maps. 


• Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with Ddepartment personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, 


City employees, law enforcement, and WDNR PSC and DNR statistical reports. 


• Ability to prepare narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, and correspondence using prescribed 


formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication,y and dividesion; calculate percentages, fractions,, fractions and 


decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.  Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 







Operations SpecialistJourneyman Meter Technician 


 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of information 


against sensory and/or judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or 


multiple programs.. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as motor vehicles, backhoe, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, meter test bench, 


air hammers, blacktop rollers, compactors, saws, hand tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, 


freezing/thawing machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, axes, etc.   


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer 


terminal, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 


• Ability to install and repair complex equipment and machinerymeters and perform coordinated activity around live 


electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repair of water 


distribution equipmentsuch as electrical work. 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, 


balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences between characteristics of color, sound, taste, 


texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and moderately potentially unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, 


noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, disease, machinery, explosives, gas, and high voltage electrical currents.  This 


exposure  may cause discomfort and presents a high risk of injury or death.where there is a risk of injury. 


•  


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Electric System Supervisor 


_ 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to assist in the day-to-day supervision coordination of the Electric System Division, including 


scheduling of daily operations and project oversight, acting under the direction of the Utilities Operations Electric System 


SupervisorSuperintendent.  This position also efficiently and safely performs electrical distribution line construction, 


maintenance, and repair tasks, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


• Assists the Utilities Electric System Supervisor with the coordination of the operation and maintenance of the electric 


utility and distribution system.  Ensures compliance with regulatory agency requirements and utility policies.  Provides 


recommendations and assists with the coordination and implementation of electric distribution system improvements. 


• Assists in the supervision of the activities of Electric System Division personnelcrews;. Actively participates in regular 


division staff meetings, and conducts such meetings in the absence of the Utilities Electric System Supervisor.   Assists 


in the maintenance of productivity reports, the review of timesheets, and the maintenance of staff work and leave 


schedules. Assists in providesing instruction and training; plannings, coordinatesing, assignsing, and reviewing ofs 


work; and the maintenance of ains sdivision standards and policies. 


• Assists in the coordination and organization of, and actively participates in, routine safety meetings and safety manual 


review.  Conducts routine safety compliance checks on active job sites.  Assists in the oversight of division operations 


to ensure safety policy compliance.  Report out findings to the Utilities Electric System Supervisor and the Stoughton 


Utilities management and safety compliance teams. 


• Monitors the Substation substation Maintenance maintenance Program program, and maintains all substation 


equipment, conducts routine substation inspections, and records; takes weekly system readings and data. 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and maintains the annual schedule to ensure clearance program 


compliance.  Works with division employees to trim and remove trees and brush.  Communicates with customers to 


provide notice of upcoming line clearance projects, and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing education and mentorship, 


evaluating apprentice performance and competence, maintaining apprenticeship registrations and program compliance, 


conducting routine reviews and assessments, and recommending advancement through the program. 


• Maintains overhead and underground electric construction specifications bookand drawings. 


• Routinely performs lineworker work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment 


maintenance and repair tasks.  Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 


evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 


connect and disconnect distribution lines and components.  Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground 


electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults for repair.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 


expected of a journeyman lineworker. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of warning signs and cones, traffic 


control and direction, and more.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator. 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate controls, 


evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures, or schedules and assigns workorders 


to resolve customer issues.  Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to 


provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Works in the field daily with crews needing additional assistance. 


• Assists in ensuring compliance with Chapter 113 of the Public Service Commission rules and regulations. 


• Assists with developing estimates for new/replacement electric services and planning for substations. 


• Conducts routine safety compliance checks with staff and reports to the Operations Superintendent. 


• Coordinates the work of sub-contractors working on the distribution system. 


• Monitors district tree trimming needs and provides schedule to the Operations Superintendent. 


• Conducts weekly Division schedule/updates meetings. 


• Oversees the training programs for staff. 


• Provides information to customers as required.  Responds to customer inquiries and complaints. 


• Maintains and reviews Apprentice Training/Training booklet. 


• Maintains overhead and underground specifications book. 


• Maintains switching procedure manual. 


• Reviews Electric Division daily time sheets for accuracy. 


• Reviews all paperwork handed in by lineman. I.E. Job briefings, staking sheets, etc. 


• Maintains Standby status until at least five Journeyman Linemen are available. 


• Writes and administers annual reviews. 


• Makes recommendations for electric division vehicle replacements, additions, and retirements. Provides input on 


vehicle standards and specifications.  Oversees routine maintenance and schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle 


safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedulesall vehicle maintenance work. 


• Maintain vehicle maintenance program. 


• Provides input on material standards. 


• Responds to all daily outages and performs corrective work; handles all daily secondary/service needs. 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 


connect and disconnect distribution lines and components. 


• Operates and maintains the Electric SCADA system. 


• Prepares work sites.  Erects warning signs and secures areas.  Maintains knowledge of and implements safety 


procedures. 


• Locates underground electric cable faults for repair. 


• Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems. 


• Plans and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Recommends on-site operational changes. 







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 


• Contacts customers regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


• Assists with public education and performs Wires and Fires demonstrations. 


• Trims trees and removes and chips brush. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Recommends material purchases. 


• Maintains material inventories. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs. 


• Participates in on-call status for emergencies. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective action in response to customer 


inquiries and complaints. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, etc. 


• Completes weekly/monthly substation readings and inspection reports.Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public 


events, prepares public educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and 


tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, 


inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts 


system inspections and records findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 


overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 


Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC).  Ensures full Electric 


System Division compliance of the same. 


•  


Provide leadership/training to the Apprentice Lineman. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 


premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 


of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  


Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Repairs and maintains street lightsstreetlights.  


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Operates loaders, backhoes, dump trucks, jack hammers, wood 


chippers, chain saws, cutting torch and welders. 


• Reconnects meters and transfers meters. 


• Repairs and maintains street lights.  


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Maintains Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Other duties as defined by management. 


 


 


 


 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and completion of a four-year Electrical Lineman apprenticeship and, 


vocational/technical training in electrical systems and Electric System Journeyman Lineman training, with a minimum 


of five four years electrical system maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that 


provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is required, or verifiable regional 


equivalent. 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift certification, and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required.  


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 


professional environment. 


• Position requires Journeyman Lineman Certification, Forklift Certification, CPR/First Aid Certification, and a 


Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification is required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 


• Ability to provide oversight and backup supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  


Ability to advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 


situations. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 


diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 


non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Requires the ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and 


appraise.  Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 


develop alternatives. 


• Requires the ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to persuade, convince, and train others.  Ability to advise 


and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, electricians, 


contractors, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


• Requires the ability to utilize a variety of reference, descriptive and/or advisory data and information such as reports 


and records, studies, logs, maps, timesheets, service rules, manuals, handbooks, procedures, guidelines and non-routine 


correspondence. 


• Ability to prepare reports and time sheets, using prescribed formats. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign,, supervise and review, develop, assess, and  the work of others and implement recommendations to 


improve the work of othersdiscipline. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such review. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the aAbility to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with fractions and algebra. 


  







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems such as supervisionsupervising, managing, leading, 


teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts 


and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the direction, 


control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


•  


  







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 
Physical Requirements 


• Requires the aAbility to operate equipment and machinery such as Hilti gun, Ampactimpact tools, an aerial bucket 


truck, digger/derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, 


meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions 


and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as high voltage electrical work. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Tasks involve the aAbility to exert regular and sustained extremely heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically 


involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and or lifting, as well as 


carrying, pushing, shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 


• Requires the aAbility to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, 


shapes, sounds, and textures, and odor associateds with job-related objects, materials and tasks. 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Journeyman Lineworker position description. 


  







Electric System Lead Journeyman Lineworkerman                 


 
Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others and implement discipline. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to severe environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 


machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure may cause some 


discomfort and presents a high risk of injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater Wastewater 


System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater Wastewater 


System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.  This position is identical to other non-certified Operator positions in terms of job scope, 


however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments, required qualifications, and certifications.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally -responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants.   


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other 


equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


• Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for complete and 


effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory activities analysis 


including sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic 


acid, and other analysis as directed.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings.  


Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and calculates amount of chemical additives 


according to test results.etc. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 


• Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


• Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Operates and maintains the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment 


readings, operate controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same. 


Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response. 


Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Performs custodial tasks. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


• Assist with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and four one or moreto six years water and/or wastewater operator experience. 


• Demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude.   


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator - Advanced certification. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and 


information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance 


manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, DNR 


personnel, and vendor representatives. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and 


spatial relationships.  


• Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood 


chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, cement mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, 


voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making 


multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery..   


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping  equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate veryto heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofover 100 pounds. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms shape, 


sounds, texture, and odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe  conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness,  machinerydusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical 


currents, and disease.   and/or dustThis exposure  may cause or causing discomfort and presents a high and where there 


is a risk of injury requiring extended recoveryor death. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater Water System 


Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Utilities Wastewater Water System 


Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, and distribution systems, and the 


wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 


collection and treatment operations.  This position is identical to other non-certified Operator positions in terms of job scope, 


however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments, required qualifications, and certifications.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities customers, via obtaining and testing routine water 


samples, monitoring and recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and testing water and 


wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA 


system. 


• Ensures environmentally -responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes, 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and 


maintains water service connections. Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and equipment.  


Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants.   


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Repairs and maintains Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all other 


equipment at the wastewater treatment facility.and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


• Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for complete and 


effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


• Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as assigned. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, and performs laboratory activities analysis 


including sample testing and calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic 


acid, and other analysis as directed.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings.  


Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and calculates amount of chemical additives 


according to test results.etc. 


• Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and wastewater treatment reports, and submits to 


the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


• Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Operates and maintains the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment 


readings, operate controls, evaluate system performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts system inspections and records 


findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service connection details, flushing and exercising 


maintenance records, televising records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Divisions.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW).  Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the 


same. 


Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response. 


Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician 


with the maintenance and repair of water meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, including basic system repair, traffic control 


and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and other tasks as 


directed.  Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Performs custodial tasks. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


• Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


• Assist with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and four one or moreto six years water and/or wastewater operator experience. 


• Demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude.   


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator - Advanced certification. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction 


specifications; blueprints; lab records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to requests. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


plumbers, contractors, regulatory representatives, and the general public.Ability to analyze and categorize data and 


information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to 


compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and 


information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and maintenance 


manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, DNR 


personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals; 


interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


with fractions and algebra.Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and 


spatial relationships.  


• Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.   


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and judgmental criteriaAbility to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in 


performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as impact tools, sewer line jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood 


chipper, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, cement mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, 


voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making 


multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery..   


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy excavation 


and pumping  equipment. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, potentially in tight spaces. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate veryto heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofover 100 pounds. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms shape, 


sounds, texture, and odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe  conditions where that require 


exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic 


agents, noise, vibrations, wetness,  machinerydusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage electrical 


currents, and disease.   and/or dustThis exposure  may cause or causing discomfort and presents a high and where there 


is a risk of injury requiring extended recoveryor death. 


  







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Electric System Division 


Title: Senior Journeyman Lineworkerman Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Utilities Electric System Supervisor 
 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely perform electrical distribution line construction, 


maintenance, and repair tasks for the City of Stoughton, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications 


and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical distribution lines.  Operates live-line tools to 


connect and disconnect distribution lines and components.  Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground 


electrical systems.  Locates underground electric cable faults for repair.  Performs all other industry-standard duties 


expected of a journey-level lineworker. 


• Operates and maintains the electric SCADA system. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of .  Erects warning signs and 


cones, traffic control and direction, and more.  Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects andsecures areas.  


Maintains knowledge of and implements safety procedures. 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities Distribution System Coordinator. 


• Operates and maintains the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, 


operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and load, and investigate outage conditions. 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective measures.  Communicates with customers as 


required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.Locates underground 


electric cable faults for repair. 


•  


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks.  


Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety compliance. 


• Installs, repairs, and maintains municipal street lighting. 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance program compliance.  Works with division 


employees to trim and remove trees and brush.  Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 


clearance projects, and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing education and mentorship, 


and recommending advancement through the program. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, 


inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed.  Conducts 


system inspections and records findings. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service connection details, circuit identifications, 


overhead and underground system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 







Senior Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 


Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call.   


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and the National Electric Safety Code (NESC).  Ensures full Electric 


System Division compliance of the same.Installs primary and secondary overhead and underground electrical systems. 


•  


• Participates in on-call status for emergencies. 


• Plans and directs on-site maintenance/repair tasks.  Recommends on-site operational changes. 


• Contacts customers regarding temporary power outages and tree trimming operations and possible damage. 


• Assists with public education and performs Wires and Fires demonstrations. 


• Repairs and maintains street lights. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Trims trees and removes and chips brush. 


• Operates loaders, backhoes, dump trucks, jack hammers, wood chippers, chain saws, cutting torch and welders. 


• Reconnects meters and transfers meters. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective action in response to 


customer inquiries and complaints. 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time sheets, etc. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Completes weekly/monthly substation readings and inspection reports. 


• Recommends material purchases and maintains material inventories. 


• Provide leadership/training to the Apprentice Lineman.  


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer 


premises, including temporary and permanent services.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair 


of electric meters, CTs, and VTs.  Reconnects and transfers electric meters. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


commercial electrical maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other tasks as directed.  


Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 







Senior Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.Maintains Stoughton Municipal Utilities facilities. 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water Divisions as required. 


• Paints surfaces. 


• Removes ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and completion of a four-year electrical lineman apprenticeshipvocational/technical 


training in electrical systems, with a minimum of 20 years electrical system maintenance experience, or any combination 


of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is required, or verifiable regional 


equivalent. 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift certification, and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required.  


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required.Certification in CPR, first aid, Hilti gun, 


and forklift certification required.  Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; staking sheets; utility maps and 


diagrams; construction specifications; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 


non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and 


manuals. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


some individual judgementjudgment, analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship 


of the data with reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and/or 


sort datainformation, as well as ; assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, 


compute, and tabulate data. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well establishedwell-established policies, procedures, and 


standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as work orders, staking sheets, maps, outage reports, 


hazardous materials lists, safety manuals and procedures, construction specifications, transformer manuals, PCB 


manual, time sheets, vehicle logs, accident reports, technical operating manuals, procedures and guidelines. 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 


co-workers, law enforcement personnel, electricians, contractors, tree trimmers and other city employeesthe general 


public. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplicationy, and dividedivision, ; calculate percentages, fractions,, fractions 


and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform 


mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 







Senior Journeyman Lineworkerman   


 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching.  Ability to use functional reasoning and 


apply rational judgementjudgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid 


adjustments, such as Hilti gun, Impactimpact tools, aerial bucket truck, digger /derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain 


saw, back hoe, roller, compression tools, cable hcutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power tools, snow plows and 


blowers, ooks and belts, air hammers, census, dump truck, wood chipper, forklift, loaders, backhoes, cutting torch, 


welder, volt meter, hot sticks, extension sticks, hoists and blocks, phasing tool, cable locator, bolt cutters, winches, 


mechanic’s hand tools, carpenter hand tools, slings, hand lines, impact tools, grinders, etcand other equipment requiring 


monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  Ability to repair complex 


equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in repairsuch as high 


voltage electrical work. 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


•  


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate tovery heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching and, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging,  and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess ofup to 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between harmonious or contrasting combinations, 


as well as recognize individual characteristics of colors, formsshape, sounds, odors and texture, and odors associated 


with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require where exposure to severe 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, diseasegas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure 


may, vehicular traffic and/or dust can cause discomfort and presents where there isa high risk of serious injury or death. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 


 







 


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Stoughton Utilities 


Title: Utilities Director Pay Grade:  FLSA: Exempt 


Date: OctoberMarch, 20182022 Reports To: Mayor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to direct and supervise and direct the electric distribution, water distribution, and wastewater 


collection and treatment operations of Stoughton Utilities, including system design and development, system maintenance 


and construction, utility coordination, financial management, billing and customer service, regulatory compliance, and 


utility administration. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


• Supervises and dDirects wastewater, water, and electricall Stoughton Utilities operations; prepares and monitors 


budgets, plans, and goals; develops policies and procedures; implements operations study recommendations; maintains 


utility service quality standards; coordinates various construction and development programs; ensures compliance with 


Safe Drinking Water Act, Clean Water Act, and otherall local, State, and Federal mandates. 


• Provides direction and assistance to the Utilities Division Supervisors regardingDirects Stoughton Utilities personnel, 


processes, and technology, including engineering studies, utilities safety programs, CAD and SCADAtechnology and 


automation systems implementation, well abandonment and well head protection programs, and other programs. 


Provides information and assistance to, and coordinates activities with, other divisionsCity of Stoughton departments, 


consultants, auditors, regulatory agencies, customers, etcdevelopers, and elected officials. 


• Coordinates Directs Stoughton Utilities annual budget and capital improvement projects; program, and implements 


long-range plansstrategic vision.; oversees the work of consultants.  


• Coordinates Directs all electric, water, and wastewater infrastructure maintenance and construction projects with the 


direct assistance of the Utilities Operators Superintendent. 


• Supervises and dDirects and supervises the activities of Stoughton Utilities staffpersonnel.  In conjunction with the 


Director of Human Resources & Risk Management Director, participates in staff hiring and promotions,; provides 


employee feedback and coaching; , assists with disciplinary actions; , prepares personnel evaluations; , and provides 


assistance regarding staff development, and terminations. 


• Directs Stoughton Utilities public education and outreach programs.  Serves as the utility public information officer and 


represents Stoughton Utilities in press releases, media interviews, public statements and presentations, and community 


events. 


• Directs the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordination.   Participates on the Safety Team.  Responds to all safety 


requirements, requests, and concerns of utility employees.  Conducts safety investigations. 


• Facilitates staff meetings.  Represent Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, Common Council, Utilities 


Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team.  Participates in required Utilities Committee and Common 


Council meetings.    Prepares monthly meeting agendas and notices, status reports, as requested, in additionand other 


scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports.   


• Represents Stoughton Utilities in participation and communications with industry partners including Serves on the 


Wisconsin Public PowerWPPI Energy Board of Directors and serve as a representative to the Municipal Electric 


Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW), lobbying organizations, regulatory agencies, legal representation, and elected officials.  







Utilities Director 


 
the Wisconsin Rural Water Association, Wisconsin Wastewater Operators Association, American Water Works 


Association, and the American Public Power Association.Serves as Director on the WPPI Energy Board of Directors. 


• Receives and resolves high-level public and regulatory agency inquiries and complaints, including those from elected 


officials and the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and implements resulting corrective action and/or policy 


revisions. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, and the National Electric Safety Code. 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and significant event response, including but 


not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies.. 


  







Utilities Director 


 
Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Greet and direct visitors.  Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, and conducts system demonstrations and tours. 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• Bachelor’s degree in Civil Eengineering or business administration, or related field, with preferredpreference for State 


of Wisconsin licensure for Professional Engineer, or Bachelor’s degree in Business, or related field.  A track record 


of successful management and supervisory experience required.  A minimum of ten 15 years of utilities utility 


leadership experience, including management and supervisory experience preferred.   


• Must have or obtain, within one year, Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grade 1-GD Waterworks 


Operator License Certification with subclasses G and D, or such certification designated as Operator in Training.   


• Must have or obtain, within one year, Wisconsin DNR Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator License Certification – 


Basic, or such certification designated as Operator in Training. 


• Previous business economic development experience preferred but not required. 


• Knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, including experience with utility system automation, 


asset management, and mapping platforms.  Advanced user of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, and 


PowerPoint). 


• Possesses a vValid motor vehicle operator’s license is required.  


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, analyze, and 


interpret an extensive variety of technical information and governmental regulations.  Requires discretion in determining 


and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop alternatives. 


• Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  Ability to 


advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgment.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 


assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


• Ability to comprehend and interpretutilize a wide variety of documents advisory data and information such asincluding 


civil engineering plans; engineering studies and reports; construction specifications; bid documents and tabulations; 


utility statistical reports, demand and consumption reports, and wholesale billing statements; financial reports and 


statements; budgets; activity reports, water reports, electric reports, wastewater reports, training forms, time sheets, 


payment due lists, city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine letters and other correspondence; 


Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin  legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals., engineering studies, capital 


projects plans, Administrative Codes, State Statutes, Federal Register, and other requirements, safety manuals, 


engineering references, etc. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including performance evaluations, training forms, time sheets, vehicle 


reports, letters and other correspondence, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, 


grammar, diction, and style. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within established policies, procedures, and standards, as well as 


the ability to respond to complex requests where established policies and procedures may not exist. 







Utilities Director 


 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and give and follow instructions. 


• Ability to, use and interpret civil, environmental, and electrical engineering and accounting terminology. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, effectively with Utilities division supervisorsdepartment 


and all levels of other City staffpersonnel, construction consultants and contractorscustomers, the Mayor, alderpersons, 


and other City officials, engineering and legal consultants, financial auditors, regulatory agencies, congressional 


delegateselected and appointed government officials, and the general public, and others verbally and in writing. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including performance evaluations, training forms, time sheets, vehicle 


reports, letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence, etc. using 


prescribed formats according to and conforming to allaccepted rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of 


others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to prepare meaningful performance reviews and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


•  


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplymultiplication, and dividedivision, ; calculate decimals and 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to 


perform mathematical operations with  and make use of the principles of basic algebra, geometry, and descriptive 


statistics. 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial data. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives with direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performingapply principles of influence functions systems such as supervising, 


managing, supervising, leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and coaching, and controlling. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/ormeasurable or judgmental criteria; , and involving the direction, control and planning 


of an entire program or multiple programs.make decisions, and follow through on the consequences. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, 


and rapid adjustments, such as a motor vehicles. 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, including 


such as computer terminal, calculator, photocopier, fax machine, telephone, etc.and other items used in performing 


essential functions. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing. 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of 


stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 


• Ability to operate a motor vehicle. 







Utilities Director 


 
Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review the work of others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, at work sites, and in public meetings under safe and comfortable 


conditions, as well as in the field under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, noise, vibrations, wetness, 


machinery, and vehicular traffic.  This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or death. 


  







Utilities Director 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Wastewater System Supervisor Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: JanuaryMarch, 202217 Reports To: Assistant Utilities Director 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to provide superviseion to the Wastewater System Division, including personnel and daily 


operations, projects and development, and strategic planning, under the direction of the Utilities Director, including 


supervision of , direct, and coordinate the Stoughton Utilities wastewater treatment facilities and the sanitary sewer 


collection system operations and activities.  This position serves as the designated Operator in Charge of the Stoughton 


Wastewater Treatment Facility and assumes all obligations and responsibility for regulatory compliance.   


This position also efficiently and safely performs wastewater treatment system operations, maintenance, and repair tasks, 


and participates in construction projects, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  


The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


• Supervises and directs the daily operations and maintenance of the wastewater treatment plant and collection system, 


and; oversees and monitors the wastewater treatment process; .  ensures Ensures compliance with regulatory agency 


requirements and utility policies, including compliance with all requirements of the Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge 


Elimination System (WPDES) permit issued to the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility.and other requirements.  


Ensures environmentally-responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via obtaining and testing routine wastewater 


treatment samples throughout the treatment process and, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank volumes., 


monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality conditions, and monitoring and recording data and 


operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Supervises and directs the activities of wWastewater System Division personnel;.  cConducts regular division staff 


meetings, establishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares and assigns work orders, coordinates introductory 


and continuing training programs, reviews and approves timesheets, establishes and maintains staff work and leave 


schedules, and assists in the completion of performance evaluations.  Plans short and long-term division work plans and 


projects, and guides the division’s goals and vision. 


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings.  Conducts routine safety compliance checks on active job 


sites.  Oversees division operations to ensure safety policy compliance.  Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities 


management and safety compliance teams. 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory, and evaluates and approves or denies requests from division staff 


for the procurement of new tools and equipment. 


• Supervises the installation of new sanitary sewer service connections.  Coordinates activities associated with sanitary 


sewer lateral connections with contractors, residents, and engineers.   


• Supervises and coordinates the distribution of field notifications for construction. 


• Supervises sludge storage and removal programs.  Maintains appropriate sludge storage capacity, nutrient management 


field records including ownership and contact information, regulatory soil sampling requirements, and all data necessary 


for regulatory compliance. 


• Routinely performs operator work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and supervise system and equipment 


maintenance and repair tasks.  Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 


evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps.  Performs routine maintenance to sanitary sewer 


collection system infrastructure and equipment.  Flushes, Ttelevises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer collection 


system. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of warning signs and cones, traffic 


control and direction, and more.  Conducts worksite tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 


• Operates the wastewater/water SCADA system. to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate 


controls, evaluate influent and effluent flow, monitor lift station pumpage and plant treatment, and investigate system 


concerns. 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatmentinfluent and effluent quality conditions, 


wastewater treatment processes, and drinking water, and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and 


calculations for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, phosphorous, 


ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other 


analysis as directed.  Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings.  Makes adjustments 


toAdjusts drinking water and wastewater treatment and drinking water distribution operations and calculates amounts 


of chemical additives according to test results. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for 


wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 


• Prepares  annual reports in accordance with DNR, EPA, and other regulatory agency requirements, including, 


compliance maintenance annual reports, land application of biosolids annual reports, monthly discharge report, annual 


mercury reports, and annual air emissions reports., along with other Wisconsin DNR reports and EPA reports. 


• Develops and maintains  emergency response and maintenance programs for the sanitary sewer collection system as 


part of the Stoughton Utilities Capacity, Management, Operation and Maintenance (CMOM) program.  Performs self-


assessments on CMOM compliance. 


• Monitors industry loadings and compliance with routine sampling requirements. and bills industrial surcharges.  


Maintains listing of industrial facility contacts, and forms and maintains relationships with facility operations and 


maintenance managers.  Reviews laboratory results of industrial sampling and ensures facility compliance with 


discharge requirements.  Provides laboratory results to the Billing & Metering Supervisor and assists in the billing of 


industrial surcharges 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to mMaintains material inventory and procurement.  Provides 


input and prepares recommendations for material quality standards and specifications.  Assists in the evaluation of 


proposals and material acquisition.  Cooperates in the year-end inventory process by supervising division staff through 


completion of the assignment.; receives packing slips; places new material into stock; enters data into computerized 


inventory program. 


• Assists in the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement Program, including conducting reviews of system 


reliability and making recommendations for system improvements.  Assists with the preparation and ongoing 


monitorings of the Utilities annual budget. 


• Makes recommendations for wastewater division vehicle replacements, additions, and retirements.  Provides input on 


vehicle standards and specifications.  Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle 


safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle maintenance work.   


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to make recommendations for new development design and 


system expansion.   


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


actionmeasures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve  in response to customer inquiries and complaintsissues.  


Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned 


construction. 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working at the wastewater treatment facility and on the 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
wastewater collection system.  Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors to ensure compliance with 


utility construction specifications and contract requirements and expectations.  Communicates with subcontractors to 


discuss complaints and issues. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts treatment facility and collection system demonstrations and tours, and gives water safety 


presentations. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including wastewater collection system details, service connections, 


manhole inspections, main flushing and televising, and other records as directed. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned plant and collection system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater 


System Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-


call. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Department 


of Natural Resources (DNR).  Ensures full Wastewater System Division compliance of the same. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


plumbing maintenance, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric and Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, 


traffic control and direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operations, electric line groundsman 


duties, and other tasks as directed. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


• Directs the operation of laboratory operations. 


• Supervises and directs the activities of wastewater personnel; conducts performance evaluations. 


• Directs the operation and maintenance of the wastewater treatment facility liquid and solids handling facilities and 


sewage collection system; conducts emergency repairs as required. 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action 


in response to customer inquiries and complaints. 


• Maintains contacts with vendors; prepares proposal requests; receives and evaluates proposals; prepares purchase orders 


and acquires materials as required. 


• Maintains material inventory; receives packing slips; places new material into stock; enters data into computerized 


inventory program. 


• Assigns work orders, maintains records, and prepares reports as required. 


• Monitors industry loadings and bills industrial surcharges. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


• Prepares annual reports, compliance maintenance annual reports, land application of biosolids annual reports, monthly 


discharge report, annual mercury reports, annual air emissions report, along with other Wisconsin DNR reports and 


EPA reports. 


• Program administrator for all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


• Ensures that all safety standards are met and complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


• Develops emergency response programs for sanitary sewer system CMOM. 


• Recommends and implements new methods in the collection system and the wastewater treatment facilities. 


• Televises, cleans and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


• Operates wastewater/water SCADA system. 


• Assists with water and electric operations as required. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


• High School diploma or equivalent, technical training in wastewater treatment, and ten seven or more years wastewater 


operator experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities. 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator - Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


• Successful completion of Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator – Advanced certification. 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 


professional environment. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise.  


Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 


• Ability to provide first line supervision.  Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others.  Ability to 


advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgementjudgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 


well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.   


• Ability to comprehend and interpretutilize a variety of documentsadvisory data and information, such as work orders; 


utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications;  including maintenance records, blueprints,; lab records and 


reports,; operations reports, plant operation and maintenance manuals,; engineering reports;, technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals.training 


manuals, State statutes and other regulations, permit requirements, etc. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, 


developers, engineers, contractors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of 


others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


• Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including maintenance records, blueprints, lab records and 


reports, operations reports, plant operation and maintenance manuals, engineering reports, training manuals, State 


statutes and other regulations, permit requirements, etc. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including operation and lab reports, activity reports, letters and other 


correspondence, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow instructions. 


• Ability to use and interpret civil and hydraulic engineering, mechanics, electrical, and basic chemistry and biology 


terminology. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with wastewater treatment plant and other Utility and City personnel, consultants, 


vendors, customers, and others verbally and in writing. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the aAbility to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages, fractions, and 


decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and 


principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervisionsupervising, managing, leading, 


teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to 


apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


•  


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the 


evaluation of information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire 


program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate and maintain wastewater treatment facilities equipment and machinery such as forklift, including 


endloader, backhoe, roller, compression tools, meters, sewer cleaning machine, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
machine, air hammers, compactors, concrete saws, hand and power tools, generators, portable pumps, chemical pumps, 


freezing and thawing machines, locators, snow plows and blowers, sanitary sewer televising equipment, etc. 


•  and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments.  


Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  sanitary sewer televising equipment, etc. 


•  


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in the operation and repair 


of wastewater treatment facility and sewer collection system equipment. 


• Ability to make use of a variety of mechanic’s, carpentry, and electrical tools and equipment, including power tools. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Municipal Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computer, telephone, etc. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, typically involving some combination 


of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, or crawling, as well as push, pull, lifting, and carrying, pushing, 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excessweighing up to of 100 pounds. 


• Ability to climb and balance carrying heavy objects.Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or 


differences between characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, 


materials, and tasks. 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Advanced Certified Operator position description. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe 


conditions that require . 


• Ability to work effectively with frequent exposure to severe environmental factors, such as temperature variations, high 


winds, rain and snow, strong odors, toxic gas and other agents, machinery noise, vibrations,and wetness, dusts, 


machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure may cause discomfort 


and presents a risk of injury or death. 


  







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







   


City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Water System Division 


Title: Water System Supervisor Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  MayMarch, 202218 Reports To: Assistant Utilities Director 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to provide superviseion to the Water System Division, including personnel and daily 


operations, projects and development, and strategic planning, under the direction of the Utilities Director.   


This position also efficiently and safely performs water distribution system operation, maintenance, and repair tasks, and 


participates in construction projects, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. and 


coordinate water pumping and storage facilities, and water distribution system operations and activities for the City of 


Stoughton. 


 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities 


The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties may 


be required and assigned. 


• Supervises and directs the operation and maintenance of the water utility pumping, storage, and distribution system.  


Ensures compliance with regulatory agency requirements and utility policies.  ; pProvides recommendations and assists 


with the coordination and implementation of water pumping and distribution system improvements. 


• Supervises Coordinates the activities of Water System Division personnel.  Conducts regular division staff meetings, 


eEstablishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares and assigns work orders, schedules tasks as required, conducts 


performance evaluations, coordinates introductory and continuing training programs, reviews and approves timesheets, 


and recommends the approval of time sheets, establishes and maintains staff work and leave schedules, and assists in 


the completion of performance evaluations. and recommends the approval of employee leave, etc.  Plans short and long-


term division work plans and projects, and guides the division’s goals and vision.  


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings.  Conducts routine safety compliance checks on active job 


sites.  Oversees division operations to ensure safety policy compliance.  Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities 


management and safety compliance teams. 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory, and evaluates and approves or denies requests from division staff 


for the procurement of new tools and equipment. 


• Supervises and directs the installation and maintenance of water service connections and metering.  Coordinates all on-


site activities associated with water distribution replacements and service lateral upgrades with contractors, residents, 


and engineers.  Coordinates metering installations and removals with Technical Operations Division staff. 


• Establishes and maintains the water metering standardization replacement program, and supervises the operation of the 


water meter testing program to ensure compliance with Wisconsin Public Service Commission (WPSC) regulations. 


• Supervises and coordinates the distribution of field notifications for construction and planned service interruptions. 


• Supervises the maintenance of the water utility’s material inventory; receives packing slips, places material in stock, 


and approves payment. 


• Supervises and performs the extraction of water samples on scheduled basis and submits samples for testing.  Ensures 


all water sampling mandates are followed, including appropriate chain of custody.  Monitors correct chlorine and 


fluoride residuals.  Coordinates and monitors annual lead and copper sampling programs, including maintaining 


accurate inventory of potential sampling sites.  







Water System Supervisor 


 


• Supervises recurring systemwide maintenance programs, including hydrant flushing and valve exercising, and ensures 


regulatory compliance.  Supervises recurring infrastructure maintenance and inspection programs, including tank and 


reservoir inspections and painting, station meter testing, etc. and ensures regulatory compliance. 


• Routinely performs operator work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and supervise system and equipment 


maintenance and repair tasks.  Works onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 


evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 


• Repairs and maintains water mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and hydrants.  Installs and maintains water 


service connections. Inspects, exercises, and performs routine maintenance of other water system infrastructure and 


equipment.  Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a state certified water operator. 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, placement of warning signs and cones, traffic 


control and direction, and more.  Conducts worksite meetings to review projects and safety. 


• Operates the water SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and equipment readings, operate controls, 


evaluate well pumpage and tower storage, monitor chemical addition, and investigate system concerns. 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment.  Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for water 


distribution systems.  Cleans and maintains lab equipment.  Prepares and sends DNR samples as directed. 


• Maintains an inventory of privately-owned wells within the municipal boundaries.  Works with private well owners to 


ensure wells are properly permitted, compliance with regulatory testing and cross connection requirements, and proper 


abandonment when necessary. 


• Prepares reports in accordance with DNR, EPA, and other regulatory agency requirements. 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material inventory and procurement.  Provides input 


and prepares recommendations for material quality standards and specifications.  Assists in the evaluation of proposals 


and material acquisition.  Cooperates in the year-end inventory process. 


• Coordinates the activities of Water Division personnel.  Establishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares and 


assigns work orders, schedules tasks as required, conducts performance evaluations, coordinates introductory and 


continuing training programs, reviews and recommends the approval of time sheets, schedules and recommends the 


approval of employee leave, etc. 


• Develops standard operating procedures to ensure safe, accurate, and proper water utility operations.  Recommends 


policy changes. 


• Assists with the preparation of the water utilityUtilities annual budget and 20-year capital Capital improvement 


Improvement Programplan, including conducting reviews of system reliability and making recommendations for system 


improvements.  Assists with the preparation and ongoing monitoring of the Utilities annual budget.Monitors annual 


expenditures for compliance with approved budgets and plans. 


• Recommends and implements new methods in the operation of the distribution system, and pumping and storage 


facilities. 


• Makes recommendations for water division vehicle replacements, additions, and retirements.  Provides input on vehicle 


standards and specifications.  Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle safety and 


regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle maintenance work.   


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to make recommendations for new development design and 


system expansion.   


• Receives and coordinates the responseResponds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve; makes recommendations and performs corrective action in 


response to customer issues.  Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to 


provide notice of planned service interruptions. 







Water System Supervisor 


 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working on the water distribution system.  Reviews the quality 


of work completed by subcontractors to ensure compliance with utility construction specifications and contract 


requirements and expectations.  Communicates with subcontractors to discuss complaints and issues. 


• Reviews proposed engineering and construction plans for reconstruction projects and new building developments, and 


provides comments for corrections and additions. 


• Maintains records and prepares reports as required. 


• Monitors and oversees the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program, in accordance with Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources requirements. 


• Monitors and records data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


• Prepares recommendations for materials purchases and quality standards, maintains contacts with vendors, assists with 


the evaluation of proposals, prepares purchase orders, and acquires materials as required. 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public educational materials and participates in 


outreach efforts, conducts system demonstrations and tours, and gives water safety presentations. 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including water distribution system details, valve and hydrant 


inspection and exercising, and other records as directed. 


• Prepares daily material sheets; reviews daily return-to-stock sheets; determines material to be retired and monitors 


retired materials procedures. 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned activities outside of the typical work schedule, 


including but not limited to planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned seasonal schedule 


changes and tasks. 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System 


Division.  Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and regulations set by the Wisconsin Public 


Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  Ensures full Water System 


Division compliance of the same.that all safety standards are met by water utility personnel, and complies with all 


Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


  







Water System Supervisor 


 


• Operates Utilities Geographic Information Systems (GIS) software; updates asset and property records via computerized 


systems as required.  Recommends mapping and collector data updates and system improvements.  


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and 


may also be performed by other unit members. 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders due to delinquency or safety 


violations, and at customers’ request.  Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


• Installs water meters at customer premises.  Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and repair of water 


meters.  Reconnects water services and transfers water meters. 


• Maintains Stoughton Utilitiesgrounds and facilities, including removal of ice and snow from walkways and drives, and 


general maintenance taskssuch as painting surfaces, ice and snow removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic 


plumbing maintenance, and similar tasks as assigned. 


• Performs Provides emergency after-hours support to the Eother Stoughton Utilities tasks for electric, water, and 


wastewater Wastewater System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 


and cleanup, equipment transport and operations, electric line groundsman duties, and other tasksoperations as directed. 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


• Assists with all utility operations as required.Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


• High School diploma or equivalent, associate’s degree in water quality management or hydrology with training in water 


distribution systems or related, with a minimum of five or more years certified water operator experience, or any 


combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.  Associates degree 


in water treatment or water system management preferred. 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification for the Stoughton 


Waterworks, , with subclasses G and D is required, or the ability to obtain such certification. 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the WDNR Grade 1 Waterworks certifications. 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with demonstrated experience in leading others in a 


professional environment. 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including lab reports; Wisconsin Department of Natural 


Resources (WDNR) and Wisconsin Public service commission (WPSC) reports, rules, and regulations; time sheets; 


well readings; continuing property records for hydrants, valves, services, and meter; inventory records, reservoir and 


tower level charts; operational maintenance manuals; training manuals; state statutes and local ordinances; policy and 


procedure manuals; etc. 


• Ability to comprehend, analyze, and interpret water main plans and specifications, engineering drawings, and as-built 


diagrams. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including WDNR and WPSC reports, purchase orders, time sheets, annual 


reports, meter reports, training reports, vehicle maintenance reports, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all 


rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow instructions. 


• Ability to use and interpret civil and hydraulic engineering, mechanical terminology, and basic chemistry and biology 







Water System Supervisor 


 


terminology. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with Utility management and personnel, other City departments, law enforcement 


personnel, sales representatives, contractors, engineering consultants, insurance company representatives, and others 


verbally and in writing.Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, assess, 


conclude, and appraise.  Requires discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define 


consequences and develop alternatives. 


• Ability to provide first line supervision.   


• Ability to create consensus and collaborationpersuade, convince, and train others.  Ability to advise and provide 


interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific situations. 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of 


significant individual judgementjudgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 


well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information.   


• Ability to comprehend and interpretutilize a variety of documentsadvisory data and information, such as work orders; 


utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications;  including maintenance records, blueprints,; lab records and 


reports,; operations reports, facilities operation and maintenance manuals,; engineering reports;, technical operating 


manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission 


of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; State of 


Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals.training manuals, State statutes and other regulations, permit 


requirements, etc. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures, and standards, as well 


as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to complex requests. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, 


developers, engineers, contractors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, and other correspondence using 


prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


•  


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to improve the work of 


others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, advancement, and discharge of 


employees. 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and participate in the delivery of such review. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplicationy, and dividesion,; calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals 


and percents,; interpret and develop make use of the principles of basic algebra, geometry, and descriptive statisticsal 


reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


JudgementJudgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision.  Ability to exercise independent judgementjudgment to apply 


facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, managing, leading, teaching, directing, planning, 


coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 







Water System Supervisor 


 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervision, managing, leading, teaching, directing, 


planning, coordinating and controlling.   


• Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques to 


problem resolution. 


• Requires the aAbility to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the 


evaluation of information against measurable criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire 


program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, complex 


and rapid adjustments, such as forklift, backhoe, roller, compression tools, meters, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet 


machine, meter test bench, air hammers, blacktop rollers, compactors, concrete saws, hand and power tools, generators, 


portable pumps, chemical pumps, mowers, freezing/ and thawing machines, voltmeter, locators, jacks, shovels, picks, 


axessnow plows and blowers, etc.and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, 


complex, and rapid adjustments.     


• Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


• Ability to operate a variety of water utility testing, metering, and maintenance equipment. 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computing devices, telephone, etc. 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled movements involved in the operation and repair 


of water distribution equipment. 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in moderate tovery heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, or crawling, as well as lifting, and carrying, pushing 


shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of over 100 pounds. 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and or differences between characteristics of color, shape, 


sound, taste, texture, and odor associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredientstasks. 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Advanced Certified Operator position description. 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, and review the work of others. 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as at utility construction sitesin the field under moderately 


unsafe and uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions where that require exposure to severe environmental 


factors, such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 


disease, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents.  This exposure  may cause 


discomfort where there isand presents a risk of injury or death. 







Water System Supervisor 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


   


Employee’s Signature  Supervisor’s Signature 


   


Date  Date 


 







Position Titles Status Grade MIN 25% MIDPOINT 75% MAX
Proposed 2022 
Adjustment


Utilties Director Exempt EX-5 $60.00 $70.00 $80.00 $90.00 $100.00 $72.00


Assistant Utilities Manager Exempt EX-4 $44.00 $49.50 $55.00 $60.50 $66.00 $55.00


Finance Manager Exempt EX-4 $44.00 $49.50 $55.00 $60.50 $66.00 $55.00


Billing & Metering Supervisor Exempt EX-2 $32.00 $36.00 $40.00 $44.00 $48.00 $40.00


Distribution System Coordinator Non-exempt NEX-3 $40.80 $44.40 $48.00 $51.60 $55.20 $48.00
Asset & Facilities Coordinator Non-exempt NEX-2 $34.00 $37.00 $40.00 $43.00 $46.00 $40.00


Education & Outreach Coordinator Non-exempt NEX-1 $28.00 $31.50 $35.00 $38.50 $42.00 $35.00


Electric System Supervisor Non-exempt EL-6 $48.17 $49.43 $50.70 $51.97 $53.24 $50.70


Wastewater System Supervisor Non-exempt W-6 $36.80 $41.40 $46.00 $50.60 $55.20 $50.00


Water System Supervisor Non-exempt W-5 $35.70 $38.85 $42.00 $45.15 $48.30 $44.00
Advanced Certified Operator Non-exempt W-4 $33.25 $34.13 $35.00 $35.88 $36.75 $35.00


Basic Certified Operator Non-exempt W-3 $30.97 $31.79 $32.60 $33.42 $34.23 $32.60


Apprentice Operator Non-exempt W-2 Varies


Operator Non-exempt W-1 $26.60 $27.30 $28.00 $28.70 $29.40 $28.00


Lead Journeyman Lineworker Non-exempt EL-5 $47.48 $48.09 $48.70 $49.31 $49.92 $48.70
Journeyman Lineworker Non-exempt EL-4 $45.53 $46.12 $46.70 $47.28 $47.87 $46.70


Journeyman Meter Technician Non-exempt EL-3 $37.05 $38.03 $39.00 $39.98 $40.95 $39.00


Apprentice Journeyman Lineworker Non-exempt EL-2 Varies


Apprentice Meter Technician Non-exempt EL-1 Varies


Accounting Specialist Non-exempt CS-3 $30.88 $31.69 $32.50 $33.31 $34.13 $34.13
Customer Service Technician Non-exempt CS-1 $23.99 $24.62 $25.25 $25.88 $26.51 $25.25


Compensation Study Results - Proposed Compensation Structure


85.9% - 94.4% of Basic Certified Operator (6-7 year program)- see page 2


82.2% - 88.5% of Journeyman Lineworker (4 year program)- see page 2


84.3 - 88.5% of Journeyman Lineworker (3 year program)- see page 2







GRADE
YEAR 1   
82.2%


YEAR 2   
84.3%


YEAR 3   
86.4%


YEAR 4   
88.5%


MIDPOINT


Apprentice Meter 
Technician (1)


EL-1 $32.06 $32.88 $33.70 $34.52 $39.00


Journeyman Meter 
Technician


YEAR 1   
82.2%


YEAR 2   
84.3%


YEAR 3   
86.4%


YEAR 4   
88.5%


MIDPOINT


Apprentice 
Lineworker  / 
Apprentice Line 
Technician (1)


EL-2 $38.39 $39.37 $40.35 $41.42 $46.70


Journeyman 
Lineworker 


YEAR 1   
OPERATOR 


YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR 4   YEAR 5 YEAR 6 YEAR 7   MIDPOINT MIDPOINT


Apprentice 
Operator (1) (2)


W-2 $28.00 $28.46 $28.92 $29.38 $29.84 $30.30 $30.76 $28.00 $32.60


$4.60 $4.14 $3.68 $3.22 $2.76 $2.30 $1.84 Operator
Basic 


Certified 
Operator


STOUGHTON UTILITIES - APPRENTICE STRUCTURE


Monitary Amount Less Than Basic Certified 
Operator 


(1) Year 1 = Operator (Basic Operator Rate Minus 100% of Difference Between Operator & Basic Certified Operator); Year 2 = Basic Operator Rate Minus 90% of 
Difference Between Operator & Basic Certified Operator;  Year 3 = Basic Operator Rate Minus 80% of Difference Between Operator & Basic Certified Operator;  
Year 4 = Basic Operator Rate Minus 70% of Difference Between Operator & Basic Certified Operator;  Year 5 = Basic Operator Rate Minus 60% of Difference 
Between Operator & Basic Certified Operator;  Year 6 = Basic Operator Rate Minus 50% of Difference Between Operator & Basic Certified Operator;  Year 7 = 
Basic Operator Rate Minus 40% of Difference Between Operator & Basic Certified Operator


(6) Apprentices - % of Journeyman or Operator and Basic Certified Operator wages.  This approach approved by Corey Popp of the WI Apprentice Program.  
Percentages shown for Apprentice Meter Technician and Apprentice Lineworker are the precentages currently being used for Apprentice Lineworker. 







    
600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383  
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383  


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886   


Date:   


  


August 16, 2022 


To:    Amy Jo Gillingham  


    


  


Stoughton Director of Human Resources / Risk Management  


From:   Brian R. Hoops   


    


  


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director  


Subject:  Items for a future meeting of the Stoughton Personnel Committee  


The item from the August 15, 2022 meeting of the Stoughton Utilities Committee are enclosed.  Please 


include these items in the agenda and packet for future meetings of the Stoughton Personnel Committee 


and Stoughton Common Council. 


Business: 


1. Stoughton Utilities Strategic Alignment and Position Description Updates 


 


Encl.  


cc:  Alderperson Lisa Reeves  


  Chairperson – Stoughton Personnel Committee 


David R. Erdman  


Chairman – Stoughton Utilities Committee  


Mayor Tim B. Swadley 


Mayor – City of Stoughton  


Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


 Stoughton Utilities Director  







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 15, 2022 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


recently approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


Consent Agenda:  


1. Minutes of the June 27, 2022 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


2. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report 


3. Stoughton Utilities May Financial Summary 


4. Stoughton Utilities Statistical Report 


Business: 


1. Stoughton Utilities 2021 Audit Reports and Management Letter 


2. Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of up to $1,659,096 Waterworks System revenue Bonds, 


Series 2022, and Providing for Other Details and Covenants with Respect Thereto 


3. Wisconsin Department of Transportation State/Municipal Financial Agreement 


Erdman highlighted that the closing had recently occurred for the revenue bonds issued by the Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources Safe Drinking Water Loan Program.  Discussion followed. 


Lease Inquiry Regarding the Placement of Communication Antennas on Stoughton Utilities Tower No. 2 


Located at 1430 Furseth Road:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that the utility has been 


contacted by a wireless cellular communications provider expressing interest in negotiating a lease to place 


communication antennas on Tower No. 2.  A lease would be negotiated that would provide an additional source 


of revenue to the water utility, with the provider being responsible for all legal and engineering expenses.  


Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to direct staff to proceed with negotiations for the placement 


of communication antennas on Stoughton Utilities Tower No. 2.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Stoughton Utilities Strategic Alignment and Position Description Updates:  Stoughton Utilities and City of 


Stoughton staff presented the final version of its strategic planning documents, including an organizational chart, 


updated Stoughton Utilities personnel position descriptions, redlined versions of the current Stoughton Utilities 


position descriptions, and the strategic alignment compensation structure.   


Staff explained that the committee had previously authorized the strategic alignment in the 2021 and 2022 


Utilities operating budgets.  The committee had also voted at its March 14, 2022 meeting to approve the strategic 


alignment plan and position description updates with such changes as are acceptable to and recommended by 


the City of Stoughton Director of Human Resources.  The final strategic alignment plan and position description 


updates have been prepared in cooperation with and reviewed by the City of Stoughton Director of Human 


Resources and is scheduled to be presented to the Stoughton Personnel Committee on August 16, 2022, and 


the Stoughton Common Council on August 23, 2022.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Thoren, to approve the proposed Stoughton Utilities final strategic 


plan, including position descriptions and compensation structure, and recommend approval to the Stoughton 


Personnel Committee and Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 



bhoops

Highlight







 


600 South Fourth Street P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


  


Date:   
  


August 11, 2022 


To:    
  


Stoughton Utilities Committee  


From:   Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:  Stoughton Utilities Strategic Alignment and Position Description Updates 


This item may move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, 


compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body 


has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. 


As first authorized in the 2021 Utilities operating budget and renewed in the 2022 operating budget, 


Stoughton Utilities staff has been engaged in strategic planning efforts, looking at retention and 


recruitment strategies, succession planning, organization structure, position descriptions for current and 


future positions, and staffing needs moving forward. 


At its March 14, 2022 regular meeting, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved the proposed 


Stoughton Utilities personnel organization structure and position descriptions and recommended approval 


to the Stoughton Personnel Committee and Stoughton Common Council, with such changes as are 


acceptable to and recommended by the City of Stoughton Director of Human Resources. 


The final stage of our strategic planning effort has been completed, and we have developed an updated 


utility personnel organizational structure and strategic plan.  Enclosed in the packet are the following 


items: 


• Proposed Stoughton Utilities organizational chart with summary descriptions of position changes 


• Updated Stoughton Utilities position descriptions 


• Redlined versions of the current Stoughton Utilities position descriptions  


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the proposed Stoughton Utilities final 


strategic plan and recommend approval to the Stoughton Personnel Committee and Stoughton Common 


Council.  This plan is scheduled to be presented to the Stoughton Personnel Committee on August 16, 


2022, and the Stoughton Common Council on August 23, 2022.   







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 


Wastewater System Division 
Advanced Certified Operator 


 
REPORTS TO: Wastewater System Supervisor PAY GRADE: W-4 FLSA: N 


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 


and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 


sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. This position is identical to other Advanced 
Certified Operator positions in terms of job scope and required qualifications and 


certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments. 
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 


this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 


recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 


recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 


obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 


treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 


volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 


conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 


 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 


Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 


equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 


collection system. 


 
• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 


other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 


and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 


biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 


directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories. Prepares graphs, 


charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings. Makes 


adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 
calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 


 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 


wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 


 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 


and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 


record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 


and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 


operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 


 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 


maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 


inspections and records findings. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 


connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 


records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 


activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 


planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 


 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 


an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 


those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 


regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 


Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 


duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 


workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 


request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 


 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 


repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 


meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 


removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 


and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
• other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 


response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• At the discretion of the Utilities Director, this position may temporarily be 


assigned as the designated Operator in Charge of the Stoughton Wastewater 


Treatment Facility and assume all obligations and responsibility for regulatory 


compliance. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 


Education/Training/Certifications 


• High School diploma or equivalent, and three or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 


 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator – Advanced certification for the Stoughton Wastewater 


Treatment facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


 


• Successful completion of the DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above 
DNR operator and laboratory certifications. 


 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 


develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 


reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 


 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 


orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; 


engineering reports; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and 


procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; and safety rules and 


manuals. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 


instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 


department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 


statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 


 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 


 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 
jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 


hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 


 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 


 
• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 


potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 


work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 


kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 


digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 


characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job- 


related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 


electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 
 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 


employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 


 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 


legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 
 


Signature:  Date:   







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
Water System Division 


Advanced Certified Operator 


 
REPORTS TO: Water System Supervisor PAY GRADE: W-4 FLSA: N 


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 


sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on water distribution 
operations. This position is identical to other Advanced Certified Operator positions 


in terms of job scope and required qualifications and certifications, however may 
differ in day-to-day duties and assignments. 


 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 


this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 
 


• Provide safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 


customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 


testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 


 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 


treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 


volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 


conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 


 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 


Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 


equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 


collection system. 


 
• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 


other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 


and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 


biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 


directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories. Prepares graphs, 


charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings. Makes 


adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 
calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 


 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 


wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 


 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 


and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 


record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 


 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 


operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 


compliance. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 


 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 


maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 


inspections and records findings. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 


connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 


records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 


activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 


planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 


 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 


an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 


those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 


regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 


duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 


workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 


request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 


 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 


permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 


repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 


 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 


maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 


including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 


and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 


other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 


response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• At the discretion of the Utilities Director, this position may temporarily be 


assigned as the designated Operator in Charge of the Stoughton Wastewater 


Treatment Facility and assume all obligations and responsibility for regulatory 


compliance. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 


Education/Training/Certifications 


• High School diploma or equivalent and three or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 


 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator – Advanced certification for the Stoughton Wastewater 


Treatment facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 


 


• Successful completion of the Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above 
DNR operator and laboratory certifications. 


 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 


develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 


reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 


record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 


orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; 


engineering reports; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and 


procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; and safety rules and 
manuals. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 


instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 


department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 


statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 


and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 


 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 
jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 


hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 


equipment and machinery. 


 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 


 
• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 


potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 


kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 


digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 


characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job- 


related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 


Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 


electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 


All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 


employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 


 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 


legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 


successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 
 


Signature:  Date:   







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
Electric System Division 


Apprentice Lineworker 


 
REPORTS TO: Electric Supervisor PAY GRADE: EL-2 FLSA: N 


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely assist in 
performing electrical distribution line construction, maintenance, and repair tasks, in 


accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 


Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual 


responsibility as the employee progresses through the utility’s Apprentice 
Lineworker program. 


 


This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to 
Journeyman Lineworker status and requires continual progression, and is not 


considered a permanent employment status. Advancement to Journeyman 
Lineworker status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the- 


job training hours, and demonstration of job knowledge and competency. 


 
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 


this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical 
distribution lines. Operates live-line tools to connect and disconnect 


distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead 


and underground electrical systems. Performs all other industry-standard 


duties expected of an apprentice lineworker. 
 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 


Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities 
Distribution System Coordinator. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data 


and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and 


load, and investigate outage conditions. 
 


• Performs Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs 
corrective measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve 


customer inquiries and complaints, and to provide notice of planned system 
outages. 


 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 


operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 


compliance. 
 


• Installs, repairs, and maintains municipal street lighting. 
 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance 
program compliance. Works with division employees to trim and remove trees 


and brush. Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 
clearance projects and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 


 


• Participates in the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including soliciting 
and receiving education and mentorship, and working towards advancement 


through the program. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time 
sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed. 
Conducts system inspections and records findings. 


 


• Attends Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric 


service connection details, circuit identifications, overhead and underground 


system inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as 


directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 


activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 


seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight 


stays up to a week in length to complete the required apprenticeship 


classroom and hands-on training. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and 


assist those serving on-call. As progression through the apprenticeship 


program occurs, maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, 


scheduled on a rotational basis within the Electric System Division. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 


the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 


operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 


duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 


workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 


evaluation. 
 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage 


transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer premises, including temporary 
and permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance 


and repair of electric meters, CTs, and VTs. Reconnects and transfers electric 


meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 


maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water 
System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, 


site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications 


• High School diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in 


electrical systems, or any combination of education and experience that 


provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Successful completion of a nine-month electric power distribution technical 


course, or enrollment in the State of Wisconsin lineworker apprenticeship 


program preferred. 
 


• Ability to maintain enrollment in the State of Wisconsin lineworker 
apprenticeship program is required. 


 
• Ability to obtain and maintain forklift certification and CPR/First Aid 


certification is required. 


 


• Ability to obtain and maintain a commercial driver’s license with tanker and 


airbrake certification is required. A valid motor vehicle operator’s license is 
required at hire. 


 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 


develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; staking sheets; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; 
technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 


guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of 


Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 


 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 


 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 


department and all levels of City personnel, electricians, contractors, and the 


general public. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 


statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 


and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 


judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, aerial 


bucket truck, digger/derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, 


roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power 


tools, snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring 


multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. 
Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as high voltage electrical work. 


 
• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around 


live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 


 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 


kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 


digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, textures, and odor associated with job- 


related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 


variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage 


electrical currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high 


risk of injury or death. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 


employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 


successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 


 


Signature:  Date:   







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 


Apprentice Meter Technician 


REPORTS TO: Billing & Metering Supervisor   PAY GRADE: EL-1    FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to assist in the maintenance, repairs, testing, 
installation, and reading of electric and water meters, and to complete water cross 
connection inspections for the City of Stoughton. This position shall be responsible 
for assisting in the evaluation of electric and water services and determination of 
the appropriate metering design, procurement and maintenance of electric and 
water meters and test equipment, maintenance of electric and water meter records, 
and installation of electric and water meters and equipment. 
 
Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual 
responsibility as the employee progresses through the utility’s apprentice meter 
technician program. 
 
This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to 
Journeyman Meter Technician status and requires continual progression, and is not 
considered a permanent employment status. Advancement to Journeyman Meter 
Technician status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-
job training hours, and demonstration of job knowledge and competency. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Maintains the utility’s electric and water meter testing programs to ensure 
compliance with Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) regulations 
and periodic test schedules. 
 


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop 
in accordance with PSC rules. Maintains, and repairs meters, current 
transformers (CTs), and voltage transformers (VTs). Prepares and issues 
reports on electric meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, 
customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC 


rules. Installs, maintains, and repairs water meters. Prepares and issues 
reports on water meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, 
customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 


 
• Manages the utility water and electric meter inventory. Establishes and 


maintains metering standardization programs, and collaborates with the Asset 
& Facilities Coordinator to maintain meter inventory, including the 
procurement of new meters and the discarding of damaged and retired 
meters. Prepares and issues reports on meter inventory and annual activity to 
division supervisors, financial staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 
Completes the year-end inventory process for electric and water meters, CTs, 
and VTs. 
 


• Reviews applications for new and upgraded electric service connections, and 
determines proper meter type, cabinet size and type, and need for CTs and 
VTs, and wires customer meter sockets at commercial properties. Conveys 
cabinet and socket requirements to customers and electrical contractors. 
Collaborates with the Electric System Supervisor to coordinate electric meter 
sizing, installation, and repair. 
 


• Installs electric and water meters – including CTs and VTs as necessary – at 
customer premises, including temporary and permanent services. 
 


• Reviews applications for new water service connections, and determines the 
proper meter sizing and type. Conveys plumbing requirements to customers 
and plumbing contractors. Collaborates with the Water System Supervisor to 
coordinate water meter sizing, installation, and repair. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric and 
water meter inventory, electric and water meter testing history, electric and 
water service connection details and meter history, and other records as 
directed. 
 


• Assists in the management of the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control 
Program to eliminate existing and prevent future cross-connections, in 
accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules. 
Performs household and business inspections, issues corrective orders, and 
performs follow-up inspections as necessary. 
 


• Assists with utility billing operations by investigating zero/low meter readings 
for both electric and water, and reports findings. Reviews customer history 
and consumption trends to detect potential meter issues. Performs meter 
rereads upon receipt of workorders. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Completes the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for 
cycle billing purposes. Maintains ability to work a flexible schedule in order to 
complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working 
hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 
 


• Completes the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer 
accounts. Processes all daily meter workorders. 
 


• Coordinates field delinquent collections operations, including disconnecting 
utility service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders. 
 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and recommends 
and performs corrective action in response. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials, and participates in outreach efforts. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight 
stays up to a week in length to complete the required apprenticeship 
classroom and hands-on training. 
 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and 
assist those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 
Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: 
processing customer payments, preparation of committee meeting packets, 
preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred 
payment agreements, etc. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various 


physical and electronic methods, including but not limited to, banking 
lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night 
deposit box, in-person, energy assistance, etc. 
 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank 
branch to receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and 
interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended 
recipients. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, snow and ice 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and 
Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and 
direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, 
and other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for all other divisions as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, with one or more years electric metering 
experience and basic water metering experience required, or any combination 
of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 
abilities. 
 


• Enrollment in the State of Wisconsin three-year Electric Meter Technician 
apprenticeship required, or the ability to begin enrollment immediately upon 
employment. 
 


• Basic knowledge of drinking water distribution systems required; Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Grade T or Grade 1 Waterworks 
Operator Certification, with subclasses G and D, preferred. Ability to obtain 
and maintain such certification required. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license required; commercial driver’s license 
with tanker and air brake certification preferred. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine 


the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as 
assemble, copy, records and transcribe data. Ability to classify, compute and 
tabulate data. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within established 
policies, procedures and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as meter 
records, city ordinances, PSC and DNR reports and bulletins, charts, policy 
manuals, maintenance records, PSC and DNR rules and regulations, vehicle 
manuals, equipment manuals, meter and CT wiring diagrams, construction 
specifications and plans, service applications, electric service rules, safety 
manuals and codes, and maps. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with department 
personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, City employees, law 
enforcement, and PSC and DNR statistical reports. 
 


• Ability to prepare narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, 
and correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of 
punctuation, grammar, and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations 
involving the evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental 
criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles, meter test bench, hand tools, generators, voltmeter, etc. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, photocopier, paper 
cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 
 


• Ability to repair meters and perform coordinated activity around live 
electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as electrical work. 
 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically 
involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 
pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences 
between characteristics of color, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated 
with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, and high voltage electrical 
currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high risk of 
injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Wastewater System Division 


Apprentice Operator 


REPORTS TO: Wastewater System Supervisor PAY GRADE: W-2    FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. 
 
Responsibilities for this position will increase in complexity and level of individual 
responsibility as the employee progresses through the utility’s Advanced Certified 
Operator Apprenticeship program. 
 
This position is intended to provide education and on-the-job training leading to 
Advanced Certified Operator status and requires continual progression, and is not 
considered a permanent employment status. Advancement to Advanced Certified 
Operator status occurs upon completion of required classroom instruction, on-the-
job training hours, and demonstration of job knowledge and competency. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 
equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 


other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed. Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports 
out findings. Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment 
operations and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test 
results. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to travel within Wisconsin to locations requiring overnight 
stays up to a week in length to complete the required apprenticeship 
classroom and hands-on training. 
 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and 
assist those serving on-call. As progression through the apprenticeship 
program occurs, maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, 
scheduled on a rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System 
Divisions. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent with demonstrated mechanical and/or 
plumbing aptitude. 
 


• Successful completion of wastewater treatment technical courses, or 
enrollment in the State of Wisconsin wastewater treatment plant operator 
apprenticeship program preferred.  
 


• Ability to maintain enrollment in the State of Wisconsin wastewater treatment 
plant operator apprenticeship program is required. 
 


• Ability to obtain and maintain CPR/First Aid certification is required. 
 


• Ability to obtain and maintain a commercial driver’s license with tanker and 
airbrake certification is required. A valid motor vehicle operator’s license is 
required at hire. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 


work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 


Asset & Facilities Coordinator 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director     PAY GRADE: NEX-1      FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to coordinate inventory and construction 
management tasks for Stoughton Utilities, including contract maintenance, public 
bidding and requests for quotations, purchasing, warehousing, asset installation and 
retirement records, and inventory maintenance. This position is also responsible for 
the coordination of the construction workorder process from start to finish, including 
participating in the development of initial estimates, project closeout, and billing. 
 
This position also coordinates Stoughton Utilities vehicle procurement and 
maintenance programs, participates in the maintenance of the utility Geographic 
Information System (GIS), participates in the operation and maintenance of the 
utilities Outage Management System (OMS), and participates in the operation and 
maintenance of the utilities Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
systems. This position serves as the designated facilities coordinator and the safety 
program coordinator. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Coordinates a variety of technical planning tasks for maintenance and 
construction projects, such as the preparation and distribution of materials 
and equipment specifications, the preparation of work orders and staking 
sheets, and the solicitation of materials and equipment proposals. 
Coordinates the purchasing and retirement of materials. Assigns, schedules, 
and performs construction management tasks in the office and the field. 
 


• Coordinates and maintains contracts with vendors, including assisting with 
the evaluation of proposals, solicitation of bids and/or quotations, review and 
negotiation of contract terms, follow up action to address contract deficiencies 
or violations, and all other contract management requirements. Participates 
in third-party service selection. Coordinates contract execution. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Manages Stoughton Utilities Electric, Water, and Wastewater standard 


construction specifications. Conducts periodic reviews of the specification 
documents to ensure they remain accurate and up to date, collaborating with 
utilities division supervisors to obtain input. Shares construction specifications 
with project developers, engineering consultants, construction contractors, 
and others. 
 


• Participates in the planning of electric, water, and wastewater projects from 
conception through completion, in collaboration with the Distribution System 
Coordinator. Makes recommendations for new development design and 
system expansion. Coordinates customer construction estimating and new 
development design review process in the absence of the Distribution System 
Coordinator. 
 


• Assigns costs and monitors job orders for material sheets and places data 
into the GIS and financial continuing property records systems. Opens and 
closes construction and maintenance workorders, and allocates inventory. 
Prepares forms, records, and written correspondence necessary to complete 
project file information. Follows all accounting procedures to track materials, 
supplies, and equipment. 
 


• Collaborates with utilities division supervisors to maintain material inventory 
and procurement, including general construction, maintenance, safety, and 
vehicle items. Receives input and recommendations for material quality 
standards and specifications. Coordinates the evaluation of proposals and 
material acquisition. Coordinates the year- end inventory process for electric, 
water, and wastewater utility materials, collaborating with utilities division 
supervisors through completion of the assignment.  
 


• Conducts construction project plan and specification reviews, including utility 
easement review. Obtains, reviews, and approves as-built plans, quantities, 
and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land 
developments. Obtains and reviews private building construction projects, 
including reviewing compliance with existing utility easements and assisting 
in the acquisition of new utility easements as necessary. 
 


• Processes customer inquiries and requests for maintenance related to the 
electric utility; investigates complaints and performs corrective measures, or 
schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. Receives 
customer inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, 
and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for resolution. Communicates 
with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to 
provide notice of planned service interruptions. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to maintain and improve 
the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), including updating asset 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


data and locations for the electric, water, and wastewater divisions, 
developing maps and mobile services for utility employees and engineering 
consultants, and completing basic maintenance of GIS software, databases, 
geometric networks, and add-on systems. Collaborates with utility division 
supervisors to obtain, process, and verify data updates. Develops system 
documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the GIS team. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain 
the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems for the 
electric system and the water/wastewater system. Participates in SCADA 
system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, 
security upgrades, remote facility networking projects, and OMS system 
integration. Provides training to utility operators. Develops system 
documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & 
OMS team. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain 
the Outage Management System (OMS). Participates in OMS system 
maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security 
upgrades, and SCADA system integration. Provides training to field 
employees on mobile system use, office employees on data collection and 
entry, and all other software operators. Develops system documentation. 
Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 
 


• Serves as the Stoughton Utilities facilities coordinator for the administration 
building, wastewater treatment facility office, wells, and lift station buildings; 
schedules maintenance and repair efforts, mowing and landscaping services, 
snow removal, and janitorial services. Responds to all operational 
requirements of the occupants. 
 


• Serves as the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordinator. Coordinates 
employee safety training programs to ensure regulatory compliance and 
maintains documentation of employee training history. Conducts periodic job 
site inspections upon request and documents observations. Manages written 
safety programs and conducts periodic reviews to ensure they remain up to 
date. Serves as the Safety Team Leader and schedules and participates in 
periodic meetings. Responds to all safety requirements, requests, and 
concerns of utility employees. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 
Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Serves as a backup for the monthly collection of electric and water meter 
readings for cycle billing purposes. Maintains ability to work a flexible 
schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of 
standard working hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the 
month. 
 


• Serves as a backup to collect the daily meter readings for newly opened or 
closed customer accounts. Processes all daily meter workorders. 
 


• Serves as the backup outage coordinator during routine work hours, including 
scheduled outages and service disconnections. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and 
Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and 
direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, 
and other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Maintains active certificate of appointment as a State of Wisconsin Notary 
Public. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in electrical 
distribution, civil engineering, information technology, or another field that 
provides relevant experience, three to five years utility experience, or any 
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, 
skills, and abilities. 
 


• Vocational or utility industry training in one or more of the following is 
preferred: facilities management, cost accounting, project management, 
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic Information 
Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), basic networking and 
information technology. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


 
Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 


 
• Ability to comprehend, interpret, approve, and utilize a variety of advisory and 


design data and information such as billing invoices, vehicle maintenance 
reports, applications for service, correspondence, capital plans, regulations 
and legal statutes, job authorization forms, purchase orders, ordinances, 
material sheets, staking sheets, computer software operating manuals, and 
safety rules and manuals. Ability to utilize and interpret environmental, 
electrical engineering, water and wastewater engineering, computer software 
systems, geographical information systems, and accounting terminology. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally effectively with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, contractors, developers, 
engineering consultants, legal consultants, regulatory agency personnel, and 
the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, construction documents, and other correspondence using 
prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and 
style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as leading, teaching, 


directing, planning, coordinating, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or 
judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an 
entire program or multiple programs. 


 
Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 
conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles, dump truck, front end loader, forklift, etc. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, photocopier, paper 
cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as typing, repair, and operation. 
 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically 
involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing or pulling over 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field 


under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure 
to environmental factors such as temperature variations, winds, rain and 
snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, and 
vehicular traffic. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of 
injury or death. 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 


Assistant Utilities Director 


REPORTS TO: Utilities Director PAYGRADE: EX-4 FLSA: E 


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of this position is to assist the Utilities Director with the coordination 


and administration of Stoughton Utilities, and assume the responsibilities of the 


Director in their absence. This position will also manage information and operational 
technology solutions for Stoughton Utilities, and be responsible for the management 


of the Electric System, Technical Operations, Wastewater System, and Water 


System Divisions. 
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 


this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 
 


• Manages the activities of the Electric System Division, Technical Operations 
Division, Wastewater System Division, and Water System Division personnel. 


Establishes and maintains productivity reports, assigns and reviews work, 
coordinates continuing education/training and professional development 
programs, schedules and approves overtime and leave, reviews work 


performed for accuracy and effectiveness, completes performance 


evaluations, etc. 
 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities information and operational technology systems, 


including internal and customer-facing software solutions, automation 


platforms, data networking and communications systems, computing 


hardware and peripheral devices, mobile device management, and user 


account management. 
 


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents 


Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, Common Council, Utilities 
Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team. Participates in 


required Utilities Committee and Common Council meetings. Prepares 


monthly meeting agendas and notices, status reports, and other scheduled 


and unscheduled presentations and reports. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


• In the absence of, or in cooperation with the Utilities Director, represents 
Stoughton Utilities in participation and communications with industry partners 


including WPPI Energy and Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin (MEUW), 


lobbying organizations, regulatory agencies, legal representation, and elected 


officials. Serves as the Alternate Director on the WPPI Energy Board of 
Directors. 


 


• In conjunction with the Utilities Director and the Director of Human Resources 


& Risk Management, makes recommendations regarding and participates in 


staff hiring and promotions, employee feedback and coaching, disciplinary 
actions, personnel evaluations, staff development, and terminations. 


 


• Receives and responds to high-level customer inquiries and complaints, 


including those from elected officials and the Public Service Commission of 


Wisconsin, and performs resulting corrective action and/or policy revisions. 
 


• Manages utility cybersecurity protection efforts and secures data network 


systems by developing system access, monitoring, control, and evaluation 
procedures; establishing, implementing, and testing disaster recovery policies 


and procedures; monitoring network input and output; and reviewing 
application and performance logs. 


 


• Manages utility physical security protection efforts and secures utility facilities 


by developing facility access, monitoring, control, and evaluation procedures, 
and reviewing physical security protections. 


 


• Manages the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), including asset 
data for the electric, water, and wastewater system divisions, developing 


maps and services for utility employees and engineering consultants, and 
completing advanced maintenance of software, databases, geometric 


networks, and add-on systems. Develops system documentation. Coordinates 
and reports system changes to the GIS team. 


 


• Maintains Manages the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 


systems and the Outage Management System (OMS). Manages system 
maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security 


upgrades, remote facility networking projects, and system integrations. 


Provides training to utility operators. Develops system documentation. 


Coordinates and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 


 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities billing, metering, collections, and customer 
service, and ensures compliance with all regulatory requirements. 


 


• Manages Stoughton Utilities customer outreach campaigns, long-term 
strategic planning of customer outreach and education efforts, public event 


planning, and other education and outreach efforts. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Manages technical planning tasks for maintenance and construction projects, 
construction and development project plans and specifications, and system 


outage and reliability reporting. 
 


• Manages the Stoughton Utilities facilities coordination for the administration 


building, wastewater treatment facility office, wells, and lift station buildings. 


Responds to all operational requirements of the occupants. 
 


• Manages the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordination. Participates on 
the Safety Team. Responds to all safety requirements, requests, and 


concerns of utility employees. 


 


• Designs, develops, and maintains custom programming and database 
solutions for internal and customer-facing applications and websites. 


 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain technology 
inventory and procurement. Provides input and prepares recommendations 


for material quality standards and specifications. Assists in the evaluation of 
proposals and material acquisition. Cooperates in the year-end inventory 


process. 
 


• Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement 
Program, including conducting reviews of system reliability and determining 


system improvements. Assists with the preparation and ongoing monitoring 


of the Utilities annual budget. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources, and the National Electric Safety Code. 
 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and 


significant event response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, 
severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 


 


• Acts as Utilities Director in their absence and maintains continuity of day-to- 


day and long-term utility vision and goals, and ensures utility operations 
continue without interruption. 


 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 


duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 
• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 


messages. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Assist other division personnel as required. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, and conducts 
system demonstrations and tours. 


 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications 


 


• Bachelor’s degree in engineering or business management, or related field. A 


minimum of ten years of utility experience. A track record of successful 
management and supervisory experience. Or any combination of education 


and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


 


• Significant knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, 
including experience with Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), 


Geographic Information Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), 
and Customer Information Systems (CIS). 


 


• Significant knowledge of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, Access, 
Outlook, and PowerPoint) including scripting and automation. Significant 


knowledge of Microsoft desktop and server operating systems, Exchange and 


SQL Server platforms, and Hyper-V virtualization systems. 
 


• Knowledge of scripting and programming concepts and commonly used coding 
languages. 


 
• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, analyze, and interpret an extensive 


variety of technical information and governmental regulations. Requires 


discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define 


consequences and develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 


collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 


regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 


situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 


Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 


well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information such as billing 
reports and statements; financial reports and statements; budgets; 


accounting and billing systems; computer software operating manuals; city 


and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; 


Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; State of 


Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and to respond to complex requests where established policies 


and procedures may not exist. 
 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, give and follow 


instructions, use and interpret civil, environmental, and electrical engineering 


and accounting terminology. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, information technology and systems consultants 
and contractors, software engineers, engineering and legal consultants, 


financial auditors, regulatory agencies, elected and appointed government 
officials, and the general public. 


 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 


according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 
recommendations to improve the work of others. 


 
• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 


advancement, and discharge of employees. 


 
• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews and 


participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed 
descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 


 
• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial 


data. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 


and techniques to problem resolution. 


 
• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as managing, supervising, 


leading, teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 


 
• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 


diversified work activities. 


 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 


and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or 


multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 
conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments, such as 


motor vehicles. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand 
punch, telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 


 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 


movements such as typing, electronics repair, and installation of computing 
hardware and cabling. 


 


• Ability to perform coordinated activity around live electricity, potentially in 
tight spaces. 


 


• Ability to exert physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving 
some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, 


crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing, or pulling over 50 pounds. 
• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 


characteristics of color, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated with job- 


related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment and in public meetings 
under safe and comfortable conditions, as well as in the field under 


uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to 


environmental factors such as temperature variations, odors, noise, 


vibrations, machinery, and high voltage electrical currents. This exposure 


may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or death. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 


employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 


 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 


legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 


successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 
 


Signature:  Date:   







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Wastewater System Division 


Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


REPORTS TO: Wastewater System Supervisor   PAY GRADE: W-3    FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. This position is identical to other Basic Certified 
Operator positions in terms of job scope and required qualifications and 
certifications, however may differ in day-to-day duties and assignments. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 


 
• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 


routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 


 
• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 


other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories. Prepares graphs, 
charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings. Makes 
adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 
calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


 
• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 


and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 


•  
Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, and one or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator – Basic certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment 
facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above 
DNR operator certifications. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, 
regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 
regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Water System Division 


Basic Certified Water Operator 


REPORTS TO: Water System Supervisor     PAY GRADE: W-3      FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on water distribution 
operations. This position is identical to other Basic Certified Operator positions in 
terms of job scope and required qualifications and certifications, however may differ 
in day-to-day duties and assignments. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 
other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed, and/or delivers samples to outside laboratories. Prepares graphs, 
charts, and reports from sample data, and reports out findings. Makes 
adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment operations and 
calculates amount of chemical additives according to test results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.  
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 


•  
Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent and one or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator – Basic certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment 
facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the above 
DNR operator certifications. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, 
regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 
regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Mathematical Ability 
• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 


Billing & Metering Supervisor 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director        PAY GRADE: EX-2       FLSA: E                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this is to supervise and perform billing, metering, collections, and 
customer service tasks for Stoughton Utilities, including but not limited to 
preparation and distribution of daily and monthly utility billing statements, 
maintenance of customer billing and metering records, review of electric and water 
meter data, specialized customer service as it relates to municipal utility billing and 
collections, and general customer service as it relates to municipal utility operations 
and activities. 
 
This position is responsible for the supervision of Stoughton Utilities billing, 
metering, and collections personnel and daily operations, projects and development, 
and strategic planning, under the direction of the Assistant Utilities Director. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Supervises the billing, metering, and collections activities and personnel 
within the Technical Operations Division. Establishes and maintains 
productivity reports, assigns and reviews work, recommends continuing 
education/training and professional development programs, schedules and 
approves overtime and leave, reviews work performed for accuracy and 
effectiveness, assists in the completion of performance evaluations, etc. 
 


• Supervises the completion of all tasks necessary to prepare and distribute 
accurate and timely billing statements for electric, water and wastewater 
service, and all other billed charges, including stormwater utility charges for 
the City of Stoughton. Supervises and/or performs all tasks necessary to 
ensure proper accounting and reporting of billed charges. 
 


• Supervises the maintenance of accurate customer billing and metering 
information in the customer information system (CIS). Supervises and/or 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


performs periodic account reviews for proper rate classifications and 
application of utility rate and rule tariffs, responsible parties, meter 
installation details, tax exempt status, and all other reviews necessary to 
ensure accuracy. 
 


• Supervises the processing of all electric and water meter installations, 
removals, and replacements, and completes the records of such actions in the 
CIS and on customer accounts. Verifies all metering setups to ensure 
accuracy, including field verification as directed. Creates new accounts in the 
CIS upon completion of newly constructed metered services. 
 


• Supervises the utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program, in 
accordance with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) 
requirements. Assists meter technician with maintaining program records, 
producing reports and statistics, and issuing customer notifications. 
 


• Supervises the utility water and electric meter inventory, including the 
oversight of metering standardization programs, meter procurement and 
disposal, and inventory reporting. 
 


• Supervises the delinquent account collection methods and policies, including 
customer outreach and notification, service disconnections, small claims 
court, and outside collection agencies. Reviews and implements 
recommendations for new collection methods and policies. 
 


• Supervises the annual fall disconnection reporting in accordance with Public 
Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) requirements. 
 


• Leads in-house training and support of CIS to other division personnel; 
creates/modifies customer reporting templates upon request. Creates new 
and maintains existing CIS and metering procedures and instructional 
documentation. Maintains CIS and metering policies and procedures manuals. 
 


• Prepares all systems used to obtain scheduled electric and water meter 
readings. Once obtained, reviews all meter readings for accuracy and 
processes readings for customer billings. 
 


• Calculates the monthly Power Cost Adjustment Clause (PCAC), updates the 
CIS for billing purposes, and prepares monthly reports for power supply and 
regulatory purposes. 
 


• Calculates account billing corrections, including back-billings and customer 
credits, and submits the calculations for approval and processing. Prepares 
explanatory letters and spreadsheets for customer and regulatory review. 
Maintains records of all corrections and supporting documentation, and 
submits annual report to the PSCW. 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Reviews and approves customer account corrections not related to billed 
charges, including payment adjustments, deposit refunds, late penalty 
reversals, balance transfers, and submits the corrections for processing. 
 


• Maintains utility rate and rules tariffs. Updates rate information in the CIS 
and on the Stoughton Utilities website, and maintains physical copies of all 
tariffs for customer review. 
 


• Prepares and processes customer applications for residential and commercial 
utility service, contractor applications for new and temporary service, work 
orders, complaint forms, meter change out forms and reports, letters and 
other communications to and from customers and property owners, and 
more. 
 


• Prepares and issues reports, including but not limited to customer data, 
meter data, consumption statistics, financial statistics, trends and behavioral 
analysis, and inspection records, and reports findings to division supervisors, 
financial employees, third-party auditors, and regulatory agencies as 
directed. 
 


• Receives written and verbal requests, inquiries, and complaints, coordinates 
actions required, and responds to inquirer. Maintain files of customer 
complaints and inquiries. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 
 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. Provide information and/or reports from customer account data as 
requested. 
 


• Perform related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, computer 
operation, maintenance of mailing equipment, and procurement of general 
office supplies. 
 


• Process customer payments received through various physical and electronic 
methods, including but not limited to, banking lockbox, online My Account 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night deposit box, in-person, 
energy assistance, etc. 
 


• Ensures performance of and may performs visits to City Hall, local post office, 
and local bank branch to receive and process incoming and outgoing postal 
and interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended 
recipients. 
 


• Ensures completion and may complete various front-office tasks, including 
but not limited to processing customer payments, distribution of committee 
meeting packets, preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, 
negotiating deferred payment agreements, reviewing and completing 
customer corrections and adjustments, issuing customer refunds, processing 
utility accounts receivable, balancing utility billing general ledger, etc. 
 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread 
outages and other emergencies. 
 


• Assist other division personnel as required. 
 


• Provide assistance during monthly disconnection processes, annual financial 
audit, and public events. 
 


• Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma, associate degree in accounting or related, with 5 or 
more years utility billing, collections, metering, and customer service 
experience required, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• One or more years electric metering experience and basic water metering 
experience required. 
 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 
demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; customer billing information; billing statements; meter data output 
and reports; computer billing journals; computer software operating manuals; 
city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-routine 
correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, regulations, 
and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and regulations; 
State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. Ability to communicate in 
writing and orally with customers, department and all levels of City personnel, 
financial auditors, regulatory agencies, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Mathematical Ability 
• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervising, leading, 
teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand 
punch, telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing. 
 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 
crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors is minimal and poses little to no risk of injury. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
Technical Operations Division 


Customer Service Technician 
 


REPORTS TO: Billing & Metering Supervisor PAY GRADE:CS-1 FLSA: N 
 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of this position is to perform customer service and collections tasks for 
Stoughton Utilities including, but not limited to maintenance of customer records, 


assisting phone and walk-in customers, collection of delinquent accounts through 


existing methods and policies, recommending new collection methods and policies, 
processing customer deposits and deferred payment agreements, and handling a 


variety of customer payments. In addition, this position will also perform general 
administrative tasks. 


 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 


this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 


• Greets and directs visitors. Answers, directs, and routes telephone calls and 
messages, and email inquiries received through the general customer service 


address. 
 


• Assists customers with verbal and written customer service inquiries, 
including general account inquiries, high-bill complaints, and questions about 


utility policies. Documents all inquiries and complaints. Prepares work orders, 


customer inquiry/complaint forms, and service applications. 
 


• Processes payments received in-person at the front counter and issues 


receipts. Processes and posts payments received via mail and curbside 
deposit box. Processes returned payments due to insufficient funds or other 


causes. 
 


• Coordinates payment of delinquent accounts through existing methods and 


policies, including proactive customer outreach, printed delinquency 


notifications, service disconnections, small claims court, and outside collection 


agencies. Researches and recommends new collection methods and policies. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Negotiates and maintains deferred payment agreements for eligible 


customers pursuant to applicable Stoughton Utilities rule tariffs, including 


regular reviews for agreement default and issuance of follow-up 


notification/disconnection as necessary. Follows Public Service Commission of 


Wisconsin (PSCW) requirements for customer notification following rejection 
of customer-proposed agreements. Calculates and collects customer deposits, 


including proactive customer outreach, regular reviews of account eligibility, 
printed notices, account status updates, and negotiation of deferred payment 


agreements. 


 


• Facilitates the electric and water service disconnection process. Reviews all 
accounts for eligibility, creates printed and automated telephone warning 


notices, processes disconnect and reconnect workorders, and negotiates 


payments for reconnection. 
 


• Processes bankruptcies, updates and maintains bankruptcy files and 


customer’s accounts, and processes and files court documents as necessary 
to file creditor claims. 


 


• Completes daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank branch to 
receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental mail 


and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and distributes received postal 
and interdepartmental mail to their intended recipients. 


 


• Processes new customer applications. Verifies identities, researches prior 


account status as applicable, and calculates industrial, commercial and 
residential deposits as applicable. Verifies and maintains property owner data 


for all new and existing accounts. 
 


• Conducts periodic reviews for balance corrections and transfers. Conducts 


periodic review for uncollectable debt write- offs. Conducts periodic reviews of 
unclaimed funds and assists with submission of account information. 


 
• Maintains medical/protective services list. Issues annual renewal notices and 


processes customer response. 


 
• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 


operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 


 
• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials, and participates in outreach efforts. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Performs related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, typing, and 
computer operation. 


 
• Receives and processes incoming and outgoing postal and interdepartmental 


mail. 


 


• Assists electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 


 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread 
outages and other emergencies. 


 


• Perform other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 


Education/Training/Certifications 


• High School diploma, vocational training in bookkeeping, accounting or 


related, with 2 years of utility customer service or account collections 
experience required, or any combination of education and experience that 


provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 


 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some judgment. Ability to compare, 


count, differentiate, measure and sort information. Ability to assemble, copy, 
record and transcribe data and information. 


 


• Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate and clarify to others within well- 
established policies, procedures and standards, as well as the ability to follow 


specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 


orders, customer billing information, billing statements, computer billing 


journals, computer software operating manuals, city and utility policies and 
procedures, guidelines, non-routine correspondence, Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin rules and regulations, State of Wisconsin legal 


statutes, Stoughton municipal code of ordinances, bankruptcy laws, and 
safety manuals. 


 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, bank personnel, title company representatives, 


bankruptcy and small claims court personnel, and the general public. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 


statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 


according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 


statistical reports. 


 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and techniques 


to problem resolution. 


 
• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 


diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria. 


 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand 


punch, telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 


 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing. 


 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 


crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 
environmental factors is minimal and poses little to no risk of injury. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 
 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 


employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 


 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 


legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 
 


Signature:   Date:   







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 
Distribution System Coordinator 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director      PAY GRADE: NEX-2       FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to coordinate the strategic planning and design of 
developments, projects, and system improvements. This position is also responsible 
for the coordination of a variety of technical planning tasks from project preparation 
through completion. 
 
This position also participates in the maintenance of the utility Geographic 
Information System (GIS), participates in the operation and maintenance of the 
utilities Outage Management System (OMS), and participates in the operation and 
maintenance of the utilities Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 
systems. This position serves as the primary system outage coordinator for planned 
routine system interruptions as well as during major system events. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Coorrdiates a variety of technical planning tasks for maintenance and 
construction projects, such as the preparation of customer construction 
estimating, new development design review processes, preparation and 
distribution of materials and equipment specifications, and preparation of 
work orders and staking sheets. Assigns, schedules, and performs 
construction management tasks in the office and the field. 
 


• Coordinates the planning of electric, water, and wastewater projects from 
conception through completion, in collaboration with the Asset & Facilities 
Coordinator. Solicits comments and recommendations for new development 
design and system expansion from utilities division supervisors. Prepares 
construction cost estimates for proposed projects and developments, and 
coordinates project scheduling with developers and contractors. 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to review construction 
project plans and specifications to ensure compliance with utility 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


specifications. Upon project completion, reviews and approves as-built plans, 
quantities, and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure 
projects and land developments. Maintains construction project files and 
manages their long-term storage to ensure regulatory compliance.  
 


• Conducts construction project plan and specification reviews, including utility 
easement review. Obtains, reviews, and approves as-built plans, quantities, 
and acceptance certifications for public utility infrastructure projects and land 
developments. Obtains and reviews private building construction projects, 
including reviewing compliance with existing utility easements and assisting 
in the acquisition of new utility easements as necessary. Files records of 
easement updates with the County Register of Deeds. 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain Stoughton 
Utilities Electric, Water, and Wastewater construction specifications. 
Participates in the periodic review of the specification documents to ensure 
they remain accurate and up to date. Shares construction specifications with 
project developers, engineering consultants, construction contractors, and 
others. 
 


• Coordinates system outages, planned and unplanned, and service 
disconnections during routine work hours, acting as the primary outage 
coordinator and point of contact. Receives outage reports from customer 
service staff and outage management system. Monitors locations of active 
outages and dispatches field crews as needed to address simultaneous outage 
locations. Reports outage status updates to utility management and customer 
service. Obtains outage report forms from field employees and logs outage 
duration and extent. Compiles reliability reporting and statistics in accordance 
with regulatory and industry standards. 
 


• Processes customer inquiries and requests for maintenance related to the 
electric utility; investigates complaints and performs corrective measures, or 
schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. Receives 
customer inquiries, writes and distributes work orders, provides information, 
and/or refers to appropriate person or agency for resolution. Communicates 
with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, and to 
provide notice of planned service interruptions. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to maintain and improve 
the utility Geographic Information System (GIS), including updating asset 
data and locations for the electric, water, and wastewater divisions, 
developing maps and mobile services for utility employees and engineering 
consultants, and completing basic maintenance of GIS software, databases, 
geometric networks, and add-on systems. Collaborates with utility division 
supervisors to obtain, process, and verify data updates. Develops system 
documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the GIS team. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain 
the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems for the 
electric system and the water/wastewater system. Participates in SCADA 
system maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, 
security upgrades, remote facility networking projects, and OMS system 
integration. Provides training to utility operators. Develops system 
documentation. Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & 
OMS team. 
 


• Collaborates within the Technical Operations Division to operate and maintain 
the Outage Management System (OMS). Participates in OMS system 
maintenance projects, including system upgrades and improvements, security 
upgrades, and SCADA system integration. Provides training to field 
employees on mobile system use, office employees on data collection and 
entry, and all other software operators. Develops system documentation. 
Participates on and reports system changes to the SCADA & OMS team. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 
Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Supports the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordinator. Participates 
in periodic meetings of the Safety Team. Responds to all safety requirements, 
requests, and concerns of utility employees. 
 


• Serves as a backup for the monthly collection of electric and water meter 
readings for cycle billing purposes. Maintains ability to work a flexible 
schedule in order to complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of 
standard working hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the 
month. 
 


• Serves as a backup to collect the daily meter readings for newly opened or 
closed customer accounts. Processes all daily meter workorders. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and 
Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and 
direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, 
and other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Maintains active certificate of appointment as a State of Wisconsin Notary 
Public. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in electrical 
distribution, civil engineering, information technology, or another field that 
provides relevant experience, three to five years electric utility experience, or 
any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent 
knowledge, skills, and abilities.  
 


• Vocational or utility industry training in one or more of the following is 
preferred: electric distribution system design, cost accounting, project 
management, Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA), Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS), Outage Management Systems (OMS), basic 
networking and information technology. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 
 


• Ability to comprehend, interpret, approve, and utilize a variety of advisory and 
design data and information such as billing invoices, vehicle maintenance 
reports, applications for service, correspondence, capital plans, regulations 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


and legal statutes, job authorization forms, purchase orders, ordinances, 
material sheets, staking sheets, computer software operating manuals, and 
safety rules and manuals. Ability to utilize and interpret environmental, 
electrical engineering, water and wastewater engineering, computer software 
systems, geographical information systems, and accounting terminology. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally effectively with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, contractors, developers, 
engineering consultants, legal consultants, regulatory agency personnel, and 
the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, construction documents, and other correspondence using 
prescribed formats according to the rules of punctuation, grammar and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as leading, teaching, 
directing, planning, coordinating, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or 
judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control, and planning of an 
entire program or multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles, dump truck, front end loader, forklift, etc. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, photocopier, paper 
cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled 
movements involved in typing, repair, and operation.  
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically 
involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing or pulling over 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of colors, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field 


under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure 
to environmental factors such as temperature variations, winds, rain and 
snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, and 
vehicular traffic. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of 
injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 
Education & Outreach Coordinator 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director     PAY GRADE: EX-1           FLSA: N                  
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to design and create utility customer outreach 
campaigns, utilizing traditional and digital platforms, design and create utility 
educational materials and programs, and design and create utility public information 
campaigns. This position is responsible for the short and long-term strategic 
planning of customer outreach and education efforts, including maintaining current 
efforts as well as continuing to evolve them to match customer expectations and 
market trends. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Coordinates and creates customer outreach campaigns, utilizing traditional 
and digital platforms such as direct mailings, inserts, social media, email, and 
newspapers, with topics to include electric, water, and wastewater customer 
outreach, conservation tips and education, energy safety education, customer 
feedback requests, customer engagement, and other topics that arise. 
 


• Coordinates brand consistency in informational, educational, promotional, and 
social media publications and messages by maintaining and implementing 
design standards. Reviews and updates materials created by other utility staff 
to ensure consistent design standards and branding. 
 


• Provides training and guidance to utility employees on acceptable social 
media use and platform operation, and keeps Stoughton Utilities social media 
team members up to date on current social media best practices and 
strategies. 
 


• Collects and analyzes customer data, including visits, interactions, 
consumption and billing, and payment patterns, and uses this information to 
create comprehensive reports to improve future educational and outreach 
strategies and campaigns. Analyzes customer demographics and tailors 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


outreach efforts to ensure they are reaching the most customers and 
stakeholders possible. Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities social media 
team members.  
 


• Grows and expands utility social media presence into new social media 
platforms according to customer interest and current platform trends, plus 
increases presence on existing social media platforms, including but not 
limited to Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, LinkedIn, and YouTube. Researches 
emerging social media platforms and trends. 
 


• Researches and monitors activities of utility peers, partners, and other 
regional utilities. Customizes Stoughton Utilities educational and outreach 
efforts to provide similar campaigns and strategies as offered by other 
regional electric, water, and wastewater utilities. 
 


• Creates and distributes engaging written and/or graphic content in the form 
of bill statement inserts, direct mailings, consumer and/or regulatory reports, 
e-newsletters, web page and blog content, infographics, presentations, and 
social media messages. Updates materials regularly to follow current design 
trends and brand consistency. 
 


• Maintains partnerships with commercial printers, content creators, and 
marketing partners to assist in outreach material design. Obtains stock 
photography and illustrations, and solicits content use permission from 
authors and trademark holders. Maintains records of licensing and use 
agreements. 
 


• Coordinates event planning leading up to and during utility-sponsored events, 
including but not limited to Public Power Week, Drinking Water Week, 
Lineworker Appreciation Day, peer organization visits, Utilities Committee 
meetings, presentations and open houses for utility customers, public tours 
and educational training, staff meetings and events, etc.  
 


• Acts as public relations coordinator during sustained education efforts, such 
as utility construction projects, regulatory rate reviews and adjustments, 
conservation efforts, drinking water quality advisories, customer engagement 
programs, and more. Creates and distributes press releases to regional media 
providers. 
 


• Coordinates school appearances, utility tours, and other educational 
partnerships with area educational entities, including but not limited to 
Stoughton Area School District, technical colleges, and private organizations. 
 


• Researches and provides customer education on new utility industry trends, 
including renewable energy, increased electrification efforts, safe water 
distribution and treatment, responsible and efficient energy use and 
expansion, etc. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Assists in economic development efforts for Stoughton Utilities, with a focus 


on informing potential new utility customers of the benefits of locating in the 
utility’s service territory, including rate competitiveness, reliability, and 
programs. 
 


• Prepares application materials for employee and utility recognition, such as 
APPA Reliable Public Power Provider (RP3) and Smart Energy Provider 
designations, MEUW and APPA safety awards, MEUW and WPPI Energy 
employee and elected official recognitions of service, etc. 
 


• Maintains ability to work a flexible schedule in order to respond to planned 
and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and significant event 
response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, severe weather 
events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: 
processing customer payments, preparation of committee meeting packets, 
preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred 
payment agreements, etc. 
 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank 
branch to receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and 
interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended 
recipients. 
 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various 
physical and electronic methods, including but not limited to, banking 
lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night 
deposit box, in-person, energy assistance, etc. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Perform related office tasks such as filing, faxing, photocopying, computer 
operation, maintenance of mailing equipment, and procurement of general 
office supplies. 
 


• Assist other division personnel as required. Provides assistance during 
monthly billing and disconnection processes, annual financial audit, etc. 
 


• Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required. 
 


• Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread 
outages and other emergencies. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma, bachelor’s degree in communications or marketing with 
training in customer outreach and education or related, with 3-years utility 
experience and 1-2 years social media management and content creation with 
experience of major social media platforms, or any combination of education 
and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• Working knowledge of Microsoft Windows and other software in a business 
environment, including but not limited to Microsoft Word, Excel, and Outlook. 
 


• Working knowledge of computer graphic design and publication layout/design 
software, including but not limited to Adobe Creative Cloud, including 
InDesign and Photoshop. 
 


• Working knowledge of internet content design and layout, including HTML and 
CSS. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Strong verbal and written communication skills, and ability to issue public-


facing communications without secondary review. Ability to communicate 
verbally and in writing with customers, department and all levels of City 
personnel, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to create consensus and collaboration, and train others. Ability to 
advise and provide interpretation regarding the application of policies, 
procedures, and standards to specific situations. 
 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders, customer billing information, meter reading slips, billing statements, 
complaint forms, billing journals, maps, computer software operating 
manuals, PSC rules and regulations, municipal code, procedures, guidelines, 
and non-routine correspondence. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, inform, and clarify to others within well-
established policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow 
specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 
 


• Ability to prepare posts, publications, color graphics, narrative and statistical 
reports, speeches, scripts, videos, letters, memos, and other correspondence 
using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of punctuation, 
grammar, and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret detailed descriptive statistical 
reports; and the ability to perform mathematical operations with fractions and 
algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as 
persuading, leading, teaching, and planning. Ability to exercise independent 
judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches and 
techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity in situations 
involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, and 
involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or multiple 
programs. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer workstation, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, telephone, 
camera, cellular communication devices including touchscreen phones and 
tablets, and two-way radio. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing and photography. 
 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 
crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors is minimal and poses little to no risk of injury. 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Electric System Division 


Electric Supervisor 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director     PAY GRADE: EL-6          FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose purpose of this position is to provide field supervision to the Electric 
System Division, including personnel and daily operations, projects and 
development, and strategic planning, under the direction of the Utilities Assistant 
Director. 
 
This position also efficiently and safely performs electrical distribution line 
construction, maintenance, and repair tasks, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities 
construction specifications and standards. 
 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Supervises and directs the operation and maintenance of the electric utility 
and distribution system. Ensures compliance with regulatory agency 
requirements and utility policies. Provides recommendations and assists with 
the coordination and implementation of electric distribution system 
improvements. 
 


• Supervises the activities of Electric System Division personnel. Conducts 
regular division staff meetings, establishes and maintains productivity 
reports, prepares and assigns work orders, coordinates introductory and 
continuing training programs, reviews and approves timesheets, establishes 
and maintains staff work and leave schedules, and assists in the completion 
of performance evaluations. Plans short and long-term division work plans 
and projects and guides the division’s goals and vision. 
 


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings and safety manual 
review. Conducts routine safety compliance checks on active job sites. 
Oversees division operations to ensure safety policy compliance. Report out 
findings to Stoughton Utilities management and safety compliance teams. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory and evaluates and 
approves or denies requests from division staff for the procurement of new 
tools and equipment. 
 


• Supervises the substation maintenance program, maintains all substation 
equipment, conducts routine substation inspections, and records weekly 
system readings and data. Evaluates and recommends long-term planning for 
substation maintenance and system expansion requirements. 
 


• Supervises the electric line clearance program. Monitors system tree 
trimming and removal needs, and maintains the annual schedule to ensure 
clearance program compliance. Works with division employees to trim and 
remove trees and brush. Communicates with customers to provide notice of 
upcoming line clearance projects and resolves line clearance complaints and 
inquiries. 
 


• Supervises the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, including providing 
education and mentorship, evaluating apprentice performance and 
competence, maintaining apprenticeship registrations and program 
compliance, conducting routine reviews and assessments, and recommending 
advancement through the program. 
 


• Supervises and maintains overhead and underground electric construction 
specifications and drawings. 
 


• Routinely performs lineworker work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, 
and supervise system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works 
onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 
evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 
 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical 
distribution lines. Operates live-line tools to connect and disconnect 
distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead 
and underground electrical systems. Locates underground electric cable faults 
for repair. Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a 
journeyman lineworker. 


 
• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 


placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 
Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities 
Distribution System Coordinator, or supervises staking completed by other 
lineworkers as appropriate. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data 
and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and 
load, and investigate outage conditions. 
 


• Manages electric distribution system switching procedures and 
documentation. Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to 
ensure mapping and outage management system accuracy, and to maintain 
up to date switching workflows. Provides updates and training on switching 
procedures to division staff, and ensures policies are followed. 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material 
inventory and procurement. Provides input and prepares recommendations 
for material quality standards and specifications. Assists in the evaluation of 
proposals and material acquisition. Cooperates in the year-end inventory 
process. 
 


• Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement 
Program, including conducting reviews of system reliability and making 
recommendations for system improvements. Assists with the preparation and 
ongoing monitoring of the Utilities annual budget. 
 


• Makes recommendations for electric division vehicle replacements, additions, 
and retirements. Provides input on vehicle standards and specifications. 
Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors 
vehicle safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle 
maintenance work. 
 


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to develop estimates 
for new, replacement, and upgraded electric services, and makes 
recommendations for new development design and system expansion. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. 
Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 
 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working on the electric 
distribution system. Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors 
to ensure compliance with utility construction specifications and contract 
requirements and expectations. Communicates with subcontractors to discuss 
complaints and issues. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service 
connection details, circuit identifications, overhead and underground system 
inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Electric System Division. Maintains an ability 
whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 
on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 
the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). Ensures full Electric System 
Division compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage 
transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer premises, including temporary 
and permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance 
and repair of electric meters, CTs, and VTs. Reconnects and transfers electric 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water 
System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, 
site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 
tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 
 


• Repairs and maintains streetlights. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in 
electrical systems, with a minimum of five years electrical system 
maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 


• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is 
required, or verifiable regional equivalent. 
 


• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift 
Certification, and CPR/First Aid Certification is required. 
 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 
demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; staking sheets; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; 
technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and 
safety rules and manuals. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, electricians, contractors, regulatory agencies, and 
the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Supervisory Skills 
• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and 
participate in the delivery of such reviews. 
 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, leading, 
teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, leading, 
teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors, such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage 
electrical currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high 
risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
Finance Manager 


 
REPORTS TO: Utilities Director PAY GRADE: EX-4 FLSA: E 


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of this position is to be accountable for the overall planning, 
organizing, controlling, and directing of the financial activities of the Utility, 


including coordination of all customer accounting with the Assistant Utilities Director 


and general accounting functions and information processing, and performing 
critical accounting and fiscal management functions in accordance with Stoughton 
Utilities goals and objectives. 


 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 


• Direct the operation of a central accounting system in a manner consistent 


with generally accepted accounting principles and practices, and in sufficient 
detail to produce accurate cost, financial and statistical data for both 


management and statutory requirements. 
 


• Implement and maintain a proper set of internal controls. Makes 


recommendations for organizational changes including staffing and structure 
to maintain proper internal controls. 


 


• Develop and maintain financial systems, policies, and procedures to ensure 
effective fiscal management. 


 


• Develop and maintain optimal investment, borrowing, and other funding 
strategies. 


 


• Research and share grant funding opportunities for utility divisions and 
customers, prepare grant applications, and maintain post-compliance 


monitoring and reporting, including opportunities for principal loan 


forgiveness programs. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Administers state and federal funding program requirements, submits 


program applications, and submits all reports required for program 


compliance and disbursement. 
 


• Prepare and maintain short, mid, and long-term cash flow forecasts. 
Collaborates with utility leadership to ensure fiscally responsible operations in 


line with current forecasts. 
 


• Direct the preparation of the Utilities budget and capital improvement 


program, including advising utility leadership in the review of estimates and 
the preparation of individual budget requests 


 


• Manage relationships with financial consultants. Collaborates with the Utilities 
Asset & Facilities Coordinator to review service fees, negotiate and develop 


contracts with service providers. 
 


• Oversee third-party audits, including the annual financial audit and all other 
audits required by project funding agencies, including completing internal 


auditing in preparation, and submit all required regulatory reports. 
 


• Prepares and submits Public Service Commission of Wisconsin Annual 
Reports, and all other periodic reporting required by PSCW. 


 


• Administer the purchase card program. 
 


• Direct treasury management operations, online banking, and fraud protection 
programs. 


 


• Perform electric, water, and wastewater retail rate analyses, develop rate 


structures that ensure sufficient revenue recovery, and obtain necessary local 
and regulatory approvals. 


 


• Process and close work orders including time, material, and equipment 
allocations, and asset retirements. Manages prepayment reconciliation and 


customer invoicing. 
 


• Prepare and interpret financial statements, cost reports, and statements of 
receipts and expenditures at regular intervals for use by the Utilities Director 


and utilities leadership, Utilities Committee, and Common Council. 


 


• Direct preparation of employee payroll, tax and benefit withholding, and 
periodic reporting. 


 


• Participate in Utilities Committee meetings, and other city committee and 


Common Council meetings as required. Prepare monthly status reports as 


well as other scheduled and unscheduled presentations and reports. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Leads in-house training and support of financial and workorder management 


software; creates/modifies reporting templates upon request. Creates new 


and maintains existing procedures and instructional documentation. Maintains 


financial and workorder processing policies and procedures manuals. 
 


• Maintain and review utility rate benchmarking; analyze and report on 
findings. 


 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and 
significant event response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, 


severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 
• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 


operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 


 
• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 


messages. 


 
• Assist other division personnel as required. 


 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials, and participates in outreach efforts. 


 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications 


• Bachelor's degree in Business Administration, Accounting, or Financial 
Management, with preference for a Certified Public Accountant. 


 
• Minimum seven years of experience related to financial/accounting 


operations, preferably in the utility environment. 


 


• Significant knowledge of generally accepted financial management and 


accounting principles and practices, including the ability to independently 


initiate analysis and solve a variety of accounting and fiscal issues from both 


long-term and daily operational perspectives. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Significant knowledge of Governmental Accounting Standards preferred. 
 


• Significant knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, 
including experience with automated accounting, financial, and billing 


systems. Advanced user of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, and 


PowerPoint). 


 
• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required, or the ability to obtain 


independent transport for required training and events. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, analyze, and interpret an extensive 


variety of technical information and governmental regulations.. Requires 


discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define 
consequences and develop alternatives. 


 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 


situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 


Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information such as work 
orders, financial statements; billing reports and statements; financial reports 


and ledgers; regulatory rate review applications; budgets; accounting 
systems; computer software operating manuals; city and utility policies and 
procedures; guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service 


Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules and regulations; State of 
Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 


 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 


instructions and respond to complex requests. 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, financial auditors, regulatory agencies, elected and 


appointed government officials, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 


statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 


according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 


 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 


advancement, and discharge of employees. 


 
• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews and 


participate in the delivery of such reviews. 
 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed 


descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial 
data. 


 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 


 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as managing, supervising, 


leading, teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 


 
• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 


diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 


multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 


continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator/adding 
machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand 


punch, telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 


typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 


crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to 


environmental factors is minimal and poses little to no risk of injury. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 


 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 


legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 
 


Signature:  Date:   







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
Electric System Division 


Journeyman Lineworker 


REPORTS TO: Electric Supervisor PAY GRADE: EL-4 FLSA: N 


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of positions in this classification is to efficiently and safely perform 
electrical distribution line construction, maintenance, and repair tasks, in 


accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 
 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical 
distribution lines. Operates live-line tools to connect and disconnect 


distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead 
and underground electrical systems. Locates underground electric cable faults 


for repair. Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a journey- 
level lineworker. 


 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 


Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities 
Distribution System Coordinator. 


 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data 


and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and 


load, and investigate outage conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 


 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 


compliance. 


 


• Installs, repairs, and maintains municipal street lighting. 
 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and ensures clearance 


program compliance. Works with division employees to trim and remove trees 
and brush. Communicates with customers to provide notice of upcoming line 


clearance projects and resolves line clearance complaints and inquiries. 
 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, 


including providing education and mentorship, and recommending 


advancement through the program. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 


 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time 
sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 
division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed. 


Conducts system inspections and records findings. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service 
connection details, circuit identifications, overhead and underground system 


inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 


activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 


seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 


rotational basis within the Electric System Division. Maintains an ability 


whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 
on-call. 


 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 


the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). Ensures full Electric System 


Division compliance of the same. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 


operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 


duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 


position. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 


workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 


request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 


evaluation. 
 


• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage 
transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer premises, including temporary 


and permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance 


and repair of electric meters, CTs, and VTs. Reconnects and transfers electric 
meters. 


 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 


removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 


 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water 
System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, 


site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 
tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 


 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 


Education/Training/Certifications 


• High School diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in 


electrical systems, with a minimum of four years electrical system 
maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that 


provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


 
• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is 


required, or verifiable regional equivalent. 


 
• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift 


certification, and CPR/First Aid certification is required. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and airbrake certification is required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 


and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 


orders; staking sheets; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; 


technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 


guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation rules and regulations; and safety rules and manuals. 


 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 


reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 


record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 


instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, electricians, contractors, and the 
general public. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 


 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 


judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, aerial 


bucket truck, digger/derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, 


roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power 
tools, snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring 


multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. 


Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as high voltage electrical work. 


 
• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around 


live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 


work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 


kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 


digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 


characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job- 


related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 
require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 


presents a high risk of injury or death. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 


 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 


legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 
 


Signature:  Date:   







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Technical Operations Division 
 Journeyman Meter Technician 


REPORTS TO: Billing & Metering Supervisor    PAY GRADE: EL-3     FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain, repair, test, install, and read electric and 
water meters, and to complete water cross connection inspections for the City of 
Stoughton. This position shall be responsible for evaluating electric and water 
services and determining the appropriate metering design, procurement and 
maintenance of electric and water meters and test equipment, maintenance of 
electric and water meter records, and installation of electric and water meters and 
equipment. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Maintains the utility’s electric and water meter testing programs to ensure 
compliance with Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) regulations 
and periodic test schedules. 
 


• Tests single and three-phase electric meters both in the field and in the shop 
in accordance with PSC rules. Maintains, and repairs meters, current 
transformers (CTs), and voltage transformers (VTs). Prepares and issues 
reports on electric meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, 
customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 
 


• Tests water meters both in the field and in the shop in accordance with PSC 
rules. Installs, maintains, and repairs water meters. Prepares and issues 
reports on water meter test quantities and results to division supervisors, 
customer service staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 
 


• Manages the utility water and electric meter inventory. Establishes and 
maintains metering standardization programs, and collaborates with the Asset 
& Facilities Coordinator to maintain meter inventory, including the 
procurement of new meters and the discarding of damaged and retired 
meters. Prepares and issues reports on meter inventory and annual activity to 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


division supervisors, financial staff, and regulatory agencies as directed. 
Completes the year-end inventory process for electric and water meters, CTs, 
and VTs. 
 


• Reviews applications for new and upgraded electric service connections, and 
determines proper meter type, cabinet size and type, and need for CTs and 
VTs, and wires customer meter sockets at commercial properties. Conveys 
cabinet and socket requirements to customers and electrical contractors. 
Collaborates with the Electric System Supervisor to coordinate electric meter 
sizing, installation, and repair. 
 


• Installs electric and water meters – including CTs and VTs as necessary – at 
customer premises, including temporary and permanent services. 
 


• Reviews applications for new water service connections, and determines the 
proper meter sizing and type. Conveys plumbing requirements to customers 
and plumbing contractors. Collaborates with the Water System Supervisor to 
coordinate water meter sizing, installation, and repair. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric and 
water meter inventory, electric and water meter testing history, electric and 
water service connection details and meter history, and other records as 
directed. 
 


• Manages the Utility’s water Cross-Connection Control Program to eliminate 
existing and prevent future cross- connections, in accordance with Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) rules. Performs household and 
business inspections, issues corrective orders, and performs follow-up 
inspections as necessary.  
 


• Completes the monthly collection of electric and water meter readings for 
cycle billing purposes. Maintains ability to work a flexible schedule in order to 
complete the monthly meter reading collection outside of standard working 
hours one day per month, typically on the first day of the month. 
 


• Completes the daily meter readings for newly opened or closed customer 
accounts. Processes all daily meter workorders. 
 


• Assists with utility billing operations by investigating zero/low meter readings 
for both electric and water, and reports findings. Reviews customer history 
and consumption trends to detect potential meter issues. Performs meter 
rereads upon receipt of workorders. 
 


• Coordinates field delinquent collections operations, including disconnecting 
utility service to customers upon receipt of disconnection workorders. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints and recommends 
and performs corrective action in response. 
 


• Mentors, educates, and trains Apprentice Meter Technician employees when 
employed by the utility. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials, and participates in outreach efforts. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and 
assist those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW), 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR), and the National Electric 
Safety Code (NESC). 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Provide back up for various front-office tasks, including but not limited to: 
processing customer payments, preparation of committee meeting packets, 
preparation of daily bank deposits, organizational filing, negotiating deferred 
payment agreements, etc. 
 


• Provide back up for processing customer payments received through various 
physical and electronic methods, including but not limited to, banking 
lockbox, online My Account payments, Autopay (ACH and credit card), night 
deposit box, in-person, energy assistance, etc. 
 


• Provide back up for daily visits to City Hall, local post office, and local bank 
branch to receive and process incoming and outgoing postal and 
interdepartmental mail and deliver the daily banking deposit. Sorts and 
distributes received postal and interdepartmental mail to their intended 
recipients. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, snow and ice 


removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric, Wastewater, and 
Water System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and 
direction, site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, 
and other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks for all other divisions as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, with three or more years electric metering 
experience and basic water metering experience required, or any combination 
of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 
abilities. 
 


• Successful completion of the State of Wisconsin three-year Electric Meter 
Technician apprenticeship required. 
 


• Basic knowledge of drinking water distribution systems required; Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Grade T or Grade 1 Waterworks 
Operator Certification, with subclasses G and D, preferred. Ability to obtain 
and maintain such certification required. 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license required; commercial driver’s license 
with tanker and air brake certification preferred. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine 


the relationship of the data with reference to established criteria/standards. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, as well as 
assemble, copy, records and transcribe data. Ability to classify, compute and 
tabulate data. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within established 
policies, procedures and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as meter 
records, city ordinances, PSC and DNR reports and bulletins, charts, policy 
manuals, maintenance records, PSC and DNR rules and regulations, vehicle 
manuals, equipment manuals, meter and CT wiring diagrams, construction 
specifications and plans, service applications, electric service rules, safety 
manuals and codes, and maps. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with department 
personnel, customers, contractors, engineers, City employees, law 
enforcement, and PSC and DNR statistical reports. 
 


• Ability to prepare narrative and statistical reports, construction documents, 
and correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted rules of 
punctuation, grammar, and style. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 
 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 
• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning in performing diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations 
involving the evaluation of information against sensory and/or judgmental 
criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program 
or multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles, meter test bench, hand tools, generators, voltmeter, etc. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, photocopier, paper 
cutter, hand punch, and telephone. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around 
live electricity, potentially in tight spaces.  
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as electrical work. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically 


involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, crawling, lifting, and carrying, pushing and pulling over 100 
pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities and differences 
between characteristics of color, sound, taste, texture, and odor associated 
with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, and high voltage electrical 
currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high risk of 
injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
Electric System Division 


Lead Journeyman Lineworker 


REPORTS TO: Electric Supervisor PAY GRADE: EL-5 FLSA: N 


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 


The purpose of this position is to assist in the day-to-day coordination of the Electric 
System Division, including scheduling of daily operations and project oversight, 


acting under the direction of the Utilities Electric System Supervisor. This position 


also efficiently and safely performs electrical distribution line construction, 
maintenance, and repair tasks, in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction 
specifications and standards. 


 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 


Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 


• Assists the Utilities Electric System Supervisor with the coordination of the 


operation and maintenance of the electric utility and distribution system. 
Ensures compliance with regulatory agency requirements and utility policies. 


Provides recommendations and assists with the coordination and 
implementation of electric distribution system improvements. 


 


• Assists in the supervision of the activities of Electric System Division 
personnel. Actively participates in regular division staff meetings and 


conducts such meetings in the absence of the Utilities Electric System 


Supervisor. Assists in the maintenance of productivity reports, the review of 


timesheets, and the maintenance of staff work and leave schedules. Assists in 
providing instruction and training; planning, coordinating, assigning, and 


reviewing of work; and the maintenance of division standards and policies. 
 


• Assists in the coordination and organization of, and actively participates in, 


routine safety meetings and safety manual review. Conducts routine safety 


compliance checks on active job sites. Assists in the oversight of division 


operations to ensure safety policy compliance. Report out findings to the 


Utilities Electric System Supervisor and the Stoughton Utilities management 


and safety compliance teams. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Monitors the substation maintenance program, maintains all substation 


equipment, conducts routine substation inspections, and records weekly 


system readings and data. 
 


• Monitors system tree trimming and removal needs, and maintains the annual 
schedule to ensure clearance program compliance. Works with division 


employees to trim and remove trees and brush. Communicates with 
customers to provide notice of upcoming line clearance projects and resolves 


line clearance complaints and inquiries. 
 


• Assists in the oversight of the utility’s apprentice lineworker program, 


including providing education and mentorship, evaluating apprentice 


performance and competence, maintaining apprenticeship registrations and 


program compliance, conducting routine reviews and assessments, and 


recommending advancement through the program. 
 


• Maintains overhead and underground electric construction specifications and 
drawings. 


 
• Routinely performs lineworker work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, 


and oversee system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works 


onsite to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 
evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 


 


• Operates diggers, bucket trucks, and hand tools near and around electrical 


distribution lines. Operates live-line tools to connect and disconnect 
distribution lines and components. Installs primary and secondary overhead 


and underground electrical systems. Locates underground electric cable faults 
for repair. Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a 
journeyman lineworker. 


 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 


Conducts tailboard meetings to review projects and safety. 


 


• Completes field staking using staking sheets provided by the Utilities 
Distribution System Coordinator. 


 


• Operates the electric SCADA system to monitor system health, record data 


and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate circuit performance and 


load, and investigate outage conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. 


Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 


complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Makes recommendations for electric division vehicle replacements, additions, 


and retirements. Provides input on vehicle standards and specifications. 


Oversees routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle 


safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle 


maintenance work. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 


demonstrations and tours, and gives electrical safety presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, staking sheets, outage reports, time 


sheets, preflight checklists, tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other 


division paperwork, and maintains records and prepares reports as directed. 


Conducts system inspections and records findings. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including electric service 
connection details, circuit identifications, overhead and underground system 


inspections, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 


activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 


 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 


rotational basis within the Electric System Division. Maintains an ability 
whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving 


on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 


regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 
the National Electric Safety Code (NESC). Ensures full Electric System 


Division compliance of the same. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 


duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 


Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 


 


• Disconnects electrical service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 


workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 


evaluation. 


 
• Installs electric meters, including current transformers (CTs) and voltage 


transformers (VTs) as necessary, at customer premises, including temporary 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


and permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance 


and repair of electric meters, CTs, and VTs. Reconnects and transfers electric 


meters. 


 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 


maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Wastewater and Water 


System Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, 
site preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, and other 


tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster response. 
 


• Repairs and maintains streetlights. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 


 
Education/Training/Certifications 


• High School diploma or equivalent and vocational/technical training in 
electrical systems, with a minimum of four years electrical system 


maintenance experience, or any combination of education and experience that 
provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


 
• Documented completion of a four-year Electrical Lineworker apprenticeship is 


required, or verifiable regional equivalent. 


 
• Journeyman Lineworker Certification, or verifiable regional equivalent, forklift 


certification, and CPR/First Aid certification is required. 


 
• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 


demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification is required. 


 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 


and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 


develop alternatives. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


• Ability to provide oversight and backup supervision. Ability to create 


consensus and collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide 


interpretation regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards 


to specific situations. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work 


orders; staking sheets; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; 
technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 


guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of 


Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and 


safety rules and manuals. 


 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 


reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 


differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 


 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 


policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 


 
• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 


all levels of City personnel, electricians, contractors, and the general public. 


 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 


statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 


 


Supervisory Skills 


• Ability to assign, review, develop, assess, and implement recommendations to 
improve the work of others. 


 
• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 


advancement, and discharge of employees. 


 
• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and 


participate in the delivery of such review. 


 


Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 


statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 


operations with algebra. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 


and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervising, managing, 
leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, and controlling. 


 
• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 


diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 


situations involving the direction, control and planning of an entire program or 


multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, aerial 
bucket truck, digger/derrick, forklift, wood chipper, chain saw, back hoe, 
roller, compression tools, cable cutters, nail gun, meters, hand and power 


tools, snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring 
multiple conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. 


Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


 
• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 


movements such as high voltage electrical work. 


 
• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity around 


live electricity, potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained extremely heavy physical effort in very 
heavy work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, 
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, or lifting, as well as carrying, 


pushing, shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in 
excess of 100 pounds. 


 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 


characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job- 
related objects, materials and tasks. 


 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities 
Journeyman Lineworker position description. 


 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 


variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 


wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


electrical currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a high 


risk of injury or death. 







Council Approved ADD DATE  


 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 
 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 


 


All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 


employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 


I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 


legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 


successful performance of this job. 


 


Printed Name:   
 


 


Signature:  Date:   







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Wastewater System Division 


Operator 


REPORTS TO: Wastewater System Supervisor   PAY GRADE: W-1     FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. This position is identical to other non-certified 
Operator positions in terms of job scope, however may differ in day-to-day duties 
and assignments, required qualifications, and certifications. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 
other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed. Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports 
out findings. Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment 
operations and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test 
results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.  
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, and one or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 


 
• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 


prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 


 
Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 
require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Water System Division 


Operator 


REPORTS TO: Water System Supervisor      PAY GRADE: W-1        FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the water pumping, storage, 
and distribution systems, and the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary 
sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton, with a focus on wastewater 
collection and treatment operations. This position is identical to other non-certified 
Operator positions in terms of job scope, however may differ in day-to-day duties 
and assignments, required qualifications, and certifications. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Provides safe drinking water conditions to protect Stoughton Utilities 
customers, via obtaining and testing routine water samples, monitoring and 
recording well pump operations and storage tank volumes, monitoring and 
testing water and wastewater quality conditions, and monitoring and 
recording data and operations on the water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Ensures environmentally responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing routine wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process, monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes, monitoring and testing wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, and monitoring and recording data and operations on the 
water/wastewater SCADA system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water distribution mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, 
services, and hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. 
Performs routine maintenance to other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Exercises system valves and flushes hydrants. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system. 
 


• Repairs and maintains pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, screens, and all 
other equipment at the wastewater treatment facility. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of drinking water and wastewater treatment, 
and performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 
solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed. Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports 
out findings. Makes adjustments to drinking water and wastewater treatment 
operations and calculates amount of chemical additives according to test 
results. 
 


• Prepares, or assists with the preparation of monthly water pumpage and 
wastewater treatment reports, and submits to the Wisconsin Department of 
Natural Resources (DNR). 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Operates the water/wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, 
record data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate system 
performance, and investigate trouble conditions. 
 


• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 
measures. Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned system outages.  
 


• Performs work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and oversee system 
and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to recommend 
operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate safety 
compliance. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives safety and conservation presentations. 
 


• Completes and maintains work orders, time sheets, preflight checklists, 
tailgate meetings, inventory forms, and all other division paperwork, and 
maintains records and prepares reports as directed. Conducts system 
inspections and records findings. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including service 
connection details, flushing and exercising maintenance records, televising 
records, equipment maintenance tasks, and other records as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Divisions. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW). 
Ensures full Water and Wastewater System Divisions compliance of the same. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ 
request. Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection 
evaluation. 
 


• Installs water meters at customer premises, including temporary and 
permanent services. Assists the meter technician with the maintenance and 
repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and transfers water 
meters. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic commercial electrical 
maintenance, basic plumbing, and similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric System Division, 
including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site preparation 
and cleanup, equipment transport and operation, groundsman duties, and 
other tasks as directed. Provides local and regional emergency disaster 
response. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, and one or more years water and/or 
wastewater operator experience. 
 


• Demonstrated mechanical and/or plumbing aptitude. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives.  
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some individual judgment, with 
reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, 
differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as assemble, copy, 
record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; technical 
operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; non-
routine correspondence; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate effectively in writing and orally with customers, 
department and all levels of City personnel, plumbers, contractors, regulatory 
representatives, and the general public. 
 


Mathematical Ability 
• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as leading and teaching. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against sensory and 
judgmental criteria. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as impact tools, sewer line 


jet truck, back hoe, roller, loaders, dump truck, forklift, wood chipper, meters, 
hand and power tools, snow plows and blowers, lab instruments, excavation 
hand tools, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and 
making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex 
equipment and machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements such as operating heavy excavation and pumping equipment. 
 


• Ability to install and repair meters and perform coordinated activity, 
potentially in tight spaces. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing, shoveling and 
digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that 


require exposure to severe environmental factors such as temperature 
variations, high winds, rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, 
wetness, dusts, machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, high voltage 
electrical currents, and disease. This exposure may cause discomfort and 
presents a high risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Director 


REPORTS TO: Mayor                     PAY GRADE: EX-5                      FLSA: E                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to direct and supervise the overall operations of 
Stoughton Utilities which includes: electric distribution, water distribution, and 
wastewater collection and treatment, including system design and development, 
system maintenance and construction, utility coordination, financial management, 
billing and customer service, regulatory compliance, and utility administration. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Directs all Stoughton Utilities operations; prepares and monitors budgets, 
plans, and goals; develops policies and procedures; implements operations 
study recommendations; maintains utility service quality standards; 
coordinates various construction and development programs; ensures 
compliance with all local, State, and Federal mandates. 
 


• Directs Stoughton Utilities personnel, processes, and technology, including 
engineering studies, technology and automation systems implementation, 
and other programs. Provides information and assistance to, and coordinates 
activities with, other City of Stoughton departments, consultants, auditors, 
regulatory agencies, customers, developers, and elected officials. 
 


• Directs Stoughton Utilities annual budget and capital improvement program, 
and long-range strategic vision. Directs all electric, water, and wastewater 
infrastructure maintenance and construction projects. 
 


• Directs and supervises the activities of Stoughton Utilities personnel. In 
conjunction with the Director of Human Resources & Risk Management, 
participates in staff hiring and promotions, employee feedback and coaching, 
disciplinary actions, personnel evaluations, staff development, and 
terminations. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Directs Stoughton Utilities public education and outreach programs. Serves as 
the utility public information officer and represents Stoughton Utilities in 
press releases, media interviews, public statements and presentations, and 
community events. 
 


• Directs the Stoughton Utilities safety program coordination. Participates on 
the Safety Team. Responds to all safety requirements, requests, and 
concerns of utility employees. Conducts safety investigations. 
 


• Represent Stoughton Utilities in reporting to the Mayor, Common Council, 
Utilities Committee, and the City of Stoughton Leadership Team. Participates 
in required Utilities Committee and Common Council meetings. Prepares 
monthly meeting agendas and notices, status reports, and other scheduled 
and unscheduled presentations and reports. 
 


• Represents Stoughton Utilities in participation and communications with 
industry partners including WPPI Energy and Municipal Electric Utilities of 
Wisconsin (MEUW), lobbying organizations, regulatory agencies, legal 
representation, and elected officials. Serves as Director on the WPPI Energy 
Board of Directors. 
 


• Receives and resolves high-level inquiries and complaints, including those 
from elected officials and the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, and 
implements resulting corrective action and/or policy revisions. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources, and the National Electric Safety Code. 
 


• Responds to planned and unplanned customer engagement opportunities and 
significant event response, including but not limited to large-scale outages, 
severe weather events, and drinking water or sanitary sewer emergencies. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and 
messages. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, and conducts 
system demonstrations and tours. 
 


• Assists all other Stoughton Utilities divisions as required. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• Bachelor’s degree in engineering or business administration, or related field, 
with preference for State of Wisconsin licensure for Professional Engineer. A 
track record of successful management and supervisory experience required. 
A minimum of 15 years of utility leadership experience preferred. 
 


• Must have or obtain, within one year, Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses 
G and D, or such certification designated as Operator in Training. 
 


• Must have or obtain, within one year, Wisconsin DNR Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator Certification – Basic, or such certification designated as 
Operator in Training. 
 


• Previous economic development experience preferred but not required. 
 


• Knowledge of computer software used in the utility environment, including 
experience with utility system automation, asset management, and mapping 
platforms. Advanced user of Microsoft Office applications (Word, Excel, and 
PowerPoint). 
 


• Valid motor vehicle operator’s license is required. 
 
Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 


• Ability to perform complex data analysis, including the ability to audit, 
deduce, assess, conclude, appraise, analyze, and interpret an extensive 
variety of technical information and governmental regulations. Requires 
discretion in determining and referencing such to established criteria to define 
consequences and develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 
Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information such as civil 
engineering plans; engineering studies and reports; construction 
specifications; bid documents and tabulations; utility statistical reports, 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


demand and consumption reports, and wholesale billing statements; financial 
reports and statements; budgets; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin rules, regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety 
rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to respond to 
complex requests where established policies and procedures may not exist. 
 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, give and follow 
instructions, use and interpret civil, environmental, and electrical engineering 
and accounting terminology. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, construction consultants and contractors, 
engineering and legal consultants, financial auditors, regulatory agencies, 
elected and appointed government officials, and the general public. Ability to 
prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical reports, 
and other correspondence using prescribed formats according to accepted 
rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Supervisory Skills 
• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to prepare meaningful performance reviews and participate in the 
delivery of such reviews. 
 


Mathematical Ability 
• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 


percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop detailed 
descriptive statistical reports; and the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra, geometry, and descriptive statistics. 
 


• Ability to design and produce graphical representations of complex financial 
data. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives with direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems such as managing, supervising, 
leading, teaching, directing, planning, coordinating, disciplining, coaching, and 
controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or 
judgmental criteria, and involving the direction, control and planning of an 
entire program or multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple 


conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments, such as 
motor vehicles. 
 


• Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but 
continuous adjustments, such as computer terminal, calculator, photocopier, 
telephone, and other items used in performing essential functions. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing semi-skilled 
movements such as typing. 
 


• Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, 
typically involving some combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and 
crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment and in public meetings 


under safe and comfortable conditions, as well as in the field under 
uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to 
environmental factors such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and 
snow, odors, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, and vehicular traffic. This 
exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or death. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 
 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  
Wastewater System Division 
Wastewater System Supervisor 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director      PAY GRADE: W-6          FLSA: N                   
 
 
SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to provide supervision to the Wastewater System 
Division, including personnel and daily operations, projects and development, and 
strategic planning, under the direction of the Utilities Director, including supervision 
of the Stoughton Utilities wastewater treatment facilities and the sanitary sewer 
collection system. This position serves as the designated Operator in Charge of the 
Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility and assumes all obligations and 
responsibility for regulatory compliance. 
 
This position also efficiently and safely performs wastewater treatment system 
operations, maintenance, and repair tasks, and participates in construction projects, 
in accordance with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 
 
DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 
this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Supervises and directs the daily operations and maintenance of the 
wastewater treatment plant and collection system, and oversees and 
monitors the wastewater treatment process. Ensures compliance with 
regulatory agency requirements and utility policies, including compliance with 
all requirements of the Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(WPDES) permit issued to the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility. 
Ensures environmentally-responsible wastewater treatment and discharge via 
obtaining and testing wastewater treatment samples throughout the 
treatment process and monitoring and recording plant operations and tank 
volumes. 
 


• Supervises the activities of Wastewater System Division personnel. Conducts 
regular division staff meetings, establishes and maintains productivity 
reports, prepares and assigns work orders, coordinates introductory and 
continuing training programs, reviews and approves timesheets, establishes 
and maintains staff work and leave schedules, and assists in the completion 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


of performance evaluations. Plans short and long-term division work plans 
and projects, and guides the division’s goals and vision. 
 


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings. Conducts routine 
safety compliance checks on active job sites. Oversees division operations to 
ensure safety policy compliance. Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities 
management and safety compliance teams. 
 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory and evaluates and 
approves or denies requests from division staff for the procurement of new 
tools and equipment. 
 


• Supervises the installation of new sanitary sewer service connections. 
Coordinates activities associated with sanitary sewer lateral connections with 
contractors, residents, and engineers. 
 


• Supervises and coordinates the distribution of field notifications for 
construction. 
 


• Supervises sludge storage and removal programs. Maintains appropriate 
sludge storage capacity, nutrient management field records including 
ownership and contact information, regulatory soil sampling requirements, 
and all data necessary for regulatory compliance. 
 


• Routinely performs operator work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and 
supervise system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite 
to recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to 
evaluate staff knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 
 


• Repairs and maintains sanitary sewer collection mains and pumps. Performs 
routine maintenance to sanitary sewer collection system infrastructure and 
equipment. Flushes, televises, cleans, and repairs the sanitary sewer 
collection system.  
 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 
Conducts worksite meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Operates the wastewater SCADA system to monitor system health, record 
data and equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate influent and effluent 
flow, monitor lift station pumpage and plant treatment, and investigate 
system concerns. 
 


• Obtains and prepares samples of wastewater influent and effluent quality 
conditions, wastewater treatment processes, and drinking water, and 
performs laboratory analysis including sample testing and calculations for 
biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, volatile 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, fluoride 
content, industrial effluents, glucose glutamic acid, and other analysis as 
directed. Prepares graphs, charts, and reports from sample data, and reports 
out findings. Adjusts wastewater treatment and drinking water distribution 
operations and calculates amounts of chemical additives according to test 
results. 
 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities. Cleans 
and maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends EPA samples as directed. 
 


• Prepares reports in accordance with DNR, EPA, and other regulatory agency 
requirements, including compliance maintenance annual reports, land 
application of biosolids annual reports, monthly discharge report, annual 
mercury reports, and annual air emissions reports. 
 


• Develops and maintains emergency response and maintenance programs for 
the sanitary sewer collection system as part of the Stoughton Utilities 
Capacity, Management, Operation and Maintenance (CMOM) program. 
Performs self- assessments on CMOM compliance. 
 


• Monitors industry loadings and compliance with routine sampling 
requirements. Maintains listing of industrial facility contacts, and forms and 
maintains relationships with facility operations and maintenance managers. 
Reviews laboratory results of industrial sampling and ensures facility 
compliance with discharge requirements. Provides laboratory results to the 
Billing & Metering Supervisor and assists in the billing of industrial surcharges 
 


• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material 
inventory and procurement. Provides input and prepares recommendations 
for material quality standards and specifications. Assists in the evaluation of 
proposals and material acquisition. Cooperates in the year-end inventory 
process. 
 


• Assists in the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement 
Program, including conducting reviews of system reliability and making 
recommendations for system improvements. Assists with the preparation and 
ongoing monitoring of the Utilities annual budget. 
 


• Makes recommendations for wastewater division vehicle replacements, 
additions, and retirements. Provides input on vehicle standards and 
specifications. Supervises routine maintenance schedules and requirements, 
monitors vehicle safety and regulatory compliance requirements, and 
schedules vehicle maintenance work. 
 


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to make 
recommendations for new development design and system expansion. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. 
Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and 
complaints, and to provide notice of planned construction. 
 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working at the 
wastewater treatment facility and on the wastewater collection system. 
Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors to ensure 
compliance with utility construction specifications and contract requirements 
and expectations. Communicates with subcontractors to discuss complaints 
and issues. 
 


• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 
educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts treatment 
facility and collection system demonstrations and tours. 
 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including wastewater 
collection system details, service connections, manhole inspections, main 
flushing and televising, and other records as directed.  
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 
planned plant and collection system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 
 


• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a 
rotational basis within the Water and Wastewater System Division. Maintains 
an ability whenever possible to respond to utility emergencies and assist 
those serving on- call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR). 
Ensures full Wastewater System Division compliance of the same. 
 


Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 
operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. 
Other duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this 
position. 
 


• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 
removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic plumbing maintenance, and 
similar tasks as assigned. 
 


• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric and Water System 
Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operations, electric line 
groundsman duties, and other tasks as directed. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 
 


• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 
 


QUALIFICATIONS 
The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 
Education/Training/Certifications  


• High School diploma or equivalent, technical training in wastewater 
treatment, and seven or more years wastewater operator experience, or any 
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, 
skills, and abilities. 
 


• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator - Advanced certification for the Stoughton Wastewater 
Treatment facilities. 
 


• Wisconsin DNR Grade 1 Waterworks Operator Certification with subclasses G 
and D for the Stoughton Waterworks. 
 


• Successful completion of Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 
 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR 
Operator – Advanced certification. 
 


• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 
demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, 


deduce, assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining 
and referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and 
develop alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 
collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 
situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as 
well as assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 
 


• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work 
orders; utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab 
records and reports; plant operation and maintenance manuals; engineering 
reports; technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; 
guidelines; non-routine correspondence; Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources rules and regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety 
rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 
instructions and respond to complex requests. 
 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and 
all levels of City personnel, plumbers, developers, engineers, contractors, 
regulatory agencies, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and 
statistical reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats 
according to accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style.  
 


Supervisory Skills 
• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 
 


• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 
advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and 
participate in the delivery of such reviews. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 
statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 
independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 
 


• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, leading, 
teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 
 


• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 
situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 
multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 
• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as forklift, backhoe, roller, 


compression tools, meters, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, air 
hammers, compactors, concrete saws, hand and power tools, generators, 
portable pumps, chemical pumps, freezing and thawing machines, locators, 
snow plows and blowers, sanitary sewer televising equipment, and other 
equipment requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple, 
complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to repair complex equipment and 
machinery. 
 


• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 
movements involved in the operation and repair of wastewater treatment 
facility and sewer collection system equipment. 
 


• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy 
work, typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, 
kneeling, crouching, or crawling, as well as lifting, carrying, pushing, 
shoveling and digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 
100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 
characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 
 


• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Advanced 
Certified Operator position description. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field 


under uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure 
to severe environmental factors, such as temperature variations, high winds, 
rain and snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, 
machinery, explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical 
currents. This exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or 
death. 
 
 
 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
 


EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 
applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 


qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 
All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 
 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a 
legal document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the 
successful performance of this job. 
 
 
Printed Name: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 
  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 


 


 


 


UTILITIES DEPARTMENT  


Water System Division 


Water System Supervisor 


REPORTS TO: Assistant Utilities Director     PAY GRADE: W-5             FLSA: N                   


 
 


SUMMARY OF POSITION 
The purpose of this position is to provide supervision to the Water System Division, 


including personnel and daily operations, projects and development, and strategic 


planning, under the direction of the Utilities Director. 
 


This position also efficiently and safely performs water distribution system operation, 
maintenance, and repair tasks, and participates in construction projects, in accordance 


with Stoughton Utilities construction specifications and standards. 
 


DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Core Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are the primary duties of 


this position but do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of duties. Other 
duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 


 
• Supervises and directs the operation and maintenance of the water utility 


pumping, storage, and distribution system. Ensures compliance with regulatory 
agency requirements and utility policies. Provides recommendations and assists 


with the coordination and implementation of water pumping and distribution 


system improvements. 
 


• Supervises the activities of Water System Division personnel. Conducts regular 
division staff meetings, establishes and maintains productivity reports, prepares 


and assigns work orders, coordinates introductory and continuing training 
programs, reviews and approves timesheets, establishes and maintains staff 


work and leave schedules, and assists in the completion of performance 
evaluations. Plans short and long-term division work plans and projects, and 


guides the division’s goals and vision. 
 


• Supervises, organizes, and leads routine safety meetings. Conducts routine 
safety compliance checks on active job sites. Oversees division operations to 


ensure safety policy compliance. Report out findings to Stoughton Utilities 
management and safety compliance teams. 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Supervises the division tool and equipment inventory and evaluates and 
approves or denies requests from division staff for the procurement of new tools 


and equipment. 
 


• Supervises and directs the installation and maintenance of water service 
connections. Coordinates all on-site activities associated with water distribution 


replacements and service lateral upgrades with contractors, residents, and 
engineers. Coordinates metering installations and removals with Technical 


Operations Division staff. 
 


• Supervises and coordinates the distribution of field notifications for construction 


and planned service interruptions. 
 


• Supervises and performs the extraction of water samples on scheduled basis 
and submits samples for testing. Ensures all water sampling mandates are 


followed, including appropriate chain of custody. Monitors correct chlorine and 
fluoride residuals. Coordinates and monitors annual lead and copper sampling 


programs, including maintaining accurate inventory of potential sampling sites. 
 


• Supervises recurring systemwide maintenance programs, including hydrant 
flushing and valve exercising, and ensures regulatory compliance. Supervises 


recurring infrastructure maintenance and inspection programs, including tank 
and reservoir inspections and painting, station meter testing, etc. and ensures 


regulatory compliance. 
 


• Routinely performs operator work tasks at active job sites to plan, direct, and 


supervise system and equipment maintenance and repair tasks. Works onsite to 
recommend operational changes and safety improvements, and to evaluate staff 


knowledge, competence, and safety compliance. 
 


• Repairs and maintains water mains, pumps, valves, curb stops, services, and 
hydrants. Installs and maintains water service connections. Inspects, exercises, 


and performs routine maintenance of other water system infrastructure and 
equipment. Performs all other industry-standard duties expected of a state 


certified water operator.  
 


• Prepares and secures safe work sites, including truck and equipment setup, 
placement of warning signs and cones, traffic control and direction, and more. 


Conducts worksite meetings to review projects and safety. 
 


• Operates the water SCADA system to monitor system health, record data and 


equipment readings, operate controls, evaluate well pumpage and tower 
storage, monitor chemical addition, and investigate system concerns. 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains, calibrates, and repairs testing equipment. Maintains knowledge 
regarding testing requirements for water distribution systems. Cleans and 


maintains lab equipment. Prepares and sends DNR samples as directed. 
 


• Maintains an inventory of privately-owned wells within the municipal boundaries. 
Works with private well owners to ensure wells are properly permitted, 


compliance with regulatory testing and cross connection requirements, and 
proper abandonment when necessary. 


 
• Prepares reports in accordance with DNR, EPA, and other regulatory agency 


requirements. 


 
• Collaborates with the Asset & Facilities Coordinator to maintain material 


inventory and procurement. Provides input and prepares recommendations for 
material quality standards and specifications. Assists in the evaluation of 


proposals and material acquisition. Cooperates in the year-end inventory 
process. 


 
• Assists with the preparation of the Utilities 20-year Capital Improvement 


Program, including conducting reviews of system reliability and making 
recommendations for system improvements. Assists with the preparation and 


ongoing monitoring of the Utilities annual budget. 
 


• Makes recommendations for water division vehicle replacements, additions, and 
retirements. Provides input on vehicle standards and specifications. Supervises 


routine maintenance schedules and requirements, monitors vehicle safety and 


regulatory compliance requirements, and schedules vehicle maintenance work. 
 


• Collaborates with the Distribution System Coordinator to make 
recommendations for new development design and system expansion. 


 
• Responds to customer inquiries and complaints and performs corrective 


measures, or schedules and assigns workorders to resolve customer issues. 
Communicates with customers as required to resolve inquiries and complaints, 


and to provide notice of planned service interruptions. 
 


• Coordinates and schedules the work of subcontractors working on the water 
distribution system. Reviews the quality of work completed by subcontractors to 


ensure compliance with utility construction specifications and contract 
requirements and expectations. Communicates with subcontractors to discuss 


complaints and issues. 


 
• Attends and assists with utility-sponsored public events, prepares public 


educational materials and participates in outreach efforts, conducts system 
demonstrations and tours, and gives water safety presentations. 


 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Maintains GIS software applications and databases, including water distribution 
system details, valve and hydrant inspection and exercising, and other records 


as directed. 
 


• Maintains an ability to work a flexible schedule to accommodate planned 
activities outside of the typical work schedule, including but not limited to 


planned customer outages or system maintenance work, as well as planned 
seasonal schedule changes and tasks. 


 
• Maintains an ability to serve on standby on-call duty, scheduled on a rotational 


basis within the Electric System Division. Maintains an ability whenever possible 


to respond to utility emergencies and assist those serving on-call. 
 


• Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs, and guidelines and 
regulations set by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin (PSCW) and 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR). Ensures full Water System Division 
compliance of the same. 


 
Additional Duties and Responsibilities - The following duties are necessary for 


operations, but may be shared with or performed by other employees. The listed 
duties do not compose an exclusive or all-encompassing list of additional duties. Other 


duties may be assigned or required to accomplish the main goals of this position. 
 


• Disconnects water service to customers upon receipt of disconnection 
workorders due to delinquency or safety violations, and at customers’ request. 


Conducts periodic reviews of disconnected properties for connection evaluation. 


 
• Installs water meters at customer premises. Assists the meter technician with 


the maintenance and repair of water meters. Reconnects water services and 
transfers water meters. 


 
• Maintains grounds and facilities, such as painting surfaces, ice and snow 


removal, custodial tasks, basic carpentry, basic plumbing maintenance, and 
similar tasks as assigned. 


 
• Provides emergency after-hours support to the Electric and Wastewater System 


Divisions, including basic system repair, traffic control and direction, site 
preparation and cleanup, equipment transport and operations, electric line 


groundsman duties, and other tasks as directed. 
 


• Performs routine vehicle maintenance. 


 
• Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed. 


 
QUALIFICATIONS 


The ability to perform the Core Duties and Additional Duties listed above and: 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


Education/Training/Certifications  
• High School diploma, associate’s degree in water quality management or 


hydrology with training in water distribution systems or related, with a minimum 
of five years certified water operator experience, or any combination of 


education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 
abilities. 


 
• Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Grade 1 Waterworks 


Operator Certification, with subclasses G and D is required, or the ability to 
obtain such certification. 


 


• Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the WDNR Grade 
1 Waterworks certifications. 


 
• Vocational or industry training in supervision and/or leadership, with 


demonstrated experience in leading others in a professional environment. 
 


• Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 
 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication Skills 
• Ability to perform mid-level data analysis, including the ability to audit, deduce, 


assess, conclude, and appraise. Requires discretion in determining and 
referencing such to established criteria to define consequences and develop 


alternatives. 
 


• Ability to provide first line supervision. Ability to create consensus and 


collaboration, and train others. Ability to advise and provide interpretation 
regarding the application of policies, procedures, and standards to specific 


situations. 
 


• Ability to classify, compute, and tabulate data and information, following a 
prescribed plan requiring the exercise of significant individual judgment. Ability 


to compare, count, differentiate, measure, and sort information, as well as 
assemble, copy, record, and transcribe data and information. 


 
• Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders; 


utility maps and diagrams; construction specifications; blueprints; lab records 
and reports; facilities operation and maintenance manuals; engineering reports; 


technical operating manuals; city and utility policies and procedures; guidelines; 
non-routine correspondence; Public Service Commission of Wisconsin rules, 


regulations, and tariffs; Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources rules and 


regulations; State of Wisconsin legal statutes; and safety rules and manuals. 
 


• Ability to explain, demonstrate, and clarify to others within well-established 
policies, procedures, and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific 


instructions and respond to complex requests.  







Council Approved ADD DATE 


• Ability to communicate in writing and orally with customers, department and all 
levels of City personnel, plumbers, developers, engineers, contractors, 


regulatory agencies, and the general public. 
 


• Ability to prepare letters, statements, notices, memos, narrative and statistical 
reports, and other correspondence using prescribed formats according to 


accepted rules of punctuation, grammar, and style. 
 


Supervisory Skills 
• Ability to assign, supervise, review, develop, assess, and implement 


recommendations to improve the work of others. 


 
• Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, 


advancement, and discharge of employees. 
 


• Ability to assist in the preparation of meaningful performance reviews, and 
participate in the delivery of such review. 


 
Mathematical Ability 


• Ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate 
percentages, fractions, and decimals; interpret and develop basic descriptive 


statistical reports; and may require the ability to perform mathematical 
operations with algebra. 


 
Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


• Ability to carry out directives without direct supervision. Ability to exercise 


independent judgment to apply facts and principles for developing approaches 
and techniques to problem resolution. 


 
• Ability to apply principles of influence systems, such as supervising, leading, 


teaching, planning, coordinating, disciplining, and controlling. 
 


• Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing 
diversified work activities. 


 
• Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in 


situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable criteria, 
and involving the direction, control, and planning of an entire program or 


multiple programs. 
 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate equipment and machinery such as forklift, backhoe, roller, 
compression tools, meters, dump truck, end loaders, sewer jet machine, air 


hammers, compactors, concrete saws, hand and power tools, generators, 
portable pumps, chemical pumps, freezing and thawing machines, locators, 


snow plows and blowers, and other equipment requiring monitoring multiple 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


conditions and making multiple, complex, and rapid adjustments. Ability to 
repair complex equipment and machinery. 


 
• Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing skilled 


movements involved in the operation and repair of water distribution equipment. 
• Ability to exert regular and sustained heavy physical effort in very heavy work, 


typically involving some combination of climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, 
crouching, or crawling, as well as lifting, carrying, pushing shoveling and 


digging, and pulling heavy objects and materials in excess of 100 pounds. 
 


• Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between 


characteristics of color, shape, sound, texture, and odor associated with job-
related objects, materials, and tasks. 


 
• Ability to meet all physical requirements of the Stoughton Utilities Advanced 


Certified Operator position description. 
 


Environmental Adaptability 
• Ability to work effectively in an office environment, as well as in the field under 


uncomfortable and potentially unsafe conditions that require exposure to severe 
environmental factors, such as temperature variations, high winds, rain and 


snow, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, dusts, machinery, 
explosives, gas, vehicular traffic, and high voltage electrical currents. This 


exposure may cause discomfort and presents a risk of injury or death. 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 







Council Approved ADD DATE 


 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 


 
The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with 


applicable state and federal law, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to 
qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current 


employees to discuss potential accommodations with the City. 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 


All requirements of the described position are subject to change over time. The 
employee may be required to perform other duties as requested by the City. 


 
I acknowledge that this job description is neither an employment contract nor a legal 


document. I have received, read, and understand the expectations for the successful 
performance of this job. 


 
 


Printed Name: ____________________________________ 


 
 


Signature: _______________________________________ Date: _____________ 
 


  


  





		19  R-178-2022  Utilities Re-alignment

		19a Realignment Utilities Org Chart with details

		19b 2019 Utilities Org Chart

		19c Utilities Position Description REDLINES

		19d SU Realignment Wage Adjustments FINAL

		Table 1

		Wages Apprentice FINAL.pdf

		Sheet1





		19e Utilities - Strategic Alignment

		Advanced Certified Operator - Wastewater 8-17

		Advanced Certified Operator - Water 8-17

		Apprentice Lineworker 8-17

		Apprentice Meter Technician

		Apprentice Operator - Wastewater

		Asset & Facilities Coordinator

		Assistant Utilities Director 8-17 (2)

		Basic Certified Operator - Wastewater

		Basic Certified Operator - Water

		Billing & Metering Supervisor

		Customer Service Technician UPDATED 8-17

		Distribution System Coordinator

		Education & Outreach Coordinator

		Electric Supervisor

		Finance Manager UPDATED 8-17

		Journeyman Lineworker 8-17

		Journeyman Meter Technician

		Lead Journeyman Lineworker 8-17

		Operator - Wastewater

		Operator - Water

		Utilities Director

		Wastewater System Supervisor

		Water System Supervisor






 


Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time:       Tuesday, August 23, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting. (Virtual 


and in person)  
Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via 
Zoom: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88633849539?pwd=cHhTakJmMEVmeitwa0tabWow
VSt3Zz09 
Meeting ID: 886 3384 9539 
Passcode: 538451 
One tap mobile 
+13092053325,,88633849539#,,,,*538451# US  
+13126266799,,88633849539#,,,,*538451# US (Chicago) 
 
 
In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


           321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin   
  
  The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum  
       Channel 981 or on TDS Channel 12. 
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg 
Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Frank Raff, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce 
Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A 
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable 
to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
1.   Roll Call  
 
2. Minutes and Reports:  
       Landmarks (7/14/22); Plan Commission (7/11/22); Police & Fire Commission (3/28/22, 5/3/22); 


Finance Committee (7/26/22); Tree Commission (7/13/22); Redevelopment Authority (7/13/22, 
7/26/22); Personnel Committee (3/7/22); Police & Fire Commission (4/11/22, 5/24/22); Public 
Works (7/21/22)       


 
3. Public Comment Period: 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at 
the time and location given below. 


    



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88633849539?pwd=cHhTakJmMEVmeitwa0tabWowVSt3Zz09

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88633849539?pwd=cHhTakJmMEVmeitwa0tabWowVSt3Zz09

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us





• If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form 
and submit it by 6:30 p.m. on August 23, 2022. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
• A.  American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) – fiscal recap 
• B.  ARPA – presentation calendar 
• C.  ARPA – funding request – Neighborhood Free Health Clinic 
• D.  ARPA – funding request – Stoughton Yoga 
• E.  ARPA – funding request – Human Resources / Risk Management Department 
• F.  Stoughton Utilities – Compensation study results and implementation 


 
5. Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – August 9, 2022 
        B.  R-168-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to   
              various applicants.  


C.  Minutes of July 18, 2022, Regular Utilities Committee Meeting; Stoughton Utilities 
Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities 
Statistical Report   


 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
6.  Discussion and possible action regarding American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) award process 


______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
7. O-17-2022 Planned Development - General Development Plan for Lot 6 within the 51 West 
Development.  (Plan Commission recommends approval 7-0 on 8/8/22)    
         First Reading 


8.  O-18-2022 Proposed ordinance amendments to Chapter 30 – Floodplain Zoning.  (Plan 
Commission recommends approval 7-0 on 8/8/22) 


First Reading 
 


9. R-169-2022 Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine parcels at 1000 East Street.  (Plan 
Commission recommends approval 7-0 on 8/8/22) 


10. R-170-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Arts Council Fund (Finance Committee 
recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 


11. R-171-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Fire Pension Fund and Fire Equipment Fund 
(Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 


12. R-172-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Safety Building Fund (Finance Committee 
recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 



http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





13. R-173-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Technology Fund and IT-Media Services 
(Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 


14. R-174-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Tourism Fund (Finance Committee 
recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 


15. R-175-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for vested compensated absences (Finance 
Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022) 


16. R-176-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Sick Leave Fund – TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
(Finance Committee considering on 08/23/2022) 


17. R-177-2022 Amend 2022 adopted budget for WRS unfunded pension liability – TIME 
SENSITIVE ITEM (Finance Committee considering on 08/23/2022) 


18. R-178-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Utilities Re-
alignment. (Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0) 
 
19. Council meeting date change due to November 8, 2022 election. (11/15/22 & 11/22 or11/29) 
  
20. Offer to purchase Lot 4, Business Park ** 
 
**The Common Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 19.85(1) (e) 
Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require 
a closed session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through 
appropriate aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at 
(608) 873-6677. 


By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
Dial by your location 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 564 217 2000 US 
        +1 669 444 9171 US 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 719 359 4580 US 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 386 347 5053 US 
Meeting ID: 886 3384 9539 
Passcode: 538451 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kctEcivzdA 



https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kctEcivzdA





 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\Minutes\01 Landmarks Minutes 071422.docx 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday July 14, 2022 – 6:30 pm 
Hybrid 
 
Members Present:  Todd Hubing, Chair; Lisa Reeves, Secretary; Peggy Veregin; Greg Pigarelli, 
Vice-Chair; and Alan Hedstrom 
Staff:  Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
Absent: Kristi Panthofer and Kimberly Cook 
Guests: Erica Ruggiero  
  
1. Call to order.  Hubing called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of June 9 and July 6, 


2022.   
Motion by Veregin to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Hedstrom.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


3. Consider approval of the mini-grant project at 327 E. Washington Street. 
Hubing introduced the request.  The Commission discussed the mini-grant project. 
 
Motion by Veregin to approve the mini-grant project as presented, 2nd by Hedstrom.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


4. COA request – 620 S. Prairie Street for Roof Repair. 
Hubing introduced the request.  The Commission discussed the roof repair project. 
  
Veregin stated this project would qualify for the 25% State tax credit.  Stacey to inform the 
applicant. 
 
Veregin stated any fascia board replacement will need to match the existing fascia material and 
profile. 
 
Motion by Veregin to approve the COA with the condition discussed, 2nd by Hedstrom.  
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


5. Main Street Historic District Design Guidelines. 
Erica Ruggiero explained the latest draft provided earlier in the day.  Erica suggested amending 
the National Registered District to add the previously non-contributing buildings as shown on 
the updated Local District Map. 
 
The Commission discussed condensing the guidelines including the portions related to the 
history of the district. 
 
Some errors within the document came from the Landmarks website which has wrong 
information and needs to be amended. 
 
The Commission discussed and answered questions that Erica had about comments from the last 
meeting. 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 
7/14/22 
Page 2 of 2 
 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\Minutes\01 Landmarks Minutes 071422.docx  


 
The Commission discussed what to include related to signage. 
 
The significance of the guidelines was discussed and timing to submit the draft to the State 
Historical Preservation Office. 
 
Once the next round of edits are completed, Erica plans to provide a link for access to a word 
document that will track changes for everyone to use. 
 


6. Downtown Local District.   
Erica questioned what the period of significance should be which will help determine the 
boundaries of the district.  The Commission decided the period of significance would go 
through 1946. 
 
The Commission decided that the guidelines will be created for the proposed new Local District 
and not just the National Registered portion.  Erica will make edits based on this decision. 
 


7. 1892 High School.  Nothing discussed. 
 


8. Community Engagement.  Nothing discussed. 
 


9. Commemorative Signage for the Riverfront Redevelopment. 
Veregin started the next meeting is next week.  Hubing to attend in Veregin’s absence. 
 


10. Commission Reports/Calendar. 
Veregin stated there is a new round of CLG grants coming up that could potentially be used for 
a resurvey of the historic districts. 
 
Hubing stated the Commission has a pretty full plate and will likely not have time to apply for 
the grant. 
 


11. Future agenda items.  None discussed. 
 


12. Adjournment.  
Motion by Hedstrom to adjourn the meeting at 9:00 pm, 2nd by Pigarelli.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 


Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes  071122.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, July 11, 2022 at 6:00 pm 
Hybrid Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Dorann Bradford; 
Phil Caravello; Al Farrow; Tom Robinson and Tom Majewski 
Members Absent: None 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning 
Administrator 
Guests: Laura Davis; Rob Hostrawser; Rich Morris; Stephen Tremlett; and John Christman 
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Plan Commission meeting minutes of June 13, 2022.   


Motion by Robinson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion 
carried unanimously.   
 


3. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated the Common Council approved R-133-2022. 
 


4. Status of Current Developments.   
Scheel gave an overview of the status of developments as outlined in the packet of 
materials including the final plat for Kettle Park West – The Meadows Replat was 
recorded and the landscaping for Walmart has been ongoing since late June. 
 


5. Conditional use permit for a Commercial Indoor Lodging use at 172 E. Main 
Street. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request. 
 
Robinson questioned if there are 2 means of egress.  Laura Davis and Rich Morris 
confirmed there are 2 means of egress. 
 
Laura Davis explained the progress made on the building. 
 
Schumacher questioned the short term use of the facility.  Laura Davis stated they 
would be using Airbnb and anticipate weekend use and customers staying over during 
Opera House events. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
07/11/22 
Page 2 of 3 
 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes  071122.docx 


 


Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the CUP 
resolution as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


6. Conditional use permit for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use (Fitness 
Center) at 209 S. Sixth Street. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request.  
 
John Christman explained the personal training use. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the CUP 
resolution as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


7. Urban Service Area Amendment for Magnolia Springs (Former Teigen Farm). 
Scheel gave an overview the request. 
 
Steve Tremlett explained the USAA including planned stormwater management and 
park trail connectivity. 
 
Mayor Swadley questioned the difference and depths of the ponds.  Steve Tremlett 
stated there are wet and dry ponds.  Scheel stated the depth is 10 feet. 
 
There was a lengthy discussion as follows: 
 


• Maintenance of the stormwater ponds was questioned.  Ponds are planned to be 
dedicated to the City.  There is a maintenance period to make sure the ponds 
operate as designed. 


• Ponds need to be a naturalistic shape.  Developer will work to make the ponds 
more naturalistic.  Further review expected at the preliminary plat stage. 


• Parkland use was discussed with current plans for a more passive park.  Further 
discussion planned. 


• Outlot 04 and 05 safety discussed for stormwater management.  Traffic 
Engineer for developer has determined that the proposed stormwater 
management is safe. 


• Page Street is a local bike route.  Developer to look into this. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
07/11/22 
Page 3 of 3 
 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\Minutes\02 Plan Com Minutes  071122.docx 


 


Motion by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the USAA 
resolution including staff edits as appropriate, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


8. Annexation of 1548 US Highway 51 from the Town of Dunkirk. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request. 
 
Mayor Swadley questioned the plan for the lot.  Scheel stated the City Comprehensive 
Plan Future Land Use Map depicts the property as Mixed Use and the initial zoning 
will be Rural Holding. 
 
Caravello questioned if a Town island will be created.  Scheel stated there is already 
an island and this will be reducing the size of the island.  Scheel noted the Dept of 
Administration has found the annexation to be in the public interest. 
 
Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the annexation 
ordinance as presented, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


9. Future agenda items. 
Schumacher stated the staff report needs to be updated related to projects that are not 
yet completed. 
 
Magnolia Springs preliminary plat. 
 
Eldon Homes signage downtown at 135 W. Main Street. 
 


10. Adjournment. 
Motion by Schumacher to adjourn at 7:06 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 


Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes        
Monday, March 28, 2022 @5:30 pm 
Fire Department Training Room  
401 E Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589  
 


Members Present:   Martin Lamers (President), Doran Bradford, Amie Edgington, Jon Lewis,  
Peter Sveum 


 
Staff Present:   HR Director AJ Gillingham, Police Chief Greg Leck 
 
 


1. Call to Order 
  President Lamers called the meeting to order at 5:27 pm.  


 
2.  Approval of the re-appointment of Dan Jenks as Long Term Employee Lieutenant at 


same                       
 hourly wage as Lieutenant Pat Conlin. Motion by Sveum, 2nd by Jon Lewis, All in favor 
  


 
3.  Discussion and possible action regarding promotion processes for Sergeant, 


   Lieutenant, and Detective. Jon Lewis made the motion to go into Closed Session. 2nd 
by 
   Dorann Bradford, All in favor 
 
   Motion to open, motion by Jon Lewis, 2nd by Bradford, All in favor 
 


        4.   Discussion and possible action regarding open Police Officer position-next steps: 
 
              April 11, 2022 will be the date of the Police Department interviews beginning at 
              1:00 pm. The duration of the interviews will be the Detective’s position 20 minutes and 
               Lieutenant position 30 minutes. Chief Greg Leck will develop the questions for 
               the interviews. The interviews will be held in The City Council Chambers. SSgts. 
               Andrew Johnson will be the last interview to be held virtually. 
 


  Adjournment 
 
  Motion to adjourn Edgington, 2nd by Bradford, All in favor 
 
 
  Minutes submitted 03/28/2022 by Director Gillingham 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes        
Tuesday, May 3rd, 2022 @5:30 pm 
Fire Department Training Room  
401 E Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589  
 


Members Present:   Martin Lamers, Donna Olson, Amie Edgington, Jon Lewis,  
Peter Sveum 


 
Staff Present:   HR Director AJ Gillingham, Police Chief Greg Leck, LT Pat Frisch 
 
 


1. Call to Order 
Director Gillingham called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm.    
 


2.  Election of President 
Director Gillingham asked for nominations.  Lamers recommended Edgington, who did 
not want to take the position.  Edgington recommended Lamers, Lewis stated Lamers 
has been in the President position the past three years and shouldn’t do it again.  
Edgington then recommended Lewis who agreed. 
Motion by Edgington, 2nd by Lamers, All in favor 
  


3.  Election of Vice-President 
President Lewis asked for nominations, Lamers recommended Olson  
Motion by Lamers, 2nd by Edgington, All in favor 
 


4. Election of Secretary 
President Lewis asked for nominations Olson recommended Edgington 
Motion by Olson, 2nd by Lamers, All in favor 
 


5. Approval of the April 11, 2022 meeting minutes  
Motion by Lamers, 2nd by Edgington, All in favor 
 


6. Move to closed session:  
Closed session State Statute 19.85 (1) read by Lamers 
Motion by Lamers, 2nd by Edgington, All in favor 
 


7. Interview candidates for the Sergeant’s Positions** 
Move to closed session per State Statute 19.85 (1)(c) read by Lamers 
Motion by Edgington, 2nd by Olson, All in favor 
 


8. Discussion and possible action regarding recommendation for hire  
for the Sergeant’s Positions**  







Motion to Lamers to certify Hoeper, Olson and Covarribus to Chief Leck for Sergeant 
selections.   
Motion by Lamers 2nd by Edgington, All in favor 
 


9. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn Lamers, 2nd by Lewis. All in favor Adjourned 8:17pm 
 
 
Minutes submitted 05/05/22 by Director Gillingham 















 
Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, July 13th,, 2022 @ 5:00 PM 
Virtual Meeting - Stoughton, WI 
 
Members Present:  Mike Point, Kevin Short, Aaron Mazzone, Jim Fitzgibbon  


Absent & Excused:  Dean Tangeman and Fred Hundt 


Staff:    City Forester John Kemppainen and Admin Asst. Jen Wagner  


Guest:  


Call to order:  Short called to order @ 5:01 PM  


 
• Communications:  


• Kemppainen pointed out he will need Point’s help with boards again for the new Boardwalk that 
will be put in.  
 


• Approval of minutes from June 8th, 2022 Meeting:  Motion by Point, seconded by Mazzone to 
approve the minutes.  Carried 4-0. 


 
 


• June Forestry Reports:  Kemppainen stated: 
       
• Spongy Moth (formerly “Gypsy Moth) damage was noted in the downtown corridor, on ornamental trees 


bordering a public parking lot. Further inspection revealed large scale infestation in multiple trees and 
complete defoliation of two trees. The Forestry Division will monitor these trees for health and take 
appropriate actions.  


• Road construction projects began in June. Several on site meetings were required for tree and root 
conflicts with curb and/or sidewalk replacement 


• Seven city trees were removed due to poor health and/or storm in June. This work was completed by 
in-house staff.  


• The Forestry Division, along with Brett Hebert, met with Altec Industries to get a quote for a new aerial 
truck for tree work. The current truck is 20 years old and nearing the end of its useful life. The new truck 
will hopefully be delivered in 2023.  


• Five terrace tree planting applications for new construction were submitted in June 
• The Forestry Division summer seasonal employee, Camren Conklin, started in June. Unfortunately, he 


also left in June for another position elsewhere.  
 


 
• NEW BUSINESS: Discussion of Tiny Tree Program: 


 
A short discussion was had that the Stoughton may not be big enough for this type of program that and 
everyone was in agreement that the tree sale seems to be enjoyed by residents and generates good 
sales. No need for action at this time.   
 


• Discussion about bringing back in person/hybrid meetings: 
 


A short discussion was had that bringing back the option for in person meetings would be beneficial. It 
was decided that next month will be a hybrid meeting; that way people have the option for either/or 
 


• Discuss possible policy on Black Walnut Trees in park rows: 
Short inquired about how many Walnut trees were in the City to see if it was pertinent to implement a City 
policy. Kemppainen stated that there are about 40 throughout the City and has only had a handful of 







 
issues come up in the last few years. Short brought up a discussion about possibly using a chemical 
called Snipper that de-flowers the trees so that they do not produce the walnuts. After looking into cost, 
how much was needed and the damage that would be done to the tree it was decided that with the low 
number of trees and very few complaints this tactic would not be necessary at this time as well as 
introducing a specific policy.  


 
 
 Future Agenda Items: 
 
 Discussion on generating more sales for lumber 
 Discussion of interaction between other Committees; Sustainable Committee & Rivers and Trails Taskforce 
 Discuss Canopy Cover 
 
 
Motion by Mazzone, seconded by Point to adjourn the meeting at 5:46 p.m.   
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 7/14/22, Jen Wagner -     Staff  



















 
 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, March 7, 2022 @ 6:00 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom & remotely via GoToMeeting 
 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Thomas Majewski, Brett Schumacher, Mayor Swadley and Director Gillingham  
Absent & excused: Fred Hundt (Vice-Chair) 
Also in attendance: Director Montgomery  
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:04 pm.  
 
 


2. Approval of the minutes from Monday, January 3, 2022 
Motion to approve Majewski, second Schumacher, Approved 3-0. 


 
 


3. Communications/Updates 
• Director Gillingham stated that HR has been very busy recruiting and hiring. She stated that 


we had 26 full time hires and 13 terminations. There was some discussion regarding the 
termination of the Police Dept. Office Manager and the possible restructure of the PD in 
regards to Dispatch. 


• Director Gillingham told the committee that the Work Rules & Policies Committee had their 
quarterly meeting at the end of January and discussed the changes that they thought should 
be discussed. She stated that it is agenda item 6 and will be discussed later tonight. 


• Director Gillingham stated that she & Generalist Skarda had been discussing the 20 hour 
position for their department and decided that data entry was very important to the 
department so Director Gillingham had updated the title and duties to make data entry the 
main duty for the position. 


• Director Gillingham stated that the required 1095 Employer-Provided Health forms had been 
completed and mailed out to the employees. 


• Director Gillingham stated that there are strategic alignment talks going on for the Utilities 
Department concerning operations and that there is limited redundancy which is an issue at 
this time. 


• There was some discussion regarding the handling of the tornado damage last weekend by 
Utilities Electrical Staff. Director Gillingham stated that they had done an excellent job. 


• Director Gillingham announced the hire of the new Finance Director, David Ehlinger. She stated 
the City is excited to have him and that he is very motivated. 


• Director Gillingham stated that Derek Westby has returned. 
 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding position description update – Media Manager/Help Desk 
Assistant  
Director Gillingham asked Westby to go through the Media Manager/Help Desk Assistant position 
description with the Committee and discuss the updates. Westby stated that the job description was 
changes to make Media more the focus of the position. He stated that they had changed who the 
position would report to as well. Westby stated that that the verbiage was changed so that the 
position duties would be less “in charge” and more “assisting with”. He stated the position would still 
do basic tech support but the focus would mainly be WSTO. Director Gillingham stated that she is still 
waiting to hear form Springsted as to the grade and pay, but that we are no longer a priority so it 
may be awhile. Schumacher suggested making the software programs named under “Minimum 
Training” as more of an example (i.e. :) so that the position description would not need to updated as 
often.  
Motion to approve Majewski, second Schumacher, Approved 3-0. 


 
 
 







 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding Work Rules & Policy Manual Team updates  
Director Gillingham reviewed each change listed in the spreadsheets for both the Work Rules and Policy 
Manual. She updated the Committee on page 12 in the Work Rules as she had learned that it is actually 
unlimited instead of 35 working days. She stated she was going to verify that with the lawyer and then 
make that change. Director Gillingham asked the Committee if the changes would need to be 
approved by Council and the member were in agreement that it did not need to as they were small 
changes.  
Motion to approve Schumacher, second Majewski, Approved 3-0 
 
 


6. Future Agenda Item 
Reeves asked if there were any additions to future agenda items.  


• Leadership Backup Plan  
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff  
• Sick Time Donation  
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation  


 
Motion to adjourn Majewski, second Schumacher, Approved 3-0. Meeting adjourned 6:58 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 3/9/2022 by HR Generalist Skarda 


 


 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes        
Monday, April 11, 2022 @1:00 pm 
City Council Chambers-Public Safety Building 
321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 53589  
 


Members Present:   Martin Lamers (President), Doran Bradford, Amie Edgington, Jon Lewis,  
Peter Sveum 


 
Staff Present:   HR Director AJ Gillingham, Police Chief Leck, LT. Jenks 
 
 


1. Call to Order 
  President Lamers called the meeting to order at 12:54 pm.  


 
2.  Approval of the Commission meeting minutes from  March 28, 2022                      


            Motion by Lewis to approve, 2nd by Bradford, All in favor 
 
     3.    Jon Lewis made the motion to move into Closed Session. 2nd by 
            Dorann Bradford, All in favor 


 
 4.    Motion by Peter Sveum to move into Open Session, 2nd by Bradford  


             All in favor 
 


 5.    Jon Lewis made the motion to approve Interviewee’s Cole Sargent and 
             Carson Hoeper to move in process to the chief for the Detective position. 


All in favor 
 


 6.    Jon Lewis made motion to move back into Closed Session, 2nd by Sveum 
All in favor 
 


     7.     Motion to move into Open Session by Sveum, 2nd by Lewis 
              All in favor 


 
     8.     Motion to recommend approval of three Sergeants (Patrick Frisch, Chad O’Neil and 
             Andrew Johnson to move into position to the chief for the lieutenant position. 
               All in favor- No  Nay: Edgington and Bradford   
 
     9.     Adjournment 
             Motion to adjourn Sveum, 2nd by Edgington, All in favor 
             Adjourned at 5:27 pm 
 
 
 
           Minutes submitted 04/12/2022 by Director Gillingham 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes        
Tuesday, May 24, 2022 @ 1:00 pm 
Stoughton Utilities – Gary Graham Room 
600 S 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589  
 


Members Present:   Jon Lewis (President), Donna Olson (Vice-President), Martin Lamers, Amie 
Edgington, Peter Sveum 


 
Staff Present:   HR Director AJ Gillingham 
 


1. Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 12:59 pm.    
 
Motion by Olson to move to close, second by Edgington, All in favor 
 


2.  Police Chief Hiring Process** 
 
Motion by Lewis to move out of close, second by Sveum, All in favor 
 
Decision to offer interim Chief position to Lieutenant Jenks. 
Decision to move forward with a national search posted for 21 days. 
Recommendations from Director Gillingham regarding the hiring process approved. 
 


3. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn Lewis, second by Edgington. All in favor. Adjourned at 2:00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minutes submitted 05/26/22 by Director Gillingham 







Public Works Committee  
Thursday, July 21st, 2022 
(Hybrid Meeting) 
 
Members Present: Kay Rashka, Tom Majewski, Jean Ligocki and Mayor Swadley 


Absent/Excused: Rachel Venegas & Fred Hundt 


Staff:  Public Works Director Brett Hebert and Jennifer Wagner – Administrative Assistant 
 
Guests:  
 
Call to Order:  Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:03 PM 


 


1) Communications:    


• Hebert stated the Schefelker Park playground is currently being installed and should 
open early next week  


• Hebert stated they have been working on CIP budget items and road projects that need 
to be done but also need to be cost conscious with how much work needs to be done 


• Hebert stated crews have been working on painting crosswalks, slow school zones and 
parking areas. 


• Scheel stated pulverization projects have begun and reconstruction of Academy St is 
underway. The roundabouts are still progressing and on schedule to be complete by 
October 15th. There have been some visibility concerns as far as safety so suggestions 
have been made to the DOT on how to improve that. 
 


2)    Approve May 19th, 2022 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Rashka seconded by Majewski to 
approve the minutes.  Motion carried 4-0.    


 
New Business: 
 


3)  Review and Approve the Financial Agreement Between the State of Wisconsin and the City 
of Stoughton for Costs Associated with the Reconstruction of USH 51 from Harrison Street to 
Roby Road Scheduled to be Constructed in 2026.   
 Scheel explained this would be a total curb, gutter and sidewalk reconstruction with sidewalks 
being widened 10 feet on the north side of the street which will make for great pedestrian safety. He 
also presented a summary of estimated cost allocations so this would just need to go to Council for 
approval.  
 
Motion by Rashka to recommend to Council to approve, seconded by Ligocki. Motion carried 
4-0 
 
4) Review and Approve the Financial Agreement Between the State of Wisconsin and the City 
of Stoughton for Costs Associated with the Reconstruction of USH 51 from Roby Road to 
CTH B Scheduled to be Constructed in 2026:  
 







 Scheel presented an estimated summary of costs that includes a pedestrian underpass near 
Charles Lane as well as retaining walls and street lighting. They do also anticipate grant assistance 
for a big portion of the costs. The reason for approval is so this solidifies that the DOT can move 
forward and begin the design.  
 
Motion by Ligocki to approve, seconded by Rashka. Motion carried 4-0 
 
5) Review and Approve the Proposed Light Bulb Collection Program: 
 Hebert explained we periodically get calls from residents wondering where they can properly 
dispose of their bulbs so that they do not end up in landfills. Since most stores no longer take them, 
he thought it may be beneficial to offer this to residents. Hebert explained that Martin Briggs, head 
of Facilities Maintenance for the City, already uses Lamp Recyclers and Public Works would team 
up his already existing rapport to help keep costs down. Hebert presented the costs they charge per 
bulb and what we could possibly charge residents to help offset the costs the City accrues. 
Questions were raised about having drop boxes to make it easier for residents vs having to come to 
the Public Works building and/or possibly offering it as a free service for the first year to get the 
program off the ground and gauge interest.    
 
Motion by Rashka to round up to the nearest nickel and have the first six free to residents, 
Seconded by Ligocki. Carried 4-0 
 
6) Review and Approve Updated Memory Bench Program Fee Change: 
 Hebert explained that residents can have a bench put in a park of their choice in memory of 
someone. It can be an entire bench or just a plaque on an existing bench. However, before we would 
be able to advertise this program, we would need approval for the costs associated with each option. 
The plague would be $350.00 and an entire bench with plaque would be $900.  
 
Motion by Rashka to approve costs, seconded by Ligocki. Motion carried 4-0 
 
7) Review and Approve the Strategy to Submit a Purchase Order for Certain Truck Chassis 
Approved in the Five CIP Budget:  
 Hebert explained that due to the current supply chain issues and increase in demand, the lead 
time to take delivery of a large truck chassis has gone from four months to five years. Public Works 
is looking to do PO’s (contract to purchase) for the next five years. That way we are already in line 
and a check is not issued until delivery of the truck.  
 
Motion by Ligocki to approve, seconded by Rashka. Motion carried 4-0 
 
8) Review and Approve Contract to Design and Install Landscaping on the new Roundabouts 
on Hwy 51 and the existing Roundabout on Hwy 138:  
 Hebert explained that bids for this project were due this last spring but we only received one 
bid and it was over budget. The lack of bids that came in were due to contractors not having the 
staff or time to do this project. Hebert reached out to Moyer’s with the initial design from Saki and 
came back with costs that were close to what it was budgeted for. Hebert then presented a summary 
of costs and the landscape design Moyer’s provided. Concerns were raised that the stone could be 
hard to maintain especially in winter months and getting on the roadways. As well as the lack of 







mulch for the plants to survive. With these concerns in mind, Hebert stated he would go back to 
Moyer’s to get pricing for bark mulch instead.  
 
8) Future Agenda Items:    
 
 Minimum Terrace Width for New Development 
 Minimum Landscape Maintenance Standards for Commercial Properties 
 Optional Lane Configuration 
 Procedure Policy for sidewalk Engineering 
  
 
9) Adjourn: Motion to adjourn by Rashka, seconded by Ligocki to adjourn the meeting at 
7:24 pm. Motion carried 4-0 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jen Wagner 





		01 Landmarks Minutes 071422

		Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes



		02 Plan Com Minutes  071122

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, July 11, 2022 at 6:00 pm Hybrid Meeting



		2-PFC Meeting Minutes 3-28-2022

		2-PFC Meeting Minutes 5-3-2022

		03 Finance Committee minutes (signed) 07-26-2022

		04 TC Min July 13, 2022

		05 RDA minutes (signed) 07-13-2022

		06 RDA minutes (signed) 07-26-2022

		07 PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 3-7-22

		08 PFC Meeting Minutes 04-11-2022

		09 PFC Meeting Minutes 5-24-2022

		10 PW Min July 21, 2022






Last updated 8/19/22 @ 8:03 a.m.


Date Description Vendor Reference Actual Authorized Total
Amounts Amounts


Revenues:
6/25/2021 First tranche payment State of Wisconsin Receipt 100054818 686,311.71$      
12/31/2022 Interest income (annual) WI Investment Series Cooperative Monthly revenue 15.99$                
6/21/2022 Second tranche payment State of Wisconsin 686,311.71$      
12/31/2022 Interest income (annual) WI Investment Series Cooperative Monthly revenue 321.20$              


Total revenues 1,372,960.61$    ‐$                 1,372,960.61$            


Expenditures:
9/28/2021 ARPA lost revenue calculations Baker Tilly US, LLP Invoice BT1907757 3,456.00$           
4/28/2022 Lead service replacement program Stoughton Utilities Invoice 013577 110,000.00$      


City digital welcome signs To be determined Uncertain
5/24/2022 Innovation Center grant matching funds R‐115‐2022 125,000.00$  


Total expenditures 113,456.00$       125,000.00$   238,456.00$                


Net amount available 1,134,504.61$            
Less requests to date 2,286,573.00$            
Available (excess) (1,152,068.39)$           


Fiscal Recap


City of Stoughton


Calendar Year 2022
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021 Recap








Page 1 of 3


Last updated 8/19/22 @ 8:03 a.m.


Meeting Presenter Department or Requested
Date Organization Amounts


6/28/2022 Jerry Wendt
Stoughton Area Community 
Foundation To be determined


6/28/2022 Dave Ehlinger Finance Department Two (2) laptops for staff with Windows 11 Pro


 Rescinded ‐ IT 
provided gently used 
laptops early August 


6/28/2022 Dave Ehlinger Finance Department DebtBook software for GASB 87/96 tracking 15,000.00$                  


7/12/2022 Brett Hebert Public Works 65,000.00$                  
Revenue listed in 2022 CIP Excel document as "Other‐Grants" at $65,000
Revenue in 400‐00000‐43524 Grants in BS&A)
Expense for Project # 400‐57330‐50820‐22016000 is  NOT in BS&A budget


7/12/2022 Brett Hebert Public Works 25,000.00$                  
7/12/2022 Brett Hebert Public Works 45,000.00$                  


7/12/2022 Rodney Scheel Planning & Development See 07/26/2022


7/12/2022 Jim Ramsey Stoughton Library Outdoor programming space (216 E Jefferson St) 30,000.00$                  


7/12/2022 Dan Glynn Parks & Recreation Racetrack Park ball diamond upgrades (Phase 1) 350,000.00$                
7/12/2022 Dan Glynn Parks & Recreation 300,000.00$                
7/12/2022 Dan Glynn Parks & Recreation Virgin Lake Trail extension ‐ Roby Rd to 51 West 175,000.00$                


7/12/2022 Ben Heili Sustainability Committee Community sustainability survey costs & advertising


 Funded through 
another source 
7/26/2022 


7/26/2022 AJ Gillingham Human Resources See 08/09/2022


7/26/2022 Lisa Schimelpfenig Emergency Medical Services 75,000.00$                  


2022 CIP ‐ City digital welcome signs


City digital welcome signs ‐ additional
2022 CIP ‐ Compost material enclosure


River park


City buildings air handling systems


City of Stoughton
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021 Recap


Calendar Year 2022


ARPA Presentation Schedule
Description


Employee hiring and retention


Funding for new ambulance







Page 2 of 3


Last updated 8/19/22 @ 8:03 a.m.


Meeting Presenter Department or Requested
Date Organization Amounts


City of Stoughton
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021 Recap


Calendar Year 2022


ARPA Presentation Schedule
Description


7/26/2022 John Montgomery Information Technology 13,288.00$                  
Information Technology 25,000.00$                  


08/02/2022 ‐ The IT/Media Services requests MAY be funded through another source.


7/26/2022 Rodney Scheel Planning & Development 52,800.00$                  


7/26/2022 Bill Brehm Stoughton Opera House Lost revenue at performance venues 122,000.00$                


8/9/2022 AJ Gillingham Human Resources To be determined


8/9/2022 Eric Swenson / Kay Weeden
Stoughton Redevelopment Assistance 
Program Ukrainian family settlement support 200,000.00$                


8/9/2022 Laura Roeven Eyes of Hope, Stoughton, Inc. 5,000.00$                     
8/9/2022 Laura Roeven Eyes of Hope, Stoughton, Inc. 75,050.00$                  
8/9/2022 Laura Roeven Eyes of Hope, Stoughton, Inc. 24,800.00$                  


8/9/2022 To be determined Stoughton DEI Task Force 231,000.00$                


8/9/2022


Brook Johnson, Yahara Chocolate and 
Tea / Green Road Pottery & Bryan 
Richgels & Katrina Becker


Property owners, 261 W Main St & 
421 E Main St. 200,000.00$                


8/9/2022 Callie LaPoint Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 24,967.00$                  
8/9/2022 Callie LaPoint Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 2,000.00$                     
8/9/2022 Callie LaPoint Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 1,775.00$                     
8/9/2022 Callie LaPoint Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 500.00$                        


8/9/2022 Laurie Barrett Stoughton Kiwanis Club 25,000.00$                  


8/9/2022 Stacey Wright Neighborhood Free Health Clinic To be determined
Non‐emergency healthcare for those with insufficient health 
insurance


Various program activities


Digital signage display downtown ‐ equipment


To be determined


Employee hiring and retention


Digital signage display downtown ‐shipping (estimate)
Digital signage display downtown ‐ add on costs
Digital signage display downtown ‐annual cellular charges


Funding assistance with building improvements and 
renovations


City buildings air handling systems


After school program    
Tutor Program


Bullwall Ransomware
Telvue broadcasting services


Girl 2 Girl Program







Page 3 of 3


Last updated 8/19/22 @ 8:03 a.m.


Meeting Presenter Department or Requested
Date Organization Amounts


City of Stoughton
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021 Recap


Calendar Year 2022


ARPA Presentation Schedule
Description


8/9/2022 To be determined
Stoughton Downtown Merchants 
Association 24,000.00$                  


8/9/2022 Stacey Wright Neighborhood Free Health Clinic To be determined


8/9/2022 Bonnie Mezger and Marlene Widra Stoughton Yoga 5,000.00$                     


8/9/2022 AJ Gillingham Human Resources/ Risk Management 174,393.00$                


Total 2,286,573.00$             


Non‐emergency healthcare for those with insufficient health 
insurance


Support pay‐what‐you‐can classes & community gift classes


Employee recruitment and retention


Start up funds








Stoughton Yoga


• Who we are  /  Who we serve  /  What we provide 


• Our request for ARPA assistance and the rationale


• Why it matters to the Stoughton Community


The packet we sent includes a summary of our request plus our Annual Reports from 2019, 2020, and 2021.


Presented to Stoughton City Council, August 2022  
Bonnie Mezger and Marlene Widra







Yoga was never meant to be Big Business 


• Non‐Profit 501(c)(3) charity since 2016   


• Board of Directors 


Who we are  /   Who we serve  /   What we provide


• We serve a wide range of people from 
Stoughton and surrounding communities:  
various ages, incomes, abilities, etc.


• Consistent affordability 


• All are welcome – diversity, equity, inclusion 
is core to Yoga    


Mission:   to ensure that the Stoughton community 
has access to quality, affordable and inclusive yoga, 
meditation and mindfulness classes.







Who we are /  Who we serve /  What we provide


• Stoughton Yoga provides affordable weekly 
yoga classes 


• Much less than most yoga studios and             
no monthly dues


• 14 classes/week  ~ average 10 students/class   
= 140 students /week


• Pay‐What‐You‐Can weekly class                           
~  no one is ever turned away


• Scholarships available based on need


• Free Community Gift Classes


• e.g., Teens, Schools, Partnership with Library, 
and Community Events







Request for ARPA Assistance & the Rationale


• Asking for $3,000 ‐‐ $5,000 grant funding


• Weekly PWYC class requires $3,000 per year to maintain


• Additional $2,000 helps fund 30 Community Gift Classes 
over 1 year  


• Main Funding Sources


• Donations, grants, business partnerships, fundraisers


• Grants received last year: $2500 Dane County – covered 
back pay for furloughed employee who continued working 
voluntarily for 10 months


$500 from Stoughton Community Foundation helped pay 
for cleanable props 


• Small to moderate income from teachers’ rent of studio







Request for ARPA Assistance & the Rationale


• Expenses


• 2 Employees: Operations and Webmaster         
‐‐ both receive small monthly stipends 


• Cleaning and operating supplies, insurance, 
Facebook account, marketing, etc. 


• Monthly rent of our Studio space is largest 
expense (rent has increased)


• Pandemic Impact – we survived! 


• Regaining momentum  


• New Normal 







Why it Matters to Stoughton  


• Yoga is beneficial to overall health & wellness – both physical ANDmental


• Individual benefits AND Community‐connection benefits 


• Stoughton Yoga intends to continue on this path:


• Affordable and accessible classes for all


• Free community gift classes and partnerships


• Gratitude to our generous donors, sustainers, 
and grants


Summary:   
Who we are,  Our request, Why it matters


Thank You! 







1 
 


  


Stoughton Yoga            2021 Annual Report                                                                                     


A Year of Resilience and Fostering Community 


 


 
As the pandemic continued into 2021, physical health 
and mental well-being became the number one priority 
for many.  Interest in our yoga classes was high.  
 


Stoughton Yoga’s main focus was continuing to serve the 
community with a variety of class offerings while also 
mitigating risks. Our staff, instructors, and students rose 
to the occasion by creating a culture of responsibility and 
caring for all.  
 


 


This same individual action on behalf of others was key to our 
organization's financial viability in 2021.   
 


A few people stepped up with a generous monthly investment, 
providing a steady income stream that helps us pay the rent 
without increasing our class rates or requiring a monthly 
membership fee to all of our students.  


 


 


Stoughton Yoga's long awaited Grand Opening Celebration 
took place in the summer. We had door prize drawings, free 
ice cream treats (courtesy of One Community Bank), and      
3 free mini yoga classes as well as a fun storytelling event. 


                                  


In the fall, a monthly Guided Meditation 
community gift class was added to our 
schedule.   


We also partnered with Stoughton Library  
to offer free monthly yoga classes at our 
studio. In addition, we produced two yoga 
videos for families/kids that were posted on 
the Library’s Facebook page.    







2 
 


Community Gift Classes & Events in 2021 


Stoughton Yoga was able to offer some free community gift classes, while adhering to health and safety 
measures relative to the pandemic. 


 February:     Free Yin yoga class, to thank our local Healthcare workers. 
 June:            3 Free mini-yoga classes during our Grand Opening celebration.  
 August:        Free yoga classes offered to local EMS workers. 
 October:      Free monthly guided meditation classes sponsored in part by local businesses. 
 December:  Free monthly yoga classes sponsored in part by Stoughton Library. 
 December:  Fundraiser with special Brotzopf baked goods. 


Scholarships:  We continue to assist students with financial need.  


 
Donations and Grants in 2021 


As always, we remain committed to providing classes at affordable rates, as well as free community gift 
classes -- all of which is possible due to current and new Donors, Sustainers, Investors, Partners, and 
Business Sponsors. We need and appreciate your support ~ Thank You!  


 31 Total Sustainers (ongoing donations from individuals)       
   


 12 Local Business Sponsors  
See our website for a list of active sponsors. 


2 Grants were received 
 Stoughton Area Community Foundation awarded a $500 grant to purchase wipeable covers for our 


yoga bolsters.  
 Dane County awarded a $2,500 Covid-Relief grant for help with expenses incurred during the time 


of our closure and to compensate an employee who was furloughed for several months.  
  


 
Ongoing OPERATIONS    
The Chief Operating Officer is responsible for Stoughton Yoga's operations, programming, finances, public relations, 
and support of instructors. The COO's key focus is to ensure that Stoughton Yoga delivers on its mission and helps   
the organization grow and prosper. Both the COO and Webmaster are paid employees of Stoughton Yoga.    
 
                                            EXPENSES 


 


Stoughton Yoga Sustainers and Business Sponsors are our largest and most important source of funding to help us offer 
studio classes at reduced rates, as well as free community gift classes at our studio and at locations throughout the 
greater Stoughton area.   


INCOME


      68%   
Donations 
    - Grants 
    - Sponsors 
    - Sustainers 
    - Fundraisers   
 


46%
Rent


   28% 
Employee 
Stipends 


Operations   
& Supplies  17% 


   32%  
Classes 







3 
 


                                   
 


About Stoughton Yoga  
Yoga was never meant to be big business.  


The tradition and true spirit of yoga is one grounded 
in kindness, giving, and awareness that we are ALL 
connected.  


We believe that self-care through the practice of 
yoga can be made available to anyone and everyone 
in our community. Our studio is the first and only 
dedicated yoga studio in Stoughton.   


Stoughton Yoga is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit 
organization.   
 


What we do   
Stoughton Yoga offers a variety of yoga, meditation, 
and mindfulness classes at our studio at reduced 
rates as well as FREE and accessible community gift 
classes in our studio and at locations throughout the 
greater Stoughton area. 
 
 
Our Mission is to ensure that the Stoughton 
community has access to quality, affordable and 
inclusive yoga, meditation and mindfulness classes. 


Funding Sources  
 grants  


 partnerships with local businesses 


 grassroots support from individuals  


 fundraising events 


 attendance at our affordable yoga and 
mindfulness studio classes 


 


Leadership 


 Stoughton Yoga is led by an 8-member Board of 
Directors who meet throughout the year.    


 Our Founder and COO is a long-time Stoughton 
resident who is committed to wellness through 
yoga and community stewardship. 


Our Impact on Individuals 
 Access to affordable yoga classes led by over     


12 instructors. 


 Inclusive, adaptive yoga offered with props for all 
body types, ages, and physical limitations. 


 Convenient class times during the week. 


 Supports physical/mental health and well-being. 


 Sense of belonging and acceptance. 


 


Our Impact on Community 


 Our studio classes are about half the cost of 
other yoga classes in the Madison area. 


 We offer a variety of free community gift classes 
at locations throughout the greater Stoughton 
area.  


 Meaningful workshops and special events that 
support community interests and needs. 
 


Contact:   
 


Stoughton Yoga,  101 Silverado Drive,  Stoughton WI  53589 
Tel-- (608) 572-3555         Email-- info@stoughtonyoga.org 
Facebook-- https://www.facebook.com/stoughtonyoga/ 
Web-- http://stoughtonyoga.org 


 


         
 







1 
 


  


Stoughton Yoga        Annual Report  


                                                                                                February 2021              


Looking Back at 2020 – a year like no other! 
 


 


A Strong Beginning:  January and February began strong with 
many yoga classes (conducted at our Main Street studio) and 
seven free Community classes offered at the hospital, library,    
and schools.  
The 4th annual Chili Cookoff fundraiser event took place on 
February 16th at Wendigo and it was the best ever! 
 


During this time, the opportunity arose for Stoughton Yoga to relocate 
to a larger and more accessible studio space. We were starting to out-
grow our beloved Main Street studio. The Board of Directors began 
preliminary planning for this major change -- including fundraising 
needs, renovation needs, and advertising -- but shortly after the 
decision to move was made, the Covid-19 pandemic hit.  


In mid-March, we suspended all in-studio classes. 
 


 


 
Pivoting to a New Phase:  From late March through early 
summer, the organization’s sole source of income was from 
ongoing donations from monthly Sustainers and our Community 
Business Sponsors. Thank you!   
 


Throughout this phase, many dedicated volunteers donated their efforts to help keep the organization  
viable as well as prepare our new larger studio space for eventual re-opening. 
 
In the Summer months, several classes were held outdoors each week, which attracted steady participation. 
And in collaboration with Stoughton Public Library, Stoughton Senior Center and Stoughton Wellness 
Coalition, free or donation-based online classes and workshops were made available to the public. 
 
When the cooler Fall weather arrived, indoor studio classes resumed at our 
beautiful new space -- but at a greatly reduced capacity and with strict safety 
precautions in place. Then, from mid-November through December, there was a 
national rise in covid cases, so once again we paused all in-studio classes.  


During this closure, an online Holiday Market fundraiser helped to supplement 
our income: we sold delicious baked goods and some small hand-made items.    
In addition, we began selling props – mats, straps, blocks, blankets, and bolsters –   
at affordable sliding-scale prices, for yoga students to use in-home or to bring 
with them to future classes. (We ended the practice of prop sharing.) 


 


At year end, we received a generous grant from Stoughton Community 
Foundation, to help purchase additional props for our yoga students. 


At the start of January 2021, the 
new studio reopened again with 
limited capacity, in-person classes.  


 







2 
 


Highlights of 2020 Key Offerings:  Community Classes & Workshops 


 
While most of Stoughton Yoga's resources in 2020 were dedicated to studio rent, relocation and renovation, 
as well as keeping the organization solvent, we were still able to continue supporting the well-being of the 
Stoughton community during this challenging time, with the following: 
 
Scholarships:   5 scholarships were given to students needing assistance, ranging from $20--$40 each.  
 
JANUARY 


 2 special studio classes:  
Beginners Yoga and 
Breathing Workshop               
~  19 participants 


 By donation:  5-week series 
for Teens, each received a 
free mat   ~ 10 participants 


 


FEBRUARY 


   Free:  3 Hospital classes: 
               -- Open Your Heart ~ 20 participants 
               -- Love of Self  ~ 20 participants 
               -- Yoga for Complete Beginners ~ 10 participants 


   Free:  Get Up & Go Youth class at Sandhill School ~ 50 participants 


   Free:  Mini-yoga classes at River Bluff School Wellness Expo 


   Free:  3 Community classes at McFarland Public Library  
                 ~ 24  participants total 
 


MARCH 
 Free:  Hospital class, Chair Yoga   
           ~ 8 participants 
 
MAY      
 Specialized Yoga Videos were created: 


      -- 2 videos for Kids offered in collaboration  
 with Stoughton Library 


      -- 3 videos for Seniors offered in collaboration  
 with Stoughton Senior Center 


      -- 1 Family-yoga video offered in collaboration 
 with Stoughton Library 


 Starting in May, free on-line classes have been  
 offered twice each week, via social media. 
 


JUNE 
 Free:  Community class at Race Track Park   
                 outdoors  ~ 15 participants 
 
AUGUST 
 By donation:  Mindful Resilience workshop 
 outdoors  ~ 5 participants 


 By donation:  Racial Justice virtual 6-week
 book discussion group ~ 7 participants 
     Stoughton Wellness Coalition donated books 
  
 
DECEMBER 
 Free: Mindful Resilience 5-week series phone 


discussion group ~ 4 participants 
 


  


The Importance of Sustainers and Sponsors:   As always, we remain committed to offering classes at 
affordable rates, as well as free community classes -- all of which is possible due to current and new 
Sustainers, Partners, and Business Sponsors. We need and appreciate your support! 


 34  Total Sustainers (ongoing donations from individuals)               
       6 NEW Sustainers in 2020 


 16 Local Business Sponsors  
See our website for a list of active sponsors 


 


 1 Grant Received for $1,160 from the Stoughton Community Foundation 
 


 
  







3 
 


 


About Stoughton Yoga  
Yoga was never meant to be big business.  
The tradition and true spirit of yoga is one grounded 
in kindness, giving, and awareness that we are ALL 
connected. We believe that self-care through the 
practice of yoga can be made available to anyone 
and everyone in our community. Our studio is the 
first and only dedicated yoga studio in Stoughton.   
Stoughton Yoga is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization.   
 


What we do   
Stoughton Yoga offers a variety of yoga, meditation, and 
mindfulness classes at our studio at reduced rates as well as 
FREE and accessible community classes in Stoughton at the 
hospital, public library, schools and community locations. 
 


Our Mission is to ensure that the Stoughton community has 
access to quality, affordable and inclusive yoga, meditation 
and mindfulness classes. 


Funding Sources  
 grassroots support from individuals  
 partnerships with local businesses 
 fundraising events 
 attendance at our affordable yoga and 


mindfulness studio classes 
 


Leadership 
 Stoughton Yoga is led by an 8-member Board of Directors 


who meet regularly throughout the year.    
 Our Founder and COO is a long-time Stoughton resident 


who is committed to wellness through yoga and 
community stewardship. 


Our Impact on Individuals 
 Access to affordable yoga classes led by over    


12 instructors. 
 Inclusive, adaptive yoga offered with props for 


all body types, ages, and physical limitations. 
 Convenient class times during the week. 
 Supports physical/mental health and well-being. 
 Sense of belonging and acceptance. 


 


Our Impact on Community 


 Our studio classes are about half the cost of other yoga 
classes in the Madison area. 


 We offer a variety of free classes at community locations, 
including Stoughton Hospital, Library and Schools.                                                                                                                   


 Meaningful workshops and special events that support 
community interests and needs. 
 


2020 - Ongoing OPERATIONS                  
The Chief Operating Officer is responsible for Stoughton Yoga's operations, programming, finances, public relations, 
and support of instructors. The COO's key focus is to ensure that Stoughton Yoga delivers on its mission and helps   
the organization grow and prosper. The COO and Webmaster are each paid a small monthly stipend for their work.    
 
      EXPENSES 


 


Stoughton Yoga Sustainers and Business Sponsors are our largest and most important source of funding to  
help us offer studio classes at reduced rates as well as free classes throughout the community. 
 


Contact:   
 


Stoughton Yoga,  101 Silverado Drive,  Stoughton WI  53589 
Tel (608) 572-3555       Email-- info@stoughtonyoga.org 
Facebook-- https://www.facebook.com/stoughtonyoga/ 
Web-- http://stoughtonyoga.org     


 


         
 


INCOME


30%
Classes
Studio &
Outside


     70% 
Donations 
    - Grants 
    - Sponsors 
    - Sustainers 
    - 


45%
Rent


   14% 
Stipends 


Free Classes    14% 
& Scholarships 


Marketing  10% 


New Studio  10%  
Renovation 


Supplies 
            7% 







  


Stoughton Yoga        Annual Report  


                                                                                                    March 2020              


About Stoughton Yoga  
Yoga was never meant to be big business. The tradition and true spirit of yoga is one grounded in 
kindness, giving, and awareness that we are ALL connected. We believe that self-care through the 
practice of yoga can be made available to anyone and everyone in our community. 
 


In 2016 Stoughton Yoga became a 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization.  The Stoughton Yoga studio is the 
first and only dedicated yoga studio in Stoughton.   
 
What we do   
Stoughton Yoga offers a variety of yoga, meditation, and mindfulness classes at our studio at reduced 
rates as well as FREE and accessible community classes in Stoughton at the hospital, public library, 
schools and other community locations. 


Our mission is to ensure that the Stoughton community has access to quality,  
affordable and inclusive yoga, meditation and mindfulness classes. 


  
Funding Sources  
 grassroots support from individuals  
 partnerships with local businesses 
 fundraising events 
 attendance at our affordable yoga  


and mindfulness studio classes 


Leadership 
 Stoughton Yoga is led by an 8-member Board of 


Directors who meet regularly throughout the year.    
 Our Founder and COO is a long-time Stoughton 


resident who is committed to wellness through yoga 
and community stewardship. 


  
Our Impact on Individuals 
 Access to affordable yoga classes led by over 13 instructors. 
 Inclusive and adaptive yoga offered with props for all body 


types, ages, and those with physical limitations. 
 Convenient class times during the week. 
 Support of physical and mental health and well-being. 
 Sense of belonging and acceptance. 


 


 


         
 
 
 


 
Our Impact on Community 
 Our studio classes are about half the cost of other yoga classes  


in the Madison area. 
 Our studio is well stocked with a variety of props for more 


adaptive and inclusive yoga classes. We go above and beyond 
what other studios normally have available.  


 Variety of pay-what-you-can classes and special events. 
 Expanded free class offerings throughout the year at community 


locations, including Stoughton Hospital, Library and Schools.                                                                
  







After serving the community for over 3 years, here are highlights of our 2019 results: 


 
14 Weekly studio classes 


 5—14 participants per class 
 4 Pay-what-you-can classes/week 


   


 
Types of yoga classes include  


Alignment-focused  Kundalini  Restorative 
Mindful  Slow Flow  Vinyasa  Yin  Hatha 


31 Free Community Classes ~ 230 total participants 
 Stoughton Hospital      Public Library 
 Wellness Garden          Earth Day   
 Fox Prairie Family Fun Event  


 


9 Youth Classes  ~ 107 total participants  
 7 classes for teens         ~  70 teens   
 2 classes for children    ~  37 children   


 


Scholarships 
Since 2016 we have given $207 in scholarships     
to assist 7 individuals in a 5-week class series  


 


5 Special Workshops, including 
 Breathing to reduce stress          Home practice 
 Mindful connections for kids      Mindfulness 


 
Community Partner:  Stoughton Hospital   


                                          
 


20 Local Business Sponsors  
 See our website for a list of active sponsors 


2 Grants Received in 2019 totaling $1,400 28 Total Sustainers (ongoing donations from individuals) 
 16 NEW sustainers in 2019  


 


Ongoing OPERATIONS 
The Chief Operating Officer is responsible for Stoughton Yoga's operations, programming, finances, 
public relations, and support of instructors. The COO's key focus is to ensure that Stoughton Yoga 
delivers on its mission and helps the organization grow and prosper. The COO and Webmaster are 
each paid a small monthly stipend for their work.     
 


    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stoughton Yoga Sustainers and Business Sponsors are our largest and most important source of funding 
to help us offer studio classes at reduced rates as well as free classes throughout the community. 
  


Contact:   
Stoughton Yoga,  123 E. Main St. Upper Floor,  Stoughton WI  53589 
Tel (608) 572-3555      Email  info@stoughtonyoga.org 
Facebook  https://www.facebook.com/stoughtonyoga/ 
Web  http://stoughtonyoga.org       


 
 


 


 


INCOME


     60% 
Donations 
   - Grants 
    - Sponsors 
    - Sustainers 
    - Fundraising   


EXPENSES


45% 
Rent 


  40% 
Studio 
Classes 





		25. 08-09-2022 Stoughton Yoga.pdf

		StoYo 2021 Annual Report_bjm_2-22.pdf

		StoughtonYoga 2020 Annual Report_bjm_2-21.pdf

		Stoughton Yoga 2019 Annual Report_bjm_3-20.pdf





















Utilities Re-alignment

Two years of evaluation of People, Technology and Processes







Current Structure

Open positions- waiting for re-alignment to hire for the “right position/duties”

Existing staff wearing many hats including responsibilities not reflected in their current position description

Lacks redundancy/backup

No succession plan

Two employees in key positions could retire today







The re-alignment

Position Descriptions have either been updated to reflect the current duties or new position descriptions have been created based on organization need.  



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA-NC





Stoughton Utilities - 2019

26 Stoughton Utilities Employees (with Finance) 

City of Stoughton Population 13,097









Stoughton Utilities-2022 
25 Stoughton Utilities Employees 
City of Stoughton Population 13,285 
GREEN = Updated PD
Blue = Newly created position description
RED = FUTURE REVISION


25 Stoughton Utilities Employees 
City of Stoughton Population 13,285













Population Growth of 150% 

 





1991

2022



SU Staff Decrease of 11%

 

Old Structure 6 vacancies (2019) 

New Structure 5 vacancies (2022)



 





Blue-Existing Personnel with New PD

Distribution System Coordinator

Newly created position following the departure of Superintendent Grady’s retirement

Position assessment completed by Director Weiss to determine the position needed based on the re-alignment and responsibilities.  The Superintendent position has been eliminated and the duties have been disseminated to others or eliminated





BLUE-Existing Personnel with New PD

Asset & Facilities Coordinator

Newly created position.  This position will replace the Engineering Technician position.  The incumbent is already performing the duties of the Asset & Facilities Coordinator position.  



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA





BLUE-Existing Personnel with New PD

Education & Outreach Coordinator-Marketing

Newly created position.  This position will replace the Customer Service Technician position description.  The incumbent is already performing the duties of the Education & Outreach Coordinator position.  



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA-NC







BLUE-Existing Personnel with New PD

Billing and Metering Supervisor

Replaces the existing Billing and Metering Specialist position

Incumbent is performing the duties



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-ND





BLUE-Existing Personnel with New PD

Customer Service Technician- New position includes Collections

FT Collections position was eliminated thru attrition

Position reports to the Billing and Metering Supervisor







This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA





BLUE-Existing Personnel with New PD

Journeyman Meter Technician 

Replaces the Operations Specialist position which does not meet the needs within Utilities

Position reports to the Billing and Metering Supervisor



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA





BLUE-Existing Personnel with New PD

Apprentice Meter Technician 				

Permanently vacant until there is need

Position reports to the Billing and Metering Supervisor







BLUE-Existing Personnel with New PD

Apprentice Operator- Wastewater

There is a need for an apprentice operator due to the structure change

Advanced Certified Operator/Lab technician- Retired and his position has not been filled.  The duties have been realigned creating the Apprentice Operator position.

This position reports to the Wastewater Division







Green on the Org Chart Updated Position Descriptions

Electric System Division

Electric Supervisor

Lead Journeyman Line worker

Journeyman Line worker

Apprentice Line worker



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY





Green on the Org Chart Updated Position Descriptions

Wastewater System Division

Wastewater Supervisor

Advanced Certified Operator

Basic Certified Operator

Operator



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA-NC





Green on the Org Chart Updated Position Descriptions

Water System Division

Water System Supervisor

Advanced Certified Operator

Basic Certified Operator

Operator



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-NC-ND





Green on the Org Chart Updated Position Descriptions

Finance Manger

Position Description updated prior to hire on November 8, 2021



Y







Green on the Org Chart Updated Position Descriptions

Assistant Utilities Director

Position was being paid as non-exempt and the employee was being paid overtime

The position qualifies as exempt and has been recommended as exempt- No overtime 

Duties were updated

Reporting structure updated to reflect all divisions reporting to the position

Employee is already performing the duties





Green on the Org Chart Updated Position Descriptions

Utilities Director

Position Description reflects the current duties  

Minor changes made as shown on the redline version





RED- Future Position Description Review

Accounting Specialist- no changes at this time to the position description



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA







Compensation & Funding

In 2021 the budget approved funding to pay Utilities Staff.  



These dollars were carried over into the 2022 Budget and will cover the implementation of this compensation plan.  





This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA





How was compensation Determined?

Information was pulled from the following 

These organizations are ALL our competition as well as “like” positions

MEUW Compensation Study

Information pulled from the following:  

Alliant Energy, APPA, AWWA, WPPI, WPS

Cedarburg, Kaukauna, Madison Metro, Manitowoc, Marshfield, Menasha, New London, Oconomowoc, 
Plymouth, Rice Lake, River Falls, Shawano, Sheboygan, Sturgeon Bay, Sun Prairie,  Waunakee, WE Energies, Wisconsin Rapids 





Entity must meet 2 of 3 qualifiers to be considered for compensation consideration

1.  Location: must be within 30 miles of Stoughton

2.  Must provide opportunity for advancement  (i.e.: Evansville)

3.  Must be a comparable Utility to Stoughton

*If the entity was not a like to like match, they were eliminated*



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA





            





Compensation Module- Utilities- SEE HANDOUT















               FUNDING- Director Weiss      



This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-SA





Why should tHis be recommended to Council?

This structure allows the Utility to run efficiently, recruit and retain talented staff.  

Employees are performing duties out of the scope of their existing position description and are not being compensated.  

Compensation was already approved thru the budget, existing compensation is not market competitive

Employee departures

Poor Employee Morale

We are becoming a training ground for other employers





Questions?





image2.png



image3.jpg



image4.png



image5.png



image6.png



image7.png



image8.jpg



image9.jpeg



image10.png



image11.jpg



image12.jpg



image13.PNG



image14.jpg



image15.jpeg



image16.png



image17.jpg



image18.jpg



image19.jpg



image20.jpg



image21.jpg



image22.jpg



image23.jpeg



image24.jpg



image25.jpg



image26.png



image27.png



image28.jpg






 


Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time:       Tuesday, August 9, 2022, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council was conducted both in person and via Zoom. 
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean 
Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Frank Raff, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky and Rachel Venegas 


 
CALL TO ORDER 
Vice Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 7:02 p. m. 
 
1. Roll Call -- Director of Finance Ehlinger called roll and noted there were 12 Alders present.   
 
2. Minutes and Reports:  CA/CP (7/5/22); Finance (7/12/22); Public Safety (5/25/22) – It was 


noted that a correction was required for the May 25, 2022 Public Safety Committee minutes.  The 
last sentence under “3 Approval of minutes from April 26, 2022” should read “clarification was 
accepted…” rather than “clarification was excepted…”  All three minutes were entered into the 
records. 


 
3. Public Comment Period – Theresa Bergeson-Gallum (916 Riverview Dr, Stoughton) spoke in 


support of the DEI Committee ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) request.  
 


4. Communications and Presentations: 
• A.  DEI Committee update – Alder Ligocki – Ligocki gave an update on the committee’s 


activities.  Ligocki indicated she would send the written document to Christen. 
• American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 


o B.  Fiscal recap 
o C.  Presentation calendar 


• ARPA funding requests presentations 
o D.  Human Resources Department 
o E.  Stoughton Redevelopment Assistance Program 
o F.  Eyes of Hope, Stoughton, Inc. 
o G.  Stoughton DEI Task Force 
o H.  Becker Professional Services 
o I.  Stoughton Chamber of Commerce 
o J.  Stoughton Kiwanis Club 
o K.  Neighborhood Free Health Clinic 
o L. Downtown Merchants Association – Presentations from the listed 


organizations were given in support of their ARPA requests. After discussion 
by Council, the consensus was a Committee of the Whole meeting should 
occur to discuss ranking parameters and other funding methodologies.  The 
topic was requested to be on the August 23, 2022 agenda.  It was also 
requested that possible parameter suggestions should be sent to Director of 
Finance Ehlinger.  A brief recess took place afterwards. 


 
   







 
5. Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – July 26, 2022 
        B.  R-155-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator 
Licenses to various applicants.  
 C. R-156-2022 Approving the Mayor's Alder Appointments to non-standing committees 


D. R-157-2022 Resolution confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointments to Boards, 
Committees, and Commissions – Motion to approve the consent agenda by Reeves/Ligocki.  
The motion passed 11-0 with Schumacher abstaining. 


 
6. O-16-2022 Annexation of 1548 US Highway 51 from the Town of Dunkirk – Motion by 
Caravello/Jenson to approve the ordinance as drafted.  The motion passed 12-0. 


7. R-158-2022 - Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an Access 
Agreement with Uniroyal Global Engineered Products (“Uniroyal”) – Motion by 
Schumacher/Jenson to approve the resolution as drafted.  The motion passed 12-0. 
 
8.  R-159-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper City Official (s) to approve a Class 
“B” Beer license for Pizza Hut.  – Motion by Jenson/Ligocki to approve the resolution as 
drafted.  The motion passed 12-0. 


9. R-160-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper City Official (s) to approve a Class “B” 
Beer and Class “C” Wine license for Pancake Café. Motion by Jenson/Schumacher to approve 
the resolution as drafted.  Upon advice from City Attorney, Motion by Jenson/Schumacher to 
approve the resolution contingent upon the Clerk’s office receiving a property lease agreement 
including the owner’s name on it.  Motion to add the contingency passed 12-0.  Motion to 
approve the amended resolution passed 12-0.       


10. R-161-2022 Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve a Temporary 
“Class B” Wine Retailers License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Chamber of 
Commerce for the Stoughton Wine Walk – Motion by Jenson/Ligocki to approve the resolution as 
drafted.  The motion passed 12-0.  
 
11.  R-162-2022 Approving an Operator License for Carissa Alt. – Motion by Jenson/Ligocki to 
approve the resolution as drafted.  Upon advice from City Attorney, motion to table by Ligocki/Reeves.  
The motion to table passed 12-0. 
 
12. R-163-2022 Amend the shared ride services (taxi program) budget for the calendar year 2022 – 
Motion by Schumacher/Reeves to approve the resolution as drafted.  The motion passed 12-0. 
 
13. R-164-2022 Amend the revolving loan program budget for the calendar year 2022 – Motion by 
Schumacher/Reeves to approve the resolution as drafted.  The motion passed 12-0. 
 
14. R-165-2022 Amend the Emergency Medical Services budget for the calendar year 2022 – Motion 
by Schumacher/Reeves to approve the resolution as drafted.  The motion passed 12-0. 
 







15. R-166-2022 Amend Opera House budget for the calendar year 2022 – Motion by 
Schumacher/Jenson to approve the resolution as drafted.  Schumacher noted the resolution number on the 
draft resolution needs to be corrected to be R-166-2022.  The motion passed 12-0. 
 
16. R-167-2022 Amend EMS Trust Fund for the calendar year 2022 – Motion by Schumacher/Reeves 
to approve the resolution as drafted.  Schumacher noted the resolution number on the draft resolution 
needs to be corrected to be R-167-2022.  The motion passed 12-0. 
 
17. Recommendation by CA/CP that Council reviews the ordinance that determines citizen 
members as Vice Chairs – General discussion regarding O-18-2021 occurred in relation to vice chairs.   
                                                        
ADJOURNMENT – Motion to adjourn by Heili/Caravello at 9:31 p.m. to adjourn.  The motion passed 
12-0. 


Respectfully submitted, 


 


David P. Ehlinger, Director of Finance/Comptroller 








 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-168-2022 


 
Date Introduced:   August 23, 2022 


 
WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 
the following applicants: 
 


Name      Place of Business 
  Eric Bugiyne     Viking Brew Pub  
     
 
WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 
Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 
applicants. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                           
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 
 








DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, August 15, 2022 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


Location: Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room, Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 


600 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Optional Virtual Participation: GoToMeeting ID 950-482-685 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Mayor Tim 


Swadley, Alderperson Joyce Tikalsky, Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Excused: Citizen Member John Kallas 


Absent: Alderperson Fred Hundt 


Others Present: City of Stoughton Director of Human Resources Amy Jo Gillingham, Stoughton 


Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Operations Specialist 


Marty Seffens, Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Shannon Statz, Stoughton 


Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Chairperson Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting to order at 5:44 


p.m. with a quorum present.  Erdman, Hirsch, Swadley, Thoren, and Tikalsky were present in person.  There 


were no attendees present by webinar. 


Erdman thanked Stoughton Utilities staff for hosting a tour of the Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment 


Facility prior to the meeting.  Erdman, Hirsch, Thoren, and Tikalsky of the Stoughton Utilities Committee, as well 


as John Hallinan of the Stoughton Sustainability Committee, attended the tour. 


Public Comments:  None. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 


Committee consent agenda items. 


Motion by Thoren, the motion seconded by Tikalsky, to approve the following consent agenda items as 


presented:  


a. Draft Minutes of the July 18, 2022 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


b. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report 


c. Stoughton Utilities Financial Summary 


d. Stoughton Utilities Statistical Report 


e. Communications 


The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


  



bhoops

Highlight







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 18, 2022 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  1 


 


Location: Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room, Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 


600 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Optional Virtual Participation: GoToMeeting ID 461-497-269 


Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman (Chair), Alderperson Regina Hirsch, Citizen 


Member John Kallas, Alderperson Joyce Tikalsky, Citizen Member Dustin Thoren 


Excused: None 


Absent: Alderperson Fred Hundt, Mayor Tim Swadley 


Others Present: Jodi Dobson of Baker Tilly US, LLP, Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Shannon 


Statz, Stoughton Utilities Director Jill Weiss 


Call to Order:  Chairperson Erdman called the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting to order at 5:30 


p.m. with a quorum present.  Kallas was present in person, and Erdman, Hirsch, Tikalsky, and Thoren were 


present by webinar. 


Public Comments:  None. 


Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities 


Committee consent agenda items. 


Motion by Kallas, the motion seconded by Hirsch, to approve the following consent agenda items as presented:  


a. Draft Minutes of the June 27, 2022 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


b. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report 


c. Stoughton Utilities May Financial Summary 


d. Stoughton Utilities Statistical Report 


e. Stoughton Utilities Activities Report 


f. Communications 


The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Status of the Utilities Committee recommendation(s) to the Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton 


Utilities staff presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were 


recently approved and/or placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council: 


Consent Agenda:  


1. Minutes of the May 16, 2022 Regular Utilities Committee Meeting 


2. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report 


3. Stoughton Utilities April Financial Summary 


4. Stoughton Utilities Statistical Report 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 18, 2022 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


 


Business: 


1. Stoughton Wastewater Utility 2022 Rate Adjustment  


2. Wastewater 2021 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 


Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities 2021 Audit Reports and Management Letter:  City of Stoughton staff introduced Ms. Jodi 


Dobson from Baker Tilly US, LLP, who presented the Stoughton Utilities 2021 Audit Reports and Management 


Letter.  Discussion followed.  Erdman explained to the committee that he would abstain from any discussion and 


vote. 


Motion by Thoren, the motion seconded by Kallas, to acknowledge receipt of the Stoughton Utilities 2021 audit 


reports and management letter and recommend the Stoughton Common Council accept receipt of the audit 


reports and management letter, and adopt the accompanying resolution.  The motion carried 4 to 0, with Erdman 


abstaining. 


Stoughton Electric Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  


Stoughton Utilities and City of Stoughton staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Electric Utility Annual 


Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin:  Stoughton 


Utilities and City of Stoughton staff presented and discussed the Stoughton Water Utility Annual Report filed with 


the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin.  Discussion followed. 


Execution of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Financial Assistance Agreement:  


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Financial Assistance Agreement (FAA) associated with the 


loan to be provided by State of Wisconsin Safe Drinking Water Loan Program (SDWLP) to fund the public costs 


associated with the 2021 lead service line replacement project.  The SDWLP loan award has a tentative closing 


date of August 10, 2022.  Discussion followed.  


Motion by Kallas, the motion seconded by Hirsch, to approve the execution of the State of Wisconsin Safe 


Drinking Water Loan Program Financial Assistance Agreement between the State of Wisconsin Department of 


Natural Resources and Department of Administration and the City of Stoughton, and recommend execution of 


the agreement to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of up to $1,659,096 Waterworks System revenue Bonds, 


Series 2022, and Providing for Other Details and Covenants with Respect Thereto:  Stoughton Utilities staff 


presented and discussed the resolution associated with the loan to be provided by State of Wisconsin Safe 


Drinking Water Loan Program (SDWLP) to fund the public costs associated with the 2021 lead service line 


replacement project.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Thoren, to approve the Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale 


of up to $1,659,096 Waterworks System revenue Bonds, Series 2022, and Providing for Other Details and 


Covenants with Respect Thereto, and recommend approval of the resolution to the Stoughton Common Council.  


The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Wisconsin Department of Transportation State/Municipal Financial Agreement:   Stoughton Utilities staff 


presented and discussed a proposed cost sharing agreement between the City of Stoughton and the Wisconsin 







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, July 18, 2022 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  3 


 


Department of Transportation related to a project to reconstruct US Highway 51 / West Main Street from Harrison 


Street to Roby Road.  Staff explained that Stoughton Utilities will be replacing the water main and sanitary sewer, 


including completing the project design and engineering, and funding associated construction costs, mobilization, 


and project oversight.  The proposed financial agreement defines the project scope and state vs. utility financial 


obligations.  It was requested that the committee review the portion of the financial agreement relevant to the 


aspects of the agreement that would affect Stoughton Utilities financial obligations.  Staff informed the committee 


that the costs provided were estimates, and actual costs will be determined once the project is bid.  Discussion 


followed.   


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Kallas, to approve the utility-related aspects of the financial 


agreement, and recommend acceptance of the agreement to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion 


carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Stoughton Utilities Round-Up Program:  Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed the Stoughton 


Utilities Round-Up Program.  A brief description and history of staff’s efforts to recruit new organizations to apply 


for funding was provided to the committee.  Staff informed the committee that customer participation in the option 


program had increased 5% in the first half of 2022.  This is the first of two donations to be made using 2022 


program funding, with an applicant pool of 12 local non-profit organizations.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Thoren, the motion seconded by Kallas, to donate $1,000 from the Stoughton Utilities Round-Up 


Program fund to the Stoughton Lions Club.  The motion carried unanimously 5 to 0. 


Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items:  Stoughton Utilities staff informed the committee that upcoming 


meeting topics include the 2023 operating budget and five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), interest from a 


cell tower company in placement of communications antennas on a water tower, and the strategic realignment 


plan. 


Adjournment:  Being no further business before the committee, motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by 


Thoren, to adjourn the regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting at 6:04 p.m.  The motion carried 


unanimously 5 to 0. 


Respectfully submitted, 


Brian R. Hoops 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:10AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/3/2022


Wednesday, August 03, 2022


Description


7430Company:


VO for check batch: 311091EP002412 516 WELLS FARGO BANK7/11/2022  21,501.92


WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Excess Gen 8-8 Cr/WPPI-Large 


Power/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services


HC002413 009 WPPI7/11/2022  1,243,896.40


Federal Taxes-July Ach/Federal Taxes-July 


Ach/Federal Taxes-July Ach/Federal Taxes-July 


Ach


HC002414 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach7/30/2022  39,518.00


Client Analysis-July Ach/Client Analysis-July 


Ach/Client Analysis-July Ach/Client Analysis-July 


Ach


HC002415 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach7/30/2022  20,241.55


State Taxes-July Ach/State Taxes-July AchHC002416 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach7/30/2022  7,959.54


EBC-July Ach/EBC-July Ach/EBC-July 


Ach/EBC-July Ach


HC002417 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach7/30/2022  623.29


Delta Dental - July Ach/Delta Dental - July 


Ach/Delta Dental - July Ach


HC002418 001 Delta Dental - Ach7/30/2022  1,557.74


LV LABS - July AchHC002419 499 LV LABS WW, LLC7/30/2022  1,532.30


Dept of Rev-July Ach/Dept of Rev-July AchHC002420 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach7/30/2022  60,509.03


Pitney Bowes-July Ach/Pitney Bowes-July 


Ach/Pitney Bowes-July Ach/Pitney Bowes-July Ach


HC002421 318 PITNEY-BOWES INC-PURCHASE POWER7/30/2022  180.00


AT&T - July AchHC002422 952 AT&T7/30/2022  215.24


Spectrum-July Ach/Spectrum-July 


Ach/Spectrum-July Ach


HC002423 547 Spectrum-Ach7/30/2022  429.26


Gordon Flesch-July Ach/Gordon Flesch-July 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-July Ach/Gordon Flesch-July 


Ach


HC002424 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.7/30/2022  86.11


TDS Metrocom - July Ach/TDS Metrocom - July 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - July Ach/TDS Metrocom - July 


Ach


HC002425 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach7/30/2022  898.11







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:10AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/3/2022


Wednesday, August 03, 2022


Description


First Data-July Ach/First Data-July Ach/First 


Data-July Ach/First Data-July Ach


HC002426 421 FIRST DATA CHARGES7/30/2022  30.52


Us Cellular-July Ach/Us Cellular-July Ach/Us 


Cellular-July Ach


HC002427 004 Us Cellular - Ach7/30/2022  1,213.66


Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach/Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach/Alliant Energy - July Ach/Alliant Energy - July 


Ach


HC002428 003 Alliant Energy - Ach7/30/2022  363.82


United Systems-Encoder RemoteCK028383 037 UNITED SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE, INC.7/12/2022  5,022.04


Country Club-Customer RefundCK028384 064 COUNTRY CLUB INV ANCHOR PORPERTY MGMT7/12/2022  174.24


City Stoton-June Aflac/City Stoton-July A Def 


Comp/City Stoton-May Legal Shield/City 


Stoton-June Health Ins/City Stoton-June Health 


Ins/City Stoton-June Health Ins/City Stoton-June 


Delta Vision/City Stoton-June Life Ins/City 


Stoton-June Life Ins+


CK028385 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON7/12/2022  67,150.18


SJE - PumpCK028386 207 SJE7/12/2022  3,059.34


J Konrad-Customer RefundCK028387 338 JANUS KONRAD7/12/2022  90.59


Meyer-Customer RefundCK028388 367 MEYER GROUP PAGE ST LLC7/12/2022  214.66


Doctor0Asphalt services/Doctor0Asphalt servicesCK028389 381 DOCTOR ASPHALT LLC7/12/2022  11,642.25


Resco-SuppliesCK028390 400 RESCO7/12/2022  1,584.80


Rosenbaum-Sand-Stone/Rosenbaum-Sand-StoneCK028391 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.7/12/2022  918.26


Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/In


sight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel


CK028392 451 INSIGHT FS7/12/2022  3,285.18


Martelle-Bulk Supplies/Martelle- Bulk SuppliesCK028393 487 MARTELLE WATER TREATMENT7/12/2022  1,781.75


C Borchardt-Customer RefundCK028394 703 CATHERINE BORCHARDT7/12/2022  40.90


A Kreigh-Customer RefundCK028395 739 ANDREW KREIGH7/12/2022  106.39


T Clark-Customer RefundCK028396 985 TRISHA CLARK7/12/2022  641.25







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:10AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/3/2022


Wednesday, August 03, 2022


Description


S Stenulson-Customer RefundCK028397 073 SHARON STENULSON7/21/2022  43.81


Harvest Farms-Embedded CrCK028398 084 HARVEST FARMS, LLC7/21/2022  3,300.00


City Stoton-July Retirement/City Stoton-July B Def 


Comp/City Stoton-Stormwater/City Stoton-July 


Retirement/City Stoton-July Retirement


CK028399 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON7/21/2022  82,689.24


Stoton Elec-Bulk Water/Stoton Elec-Bulk WaterCK028400 146 STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTIL.7/21/2022  153.70


Lakeside-RepairsCK028401 184 LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS7/21/2022  7,804.92


Bruce Fencing-Repairs/Bruce 


Fencing-Repairs/Bruce Fencing-Repairs


CK028402 213 BRUCE FENCE CO., LLC7/21/2022  4,780.00


Unemp-Unemployment/Unemp-Unemployment/Une


mp-Unemployment


CK028403 402 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE7/21/2022  311.00


K Lynch-Customer Refund/K Lynch-Customer 


Refund/K Lynch-Customer Refund


CK028404 522 KARRIE LYNCH7/21/2022  297.93


Kegonsa Plaza-Customer RefundCK028405 613 KEGONSA PLAZA7/21/2022  244.31


BEC Ent-RepairsCK028406 623 BEC ENTERPRISES, LLC7/21/2022  1,399.98


Baker Tilly-Audit/Baker Tilly-Audit/Baker Tilly-AuditCK028407 648 BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP7/21/2022  2,600.00


Stoton App-RepairsCK028408 738 STOUGHTON APPLIANCE REPAIR, LLC7/21/2022  85.00


Payee Unit-Customer Refund/Payee Unit-Customer 


Refund


CK028409 770 PAYEE UNIT DCHS C/O SHERRY JOHNSON7/21/2022  233.16


Dunkirk-Customer RefundCK028410 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC7/21/2022  2,250.82


Fired Up-Customer RefundCK028411 863 FIRED UP NUTRITION EILEEN STEVENS7/21/2022  33.26


NWTC BKStore-818001-1/NWTC 


BKStore-81000-1/NWTC BKStore-81000-1/NWTC 


BKStore-818001-1


CK028412 887 NWTC BOOKSTORE7/21/2022  682.14


Alliant-Asset SaleCK028413 906 ALLIANT ENERGY7/21/2022  32,796.48


G Fox-RepairsCK028414 959 G. FOX & SON, INC.7/21/2022  3,350.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:10AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/3/2022


Wednesday, August 03, 2022


Description


NWTC-Emp SchoolingCK028415 988 NORTHEAST WI TECHNICAL COLLEGE7/21/2022  212.25


Utility Svc-Twr 3 QtrCK028416 362 UTILITY SERVICE CO., INC7/26/2022  8,104.85


Dept of Rev-Summers RefundCK028417 397 WI. DEPT. OF REV.-COMPLIANCE BUREAU7/26/2022  100.35


Resco-Supplies/Resco-InventoryCK028418 400 RESCO7/26/2022  1,326.25


Ehlers-WW Rate StudyCK028419 814 EHLERS7/26/2022  612.50


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midw


est-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching


CK102147 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC7/12/2022  6,524.15


Border States-SuppliesCK102148 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY7/12/2022  214.53


GLS Utility-June Locates/GLS Utility-June 


Locates/GLS Utility-June Locates


CK102149 727 GLS UTILITY LLC7/12/2022  18,368.35


N Shore Bank-July A Def CompCK102150 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.7/12/2022  50.00


Infosend-Pring & Mailing/Infosend-Pring & 


Mailing/Infosend-Pring & Mailing/Infosend-Pring & 


Mailing


CK102151 852 INFOSEND, INC7/12/2022  2,268.01


Utility Sales-RepairsCK102152 269 UTILITY SALES AND SERVICE7/21/2022  980.73


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching


CK102153 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC7/21/2022  4,109.11


Border States-SuppliesCK102154 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY7/21/2022  484.14


Strand-Gen Eng/Strand-projects/Strand-General 


Eng/Strand-Academy St/Strand-Academy 


St/Strand-Academy St/Strand-Academy 


St/Strand-General 


Eng/Strand-projects/Strand-projects


CK102155 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.7/21/2022  6,229.47


B & H - Van Buren Mowing/B & H - Taylor Ln 


Mowing/B & H - West Sub Mowing/B &H - WW 


Mowing/B & H - Wa Twr Mowing/B & H - Academy 


Mowing/B & H - South St Mowing/B & H - Admin 


Mowing/B & H -Sub Station B Mowing/B & H - S 


Sub Station Mowing/More...


CK102156 519 B & H LAWN CARE7/21/2022  2,110.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:10AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


5 of 5


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 8/3/2022


Wednesday, August 03, 2022


Description


N Shore Bk-July B Def CompCK102157 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB-DEFERRED COMP.7/21/2022  50.00


C Conklin-ReimbCK102158 051 CAMREN CONKLIN7/27/2022  150.00


B Hoops-ReimbCK102159 181 BRIAN HOOPS7/27/2022  55.08


Border States-InventoryCK102160 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY7/27/2022  696.20


SEERA-CTC FundsCK102161 603 SEERA-WIPFLI LLP7/27/2022  5,710.60


Millennium-Inventory/Millennium-InventoryCK102162 787 MILLENNIUM7/27/2022  60,867.70


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK102163 852 INFOSEND, INC7/27/2022  3,489.81


Company Total  1,762,238.15







Date:


Time:


User:


Monday, July 11, 2022


01:45PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000144'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


Import ID: 009010 Import # : 0000000144


 83.55921 000000  - ADOBE INC096 06/07/2022SaaS - Adobe Cloud for Teams Apps 52507430


 30.38921 000000  - ADOBE INC096 06/07/2022SaaS - Adobe Cloud for Teams Apps 52507450


 37.99851 000000  - ADOBE INC096 06/07/2022SaaS - Adobe Cloud for Teams Apps 52507460


 131.42932 000000  - AMAZON.COM FX5546EH3 AMZN422 06/27/2022PAPER TOWERLS 41007430


 91.00925 000000  - AMAZON.COM FX5546EH3 AMZN422 06/27/2022SAFETY GLASSES 41007430


 57.05833 000000  - AMZN MKTP US 1X7RW1XI2 AM422 06/02/2022VALVES-WASH PRESS SCREENING 82007460


 117.60834 000000  - AMZN MKTP US 860WG4MR3422 06/03/2022PAPER TOWELS 82007460


 99.95925 000000  - AMZN MKTP US GB63X7MQ3422 06/30/2022SAFETY GLASSES 41007430


 17.02921 000000  - AMZN MKTP US QG8BS25Q3422 06/09/2022Kitchen and janitorial supplies 36807430


 6.19921 000000  - AMZN MKTP US QG8BS25Q3422 06/09/2022Kitchen and janitorial supplies 36807450


 7.75851 000000  - AMZN MKTP US QG8BS25Q3422 06/09/2022Kitchen and janitorial supplies 36807460


 56.98593 000000  - AMZN MKTP US XW4VV4O93422 06/13/2022IPAD HOLDER-TRUCKS 68207430


 12.95834 000000  - ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW108 06/24/2022HVAC REPAIR-SCREENING ROOM 82007460


 4.08833 000000  - ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW108 06/13/2022ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW 82007460


 7.63932 000000  - ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW108 06/13/2022ANT SPRAY/BRUSH-OFFICE 74007430


 2.77932 000000  - ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW108 06/13/2022ANT SPRAY/BRUSH-OFFICE 74007450


 3.48932 000000  - ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW108 06/13/2022ANT SPRAY/BRUSH-OFFICE 74007430


 10.99833 000000  - ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW108 06/21/2022MISC SUPPLIES 87007460


 11.26833 000000  - ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW108 06/09/2022LAB SUPPLIES 87107460


 9.99833 000000  - ASLESONS TRUE VALUE HARDW108 06/15/2022VALVES-WASH PRESS 87107460


 406.00930 000000  - AWWA.ORG105 06/08/2022Organization Dues - AWWA Membership - Annual 52507450


 17.90833 000000  - BADGER WATER390 06/03/2022LAB WATER 87107460


 74.74933 000000  - BP#1926526PLANEVIEW TRAV894 06/06/2022FUEL-SCHOOL-JEFFERSON 68407430


 37.73926 000000  - BUFFALO WILD WINGS 0082894 06/03/2022MEALS-SCHOOL-JEFFERSON 68407430


 13.75921 000000  - CLOUDFLARE177 06/02/2022Server DNS Failover - Subscription and Origins - Monthly 52507430


 5.00921 000000  - CLOUDFLARE177 06/02/2022Server DNS Failover - Subscription and Origins - Monthly 52507450


 6.25851 000000  - CLOUDFLARE177 06/02/2022Server DNS Failover - Subscription and Origins - Monthly 52507460


 400.00232 001099  - CORE & MAIN - WI007816 06/15/2022WATER INVENTORY 41007450


 521.47586 000000  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 130134 06/14/2022OIL-TIGHT HOLE SEAL 41007430


 1,098.84586 000000  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 130134 06/15/2022OIL-TIGHT HOLE SEAL 41007430


 6.00903 000000  - DOT E PAY WIN ACC922 06/23/2022Sheriff Accident Report - Car vs. Pole 35507430


 277.06833 000000  - EMS INDUSTRIAL, INC.795 06/03/2022EXHAUST FAN-DAFT BUILDING 82007460


 106.64833 000000  - ENERGY PIPE & SUPPLY, LLC939 06/15/2022ENERGY PIPE & SUPPLY, LLC 82007460


 69.00934 000000  - EQUIPMENT DEPOT MILWAUKE369 06/16/2022MAY 22 PUMP MAINTENANCE 41007430


-155.95833 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY 01WISTG148 06/02/2022FASTENAL COMPANY 01WISTG 87107460


 155.95833 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY 01WISTG148 06/01/2022FASTENAL COMPANY 01WISTG 87107460


-53.68673 000000  - FIRST SUPPLY MADISON550 06/01/2022RETURN CURB BOX REPAIR 41007450


-89.97834 000000  - GRAINGER236 06/28/2022MISC SUPPLIES 82007460


 89.97834 000000  - GRAINGER236 06/13/2022MISC SUPPLIES 82007460


 396.92925 000000  - HOFFMAN BOOTS WEBSITE398 06/07/2022BOOTS-NAWROCKI 68507430


 460.85926 000000  - HOME2 SUITES GREEN BAY894 06/06/2022LODGING-SCHOOL-JEFFERSON 68407430


 512.91926 000000  - HYATT REGENCY GREEN BAY894 06/27/2022LODGING-SCHOOL-JEFFERSON 68407430







Date:


Time:


User:


Monday, July 11, 2022


01:45PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000144'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 191.39594 000000  - J HARLEN CO INC994 06/01/2022J HARLEN CO INC 68307430


 7.47833 000000  - KWIK TRIP  73900007393994 06/09/2022ICE-SHIP SAMPLES 52757460


 22.36921 000000  - MICROSOFT MSBILL.INFO836 06/20/2022STaaS - Azure - Cold Backup Storage 52507430


 8.13921 000000  - MICROSOFT MSBILL.INFO836 06/20/2022STaaS - Azure - Cold Backup Storage 52507450


 10.18851 000000  - MICROSOFT MSBILL.INFO836 06/20/2022STaaS - Azure - Cold Backup Storage 52507460


 233.75932 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING AND FIRE331 06/16/2022ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECT 41007430


 85.00932 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING AND FIRE331 06/16/2022ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECT 41007450


 106.25834 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING AND FIRE331 06/16/2022ANNUAL FIRE SPRINKLER INSPECT 41007460


 33.00921 000000  - MSFT   E0400ISMYX836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Visio Desktop Tier 2 52507430


 12.00921 000000  - MSFT   E0400ISMYX836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Visio Desktop Tier 2 52507450


 15.00851 000000  - MSFT   E0400ISMYX836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Visio Desktop Tier 2 52507460


 33.00921 000000  - MSFT   E0400ISQUX836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Project Desktop Tier 3 52507430


 12.00921 000000  - MSFT   E0400ISQUX836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Project Desktop Tier 3 52507450


 15.00851 000000  - MSFT   E0400ISQUX836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Project Desktop Tier 3 52507460


 18.15921 000000  - MSFT   E0400IT0TR836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Microsoft 365 Apps for Business 52507430


 6.60921 000000  - MSFT   E0400IT0TR836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Microsoft 365 Apps for Business 52507450


 8.25851 000000  - MSFT   E0400IT0TR836 06/03/2022SaaS - o365 - Microsoft 365 Apps for Business 52507460


 11.00921 000000  - MSFT   E0400IT8T1836 06/06/2022SaaS - o365 - Project Online Tier 1 52507430


 4.00921 000000  - MSFT   E0400IT8T1836 06/06/2022SaaS - o365 - Project Online Tier 1 52507450


 5.00851 000000  - MSFT   E0400IT8T1836 06/06/2022SaaS - o365 - Project Online Tier 1 52507460


 272.03833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 06/13/2022LAB SUPPLIES 87107460


 64.53833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 06/29/2022LAB SUPPLIES 87107460


 235.43833 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 06/29/2022LAB SUPPLIES 87107460


 345.28833 000000  - NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE- IN974 06/01/2022SLUDGE SAMPLING 87107460


 59.06933 000000  - O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 5036140 06/20/2022BLUE DEF 68507430


 101.18903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2022Credit card processing - Desktop and Recurring 52507430


 14.45903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2022Credit card processing - Desktop and Recurring 52507450


 21.68840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2022Credit card processing - Desktop and Recurring 52507460


 7.24233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2022Credit card processing - Desktop and Recurring 52507430


 99.01903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2022Credit card processing - MyAccount Online 52507430


 14.14903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2022Credit card processing - MyAccount Online 52507450


 21.21840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2022Credit card processing - MyAccount Online 52507460


 7.09233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 06/03/2022Credit card processing - MyAccount Online 52507430


 15.80926 000000  - PICK N SAVE #390262 06/17/2022GATERADE-HEAT ADVISORY 69307430


 9.58926 000000  - PICK'N SAVE #107894 06/03/2022MEALS-SCHOOL-JEFFERSON 68407430


 87.19593 000000  - PIRTEK MADISON994 06/17/2022HOSES 68407430


 21.95921 000000  - QUICKIDCARD.COM994 06/03/2022Employee ID Card Replacement - ARuder 52507430


 240.00854 000000  - SHOE BOX578 06/20/2022BOOTS-ZWEEP 87107460


 61.03921 000000  - STAPLS7359610787000001352 06/27/2022General office supplies 36807430


 21.97921 000000  - STAPLS7359610787000001352 06/27/2022General office supplies 36807450


 29.29851 000000  - STAPLS7359610787000001352 06/27/2022General office supplies 36807460


 9.77233 001099  - STAPLS7359610787000001352 06/27/2022General office supplies 36807430


 226.81593 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 06/10/2022IMPACT DRIVER KIT 68407430


 105.48593 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 06/10/2022TOOLS-TRUCK 16 68207430







Date:


Time:


User:


Monday, July 11, 2022


01:45PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000144'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 6,440.00232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 06/23/2022ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 5,211.00232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 06/15/2022ELECTRIC INVENTORY 41007430


 61.90926 000000  - SUBWAY 17269894 06/29/2022MEALS-TRAINING 68207430


 42.19926 000000  - TARGET        00012476894 06/03/2022BACKPACK-SCHOOL-JEFFERSON 68407430


 29.18934 000000  - TRACTOR SUPPLY #2236994 06/22/2022PROPANE-FORKLIFT 52757430


 25.58926 000000  - TST  ANDUZZI'S SPORTS CLU894 06/02/2022MEAL-SCHOOL-JEFFERSON 68407430


 20.76926 000000  - TST  STADIUM VIEW894 06/01/2022MEAL-SCHOOL-JEFFERSON 68407430


 23.14926 000000  - TST  THE NIGHT OWL FOOD &894 06/30/2022School-Meal 68307430


 11.95642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230391172694824 06/16/2022Shipping of water samples to lab 36807450


 11.93642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230391624071824 06/09/2022Shipping of water samples to lab 36807450


 11.95642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230393227489824 06/16/2022Shipping of water samples to lab 36807450


 11.93642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230393518469824 06/09/2022Shipping of water samples to lab 36807450


 11.95642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230396928878824 06/23/2022Shipping of water samples to lab 36807450


 11.95642 000000  - UPS 1Z17Y6230397016682824 06/23/2022Shipping of water samples to lab 36807450


 159.27673 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 06/28/2022USA BLUE BOOK 84007450


 721.05652 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 06/23/2022CHEMICAL SUPPLY PARTS 87007450


 78.95677 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 06/23/2022OIL FOR HYDRANT MAINTENANCE 87007450


 83.35833 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 06/03/2022DYE TABLETS 82007460


 166.00903 000000  - USPS PO BOXES ONLINE824 06/16/2022PO Box Rental Renewal - Annual 52507430


 59.76903 000000  - USPS PO BOXES ONLINE824 06/16/2022PO Box Rental Renewal - Annual 52507450


 79.68840 000000  - USPS PO BOXES ONLINE824 06/16/2022PO Box Rental Renewal - Annual 52507460


 26.56233 001099  - USPS PO BOXES ONLINE824 06/16/2022PO Box Rental Renewal - Annual 52507430


 63.75834 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 06/07/2022SHOP SUPPLIES 82007460


 26.00642 000000  - WI STATE HYGIENE LAB675 06/02/2022FLUORIDE SAMPLES 74007450


 26.00642 000000  - WI STATE HYGIENE LAB675 06/09/2022FLUORIDE SAMPLES 74007450


 21,501.92Total:







Stoughton Utilities 
Financial Summary 


June 2022 YTD 
 
Overall Summary: 
June YTD 2022 operating income was $782,842, up $377,422 from 2021. Electric and 
water both saw increases in income of $253,314 and $137,178 respectively, while 
wastewater saw a decrease of $13,070. 
 
Electric Summary: 
June 2022 YTD operating revenues were $7,742,177, 14.5%, higher than 2021. 
Kilowatt-hour sales were 11.9% (1,303,914 kWh) higher than in May 2022. Purchase 
power costs were up $705,392, or 14.5%, from last year. Non-power operating 
expenses were up $24,029 from the prior year due to an increase in overhead and 
underground line maintenance. 
 
The rate of return was 2.51% compared to 2.35% for June YTD 2021. Unrestricted cash 
balances are $4.9 million (3.9 months of sales).  
 
Water Summary: 
June 2022 YTD operating revenues were up $92,399, or 8.0%, from 2021. Total gallons 
sold were up 3.7% (1,292,000 gallons) from May 2022.  The increase in revenue is due 
to an increase in gallons sold, a rate increase as well as a decrease in expenses. 
 
Operating expenses were down $44,779, or -4.6%, compared to the prior year. 
 
The rate of return was 2.92% compared to 1.97% for YTD 2021. Unrestricted cash 
balances are ($178,129), -0.9 months of sales.  Our safe drinking water loan is 
preliminarily set to close on August 10, 2022. 


 
Wastewater Summary: 
June 2022 YTD operating revenue was down $10,424, or -1.0%, from 2021. Total 
gallons sold were down 0.9% (252,000 gallons) from May 2022. The difference in water 
gallons sold and sewer gallons sold is due to the operations of large customers, which 
use water to produce their product. They do not pay sewer charges on this water usage. 
 
Operating expenses were up $2,646, or 0.3%, from 2021. 
 
Unrestricted cash balances were $934,545 (5.6 months of sales).  
 
Submitted by: 
Shannon Statz 







Electric Water Wastewater Combined
Assets
Cash & Investments 6,711,851$         666,218$            2,735,958$         10,114,027$       
Customer A/R 1,887,642           258,270              203,867              2,349,779           
Other A/R 255,496              -                      -                      255,496              
Other Assets 1,296,899           254,105              155,727              1,706,731           
Plant in Service 31,447,076         17,420,131         33,023,014         81,890,221         
Accumulated Depreciation (16,427,633)        (6,413,737)          (14,067,234)        (36,908,604)        
Plant in Service - CIAC 6,292,331           8,891,083           -                      15,183,414         
Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (2,150,725)          (2,627,260)          -                      (4,777,985)          
Construction Work in Progress 533,742              1,941,973           57,767                 2,533,482           
GASB 68 Deferred Outflow 1,000,371           344,049              406,809              1,751,229           
Total Assets 30,847,050$       20,734,832$       22,515,908$       74,097,790$       


Liabilities + Net Assets
Accounts Payable (103,646)$           65,331$              44,865$              6,550$                 
Payable to City of Stoughton 294,222              215,009              -                      509,231              
Interest Accrued 18,573                 22,840                 13,510                 54,923                 
Other Liabilities 1,065,049           106,214              84,619                 1,255,882           
Long-Term Debt 2,447,141           2,726,773           2,897,365           8,071,279           
Net Assets 25,952,055         17,199,908         19,067,898         62,219,861         
GASB 68 Deferred Inflow 1,173,656           398,757              407,651              1,980,064           
Total Liabilities + Net Assets 30,847,050$       20,734,832$       22,515,908$       74,097,790$       


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Balance Sheets


 As of June 30, 2022







 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:
Sales 7,612,390$              1,202,999$              1,008,428$              9,823,817$              
Other 129,787                    46,357                      21,718                      197,862                    
   Total Operating Revenue: 7,742,177$              1,249,356$              1,030,146$              10,021,679$            


Operating Expense:
Purchased Power 5,566,770                -                             -                             5,566,770                
Expenses (Including Taxes) 948,136                    453,054                    509,007                    1,910,197                
PILOT 229,998                    214,998                    -                             444,996                    
Depreciation 614,502                    252,372                    450,000                    1,316,874                
   Total Operating Expense: 7,359,406$              920,424$                 959,007$                 9,238,837$              


     Operating Income 382,771$                 328,932$                 71,139$                    782,842$                 


Non-Operating Income 293,209                    830,571                    447,602                    1,571,382                
Non-Operating Expense (45,641)                     (48,969)                     (40,002)                     (134,612)                  


      Net Income 630,339$                 1,110,534$              478,739$                 2,219,612$              


 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:
Sales 6,686,204$              1,124,176$              1,020,162$              8,830,542$              
Other 73,238                      32,781                      20,408                      126,427                    
   Total Operating Revenue: 6,759,442$              1,156,957$              1,040,570$              8,956,969$              


Operating Expense:
Purchased Power 4,861,378                -                             -                             4,861,378                
Expenses (Including Taxes) 920,405                    487,333                    521,361                    1,929,099                
PILOT 235,500                    222,000                    -                             457,500                    
Depreciation 612,702                    255,870                    435,000                    1,303,572                
   Total Operating Expense: 6,629,985$              965,203$                 956,361$                 8,551,549$              


     Operating Income 129,457$                 191,754$                 84,209$                    405,420$                 


Non-Operating Income 208,735                    13,772                      21,660                      244,167                    
Non-Operating Expense (50,333)                     (43,482)                     (49,152)                     (142,967)                  


      Net Income 287,859$                 162,044$                 56,717$                    506,620$                 


June 30, 2021


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement


June 30, 2022


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement







Electric Jun-22


Unrestricted (3.9 months sales) 4,968,361$           
Bond Reserve 460,722$              
Redemption Fund (P&I) 200,642$              
Depreciation 25,000$                
Designated 1,057,126$           
Total 6,711,851$           


Water Jun-22


Unrestricted (-.9 months sales) (178,129)$             
Bond Reserve 340,710$              
Redemption Fund (P&I) 152,236$              
Depreciation 25,000$                
Construction 4$                         
Designated 326,397$              
Total 666,218$              


Wastewater Jun-22


Unrestricted (5.6 months sales) 934,545                
DNR Replacement 1,166,871             
Redemption Fund (P&I) 481,955                
Depreciation 33,283                  
Designated 119,303                
Total 2,735,957             


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Cash and Investments Summary


 As of June 30, 2022


$4,968,361 , 74%


$460,722 , 7%
$200,642 , 3%


$25,000 , 0% $1,057,126 , 16%


Electric Cash - June 2022 


Unrestricted (3.9 months sales) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Designated


$340,710 , 40%


$152,236 , 18%


$25,000 , 3%
$4 , 0%


$326,397 , 39%


Water Cash - June 2022


Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation Construction Designated


934,545 , 34%


1,166,871 , 43%


481,955 , 18%


33,283 , 1% 119,303 , 4%


Wastewater Cash - June 2022


Unrestricted (5.6 months sales) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Depreciation
Designated







 
Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 382,771$            328,932$            


Average Utility Plant in Service 30,846,651         17,284,376         
Average Accumulated Depreciation (15,661,562)        (5,996,365)          
Average Materials and Supplies 456,021              49,041                
Average Regulatory Liability (55,404)               (85,574)               
Average Customer Advances (339,572)             (2,500)                 


Average Net Rate Base 15,246,134$       11,248,977$       


June 2022 Rate of Return 2.51% 2.92%


June 2021 Rate of Return 2.35% 1.97%


December 2021 Rate of Return 6.17% 4.61%


Authorized Rate of Return 4.90% 5.00%


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Rate of Return


Year-to-Date June 30, 2022







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2021 KwH Purchased 2021 2022 KwH Purchased 2022 Peak 2021 Peak 2022


January 11,902,372 12,568,526 12,604,215 13,090,652 21,527 22,855


February 11,678,924 11,992,637 11,111,183 11,372,253 23,755 21,873


March 10,949,430 11,170,845 11,073,665 11,342,879 19,911 19,841


April 9,775,372 9,996,551 9,878,316 10,132,838 18,026 18,585


May 10,732,336 10,936,134 11,014,588 11,338,060 25,030 30,514


June 13,723,437 14,050,284 12,332,328 12,641,974 33,728 34,081


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 68,761,871 70,714,977 68,014,295 69,918,656


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2021 Gallons Pumped 2021 2022 Gallons Pumped 2022 2021 2022


January 34,519,000 38,064,000 31,078,000 36,158,000 1,435,000 1,457,000


February 33,979,000 38,757,000 32,481,000 32,026,000 1,602,000 1,411,000


March 37,062,000 39,926,000 33,586,000 36,224,000 1,460,000 1,435,000


April 34,267,000 36,988,000 32,025,000 34,207,000 1,548,000 1,449,000


May 37,609,000 40,476,000 34,215,000 39,016,000 1,520,000 1,812,000


June 42,668,000 47,500,000 35,507,000 40,482,000 2,039,000 1,766,000


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 220,104,000 241,711,000 198,892,000 218,113,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2021 Gallons Gallons 2021 2022 Gallons Gallons 2022 2021 2022


January 23,932,000 28,478,000 24,073,000 29,328,000 1.69 .51"


February 23,214,000 26,865,000 22,180,000 26,210,000 0.90 .58"


March 25,573,000 30,877,000 24,271,000 31,729,000 0.83 3.48"


April 25,383,000 26,955,000 23,557,000 32,799,000 1.67 3.60"


May 27,372,000 26,654,000 25,867,000 34,525,000 2.97 4.25"


June 30,200,000 25,612,000 25,615,000 33,563,000 5.11 3.14"


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 155,674,000 165,441,000 145,563,000 188,154,000 13.17


2022 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater





		CA-3 Financials.pdf

		2022.06 Financial Summary

		June 2022 Financial Statements Version

		Balance Sheets

		Inc Statement Combined

		Cash & Investments

		ROR










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Approving a Planned Development - General Development Plan for Lot 6  


within 51 West Development 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval 7 - 0  
Fiscal Impact:       Increased Tax Base and Park Impact Fees 
File Number: O -17- 2022 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 
August 23, 2022 
September 13, 2022 


 
RECITALS 


 
A. David West (the “Applicant”) has requested that Lot 6 within the 51 West Development 


be rezoned to Planned Development - General Development Plan (PD-GDP) to allow 10 
duplex buildings for a total of 20 residential units.  The Applicant has submitted a General 
Development Plan (the “GDP”) for Lot 6, attached as Exhibit A. 
 


B. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory framework 
designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic design in the 
City by allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in the development 
of land while insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan.  The comparable zoning district for the land proposed 
to be zoned PD-Planned Development, used for establishing base-line zoning requirements 
and identifying needed flexibility is TR-6 Two-Family Residential. 
 


C. On August 8, 2022, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing regarding 
Applicant’s proposed Planned Development zoning and the GDP.  The public hearing was 
preceded by the publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.  
 


D. The Plan Commission found that the proposed Planned Development zoning is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the proposed 
rezoning and the GDP, subject to certain conditions.   
 


E. The Common Council has considered the Plan Commission’s recommendation, and finds 
that, subject to certain conditions, the proposed Planned Development zoning and General 
Development Plan are consistent with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and have 
the potential for enhancing the use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax base. 
 
 
 







2 


ORDINANCE 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 
forth in full. 


 
2. Subject to the conditions set forth in below, the General Development Plan for Lot 6 is 


approved as presented. 
 


3. Applicable park impact fees are due at the time of building permit issuance. 
 


4. It is expected that a Condominium Plat will be necessary to market the units individually. 
 


5. No part of Lot 6 may be developed until a Specific Implementation Plan (SIP) has been 
approved by the City Plan Commission. 
 


6. The following flexibilities to the otherwise applicable requirements are approved: 
 


• Multiple buildings on a single lot allowed outright; 
• Unit allowance (Density) up to 20 units (7.84 units per acre) 


 
7. Lot 6 shall be developed and used in full compliance with all standards and requirements 


in Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply to lands zoned TR-6 Two-Family Residential, 
except as flexibilities are expressly authorized in this ordinance.  Chapter 78 of the City 
Code, the General Development Plan, this Ordinance and the approved Specific 
Implementation Plan will constitute the zoning regulations for the property, and may be 
enforced as any zoning regulation in the City of Stoughton.  A copy of this Ordinance, the  
General Development Plan shall be maintained and kept on file by the City of Stoughton 
Planning Office.  
 


8. The zoning changes and approvals provided for above will not be effective until all of the 
following conditions have been satisfied: 
 
A. Applicant owns Lot 6 
 


9. Notwithstanding the delayed effectiveness of the zoning change and approvals pursuant to 
Section 2, above, the Applicant may seek approval of a Condominium Plat and Specific 
Implementation Plan at any time after the adoption of this Ordinance.  
 


10. Any General Development Plan previously approved for all or any part of Lot 6 shall be 
null and void upon the adoption of this Ordinance. 
 


11. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law.   







3 


 
 
 


 
Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\51 West Lot 6 GDP Ordinance.docx 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\080822\Plan Info\Lot 6 GDP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the August 8, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and Common 


Council Meetings of August 23 and September 13, 2022  
 
Request to rezone the property at 51 West Development, Lot 6 to Planned Development – 
General Development Plan (GDP)  
The applicant is seeking to create a new General Development Plan (GDP) for this lot.  The original 
approved GDP for this lot allowed four 4-unit buildings and a total of 16 units which would have 
followed the MR-10 - Multi-Family Residential zoning district requirements.  The new proposal is 
for 10 duplex buildings and a total of 20 residential units which will follow the TR-6 - Two Family 
Residential zoning requirements.  The applicant proposes to also create a condominium plat for this 
property. 
 
Stoughton Fire Department staff requested the site have 2 access points and the applicant provided 
the second access along Oak Opening Drive. 
 
The flexibility proposed is for the higher density at 7.82 units per acre and for multiple structures on 
a lot allowed outright. 
 
The ordinance, staff review and associated documents are provided.  A public hearing and 
recommendation to Council is necessary. 
 
 
  
 
   
 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, August 8, 2022, 
at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard to consider an application by 
David West to amend the General Development Plan of Lot 6, in the 51 West Neighborhood, 
City of Stoughton, WI. 
 
Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  (Virtual 


and In-Person) 


In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 
    321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 
 
Virtual:   You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81935560582?pwd=VFFwVWR2QWdZelhGb2VpUER4M2hXZz09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 819 3556 0582  Passcode: 246042 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421.   
 
Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
 
Published July 21 and July 28, 2022 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning GDP -  51 West Lot 6 Notice.doc 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81935560582?pwd=VFFwVWR2QWdZelhGb2VpUER4M2hXZz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022 Page 1 of 25 


General Development Plan 


Lot 6 at 51 West 
Stoughton, W.I. 


EXHIBIT   A







9 94 94 94
458 9249 18


51 WEST SUBDIVISION
CITY OF STOUGHTON, WI


Units SF Acres Provided Difference
West Side* 187 274516 6.30 6.33 0.03
East Side 170 249560 5.74 5.76 0.02
TOTAL 357 524,076 12.04 12.09 0.05


* Inclusive of trail area in Lot 2,Outlot 2, Outlot 4


Parland Required ProposedDevelopment


March 4, 2021


PAVED PATH
connect through 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect to 


Linnerud Property


PAVED PATH
connect through to 
Virgin Lake Park


PAVED PATH


PAVED  PATH


PA
V


E
D


 P
A


T
H


9 9999999999999999999999999999 944
8 4466 4444


9020


9288


922


918
9166


2244


922
2


930


90455 999999999999922226
999222
66666666


92266


99224


9222


992
0


88


Pr
innnnt
eeeddd


BBByy


Unin ts SF AcF resresres ProProProvidvv ed Ded Ded iffi ereereerencenn
West Side** 187 277745454 16 66.6 30 6.6 333333 0.0.0 030303
EaEaaststst SiSS dee 170 2249560 5.774 54 54 5.76 000.00022
TOTTOTAL 3L 357575 524,076 1112.2.2 04044 11212.009 099 .00555


* InInInclclclusive of trail ararareaeaea inn Looottt 2,Outlot 2, Outlotot 44


Parlrlana dd Requirrredede PrPP oposoo edeeDevelopmenentt


50-FT PUBLIC 
ACCESS EASEMENT


9999999999999444444444440000000000000
936


9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999992222222224444444


999999999916666666666
99999999999999999914444444444
9999999999999999991122222222222222222
99999999900000888888


90000000000000000000000000000000000


942


992288


9999999999999922222222222266666666666666
991188


9999999900000044
99999999999999999999999999999999900000000000000000000000000000000000002222222222222222222222


888888888899999999999998888888888888888


9930
999999999999999222222222222000000000000000000000000000000009911


00


99999999999933333333333334


92222


938
9329999999999999999996222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222


999999966666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000
99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555888888888888888888888
9999999999999999999999999999999999999999995566666666666666666666666666666666
99555555555555555555555555555554
999999999999999999999999999999999995552222222222222
9999955555555550
99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999994888888
99999999994466666666666666666
94444444444444444
999999999999944444444444222
9999444444400
999999999993888888888888888888
999999999999999933333336666666666
9333333444444444444444
9322222222
99999993333333333333333333333300000000000000000000000000000000000000
9999999999999999922222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222228888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888


999999999999999999999992222222222666666666666666666666666666666666666666666


999999999999999222222222 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222
0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999111
888888888 999999999111111111
66666666 99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999991111
44444444444444444444 99999999111111111111
22222222


99900000000000000000000000088888


99999999992222222222444444444444


9911111111111111111111100000000000000000000000000


95566


9999999999999999999999994444444444444444444444444444442222222222222222222222222222222


90


9900


8988


8890


889
6


899
2


95699522222


999444888994466


924


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999966666666666666666666666666666666666666666
999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999666666666666666666666666662222222222222222222222222222222222222


9999999999999444444444444444444444000000000000000000000000999999999999999999999999999999999999993333333333333333333333333333333333888888888888888


99999666666666666699966666666666644444444444444444444444444444444444444444


999444444444444444444444
93


936666666666699999999999933333333322 9999990000000000000000000000
66666666666666666666666666666


999000000000000000000000000000000000000000000
44444444444444444444444


9999922


95555555555555550


99999999999999999999990000
66666666


995500


99999999999999999999900000000000000000000000000000000666666666666666666666666666666


9934


99332


99228


999995550


99999995555550000000000


99996644


99333333333333333333333333333333333366666666666666


992200


88888


9999993333334444444444


999999999333333333333333333333
22222222222222222222222222


999999999999999999333333333333333333333333333222222222222


993300


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999992222222222222222222222222222222222666


9999999999999999999999922222222222222222222224444444444444444444444444444444


920


999999999999999900000000004444444444


999999996666662222


999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999996666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666644444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444


99999999666000


995544


994488


944
2


9944444000000000


999999992222222222
8888888888


9244


99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222224444444444444


922222222222222222
0


904


904


89666666666666


99999966662222


999900000000000666666666666666666666666


yyy:::
ssstttrr
eeeemmm


lleett
ttt,,
Fil
e:
\\\\mm


ssaa
--ppp
s.c
om


\fs
\\P
ro
joee
cts


\1
99000
000000
ssssss\\\111


999000
99000
ss\\\111
8899888808899


9999911 66
\ 6
19
000999
1
011111111111111111111
\\\\\\\G
ISSSSSSSS\\\\\
1199
0099
100
001111111
_CC
ooooonnnnnnn
cccccccceee
ppptt
.mm
xxddd


Pr
intttttttttttt


PPPAVED PATHHH
conco nect through 


Linininnernn ud Property


PAVPAAVED EE PATTTTHHH
cconocono nect to 


Lininnernene udu ProProP pere ty


PAVPAVPAVEDEE PATPATPATTH
conconnececneccnect ttt hrohrohroughughugh tototo 
VirVViVi gininin LLaL ke Pararkkk


PAV DD TPATATPAVEDDD PATPATPATHHH


000066


999999999992222222
2222


9


PAV D D PATAV PATPAVVEDEDED PAPAPATHHH


PPA
VVV


D
 P


AA
TTT


PA
V


PA
V


PA
V


E
D


 
E


D
E


D
PA


T
HHH


50-FT PUBLIC50-FT PUBLIC 
ACCESS EASEMENTTSEME


DVORAK DRIVE


OA
K 


OP
EN


IN
G 


DR
IV


E


NYG
AARD  S


TR
EE


T


VELKOMMEN  WAY


POTENTIAL ROUNDABOUT
(Reserve Right-of-Way)


SINGLE-FAMILY LOTS (Total 9 Units)


SMALL MULTI-FAMILY LOTS (56 units)


LARGE MULTI-FAMILY LOTS (292 units)


COMMERCIAL LOTS


PA
LM


  G
RA


SS
  W


AY


US
H 


 51


RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE ROAD


POTENTIAL ROUNDABOUT
(Reserve Right-of-Way)


FUTURE ROAD EXTENSION
(100-FT Right-of-Way)


DISCLAIMER: 
This neighborhood concept illustrates a proposed road layout, storm water management infrastructure, and lot layout with speculative development.  The number of lots and design 
for specifi c sites are generalized based on what fi ts the location and intended use for the area.  Development plans will be proposed by property owners at a future date based on 
market conditions and interests, and will be subject to City review (per zoning and subdivision ordinance) with this concept providing guidance to general connectivity and use.


BLUE GRASS  DRIVE


NY
GA


AR
D 


 S
TR


EE
T


Hi
gh


wa
y 5


0-
ft S


etb
ac


k
Hi


gh
wa


y 5
0-


ft S
etb


ac
k


Hi
gh


wa
y 5


0-
ft S


etb
ac


k



jshapiro

Polygon



jshapiro

Text Box

6PROPOSED DUPLEX PROJECT



jshapiro

Text Box

1 of 5







MR-24


TR-6


PLANNED BUSINESS


PLANNED BUSINESS


PARKS & OPEN SPACE


MR-24



jshapiro

Text Box

SINGLE FAMILY



jshapiro

Text Box

2 of 5







12
34


56
78910


1211
1413


1615


1817
2019


STOP
SIGN


STOP SIGN


ENTRANCE
SIGN


ENTRANCE
SIGN


CLUSTER
MAILBOX


3


Sheet Number:


51
 W


ES
T


 - 
LO


T
 6


DRAWN BY:


FN:  22-03-101


3 of 5


DATE:
REVISED:


CI
T


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
, D


AN
E 


CO
U


N
T


Y,
 W


IS
CO


N
SI


N


02-18-22


DWS


SCALE: 1"= 40'
(PAGE SIZE: 11x17)


SI
T


E 
PL


AN


0 20


File: U:\User\2203101\Drawings\2203101 Site 2022.07.08.dwg  Site Plan   Plotted: Jul 07, 2022 - 7:19pm


04-25-22
07-08-22



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILD GOOSE WAY ---- ----- ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S03°37'10"E 77.70' R=833.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S89°13'11"W 87.89' R=564.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

OAK OPENING DRIVE --- ------- -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO







12
34


56
78910


1211
1413


1615


1817
2019


SANITARY AND WATER
LATERALS (TYP)


8" SANITARY SEWER


6" WATER MAIN


HYDRANT


VALVE (TYP)


CONNECT TO
DROP MANHOLE


CONNECT TO EXISTING
6" WATER STUB


CONNECT TO EXISTING
24" STORM STUB


Sheet Number:


51
 W


ES
T


 - 
LO


T
 6


DRAWN BY:


FN:  22-03-101


4 of 5


DATE:
REVISED:


CI
T


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
, D


AN
E 


CO
U


N
T


Y,
 W


IS
CO


N
SI


N


02-18-22


DWS


SCALE: 1"= 40'
(PAGE SIZE: 11x17)


U
T


IL
IT


Y 
PL


AN


0 20


File: U:\User\2203101\Drawings\2203101 Site 2022.07.08.dwg  Utility Plan   Plotted: Jul 07, 2022 - 7:08pm


04-25-22
07-08-22



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILD GOOSE WAY ---- ----- ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S03°37'10"E 77.70' R=833.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S89°13'11"W 87.89' R=564.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

OAK OPENING DRIVE --- ------- -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO







12
34


56
78910


1211
1413


1615


1817
2019


Sheet Number:


51
 W


ES
T


 - 
LO


T
 6


DRAWN BY:


FN:  22-03-101


5 of 5


DATE:
REVISED:


CI
T


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
, D


AN
E 


CO
U


N
T


Y,
 W


IS
CO


N
SI


N


02-18-22


DWS


SCALE: 1"= 40'
(PAGE SIZE: 11x17)


LA
N


D
SC


AP
E 


PL
AN


0 20


File: U:\User\2203101\Drawings\2203101 Landscape Plan.dwg  Landscape Plan   Plotted: Jul 07, 2022 - 7:04pm


04-25-22
07-08-22



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILD GOOSE WAY ---- ----- ---



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S03°37'10"E 77.70' R=833.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S89°13'11"W 87.89' R=564.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

OAK OPENING DRIVE --- ------- -----



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO







SHEET


3


Date:


Scale:


Job #:


As Noted


05-01


04-05-2021


S
h
ee


t 
T


it
le


:
E


le
v


at
io


n
s


C I A


o
n


ce
p


ts


n rc
h


it
ec


tu
re


, 
L


L
C


Je
ff


er
y
 G


ro
en


ie
r,


 A
rc


h
it


ec
t


W
1
2
5
 A


m
id


o
n
 R


o
ad


B
ro


o
k
ly


n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
2
1


6
0
8
-6


9
8
-3


1
9
6
  


ci
al


lc
@


h
o
tm


ai
l.


co
m


T
h


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
co


n
ta


in
s 


co
n
fi


d
en


ti
al


 o
r 


p
ro


p
ri


et
ar


y
in


fo
rm


at
io


n
 o


f 
C


o
n
ce


p
ts


 i
n


 A
rc


h
it


ec
tu


re
, 


L
L


C
. 


  
N


ei
th


er
th


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
n


o
r 


th
e 


in
fo


rm
at


io
n


 h
er


in
 i


s 
to


 b
e 


re
p


ro
d


u
ce


d
,


d
is


tr
ib


u
te


d
, 


u
se


d
, 


o
r 


d
is


cl
o


se
d


 w
it


h
o


u
t 


au
th


o
ri


za
ti


o
n


.


P
ro


p
o
se


d
 f


o
r:


C
L


E
 C


o
n


su
lt


in
g


 L
L


C


A
d
d
re


ss
:


8
1
5
5
 F


o
rs


y
th


ia
 S


tr
ee


t 
S


u
it


e 
1
7
0


D
aw


n
 M


ci
n


to
sh


M
id


d
le


to
n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
6
2


6
0
8
-5


1
5
-3


5
4
8


P
ro


p
o
se


d
 f


o
r:


C
&


J 
R


ea
l 


E
st


at
e 


L
L


C
P


ro
je


ct
:


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
, 


W
I


Front Elevation
Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


Rear Elevation
Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


2
6


'-
0


"


Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


Right Elevation
Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


12


12


12


4


12


4


Left Elevation
Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


Triple 3 vinyl siding


Double 4 vinyl siding


4" White vinyl corners


8" White aluminum facia


Color - Granite Grey


Color - Snow


Architectural shingles


12


12


12


4


12


4







SHEET


1


Date:


Scale:


Job #:


As Noted


05-01


04-05-2022


P
ro


p
o
se


d
 f


o
r:


S
h
ee


t 
T


it
le


:


C
&


J 
R


ea
l 


E
st


at
e 


L
L


C


F
lo


o
r 


P
la


n
s


P
ro


je
ct


:
D


u
p
le


x
, 


F
it


ch
b
u
rg


e,
 W


I


C I A


o
n


ce
p


ts


n rc
h


it
ec


tu
re


, 
L


L
C


Je
ff


er
y
 G


ro
en


ie
r,


 A
rc


h
it


ec
t


W
1
2
5
 A


m
id


o
n
 R


o
ad


B
ro


o
k
ly


n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
2
1


6
0
8
-6


9
8
-3


1
9
6
  


ci
al


lc
@


h
o
tm


ai
l.


co
m


T
h


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
co


n
ta


in
s 


co
n
fi


d
en


ti
al


 o
r 


p
ro


p
ri


et
ar


y
in


fo
rm


at
io


n
 o


f 
C


o
n
ce


p
ts


 i
n


 A
rc


h
it


ec
tu


re
, 


L
L


C
. 


  
N


ei
th


er
th


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
n


o
r 


th
e 


in
fo


rm
at


io
n


 h
er


in
 i


s 
to


 b
e 


re
p


ro
d


u
ce


d
,


d
is


tr
ib


u
te


d
, 


u
se


d
, 


o
r 


d
is


cl
o


se
d


 w
it


h
o


u
t 


au
th


o
ri


za
ti


o
n


.


C
o
n
tr


ac
to


r:
C


L
E


 C
o


n
su


lt
in


g
 L


L
C


A
d
d
re


ss
:


8
1
5
5
 F


o
rs


y
th


ia
 S


tr
ee


t 
S


u
it


e 
1
7
0


D
aw


n
 M


ci
n


to
sh


M
id


d
le


to
n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
6
2


6
0
8
-5


1
5
-3


5
4
8


Foundation Plan - 446 sf
Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


2'-10" 16'-4" 2'-10"


22'-0"


2
3
'-


0
"


14'-0" 8'-0"


9'-8"


6
'-


0
"


1
6
'-


5
"


1
5
'-


7
"


3
2
'-


0
"


3'-4"


3
'-


6
 1


/4
"


3" Concrete floor
with fiber mesh


on 4 mil Vapor Barrier


Family Room


Garage


4" Concrete floor
with fiber mesh


on 4 mil Vapor Barrier


Frame out with
2x4's at 16" o/c
with R-13 FG insul
and vapor barrier


Bath


6'-2"3'-6"


Drop 12" for O.H. Doors


S
lo


p
e 


4
"


9
'-


0
"


Furn


WH


WS


sump


HVAC soffit


WM


Bedroom


HB


36


3
'-


4
"


40'-0"


1
1
 7


/8
" 


T
JI


'S


1
1
 7


/8
" 


T
JI


'S


12'-0"


2'-10"16'-4"2'-10"


22'-0"


2
3
'-


0
"


14'-0"8'-0"


9'-8"


6
'-


0
"


1
6
'-


5
"


1
5
'-


7
"


3
2
'-


0
"


3'-4"


3
'-


6
 1


/4
"


3" Concrete floor
with fiber mesh


on 4 mil Vapor Barrier


Family Room


Garage


4" Concrete floor
with fiber mesh


on 4 mil Vapor Barrier


Frame out with
2x4's at 16" o/c


with R-13 FG insul
and vapor barrier


Bath


6'-2" 3'-6"


Drop 12" for O.H. Doors


S
lo


p
e 


4
"


9
'-


0
"


Furn


WH


WS


sump


HVAC soffit


WM


Bedroom


HB


36


3
'-


4
"


1
1
 7


/8
" 


T
JI


'S


1
1
 7


/8
" 


T
JI


'S


12'-0"


20'-8"


10'-0"10'-0"


4
'-


0
 1


/4
"


3
'-


4
"


2'8


7
'-


2
 1


/2
"


7
'-


2
 1


/2
"


2'8


2'8


2
'8


2'8


3
'-


0
"


2x6 wall
2x6 wall


AC


Window well


5
'0


x
4
'0


 s
li


d
er


AC


Window well


5
'0


x
4
'0


 s
li


d
er


Window well


5
'0


x
4
'0


 s
li


d
er


Window well


5
'0


x
4
'0


 s
li


d
er


8
'-


0
"


8
'-


0
"


Living Room


Dining Room


Garage


Covered Porch


3
2
'-


0
"


9
'-


0
"


2
3
'-


0
"


21'-11 1/2"


1
6
'-


5
"


1
5
'-


7
"


9'-8"


6
'-


0
"


1
'-


3
"


4
'-


7
"


1
1
'-


0
"


8
'-


0
"


1
0
'-


6
"


1
2
'-


6
"


Gas Fireplace


Up


Concrete Patio


11'-0"11'-0"


3'-10"6'-6"


6
'-


0
"


10'-4"


1'-6" 3'-5" 3'-5" 1'-4"


1
'-


0
"


Ref


1
'-


1
0
"


30


Frame to ceiling


Full glass with
internal shades


5'-3"


Dn


16" High bench


3'-6"


Kitchen


LS


1
5


2
4


13'-1/2"


2
4 DW3
'-


6
"


30 30


5
'-


6
 1


/2
"


3'-4"


3
'-


8
 3


/4
"


3'-4"5'-0"


4
'-


3
/4


"


First Floor Plan - 698 sf
Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


Living Room


Dining Room


Garage


Covered Porch


3
2
'-


0
"


9
'-


0
"


2
3
'-


0
"


21'-11 1/2"


7'-11 1/2"


1
6
'-


5
"


1
5
'-


7
"


9'-8"


6
'-


0
"


7
0
'-


0
"


1
'-


3
"


4
'-


7
"


1
1
'-


0
"


8
'-


0
"


1
0
'-


6
"


1
2
'-


6
"


Gas Fireplace


1
5
'-


2
"


Up


Concrete Patio


11'-0" 11'-0"


3'-10" 6'-6"


6
'-


0
"


10'-4"


1'-6"3'-5"3'-5"1'-4"


1
'-


0
"


Ref


1
'-


1
0
"


30


Frame to ceiling


D
ry


Full glass with
internal shades


5'-6"


Dn


16" High bench


3'-3"


Kitchen


LS


1
5


2
4


13'-1/2"


2
4DW


18


3
'-


6
"


3030


5
'-


6
 1


/2
"


3'-4"


3
'-


8
 3


/4
"


3'-4" 5'-0"


4
'-


3
/4


"


6
4
'-


0
"


20'-0"20'-0"


40'-0"


18


44'-0"


5
'0


x
1
'8


5'0x4'8


3
'0


3'0


2
'8


2'8


2'8


2'0


4'0x3'4


3
'0


W
as


h


2
'-


8
"


4
'-


0
"


2
'-


4
"


5'-0"7'-0"


5'-0"9'-0"


2
'-


8
"


6
'-


4
"


7'-11 1/2"


3
'0


W
as


h
D


ry


SHEET


1


Date:


Scale:


Job #:


As Noted


05-01


03-22-2022


P
ro


p
o
se


d
 f


o
r:


S
h
ee


t 
T


it
le


:


C
&


J 
R


ea
l 


E
st


at
e 


L
L


C


F
lo


o
r 


P
la


n
s


P
ro


je
ct


:
S


to
u
g
h
to


n
 _


W
I


C I A


o
n


ce
p


ts


n rc
h


it
ec


tu
re


, 
L


L
C


Je
ff


er
y
 G


ro
en


ie
r,


 A
rc


h
it


ec
t


W
1
2
5
 A


m
id


o
n
 R


o
ad


B
ro


o
k
ly


n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
2
1


6
0
8
-6


9
8
-3


1
9
6
  


ci
al


lc
@


h
o
tm


ai
l.


co
m


T
h


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
co


n
ta


in
s 


co
n
fi


d
en


ti
al


 o
r 


p
ro


p
ri


et
ar


y
in


fo
rm


at
io


n
 o


f 
C


o
n
ce


p
ts


 i
n


 A
rc


h
it


ec
tu


re
, 


L
L


C
. 


  
N


ei
th


er
th


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
n


o
r 


th
e 


in
fo


rm
at


io
n


 h
er


in
 i


s 
to


 b
e 


re
p


ro
d


u
ce


d
,


d
is


tr
ib


u
te


d
, 


u
se


d
, 


o
r 


d
is


cl
o


se
d


 w
it


h
o


u
t 


au
th


o
ri


za
ti


o
n


.


C
o
n
tr


ac
to


r:
C


L
E


 C
o


n
su


lt
in


g
 L


L
C


A
d
d
re


ss
:


8
1
5
5
 F


o
rs


y
th


ia
 S


tr
ee


t 
S


u
it


e 
1
7
0


D
aw


n
 M


ci
n


to
sh


M
id


d
le


to
n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
6
2


6
0
8
-5


1
5
-3


5
4
8


16'0x7'0 OH door16'0x7'0 OH door


(2
)2


'6
x
3
'4


(2
)2


'6
x
3
'4


1
'-


1
"


Half wall


Window well


Window well


4'0x3'4


7'-0"5'-0"2'-0" 2'-0"


2
'6


x
3
'4


T
em


p
er


ed


T
em


p
er


ed
2
'6


x
3
'4


2
 s


h
el


v
es


1
 p


o
le


2
 s


h
el


v
es


1
 p


o
le


2'8


stepstep


stepstep


9'x14'9'x14'


5 shelves
@ 16" o/c


5 shelves
@ 16" o/c


2
'-


2
"


2
'-


2
"


2
'-


8
"


2
'-


8
"


2x6 wall2x6 wall


2
 s


h
el


v
es


1
 p


o
le


2
 s


h
el


v
es


1
 p


o
le


step step


stepstep







SHEET


2


Date:


Scale:


Job #:


As Noted


05-01


04-05-2022


S
h
ee


t 
T


it
le


:
F


lo
o


r 
P


la
n


s


C I A


o
n


ce
p


ts


n rc
h


it
ec


tu
re


, 
L


L
C


Je
ff


er
y
 G


ro
en


ie
r,


 A
rc


h
it


ec
t


W
1
2
5
 A


m
id


o
n
 R


o
ad


B
ro


o
k
ly


n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
2
1


6
0
8
-6


9
8
-3


1
9
6
  


ci
al


lc
@


h
o
tm


ai
l.


co
m


T
h


is
 d


o
cu


m
en


t 
co


n
ta


in
s 


co
n


fi
d


en
ti


al
 o


r 
p
ro


p
ri


et
ar


y
in


fo
rm


at
io


n
 o


f 
C


o
n


ce
p


ts
 i


n
 A


rc
h


it
ec


tu
re


, 
L


L
C


. 
  


N
ei


th
er


th
is


 d
o


cu
m


en
t 


n
o
r 


th
e 


in
fo


rm
at


io
n


 h
er


in
 i


s 
to


 b
e 


re
p


ro
d


u
ce


d
,


d
is


tr
ib


u
te


d
, 


u
se


d
, 


o
r 


d
is


cl
o


se
d


 w
it


h
o


u
t 


au
th


o
ri


za
ti


o
n


.


P
ro


p
o
se


d
 f


o
r:


C
L


E
 C


o
n


su
lt


in
g


 L
L


C


A
d
d
re


ss
:


8
1
5
5
 F


o
rs


y
th


ia
 S


tr
ee


t 
S


u
it


e 
1
7
0


D
aw


n
 M


ci
n


to
sh


M
id


d
le


to
n
, 


W
I 


5
3
5
6
2


6
0
8
-5


1
5
-3


5
4
8


P
ro


p
o
se


d
 f


o
r:


C
&


J 
R


ea
l 


E
st


at
e 


L
L


C
P


ro
je


ct
:


Second Floor Plan - 646 sf 
Scale = 1/4"=1'-0"


Bedroom #2


3
2
'-


0
"


1
0
'-


0
"


Bedroom #1


20'-0"


Dn


3
'-


4
"


3
'-


1
"


10'-2 1/2"


4'-0"


1
1
'-


8
 1


/2
"


1
3
'-


8
 1


/2
"


5
'-


1
"


3'-6"


6'-1/2"


13'-10"


5'-1"


5'-1"


2
'-


2
"


5
'-


4
 1


/2
"


2
'-


3
 1


/2
"


1
2
'-


2
"


9
'-


5
 3


/4
"


7
'-


6
"


4
2


4
2


40'-0"


6'-0" 8'-3 1/2" 1'-8 1/2" 4'-0"


6'-0"5'-10"3'-5"3'-5"1'-4"


40'-0"


Bedroom #2


3
2
'-


0
"


1
0
'-


0
"


Bedroom #1


20'-0"


Dn


3
'-


4
"


3
'-


1
"


10'-2 1/2"


4'-0"
1
1
'-


8
 1


/2
"


1
3
'-


8
 1


/2
"


5
'-


1
"


3'-6"


6'-1/2"


13'-10"


5'-1"


5'-1"


2
'-


2
"


5
'-


4
 1


/2
"


2
'-


3
 1


/2
"


1
2
'-


2
"


9
'-


5
 3


/4
"


7
'-


6
"


4
2


4
2


6'-0"8'-3 1/2"1'-8 1/2"4'-0"


6'-0" 5'-10" 3'-5" 3'-5" 1'-4"


2'6


2'6


2
'8


2'8


2
'6


2'62'6x4'0


5'0x4'8


5'0x4'8


2
'6


x
4
'0


2
'6


x
4
'0


S
to


u
g
h
to


n
, 


W
I


3 Tab shingles on
15# BUILDING FELT ON 7/16"
OSB WITH CLIPS


5/8" GYPSUM BOARD


2x8 Aluminun facia


24" ALUMINUM SOFFIT


1/2" GYPSUM BOARD


3/4" T/G OSB


R-19 FIBER GLASS INSULATION


18" TRUSSES


2x6's @ 16" O/C


Vinyl Siding


4 MIL VAPOR BARRIER


See Foundation Plan


2x6 TREATED SILL PLATE


FIRST FLOOR


SECOND FLOOR


4


12


SOFFIT VENT


R-48 FIBER GLASS INSULATION


WOOD TRUSSES @ 2'-0" O/C


(9'-0" Ceiling Height)


5/8" Type "X"


Simpson H2.5A strong tie


over 6 mil. vapor barrior


(8'-0" Ceiling Height)


7'9 Concrete wall
See Foundation Plan for details


1/2" Anchor bolts @ 48" o/c


3"  Concrete floor on
6 mil vapor barrior on
compacted sand fill


Basement


Draintile with washed rock


Exterior water poofing


7/16" OSB with
Exterior vapor barrier


18" TRUSSES


3/4" T/G OSB


and bleaders


6'0 of Ice/water shield


Typical Section


Scale = 3/8"=1'-0"


3


Designed by others


2x4 stud wall with
R-13 FG insulation
and vapor barrier


One Hour wall U356


1" Rigid insulation
2'6x4'0


2'6x4'0 2'6x4'0


12" Tray 12" Tray


2 shelves


2 poles


2
 s


h
el


v
es


 1
 p


o
le


2
 s


h
el


v
es


2
 p


o
le


s


2
 s


h
el


v
es


2
 p


o
le


s


2 shelves


2 poles


2
 s


h
el


v
es


 1
 p


o
le


2 shelves 1 pole 2 shelves 1 pole







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022 Page 5 of 25 


2 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Location Map 







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022 Page 6 of 25 


3 Vicinity Map 







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022 Page 2 of 25 


51 West – Lot 6 


Current Owner : 


RHD Properties LLC, Fifty One West LLC 
Contact : Bob Dvorak 


Planned Development Project Team 


Future Owner 1: 


Contact : David West 
310-997-7504
davidrowlandwest@gmail.com


Project Civil Engineering: 


D’Onofrio Kottke and Associates Inc., 
Contact : Ron Klaas 


Consultant: 


CK Consulting LLC 
Contact : Chuck Elliott 


1 David West has a Signed Offer to Purchase for Lot 6 with Fifty One West, LLC. 



mailto:davidrowlandwest@gmail.com





51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 3 of 25 
 


Contents 


 
1 Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... 4 


2 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Location Map ............................................................................................. 5 


3 Vicinity Map ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 


4 Planned Development Written Description ................................................................................................. 8 


4.1 General Relationship to the 2017 Comprehensive Plan ...................................................................... 8 


4.2 Relationship to nearby properties and public streets ......................................................................... 8 


4.3 Planned Development Proposal ............................................................................................................ 9 


4.4 Project Timing and Phasing.................................................................................................................. 10 


4.5 Planned Development Rationale and Exemptions ............................................................................ 11 


4.6 Neighborhood Character/Theme ........................................................................................................ 12 


4.7 Stormwater Management .................................................................................................................... 12 


4.8 Park/Open Space .................................................................................................................................. 13 


4.9 Utilities ................................................................................................................................................... 13 


4.10 Transportation ...................................................................................................................................... 14 


4.10.1 Streets ............................................................................................................................................. 14 


4.10.2 Pedestrian Connections ................................................................................................................ 14 


4.11 Management and Maintenance .......................................................................................................... 14 


5 Development Standards .............................................................................................................................. 15 


5.1 Land Use, Density, Bulk Requirements ............................................................................................... 15 


5.1.1 Density and Intensity Requirements ............................................................................................ 15 


5.2 Specific Flexibilities ............................................................................................................................... 15 


5.3 Residential Design Guidelines ............................................................................................................. 17 


5.3.1 Building Design .............................................................................................................................. 18 


5.3.2 Building Materials .......................................................................................................................... 18 


5.3.3 Doors and Windows ...................................................................................................................... 18 


5.3.4 Service Areas and Mechanicals .................................................................................................... 18 


5.3.5 Landscaping and Site Treatment ................................................................................................. 19 


5.3.6 Decorative Fencing/Walls .............................................................................................................. 19 







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 4 of 25 
 


6 Site Design Plan ............................................................................................................................................ 19 


7 Conceptual Landscaping / Site Design Plan ............................................................................................... 19 


8 Conceptual Signage Plan ............................................................................................................................. 19 


9 Building Types and Themes ........................................................................................................................ 20 


9.1 Land Use Development Areas ............................................................................................................. 20 


10 Elevations .................................................................................................................................................. 22 


11 First Floor Plan and Foundation Plan ...................................................................................................... 23 


12 Second Floor Plan and Typical Section ................................................................................................... 24 


13 Appendices ................................................................................................................................................ 25 


 


 
1 Introduction 
 


This document details the General Development Plan for Lot 6 in the 51 West subdivision in Stoughton, 
W.I.   


Parcel Number 281/0510-011-8165-2 
Access Dane records https://accessdane.countyofdane.com/051001181652 


 


 



https://accessdane.countyofdane.com/051001181652





51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 7 of 25 
 


 
Parcels in the Vicinity of Lot 6 :- 


Parcel Number Legal Description Parcel Owner 
051001188102 51 WEST LOT 1 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001182002 51 WEST OUTLOT 1 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001181212 51 WEST LOT 2 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001181542 51 WEST LOT 5 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001189652 51 WEST OUTLOT 3 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 
051001188432 51 WEST LOT 4 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001181762 51 WEST LOT 17 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001181702 51 WEST LOT 16 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001182542 51 WEST OUTLOT 5 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 
051001199800 LOT 1 CSM 11949 CS73/224&226-10/20/2006 F/K/A F/K/A 


LOTS 1 & 2 CSM 9683 CS56/21&23-5/8/2000 & F/K/A LOT 1 
CSM 7040 CS35/215&217-3/16/93 & F/K/A LOTS 1 & 2 CSM 
5906 CS28/75&76-8/4/89 & F/K/A LOTS 5 & 6 DEER POINT 
BUSINESS PARK DESCR AS SEC 1-5-10 PRT SE1/4NE1/4 EXC 
TO WI DOT FOR RD R/W IN DOC #5563489 


GERBER INVESTMENTS LLC 


051001182432 51 WEST OUTLOT 4 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 
051001181602 51 WEST LOT 15 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001189432 51 WEST LOT 14 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001189322 51 WEST LOT 13 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001189212 51 WEST LOT 12 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001189102 51 WEST LOT 11 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001189002 51 WEST LOT 10 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001188982 51 WEST LOT 9 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001188872 51 WEST LOT 8 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001188762 51 WEST LOT 7 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001188322 51 WEST LOT 3 RHD PROPERTIES LLC 
051001189542 51 WEST OUTLOT 2 STOUGHTON, CITY OF 
051001195410 LOT 4 CSM 9683 CS56/21&23-5/8/2000 F/K/A LOT 1 CSM 


5906 CS28/75&76-8/4/89 & ALSO F/K/A LOT 2 CSM 7040 
CS35/215&217-3/16/93 F/K/A PRT LOT 2 CSM 5906 
CS28/75&76-8/4/89 DESCR AS SEC 1-5-10 PRT SW1/4NE1/4 
& SE1/4NE1/4 (6.151 ACRES) 


CURRENT OWNER2 


051001195310 LOT 3 CSM 9683 CS56/21&23-5/8/2000 F/K/A LOT 1 CSM 
5906 CS28/75&76-8/4/89 & ALSO F/K/A PRT LOT 2 CSM 
7040 CS35/215&217-3/16/93 F/K/A PRT LOT 2 CSM 5906 
CS28/75&76-8/4/89 DESCR AS SEC 1-5-10 PRT SW1/4NE1/4 
& SE1/4NE1/4 (1.387 ACRES) 


BERNDT REV LIVING TR, 
TIMOTHY J & SANDRA L 


  


 
2 An entry of "Current Owner" signifies that Owner name is not published online for this parcel 







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 8 of 25 
 


4 Planned Development Written Description 
 


4.1 General Relationship to the 2017 Comprehensive Plan 


The new 51 West subdivision is in an area designated as the Northwest Planned Mixed Use (MU) area in 
the 2017 Comprehensive Plan.  This area is intended for a mix of commercial, office, light industrial and 
high intensity multi-family residential uses. 


Planned MU is intended for residential buildings of three or more units; however, additional statements 
in the policy allow for more flexibility, as follows: 


• “The City should carefully monitor the development of multi-family housing within Planned Mixed Use areas in 
order to support the City’s goal of maintaining its predominately single-family character.” 


• “The Planned Mixed-Use category is intended to allow consideration of a range of uses and zoning districts, with 
the understanding that the appropriate combination and arrangement of uses and zoning districts will be 
approved on a case-by-case basis.” 


Lot 6 was originally approved as permitted and conditional uses as identified in MR-10 zoning district 
with a Unit Allowance Density of up to 16 units based on four x four-unit buildings.  
 


4.2 Relationship to nearby properties and public streets 


The general development concept site plan for 51 West depicts a mixed-use neighborhood with 
commercial along USH 51 frontage (west side) and a mix of residential unit types on both sides of USH 
51.     


On the 51 West side, City of Stoughton has approved the following:- 


• Lots 1-3 
o Permitted and conditional uses as identified in TR-6 zoning district - plus, Townhouse (78-206.5) up to 4 


units per building. 
 Unit Allowance (Density):  Lot 1: up to 12 units, Lot 2: up to 12 units and Lot 3: up to 6 units 


• Lot 4 
o Permitted and conditional uses as identified in MR-24 zoning district 
o Unit Allowance (Density): up to 36 units 


• Lot 5 
o Permitted and conditional uses as identified in MR-24 zoning district. 
o Unit Allowance (Density): up to 96 units 


• Lot 6 
o Permitted and conditional uses as identified in MR-10 zoning district. 
o Unit Allowance (Density): up to 16 units 


Lot 6 is on the northwest corner of the intersection of Wild Goose Way and Oak Opening Drive. 


 







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 9 of 25 
 


 


4.3 Planned Development Proposal 


We propose to build 10 duplex buildings for a total of 20 units.  The duplex development will be managed 
by a Condominium Home Association.   


We propose to record a Condominium Plat creating 20 individual building units – Lot 6 will remain as one 
lot. 


Each unit will be 2 story with 1,344 sq feet of living space (excluding the basement), 2 bedrooms / 2 ½  
bathrooms and will feature high quality finishes, a two-car garage, off street parking, covered porches 
and patios. There will be an option to finish the lower level to add an additional bedroom, bathroom, and 
family room. 


Units will be owner occupied – the renting of units would only be allowed in periods of owner financial 
hardship and after approval from the Home Association. 


Lot 6 will continue to act as a “buffer” between the high density 96-unit multi-family development 
proposed for Lot 5 and the single-family home Lots 7 through 15. 


This proposal will essentially create a new PD-GDP zoning for the Lot 6 parcel. The standard zoning 
district for this type of development is TR-6 – Two Family residential. 


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 10 of 25 
 


 


4.4 Project Timing and Phasing 


The first phase of the 51 West project is to develop the east side of USH 51 with utility infrastructure 
extensions, road construction, mass grading and pond development.    


Lot 6 would be developed in tandem or slightly behind the 51 West Phase-2 construction, with careful 
coordination for utility connections to minimize re-work and cost. 


 


We anticipate that Lot 6 development will begin construction during the spring of 2023.  


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 11 of 25 
 


 


4.5 Planned Development Rationale and Exemptions 


The new Planned Development classification will allow the flexibility that both the developer(s) and the 
City of Stoughton need to successfully implement the proposed density and type of building. 


Our proposal to build duplexes at a 20 unit density provides benefits to :- 


• Buyers 
o Quality of life is better in a duplex vs quadplex buildings – owners will only be sharing one 


wall with a neighbor.   
o We believe there is a higher pride of ownership in duplex buildings vs quadplex buildings.   
o Increasing the unit density reduces the land cost per-unit, making the homes more affordable 


• City of Stoughton and Dane County 
o Building duplex buildings at a 20 unit density will provide the City of Stoughton with increased 


park fees and increase property taxes 
o According to the “Overcoming the Nation’s Daunting Housing Supply Shortage” 3 report 


published in March 2021 by the Urban Institute and Moody’s Analytics, Dane County is 
“Severely undersupplied” on housing :- 


 


o Increased density will assist with the housing deficit in the City of Stoughton and Dane 
County 


• Developer 
o Building duplex buildings at a 20 unit density will provide the Developer with increased cost 


efficiencies and increased profit 


 


 
3 https://www.moodysanalytics.com/-/media/article/2021/Overcoming-the-Nations-Housing-Supply-Shortage.pdf 



https://www.moodysanalytics.com/-/media/article/2021/Overcoming-the-Nations-Housing-Supply-Shortage.pdf





51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 12 of 25 
 


 


4.6 Neighborhood Character/Theme 


Our development team will work closely with Fifty One West LLC to ensure that our proposed building 
design including exterior materials meet the architectural requirements. 


 


4.7 Stormwater Management 


The regional stormwater ponds for the 51 West Neighborhood have been de-signed with a “naturalistic” 
layout, especially through the trail corridor and park space in Outlot 6. There are six wet ponds for pre-
treatment and four infiltration ponds that will serve this development and manage off-site runoff (from 
the south and east of Outlot 7).  The stormwater management system will control peak runoff rates for 
events ranging from the 1-year through the 200-year event.  Additionally, runoff volumes will be 
controlled for the annual average rainfall record (per county and state standards) but also for events 
ranging from the 1-year through the 200-year event.  This last requirement is necessary to prevent 
volume related flood elevation increases in landlocked basins which lie downstream from the proposed 
site.  Note that these requirements will need to be met regardless of on-site development density and 
potential changes in drainage patterns within the site. 


The stormwater management plan for Lot 6 is to capture the runoff using catch basins, and private storm 
sewers and connect to a 24-inch storm stub and drain under Wild Goose Way to the Stormwater Pond at 
Outlot 4 to the south. 


Our draft Utility Plan in the Appendices provides detail on our proposed stormwater management 
solution.  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 13 of 25 
 


4.8 Park/Open Space 


The Parks and Recreation Committee approved the park locations with interest in seeing the 
development meet the parkland dedication requirement.  Since this approval, the park in Outlot 6 has 
expanded by removing four duplex lots along Velkommen Way, and the paved path no longer runs 
through Outlot 4 (due to increase in stormwater management requirements).  The net result is the 
development meets the parkland dedication requirement across both sides of USH 51 and provides for 
trail connections in multiple directions.    


Lot 6 will have two distinct routes to the neighboring paved Trail / Bike Path in Outlot 3. The first route 
will be a sidewalk which runs to the north of units 11 to 20 - the sidewalk will extend from Oak Opening 
Drive in the east to the paved Trail / Bike path in the west.  The second route will be a sidewalk from the 
garage alley in Lot 6 to the paved Trail / Bike path. 


 


4.9 Utilities 


Fifty One West, LLC and MSA are coordinating water and sewer service with the City of Stoughton.   The 
watermain will be extended from the current end of Nygaard Street, to serve all parcels in this 
development.  It will be oversized through 51 West along Nygaard Street and Oak Opening Way to serve 
future development to the north.  Water loops will be established by connecting to Kettle Park West via 
Oak Opening Drive (during this development process) and through land to the north back to Kings Lynn 
Road (when that land develops). Utility infrastructure for the development on Lot 6 will connect directly 
to these public utilities once completed.     


Our project team is already working closely with MSA on coordination, location and connection details for 
water and sewer.  Our draft utility plan for water and sewer is included in the Appendices. 


Specific details will be provided on locations of Gas and Electric utilities will also be addressed further 
during the Specific Implementation Plan review for Lot 6 


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 14 of 25 
 


 


4.10 Transportation 


 


4.10.1 Streets 
 
The garage alley in Lot 6 will be connected to both Oak Opening Drive to the east and Wild Goose Way to 
the south. 


 


4.10.2 Pedestrian Connections 
 
Paved sidewalks are proposed on the north side of Wild Goose Way and on the west side of Oak Opening 
Drive.  In addition, the following paved sidewalks are proposed within Lot 6 :- 


o A sidewalk along the north of units 11 to 20 connecting those units to the sidewalk along the west 
side of Oak Opening Drive and proposed Paved Trail / Bike Path to the west of Lot 6 


o A sidewalk connecting the garage alley in Lot 6 to the proposed Paved Trail / Bike Path to the west  
o A sidewalk connecting the three guest parking stalls with the sidewalk along the north of units 11 


to 20 


 


4.11 Management and Maintenance 


The on-going management and maintenance of areas within the boundaries of Lot 6 will be the 
responsibility of Lot 6 Condominium Association. 


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 15 of 25 
 


 


5 Development Standards 
5.1 Land Use, Density, Bulk Requirements 


Development of Lot 6 (PD) in the 51 West subdivision will meet the standards of the TR-6 Zoning district 
with the exceptions detailed below :- 


5.1.1 Density and Intensity Requirements 
o Allow multiple buildings on a single lot 
o Maximum Gross Density (MGD):   


o 7.84 dwelling units per acre 


 


5.2 Specific Flexibilities 


Twin house or duplex is allowed within the MR-10 district, however they need to follow TR-6 Two Family 
Residential District requirements.  Here is how our planned development compares to those 
requirements  :- 


• A:         Minimum lot area: 5,000 square feet for each dwelling unit 
Our proposed design meets this requirement 
 


• B:         Minimum lot width: 80 feet; (twin home: 40 feet) 
Our proposed design meets this requirement. 
 


• C:         Minimum street frontage: 50 feet 
Our proposed design meets this requirement. 
 


Minimum Setbacks: 
• D:         Front or street side lot line to house: 20 feet; 15 feet for open walled front porches 


Our minimum setback is 30 feet. 
 


• E:   Front or street side lot line to attached garage: 20 feet 
Our proposed design has a 25 feet front setback along Wild Goose Way and a 31 feet side setback along Oak 
Opening Drive. 
 


• F:         Side lot line to house or attached garage: Ten ft or zero ft along common wall 
Our proposed design has a minimum of 16 feet side lot line to house or attached garage. 
 


• G:        Total of both sides, lot lines to house or attached garage: 20 feet or zero ft along common wall 
Our proposed design meets this requirement. 


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 16 of 25 
 


 
• H:        Rear lot line to house or attached garage: 30 feet 


Our minimum rear lot line house is 35 feet to the porches on units 19 and 20. 
 


• I:          Side lot line to accessory structure: Four feet from property line, four feet from alley 
This requirement is met – our proposed design does not include any accessory structures. 
 


• J:          Rear lot line to accessory structure: Four feet from property line, four feet from alley 
This requirement is met – our proposed design does not include any accessory structures. 
 


• K:         Required bufferyard: See section 78-610 along zoning district boundary 
Bufferyard is provided along the north side of the lot. 
 


• L:         Minimum paved surface setback: One foot from side or rear, or zero feet in the case of a shared 
driveway; ten feet from right-of-way 
Our proposed design meets this requirement. 
 


• M:        Minimum dwelling unit separation: 20 feet or zero feet along common wall for multiple principle 
dwellings on the same lot 
Our proposed design meets this requirement – it provides a minimum of 30 feet of separation between dwelling 
units. 
 


• N:        Maximum height of dwelling unit: 30 feet 
This requirement is met – our proposed building design has a height of 26 feet. 


 
• O:        Maximum height of accessory structure: 20 feet 


This requirement is met – our proposed design does not include any accessory structures. 
 


• P:         Minimum number of off-street parking spaces required on the lot (Includes garage, drives, and all 
designated parking surfaces): Two 
Our proposed design provides each duplex unit with two parking spaces in the garage and two parking spaces 
on the driveway. 


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 17 of 25 
 


 


5.3 Residential Design Guidelines 


To achieve the vision in the 51 West GDP, inclusive of varying residential types and densities, the 
following architectural design guidelines will govern residential development.  Anything not specifically 
described in these guidelines will conform with City Standards.   


 


Source: City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan – Adopt July 11, 2017, Chapter Six : Housing, Figure 7  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 18 of 25 
 


 


5.3.1 Building Design 
o The buildings shall be placed as close to the front setback as practical to strengthen the street 


edge and promote street activation. 
o All buildings shall be designed with four-sided architectural treatment, utilizing the same design 


theme and compatible building materials. 
o The buildings shall have well-proportioned fenestrations, facade articulation and appropriately 


scaled architectural features. 
o Each building facade shall include two or more elements that provide visual interest and variety, 


such as balconies, porches, bay windows, garden walls, varied building and facade setbacks, and 
varied roof designs.     


o Balconies, porches, and bay windows are allowed to encroach into the front setback. 
o Facades greater than 100 feet shall consist of variations in the surface plane and roofline heights. 


5.3.2 Building Materials 
o Use quality materials that are durable and will age well.  Acceptable building materials include 


brick, stone, decorative concrete masonry units, wood, vinyl, and composite siding. Materials such 
as corrugated metal, EIFS (Exterior Insulation and Finish System) or aluminum siding, can be used 
as accent materials, but not as the primary building material. 


o A mix of 2-4 materials and/or colors shall be used on each building facade. 


5.3.3 Doors and Windows 
o A minimum 20% of all facades shall provide glazing or significant architectural detailing to provide 


visual interest.   
o Street-facing facades providing direct access to first story dwelling units through individual 


entrances are encouraged.   A minimum of 25% ground floor units with direct access to the 
sidewalk is preferred.   


5.3.4 Service Areas and Mechanicals 
o Service areas shall be integrated with the building design and screened when visible from public 


streets. 
o Loading areas, mechanical equipment or other utility hardware on the ground or building shall be 


screened from public view by plantings or decorative walls and fences with materials similar to the 
adjacent building material. 


o Rooftop mechanicals shall be screened using parapet wall extensions and/or screening fences on 
the roof using materials similar to those used on the building walls.   


o Refuse and recycling trash cans will be set in individual garages. 


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 19 of 25 
 


5.3.5 Landscaping and Site Treatment 
o Low level plant materials should be utilized appropriately as a buffer for parking lots and building 


utility areas from the street while maintaining visibility for public safety and desirable exposure, 
using a mix of shrubs, evergreens and various perennials and ornamental grasses 


o In addition to meeting the quantitative landscaping standards in Chapter 78-603 of the Stoughton 
zoning ordinance, the following shall be met: 


o Climax Trees: One (1) canopy tree shall be planted for every twenty (20) residential units. 
o Landscape screening shall include a mix of ever green and deciduous species to achieve effective 


visual screening during all seasons of the year. 
 


5.3.6 Decorative Fencing/Walls  
o Acceptable materials for constructing decorative fencing/wall include metal/aluminum, wood, 


stone, brick, and wrought iron.  
o Fencing/walls will adhere to Stoughton Code of Ordinances - Sec. 78-718. - Fencing standards. 


 


6 Site Design Plan 
Our Site Design plan is provided in the Appendices. 


 


7 Conceptual Landscaping / Site Design Plan 
Our Conceptual Landscaping plan is provided in the Appendices. 


 


8 Conceptual Signage Plan 
Our Conceptual Signage plan is provided on the Site Plan in the Appendices. 


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 20 of 25 
 


 


9 Building Types and Themes 
 


9.1 Land Use Development Areas 


There are six general building types that are allowed within the 51 West Sub-division :- 


 


 


 


Lot 6 has been designated as being allowed Building Type I – Small Format Residential and Building Type II – 
Medium Format Residential. 


  







51 West – Lot 6 
Stoughton, W.I. 53589 


 


Version 2.1 - July 8, 2022  Page 21 of 25 
 


Building Type I:  Building Type II: 
Small Format Residential  Medium Format Residential 


This building type is allowed in Lot 6  This building type is allowed in Lot 6 
   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


City of Stoughton Application for Planned Development (PD) Review and Approval
(Requirements per Section 78-914)


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a
planned development and by the City to process said application. Parts II is to be used by the Applicant
to submit a complete application; Parts I - III are to be used by the City as a guide when processing said
application.


Date: 7/11/2022 


Date: 7/11/2022


I. Recordation of Administrative Procedures for City Use 


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator


Application fee of $440 received by Zoning Administrator


II. Application Submittal Packet Requirements for Applicant Use 


PD Process Step 1: Pre-application


Step 1 does not require the submittal of an application packet; however, Steps 2-4 do require submittal
of all application materials to the Zoning Administrator prior to Plan Commission review. This step is
not mandatory but optional at the discretion of the applicant or Zoning Administrator.


 A. Contact the Zoning Administrator to place an informal discussion item for the PD on the Plan
Commission agenda (if deemed necessary by the applicant or Zoning Administrator). No details
beyond the name of the Applicant and the identification of the discussion item as a PD is required to
be given in the agenda.


 B. Engage in an informal discussion with the Plan Commission regarding the potential PD. Appropriate
topics may include: location, project themes and images, general mix of dwelling unit types and/or
land uses being considered, approximate residential densities, and non-residential intensities, general
treatment of natural features, general relationship to nearby properties and public streets, and
relationship to the Comprehensive Plan.


NOTE: Points of discussion and conclusions reached in this stage of the process shall in no way be
binding upon the Applicant or the City, but should be considered as the informal, non-binding basis for
proceeding to the next step.


PD Process Step 2: Concept Plan


The Applicant shall provide a draft application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with draft PD Concept Plan Submittal Packet for
determination of completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission
agenda for Concept Plan review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (1) A general written description of proposed PD including the following:


 General project themes and images.


David West


2525 Via La Selva, Palos Verdes, CA 90274


310-997-7504   davidrowlandwest@gmail.com
Bob Dvorak


608-712-2048


Lot 6 at 51 West







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 An initial draft list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed
PD and the location(s) in which they apply and, a complete list of zoning
standards which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in
which they apply. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to provide the
Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the relative merits of
the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and in regard to the
mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design flexibility.


 (3) A written description of potentially requested exemption(s) from the requirements of the
underlying zoning district, in the following order:
1. Land Use Exemptions


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions


3. Bulk Exemptions


4. Landscaping Exceptions


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions


 (4) A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the general
location of major public streets and/or private drives. The Applicant may submit
copies of a larger version of the plan in addition to the 11" x 17" reduction.


PD Process Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. Provide Zoning Administrator with a draft GDP Submittal Packet for determination of
completeness prior to placing the proposed PD on the Plan Commission agenda for GDP
review. The submittal packet shall contain all of the following items:
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its surroundings,
and the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" x 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed PD including:
 General project themes and images.


 The general mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The general treatment of natural features.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 The general relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 The general relationship of the project to the Comprehensive Plan.


 A statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed. This shall identify
barriers that the Applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard
zoning districts and opportunities for community betterment the Applicant
suggests are available through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed PD
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed PD and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the requirements
of the underlying zoning district, in the following order:


1. Land Use Exemptions.


2. Density and Intensity Exemptions.


3. Bulk Exemptions.


4. Landscaping Exceptions.


5. Parking and Loading Requirements Exceptions.


 (4) A General Development Plan Drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (11" x 17"
electronic copy shall also be provided) of the proposed project showing at least the
following information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for
approval:
 A conceptual plan drawing (at 11" x 17") of the general land use layout and the


general location of major public streets and/or private drives.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities and specifically
describing those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and
use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate areas
of large development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface
area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information provided in (3), above to specific areas
on the GDP Drawing.


 (5) General conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate locations of
foundation, street, yard and paving, landscaping, and the compliance of development
with all landscaping requirements of this Ordinance (except as noted in the listing of
exceptions) and the use of bufferyards.


 (6) A general signage plan for the project, including all
 Project identification signs.


 Concepts for public fixtures and signs (street light fixtures and/or poles or street
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or
common practices.







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


 (7) Written justification for the proposed Planned Development. (See Section 78-905 for
requirements of the conditional use procedure.)


PD Step 4: Specific Implementation Plan (SIP)


The Applicant shall submit an application for staff and Planning Commission review as follows:


 A. After the effective date of the rezoning to PD/GDP, the Applicant may file an application for
the proposed SIP with the Plan Commission. This submittal packet shall contain the following
items, prior to its acceptance by the Zoning Administrator and placing the item on the Plan
Commission agenda for SIP review.
 (2) A map of the subject property for which the PD is proposed:


 Clearly indicating the current zoning of the subject property and its environs, and
the jurisdiction(s) which maintains that control.


 Map and all its parts clearly reproducible with a photocopier.


 Map size of 11" by 17" and map scale not less than one inch equals 800 feet.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


 (3) A general written description of proposed SIP, including:
 Specific project themes and images.


 The specific mix of dwelling unit types and/or land uses.


 Specific residential densities and non-residential intensities as described by
dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.


 The specific treatment of natural features.


 The specific relationship to nearby properties and public streets.


 A Statement of Rationale as to why PD zoning is proposed identifying perceived
barriers in the form of requirements of standard zoning districts and
opportunities for community betterment through the proposed PD zoning.


 A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met by the proposed SIP
and the location(s) in which they apply and a complete list of zoning standards
which will be more than met by the proposed SIP and the location(s) in which
they apply shall be identified. Essentially, the purpose of this listing shall be to
provide the Plan Commission with information necessary to determine the
relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus public benefit, and
in regard to the mitigation of potential adverse impacts created by design
flexibility.


 (4) A Specific Implementation Plan drawing at a minimum scale of 1"=100' (and electronic
copy at 11" x 17") of the proposed project showing at least the following information
in sufficient detail:
 An SIP conforming to all requirements of Section 78-908(3). If the proposed PD


is a large or group development (per Section 78-205 (11) or (12)) also provide a
proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat.


 Location of recreational and open space areas and facilities specifically describing
those that are to be reserved or dedicated for public acquisition and use.


 Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the precise areas of all
development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape surface







S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Planned Development APP.doc


area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans required by
the Plan Commission or Common Council.


 Notations relating the written information (3), above to specific areas on the
GDP Drawing.


 (5) A landscaping plan for subject property, specifying the location, species, and installed
size of all trees and shrubs. Include a chart which provides a cumulative total for each
species, type and required location (foundation, yard, street, paved area or bufferyard)
of all trees and shrubs.


 (6) A series of building elevations for the entire exterior of all buildings in the PD, including
detailed notes as to the materials and colors proposed.


 (7) A general signage plan including all project identification signs, concepts for public
fixtures and signs (such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street sign faces and/or
poles), and large or group development signage themes which are proposed to vary
from City standards or common practices.


 (8) A general outline of the intended organizational structure for a property owners association, if
any; deed restrictions and provisions for private provision of common services, if any.


 (9) A written description which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed SIP with
the approved GDP.


 (10)A written description of any and all variations between the requirements of the applicable
PD/GDP zoning district and the proposed SIP development.


III. Final Application Packet Information for City Use


PD Step 3: General Development Plan (GDP)


The process for review and approval of the PD shall be identical to that for conditional use permits per Section
78-905 of the Zoning Ordinance and (if land is to be divided) to that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision
per the Municipal Code. All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final
Common Council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall be permitted. The
Common Council may extend this five years period by up to five additional years via a majority vote following a
public hearing.


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) 


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet)


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk


Class 2 legal notice published on 7/21/2022 and 7/28/2022


Date: 7/18/2022 


Date: 8/3/2022 


Date: 7/12/2022 







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON       RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 


July 20, 2022 
 
David West 
2525 Via La Selva 
Palos Verdes, CA.  90274 
 
 
Dear Mr. West; 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed Planned Development – General Development Plan (PD-
GDP) for Lot 6, in the 51 West Subdivision.  A public hearing is scheduled for August 8, 2022 of 
which you will receive notice.  You and/or your representative will need to attend the meeting to 
present materials and answer questions.  The following items are identified for your review.   
 
1. General Development Plan requirements per zoning code section 78-914(7) are as follows: 


A. A location map of the subject property as depicted on the planned land use map shall be 
provided.  Provided  


B. A map of subject property showing all lands within 300 feet of the boundaries of the 
subject property, together with the names and addresses of the owners of all lands on 
said map including indication of current zoning of subject property.  Done by staff 


C. A general description of the general development plan including: 
a. General project themes and images; Provided 
b. The general mix of dwelling units and/or land uses; Provided 
c. Approximate residential densities and non-residential intensities as described 


by dwelling units per acre, floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio; 
Provided 


d. General treatment of natural resources; N/A 
e. General relationship to nearby properties and streets; Provided 
f. The general relationship of the project to the comprehensive plan.  Provided 
g. A statement of rationale as to why the PD zoning is proposed which identifies 


barriers the applicant perceives in the form of requirements of standard zoning 
districts and opportunities for community betterment the applicant suggests are 
available through the proposed PD zoning; Provided 


h. A complete list of zoning standards which will not be met and which will be 
more than met by the proposed PD and the locations in which they apply and a 
complete list of zoning standards which will be more than met by the proposed 
PD and the location in which they apply shall be identified, as compared with 
the most comparable zoning district.  Essentially, the purpose of this listing 
shall be to provide the plan commission with information necessary to 
determine the relative merits of the project in regard to private benefit versus 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


public benefit and in regard to the mitigation of potentially adverse impacts 
created by design flexibility. Provided 


i. A written description of potentially requested exemptions from the 
requirements of the most comparable zoning district, in the following order:  


a) Land use exemptions: N/A 
b) Density and intensity exemptions: See below 
c) Bulk exemptions: N/A 
d) Landscaping exceptions: N/A 
e) Parking and loading requirements exceptions: N/A 


 
The following is the list of requested exceptions based on the Two Family 
Residential District (TR-6): 


• Multiple buildings on a single lot allowed outright; 
• Unit allowance (Density) up to 20 units (7.82 units per acre vs 


the normally allowed 6 units per acre)  
 


D. A general development plan drawing shall be provided with at least the following 
information in sufficient detail to make an evaluation against criteria for approval:  


a. A conceptual site drawing of the general land use layout and the general 
location of major public streets and/or private drives;  Provided  


b. Location of recreational and open spaces areas and facilities; N/A 
c. Statistical data on minimum lot sizes in the development, the approximate area 


of all development lots and pads, density/intensity of various parts of the 
development, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio and landscape 
surface area ratio of various land uses, expected staging, and any other plans 
required by the plan commission or common council; and Provided (53% 
greenspace) 


E. A general conceptual landscaping plan for subject property, noting approximate 
locations of foundation, street, yard, paving and landscaping.   Provided 


F. A general signage plan for the project, including all project identification signs and 
concepts for public fixtures and signs, such as street light fixtures and/or poles or street 
sign faces and/or poles) which are proposed to vary from City standards or common 
practices. If signage is planned 


G. Written justification for the proposed planned development. The applicant shall use the 
requirements of the zoning map amendment procedure (subsections 78.903(4) (c) 1 
through 3) to develop said written justification.  Provided 
The process for review and approval of the GDP shall be identical to that for zoning 
map amendments per section 78-903 of this chapter and (if land is to be divided) to 
that for preliminary and final plats of subdivision per the Municipal Code.  


All portions of an approved PD/GDP not fully developed within five years of final 
common council approval shall expire, and no additional PD-based development shall 
be permitted. The common council may extend this five years period by up to five 
additional years via a majority vote following a public hearing. Completed portions of 
the PD/GDP shall retain the PD/GDP status.  



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-903AMOFZOMA





[- 3 -] 
 


2. The parkland dedication for the 51 West Development will need to be evaluated relative to the 
increase in density. 


 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\developments\51 west - dvorak\lot 6\gdp appl 7.11.22\lot 6 gdp review 22.doc 


 
 
 
   





		07 O-17-2022 51 West Lot 6 GDP Ordinance

		07a PD-GDP Rezoning Lot 6 at 51 West Development

		01. Planned Development APP - 51 West - Lot 6 - GDP

		02. 51 West - Lot 6 - GDP - v2.1

		1 Introduction

		2 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Location Map

		3 Vicinity Map

		4 Planned Development Written Description

		4.1 General Relationship to the 2017 Comprehensive Plan

		4.2 Relationship to nearby properties and public streets

		4.3 Planned Development Proposal

		4.4 Project Timing and Phasing

		4.5 Planned Development Rationale and Exemptions

		4.6 Neighborhood Character/Theme

		4.7 Stormwater Management

		4.8 Park/Open Space

		4.9 Utilities

		4.10 Transportation

		4.10.1 Streets

		4.10.2 Pedestrian Connections



		4.11 Management and Maintenance



		5 Development Standards

		5.1 Land Use, Density, Bulk Requirements

		5.1.1 Density and Intensity Requirements



		5.2 Specific Flexibilities

		5.3 Residential Design Guidelines

		5.3.1 Building Design

		5.3.2 Building Materials

		5.3.3 Doors and Windows

		5.3.4 Service Areas and Mechanicals

		5.3.5 Landscaping and Site Treatment

		5.3.6 Decorative Fencing/Walls





		6 Site Design Plan

		7 Conceptual Landscaping / Site Design Plan

		8 Conceptual Signage Plan

		9 Building Types and Themes

		9.1 Land Use Development Areas





		03. GDP Plan Set 2022.07.08

		3.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Site Plan





		4.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Utility Plan





		5.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Landscape Plan







		04. stoughtonduplexA3b

		05. stoughtonduplexA1

		06. stoughtonduplexA2












  


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 30, Floodplain Zoning of the Municipal Code of the City of Stoughton.   


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends approval 7 - 0  
Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -18 - 2022 Dates 
Introduced:  


     August 23, 2022 
     September 13, 2022 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF 
FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE,     TITLE AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 


Sec. 30-1. Statutory authorization. 
This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization in Wis. Stats., § 62.23 and the 


requirements in Wis. Stats., § 87.30.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-2. Finding of fact. 
Uncontrolled development and use of the floodplains and rivers of this municipality would 


impair the public health, safety, convenience, general welfare and tax base.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-3. Statement of purpose. 
This ordinance is intended to regulate floodplain development to:  


(1) Protect life, health and property;  


(2) Minimize expenditures of public funds for flood control projects;  


(3) Minimize rescue and relief efforts undertaken at the expense of the taxpayers;  


(4) Minimize business interruptions and other economic disruptions;  


(5) Minimize damage to public facilities in the floodplain;  


(6) Minimize the occurrence of future flood blight areas in the floodplain;  


(7) Discourage the victimization of unwary land and homebuyers;  


(8) Prevent increases in flood heights that could increase flood damage and result in 
conflicts between property owners; and  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(9) Discourage development in a floodplain if there is any practicable alternative to 
locate the activity, use or structure outside of the floodplain.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-4. Title. 
This ordinance shall be known as the Floodplain Zoning Ordinance for the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-5. General provisions. 
(a) Areas to be regulated. This ordinance regulates all areas that would be covered by the 


regional flood or base flood as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) or other 
maps approved by DNR. Base flood elevations are derived from the flood profiles in the 
flood insurance study (FIS) and are shown as AE, A1—30, and AH Zones on the FIRM. 
Other regulatory zones are displayed as A and AO zones. Regional flood elevations (RFE) 
may be derived from other studies. If more than one map or revision is referenced, the most 
restrictive information shall apply.  


(b) Official maps and revisions. The boundaries of all floodplain districts are designated as 
A, AE, AH, AO or A1—30 on the maps based on the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) listed 
below. Any change to the base flood elevations (BFE) or any changes to the boundaries of 
the floodplain or floodway in the flood insurance study (FIS) or on the flood insurance rate 
map (FIRM) must be reviewed and approved by the DNR and FEMA through the Letter of 
Map Change process (See Article IX) before it is effective. No changes to regional flood 
elevations (RFE's) on non-FEMA maps shall be effective until approved by the DNR. These 
maps and revisions are on file in the office of the Department of Planning and 
Development, City of Stoughton. If more than one map or revision is referenced, the most 
restrictive approved information shall apply.  


(1) Official maps: Based on flood insurance study (FIS).  


Flood insurance rate map's (FIRM) dated January 2, 2009 as follows: Panel numbers 
55025C0638G, and 55025C0645G and Flood Insurance Rate Maps dated September 
17, 2014 as follows: Panel numbers 55025C0609H, 55025C0620H, 55025C0628H, 
55025C0629H, 55025C0636H, 55025C0637H, 55025C0639H; with corresponding 
profiles that are based on the Dane County flood insurance study (FIS) dated June 16, 
2016, volumes 55025CV001D, 55025CV002D, 55025CV003D, 55025CV004D, and 
subsequent amendments. Approved by: The DNR and FEMA  


Approved by: The DNR and FEMA.  


(2) Official maps: Based on other studies.  


a. Wisconsin Wetland Inventory Map stamped "Final" on 9/5/1989 and subsequent 
revisions.  


Approved by: The DNR and FEMA.  







 


 


b. Dane County Flood Storage District Map - Panel numbers 8 and 12, dated 
September 17, 2014.  


Approved by: The DNR and FEMA.  


c. Yahara River, Fourth Street Dam failure analysis—including floodplain map, 
water surface profile, and floodway data table from dam failure analysis report 
dated November 2010, prepared by Mead & Hunt.  


Approved by: The DNR.  


(c) Establishment of floodplain zoning districts. The regional floodplain areas are divided 
into four districts as follows:  


(1) The floodway district (FW) is the channel of a river or stream and those portions 
of the floodplain adjoining the channel required to carry the regional floodwaters and 
are contained within AE Zones as shown on the FIRM, or within A Zones shown on 
the FIRM when determined in section 30-54. 


(2) The floodfringe district (FF) is that portion of the floodplain between the regional 
flood limits and the floodway and displayed as AE Zones on the FIRM, or, when 
floodway limits have been determined according to section 30-54, within A Zones 
shown of the FIRM.  


(3) The general floodplain district (GFP) is those areas that may be covered by 
floodwater during the regional flood and does not have a BFE or floodway boundary 
determined, including A, AH, and AO zones on the FIRM.  


(4) The flood storage district (FSD) is that area of the floodplain where storage of 
floodwaters is calculated to reduce the regional flood discharge.  


(d) Locating floodplain boundaries. Discrepancies between boundaries on the official 
floodplain zoning map and actual field conditions shall be resolved using the criteria in 
subsections (1) or (2) below. If a significant difference exists, the map shall be amended 
according to Article IX Amendments. The zoning administrator can rely on a boundary 
derived from a profile elevation to grant or deny a land use permit, whether or not a map 
amendment is required. The zoning administrator shall be responsible for documenting 
actual pre-development field conditions and the basis upon which the district boundary was 
determined and for initiating any map amendments required under this section. Disputes 
between the zoning administrator and an applicant over the district boundary line shall be 
settled according to section 30-73(e) and the criteria in subsections (1) and (2) below. 
Where the flood profiles are based on established base flood elevations from a FIRM, 
FEMA must approve any map amendment or revision pursuant to Article IX Amendments.  


(1) If flood profiles exist, the map scale and the profile elevations shall determine the 
district boundary. The regional or base flood elevations shall govern if there are any 
discrepancies.  


(2) Where flood profiles do not exist for projects, the location of the boundary shall 
be determined by the map scale.  


 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(e) Removal of lands from floodplain.  


(1) Compliance with the provisions of this ordinance shall not be grounds for 
removing land from the floodplain unless it is filled at least two feet above the regional 
or base flood elevation, the fill is contiguous to land outside the floodplain, and the 
map is amended pursuant to Article IX Amendments.  


(2) The delineation of any of the Floodplain Districts may be revised by the 
community where natural or man-made changes have occurred and/or where more 
detailed studies have been conducted. However, prior to any such change, approval 
must be obtained from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and 
Federal Emergency Management Agency. A completed Letter of Map Revision is 
a record of this approval. The floodplain administrator shall not sign a community 
acknowledgement form unless all criteria set forth in the following paragraphs are 
met: 
 


a. The land and/or land around the structure must be filled at least two feet 
above the regional or base flood elevation; 


 
b. The fill must be contiguous to land outside the floodplain; Applicant  shall 


obtain floodplain development permit before applying for a LOMR or 
LOMR-F; 


 
(3) Removal of lands from the floodplain may also occur by operation of 


§87.30(1)(e), Wis. Stat. if a property owner has obtained a letter of map amendment 
from the federal emergency management agency under 44 C.F.R. 70. 
 


(f) Compliance. Any development or use within the areas regulated by this ordinance shall 
be in compliance with the terms of this ordinance, and other applicable local, state, and 
federal regulations.  


(1) No structure or use within areas regulated by this ordinance shall hereafter be 
located, erected, constructed, reconstructed, repaired, extended, converted, enlarged, or 
altered without full compliance with the terms of these regulations and all other applicable 
regulations that apply to uses within the jurisdiction of these regulations. 


(2) Failure to obtain a floodplain development permit shall be a violation of these 
regulations and shall be punishable in accordance with section 30-6. 


(3) Floodplain development permits issued on the basis of plans and applications 
approved by the Floodplain Administrator authorize only the use, and arrangement, set forth 
in such approved plans and applications, or amendments thereto if approved by the 
Floodplain Administrator. Use, arrangement, or construction contrary to that authorized 
shall be deemed a violation of these regulations and punishable in accordance with section 
30-6. 


 







 


 


(g) Municipalities and state agencies regulated. Unless specifically exempted by law, all 
cities, villages, towns, and counties are required to comply with this ordinance and obtain 
all necessary permits. State agencies are required to comply if Wis. Stats., § 13.48(13), 
applies. The construction, reconstruction, maintenance and repair of state highways and 
bridges by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation is exempt when Wis. Stats., § 
30.2022, applies.  Although exempt from local zoning permit and permit fees, DOT must 
provide sufficient project documentation and analysis to ensure that the community is in 
compliance with Federal, State and local floodplain standards.  If a local transportation 
project is located within a Zone A floodplain and is not a WisDOT project under Wis. 
Stats., §  30.2022, then the road project design documents (including appropriate detailed 
plans and profiles) may be sufficient to meet the requirements for issuance of a local 
floodplain permit if the following apply: The applicant provides documentation to the 
Floodplain Administrator that the proposed project is a culvert replacement or bridge 
replacement under 20’ span at the same location, the project is exempt from a DNR permit 
under Wis. Stats., §  30.123(6)(d), the capacity is not decreased, the top road grade is not 
raised, and no floodway data is available from a federal, state, or other source.  If floodway 
data is available in the impacted area from a federal, state, or other source that existing data 
must be utilized by the applicant in the analysis of the project site. 


(h) Abrogation and greater restrictions. 


(1) This ordinance supersedes all the provisions of any municipal zoning ordinance 
enacted under Wis. Stats., § 59.69, 59.692 or 59.694 for counties; Wis. Stats., § 62.23 
for cities; or Wis. Stats., § 87.30, which relate to floodplains. If another ordinance is 
more restrictive than this ordinance, that ordinance shall continue in full force and 
effect to the extent of the greater restrictions, but not otherwise.  


(2) This ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing deed 
restrictions, covenants or easements. If this ordinance imposes greater restrictions, the 
provisions of this ordinance shall prevail.  


(i) Interpretation. In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this ordinance are 
the minimum requirements liberally construed in favor of the governing body and are not a 
limitation on or repeal of any other powers granted by the Wisconsin Statutes. If a provision 
of this ordinance, required by ch. NR 116, Wis. Adm. Code, is unclear, the provision shall 
be interpreted in light of the standards in effect on the date of the adoption of this ordinance 
or in effect on the date of the most recent text amendment to this ordinance.  


(j) Warning and disclaimer of liability. The flood protection standards in this ordinance are 
based on engineering experience and research. Larger floods may occur or the flood height 
may be increased by manmade or natural causes. This ordinance does not imply or 
guarantee that non-floodplain areas or permitted floodplain uses will be free from flooding 
and flood damages. This ordinance does not create liability on the part of, or a cause of 
action against, the municipality or any officer or employee thereof for any flood damage 
that may result from reliance on this ordinance.  


(k) Severability. Should any portion of this ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(l) Annexed areas for cities and villages. The Dane County floodplain zoning provisions in 
effect on the date of annexation shall remain in effect and shall be enforced by the 
municipality for all annexed areas until the municipality adopts and enforces an ordinance 
which meets the requirements of ch. NR 116, Wis. Adm. Code and 44 CFR 59-72, National 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). These annexed lands are described on the municipality's 
official zoning map. County floodplain zoning provisions are incorporated by reference for 
the purpose of administering this section and are on file in the office of the municipal 
zoning administrator. All plats or maps of annexation shall show the regional flood 
elevation and the floodway location.  


(m) General development standards. The community shall review all permit applications to 
determine whether proposed building sites will be reasonably safe from flooding. If a 
proposed building site is in a flood-prone area, all new construction and substantial 
improvements shall be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads; be 
constructed with flood resistant materials; be constructed to minimize flood damages and to 
ensure that utility and mechanical equipment is designed and/or located so as to prevent 
water from entering or accumulating within the equipment during conditions of flooding.  


Subdivisions shall be reviewed for compliance with the above standards. All subdivision 
proposals (including manufactured home parks) shall include regional flood elevation and 
floodway data for any development that meets the subdivision definition of this ordinance and all 
other requirements in s. 30.71(b). Adequate drainage shall be provided to reduce exposure to 
flood hazards and all public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water 
systems are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damages.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-14-2008; Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009; Ord. No. 0-13-2011, § 1, 7-12-2011; Ord. 
No. 0-15-2014, 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-6. Enforcement and penalties. 
Any violation of the provisions of this ordinance by any person shall be unlawful and shall 


be referred to the municipal attorney who shall expeditiously prosecute all such violators. A 
violator shall, upon conviction, forfeit to the municipality a penalty per section 1-3, Municipal 
Code, together with a taxable cost of such action. Each day of continued violation shall 
constitute a separate offense. Every violation of this ordinance is a public nuisance and the 
creation may be enjoined and the maintenance may be abated by action at suit of the 
municipality, the state, or any citizen thereof pursuant to Wis. Stats., § 87.30, which limits 
penalties to no more than $50 per day per violation.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-14-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-7. Definitions. 
Unless specifically defined, words and phrases in this ordinance shall have their common 


law meaning and shall be applied in accordance with their common usage. Words used in the 
present tense include the future, the singular number includes the plural and the plural number 
includes the singular. The word "may" is permissive, "shall" is mandatory and is not 
discretionary.  







 


 


A zones: Those areas shown on the official floodplain zoning map which would be 
inundated by the regional flood. These areas may be numbered or unnumbered A zones. The A 
zones may or may not be reflective of flood profiles, depending on the availability of data for a 
given area.  


AH zones: See "AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING".  


AO zones: See "AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING".  


Accessory structure or use: A facility, structure, building or use which is accessory or 
incidental to the principal use of a property, structure or building. An accessory structure shall 
not be used for human habitation. 


Alteration: An enhancement, upgrading or substantial change or modifications other than an 
addition or repair to a dwelling or to electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating, air conditioning 
and other systems within a structure.  


Area of shallow flooding: A designated AO, AH, AR/AO, AR/AH, or VO zone on a 
community's Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with a 1 percent or greater annual chance of 
flooding to an average depth of 1 to 3 feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where 
the path of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flood may be evident. Such flooding is 
characterized by ponding or sheet flow.  


Base flood: Means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in 
any given year, as published by FEMA as part of a FIS and depicted on a FIRM.  


Basement: Any enclosed area of a building having its floor sub-grade, i.e., below ground 
level, on all sides.  


Building: See Structure.  


Breakaway wall – A wall that is not part of the structural support of the building and is 
intended through its design and construction to collapse under specific lateral loading forces, 
without causing damage to the elevated portion of the building or supporting foundation system. 


Bulkhead line: A geographic line along a reach of navigable water that has been adopted by 
a municipal ordinance and approved by the DNR pursuant to Wis. Stats., § 30.11, and which 
allows limited filling between this bulkhead line and the original ordinary highwater mark, 
except where such filling is prohibited by the floodway provisions of this ordinance.  


Campground: Any parcel of land which is designated, maintained, intended or used for the 
purpose of providing sites for nonpermanent overnight use by four or more camping units, or 
which is advertised or represented as a camping area.  


Camping unit: Any portable device, no more than 400 square feet in area, used as a 
temporary shelter, including but not limited to a camping trailer, motor home, bus, van, pick-up 
truck, or tent that is fully licensed, if required, and ready for highway use.  


Certificate of compliance: A certification that the construction and the use of land or a 
building, the elevation of fill or the lowest floor of a structure is in compliance with all of the 
provisions of this ordinance.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Channel: A natural or artificial watercourse with definite bed and banks to confine and 
conduct normal flow of water.  


Crawlways or crawl space: An enclosed area below the first usable floor of a building, 
generally less than five feet in height, used for access to plumbing and electrical utilities.  


Deck: An unenclosed exterior structure that has no roof or sides, but has a permeable floor 
which allows the infiltration of precipitation.  


Department: The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  


Development: Any artificial change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but 
not limited to, the construction of buildings, structures or accessory structures; the construction 
of additions or alterations to buildings, structures or accessory structures; the repair of any 
damaged structure or the improvement or renovation of any structure, regardless of percentage of 
damage or improvement; the placement of buildings or structures; subdivision layout and site 
preparation; mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations; the 
storage, deposition or extraction of materials or equipment; and the installation, repair or 
removal of public or private sewage disposal systems or water supply facilities.  


Dryland access: A vehicular access route which is above the regional flood elevation and 
which connects land located in the floodplain to land outside the floodplain, such as a road with 
its surface above regional flood elevation and wide enough for wheeled rescue and relief 
vehicles.  


Encroachment: Any fill, structure, equipment, building, use or development in the 
floodway.  


Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA): The federal agency that administers the 
National Flood Insurance Program.  


Flood insurance rate map (FIRM): A map of a community on which the Federal Insurance 
Administration has delineated both the floodplain and the risk premium zones applicable to the 
community. This map can only be amended by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.  


Flood or flooding: A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of 
normally dry land areas caused by one of the following conditions:  


• The overflow or rise of inland waters,  


• The rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source,  


• The inundation caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated cyclical levels 
along the shore of Lake Michigan or Lake Superior, or  


• The sudden increase caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body of water, 
accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as a seiche, or 
by some similarly unusual event.  


Flood frequency: The probability of a flood occurrence which is determined from statistical 
analyses. The frequency of a particular flood event is usually expressed as occurring, on the 







 


 


average, once in a specified number of years or as a percent chance of occurring in any given 
year.  


Floodfringe: That portion of the floodplain outside of the floodway which is covered by 
flood waters during the regional flood and associated with standing water rather than flowing 
water.  


Flood hazard boundary map: A map designating approximate flood hazard areas. Flood 
hazard areas are designated as unnumbered A-zones and do not contain floodway lines or 
regional flood elevations. This map forms the basis for both the regulatory and insurance aspects 
of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) until superseded by a flood insurance study and 
a flood insurance rate map.  


Flood insurance study: A technical engineering examination, evaluation, and determination 
of the local flood hazard areas. It provides maps designating those areas affected by the regional 
flood and provides both flood insurance rate zones and base flood elevations and may provide 
floodway lines. The flood hazard areas are designated as numbered and unnumbered A-zones. 
Flood insurance rate maps, that accompany the flood insurance study, form the basis for both the 
regulatory and the insurance aspects of the National Flood Insurance Program.  


Floodplain: Land which has been or may be covered by flood water during the regional 
flood. It includes the floodway and the floodfringe, and may include other designated floodplain 
areas for regulatory purposes.  


Floodplain island: A natural geologic land formation within the floodplain that is 
surrounded, but not covered, by floodwater during the regional flood.  


Floodplain management: Policy and procedures to insure wise use of floodplains, including 
mapping and engineering, mitigation, education, and administration and enforcement of 
floodplain regulations.  


Flood profile: A graph or a longitudinal profile line showing the relationship of the water 
surface elevation of a flood event to locations of land surface elevations along a stream or river.  


Floodproofing: Any combination of structural provisions, changes or adjustments to 
properties and structures, water and sanitary facilities and contents of buildings subject to 
flooding, for the purpose of reducing or eliminating flood damage.  


Flood protection elevation: An elevation of two feet of freeboard above the water surface 
profile elevation designated for the regional flood. (Also see: Freeboard.)  


Flood storage: Those floodplain areas where storage of floodwaters has been taken into 
account during analysis in reducing the regional flood discharge.  


Floodway: The channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adjoining 
the channel required to carry the regional flood discharge.  


Freeboard: A safety factor expressed in terms of a specified number of feet above a 
calculated flood level. Freeboard compensates for any factors that cause flood heights greater 
than those calculated, including ice jams, debris accumulation, wave action, obstruction of bridge 
openings and floodways, the effects of watershed urbanization, loss of flood storage areas due to 
development and aggregation of the river or stream bed.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Habitable structure: Any structure or portion thereof used or designed for human 
habitation.  


Hearing notice: Publication or posting meeting the requirements of Ch. 985, Wis. Stats. For 
appeals, a Class 1 notice, published once at least one week (seven days) before the hearing, is 
required. For all zoning ordinances and amendments, a Class 2 notice, published twice, once 
each week consecutively, the last at least a week (seven days) before the hearing. Local 
ordinances or bylaws may require additional notice, exceeding these minimums.  


High flood damage potential: Damage that could result from flooding that includes any 
danger to life or health or any significant economic loss to a structure or building and its 
contents.  


Highest adjacent grade: The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.  


Historic structure: Any structure that is either:  


• Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places or preliminarily determined 
by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the 
national register,  


• Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the 
historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined 
by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district,  


• Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic 
preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior, or  


• Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic 
preservation programs that have been certified either by an approved state program, as 
determined by the Secretary of the Interior; or by the Secretary of the Interior in states 
without approved programs.  


Increase in regional flood height: A calculated upward rise in the regional flood elevation, 
equal to or greater than 0.00 foot, based on a comparison of existing conditions and proposed 
conditions which is directly attributable to development in the floodplain but not attributable to 
manipulation of mathematical variables such as roughness factors, expansion and contraction 
coefficients and discharge.  


Land use: Any nonstructural use made of unimproved or improved real estate. (Also see 
Development.)  


Lowest adjacent grade: Elevation of the lowest ground surface that touches any of the 
exterior walls of a building.  


Lowest floor: The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An 
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or 
storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor; provided 
that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-
elevation design requirements of 44 CFR 60.3.  







 


 


Maintenance: The act or process of restoring to original soundness, including redecorating, 
refinishing, nonstructural repairs, or the replacement of existing fixtures, systems or equipment 
with equivalent fixtures, systems or structures.  


Manufactured home: A structure transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a 
permanent chassis and is designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when 
connected to required utilities. The term "manufactured home" includes a mobile home but does 
not include a "mobile recreational vehicle."  


Mobile/Manufactured home park or subdivision: A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land, 
divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.  


Mobile/Manufactured home park or subdivision, existing: A parcel of land, divided into two 
or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale, on which the construction of facilities for 
servicing the lots is completed before the effective date of this ordinance. At a minimum, this 
would include the installation of utilities, the construction of streets and either final site grading 
or the pouring of concrete pads.  


Mobile/Manufactured home park, expansion to existing: The preparation of additional sites 
by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be 
affixed. This includes installation of utilities, construction of streets and either final site grading, 
or the pouring of concrete pads.  


Mobile recreational vehicle: A vehicle which is built on a single chassis, 400 square feet or 
less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, designed to be self-propelled, carried or 
permanently towable by a licensed, light-duty vehicle, is licensed for highway use if registration 
is required and is designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling, but as temporary living 
quarters for recreational, camping, travel or seasonal use. Manufactured homes that are towed or 
carried onto a parcel of land, but do not remain capable of being towed or carried, including park 
model homes, do not fall within the definition of "mobile recreational vehicles".  


Model, corrected effective: A hydraulic engineering model that corrects any errors that 
occur in the Duplicate Effective Model, adds any additional cross sections to the Duplicate 
Effective Model, or incorporates more detailed topographic information than that used in the 
current effective model.  


Model, duplicate effective: A copy of the hydraulic analysis used in the effective FIS and 
referred to as the effective model.  


Model effective: The hydraulic engineering model that was used to produce the current 
effective Flood Insurance Study.  


Model, existing (pre-project): A modification of the Duplicate Effective Model or Corrected 
Effective Model to reflect any man made modifications that have occurred within the floodplain 
since the date of the effective model but prior to the construction of the project for which the 
revision is being requested. If no modification has occurred since the date of the effective model, 
then this model would be identical to the Corrected Effective Model or Duplicate Effective 
Model.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Model, revised (post-project): A modification of the Existing or Pre-Project Conditions 
Model, Duplicate Effective Model or Corrected Effective Model to reflect revised or post-project 
conditions.  


Municipality or municipal: The county, city or village governmental units enacting, 
administering and enforcing this zoning ordinance.  


NAVD or North American Vertical Datum: Elevations referenced to mean sea level datum, 
1988 adjustment.  


NGVD or National Geodetic Vertical Datum: Elevations referenced to mean sea level 
datum, 1929 adjustment.  


New construction: For floodplain management purposes, "new construction" means 
structures for which the start of construction commenced on or after the effective date of 
floodplain zoning regulations adopted by this community and includes any subsequent 
improvements to such structures. For the purpose of determining flood insurance rates, it 
includes any structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the effective 
date of an initial FIRM or after December 31, 1974, whichever is later, and includes any 
subsequent improvements to such structures.  


Nonconforming structure: An existing lawful structure or building which is not in 
conformity with the dimensional or structural requirements of this ordinance for the area of the 
floodplain which it occupies. (For example, an existing residential structure in the floodfringe 
district is a conforming use. However, if the lowest floor is lower than the flood protection 
elevation, the structure is nonconforming.)  


Nonconforming use: An existing lawful use or accessory use of a structure or building 
which is not in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance for the area of the floodplain 
which it occupies. (Such as a residence in the floodway.)  


Non-flood disaster – A fire or an ice storm, tornado, windstorm, mudslide or other 
destructive act of nature, but excludes a flood. 


Obstruction to flow: Any development which blocks the conveyance of floodwaters such 
that this development alone or together with any future development will cause an increase in 
regional flood height.  


Official floodplain zoning map: That map, adopted and made part of this ordinance, as 
described in subsection 30-5(b), which has been approved by the DNR and FEMA.  


Open space use: Those uses having a relatively low flood damage potential and not 
involving structures.  


Ordinary high-water mark: The point on the bank or shore up to which the presence and 
action of surface water is so continuous as to leave a distinctive mark such as by erosion, 
destruction or prevention of terrestrial vegetation, predominance of aquatic vegetation, or other 
easily recognized characteristic.  


Person: An individual, or group of individuals, corporation, partnership, association, 
municipality or state agency.  







 


 


Private sewage system: A sewage treatment and disposal system serving one structure with 
a septic tank and soil absorption field located on the same parcel as the structure. It also means 
an alternative sewage system approved by the Department of Safety and Professional Services, 
including a substitute for the septic tank or soil absorption field, a holding tank, a system serving 
more than one structure or a system located on a different parcel than the structure.  


Public utilities: Those utilities using underground or overhead transmission lines such as 
electric, telephone and telegraph, and distribution and collection systems such as water, sanitary 
sewer and storm sewer.  


Reasonably safe from flooding: Means base flood waters will not inundate the land or 
damage structures to be removed from the floodplain and that any subsurface waters related to 
the base flood will not damage existing or proposed buildings.  


Regional flood: A flood determined to be representative of large floods known to have 
occurred in Wisconsin. A regional flood is a flood with a one percent chance of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year, and if depicted on the FIRM, the RFE is equivalent to the BFE.  


Start of construction: The date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of 
construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement 
was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first placement of 
permanent construction on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, 
the construction of columns, or any work beyond initial excavation, or the placement of a 
manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, 
such as clearing, grading and filling, nor does it include the installation of streets and/or 
walkways, nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the 
erection of temporary forms, nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory 
buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main 
structure. For an alteration, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, 
ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the 
external dimensions of the building.  


Structure: Any manmade object with form, shape and utility, either permanently or 
temporarily attached to, placed upon or set into the ground, stream bed or lake bed, including, 
but not limited to, roofed and walled buildings, gas or liquid storage tanks, bridges, dams and 
culverts.  


Subdivision: Has the meaning given in § 236.02(12), Wis. Stats.  


Substantial damage: Damage of any origin sustained by a structure, whereby the cost of 
restoring the structure to its pre-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the 
equalized assessed value of the structure before the damage occurred.  


Substantial improvement: Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or 
improvement of a building or structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 
equalized assessed value of the structure before the improvement or repair is started. If the 
structure has sustained substantial damage, any repairs are considered substantial improvement 
regardless of the work performed. The term does not, however, include either any project for the 
improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary or safety code violations 
identified by the building official and that are the minimum necessary to assure safe living 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


conditions; or any alteration of a historic structure provided that the alteration will not preclude 
the structure's continued designation as a historic structure.  


Unnecessary hardship: Where special conditions affecting a particular property, which were 
not self-created, have made strict conformity with restrictions governing areas, setbacks, 
frontage, height or density unnecessarily burdensome or unreasonable in light of the purposes of 
the ordinance.  


Variance: An authorization by the board of adjustment/appeals for the construction or 
maintenance of a building or structure in a manner which is inconsistent with dimensional 
standards (not uses) contained in the floodplain zoning ordinance.  


Violation: The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 
floodplain zoning ordinance. A structure or other development without required permits, lowest 
floor elevation documentation, flood-proofing certificates or required floodway encroachment 
calculations is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.  


Watershed: The entire region contributing runoff or surface water to a watercourse or body 
of water.  


Water surface profile: A graphical representation showing the elevation of the water surface 
of a watercourse for each position along a reach of river or stream at a certain flood flow. A 
water surface profile of the regional flood is used in regulating floodplain areas.  


Well: An excavation opening in the ground made by digging, boring, drilling, driving or 
other methods, to obtain groundwater regardless of its intended use.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Secs. 30-8—30-1920. Reserved. 


ARTICLE II. GENERAL STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ALL FLOODPLAIN 
DISTRICTS 
Sec. 30-20.  General Standards. 
(a)  The community shall review all permit applications to determine whether the proposed 
building sites will be reasonably safe from flooding and assure that all necessary permits have 
been received from those governmental agencies whose approval is required by federal or state 
law. 


 (1)       If a proposed building site is in a flood-prone area, all new construction and 
substantial improvements shall: 


  a. be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 
movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic 
loads, including the effects of buoyancy; 


b. be constructed with flood-resistant materials; 
c. be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damages; and 
d. be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air 


conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are designed and/or 
located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the 
components during conditions of flooding. 







 
 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 
  


 
 (2) If a subdivision or other proposed new development is in a flood-prone area, the 
community shall assure that: 


a. such proposed subdivision or other proposed new development is 
consistent with the need to minimize flood damage within the flood-prone 
area; 


b. public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water 
systems are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood 
damage; and 


c. adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards. 
 
All subdivision proposals (including manufactured home parks) shall include regional 
flood elevation and floodway data for any development that meets the subdivision 
definition of this ordinance and all other requirements in section 30-71(b). 
 


Sec. 30-21. Hydraulic and hydrologic analyses. 
(a) No floodplain development shall:  


(1) Obstruct flow, defined as development which blocks the conveyance of 
floodwaters by itself or with other development, causing any increase in the regional 
flood height; or  


(2) Cause any increase in the regional flood height due to floodplain storage area lost.  


(b) The zoning administrator shall deny permits if it is determined the proposed development 
will obstruct flow or cause any increase in the regional flood height, based on the officially 
adopted FIRM or other adopted map, unless the provisions of Article IX Amendments are 
met.  


Sec. 30-22. Watercourse alterations. 
No land use permit to alter or relocate a watercourse in a mapped floodplain shall be issued 


until the City of Stoughton Department of Planning and Development has notified in writing 
including all adjacent municipalities, the DNR and FEMA regional offices, and requires the 
applicant to secure all necessary state and federal permits. The standards of sec. 30-21 must be 
met and the flood carrying capacity of any altered or relocated watercourse shall be maintained.  


As soon as is practicable, but not later than six months after the date of the watercourse 
alteration or relocation and pursuant to Article IX Amendments, the community shall apply for a 
Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) from FEMA. Any such alterations must be reviewed and 
approved by FEMA and the DNR through the LOMC process.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-23. Chapter 30, 31, Wis. Stats., Development. 
Development which requires a permit from the DNR, under Wis. Stats., chs. 30 and 31, 


such as docks, piers, wharves, bridges, culverts, dams and navigational aids, may be allowed if 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


the necessary permits are obtained and amendments to the floodplain zoning ordinance are made 
according to Article IX Amendments.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, adopted Apr. 12, 2016, changed the title of § 30-23 from "Development" to 
read as set out herein.  


Sec. 30-24. Public or private campgrounds. 
Public or private campgrounds shall have low flood damage potential and shall meet the 


following provisions:  


(1) The campground is approved by the Department of health and family services 
Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection;  


(2) A land use permit for the campground is issued by the zoning administrator;  


(3) The character of the river system and the elevation of the campground are such 
that a 72-hour warning of an impending flood can be given to all campground 
occupants;  


(4) There is an adequate flood warning procedure for the campground that offers the 
minimum notice required under this section to all persons in the campground. This 
procedure shall include a written agreement between the campground owner, the 
municipal emergency government coordinator and the chief law enforcement official 
which specifies the flood elevation at which evacuation shall occur, personnel 
responsible for monitoring flood elevations, types of warning systems to be used and 
the procedures for notifying at-risk parties, and the methods and personnel responsible 
for conducting the evacuation;  


(5) This agreement shall be for no more than one calendar year, at which time the 
agreement shall be reviewed and updated, by the officials identified in subsection (4) 
above, to remain in compliance with all applicable regulations, including those of the 
state department of health services and all other applicable regulations;  


(6) Only camping units that are fully licensed, if required, and ready for highway use 
are allowed;  All mobile recreational vehicles placed on the site must meet one of the 
following: 


  a. Be fully licensed, if required, and ready for highway use; or  


  b. Not occupy any site in the campground for more than 180 consecutive 
days, at which time the camping unit must be removed from the floodplain for a 
minimum of 24 hours; or 


  c. Meet the requirements of either Article III, IV or V for the floodplain 
district in which the structure is located; 
A mobile recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or 
jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect utilities and security 
devices and has no permanently attached additions. 







 


 


 


(7) The camping units shall not occupy any site in the campground for more than 180 
consecutive days, at which time the camping unit must be removed from the floodplain 
for a minimum of 24 hours;  


(78) All camping units that remain on site for more than 30 days shall be issued a 
limited authorization by the campground operator, a written copy of which is kept on 
file at the campground. Such authorization shall allow placement of a camping unit for 
a period not to exceed 180 days consistent with section 30-24(6) and shall ensure 
compliance with all the provisions of this section;  


(89) The municipality shall monitor the limited authorizations issued by the 
campground operator to assure compliance with the terms of this section;  


(10) All camping units that remain in place for more than 180 consecutive days must 
meet the applicable requirements in either article III, IV or V for the floodplain district 
in which the structure is located;  


(91) The campground shall have signs clearly posted at all entrances warning of the 
flood hazard and the procedures for evacuation when a flood warning is issued;  


(102) All service facilities, including but not limited to refuse collection, electrical 
service, gas lines, propane tanks, sewage systems and wells shall be properly anchored 
and placed at or floodproofed to the flood protection elevation.  


 
(11) Standards for structures in a campground: 


 
(a)  All structures must comply with section 30-24 or meet the applicable 


requirements in ss. Article III, Article IV, or Article V for the floodplain district 
in which the structure is located; 
 


(b)  Deck / landing-a portable landing may be allowed for a camping unit for each 
entry provided that the landing is not permanently attached to the ground or 
camping unit, is no more than 200 square feet in size, shall be portable, contain 
no walls or roof, and can be removed from the campground by a truck and/or 
trailer. Sections of such portable landings may be placed together to form a single 
deck not greater than 200 square feet at one entry point.  Provisions for the 
removal of these temporary landings during flood events must be addressed 
within the written agreement with the municipality compliant with section 2.4(4).  
Any such deck/landing structure may be constructed at elevations lower than the 
flood protection elevation but must not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any 
increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the regional flood. 


 
(c)  Decks/patios that are constructed completely at grade may be allowed, but must 


also comply with applicable shoreland zoning standards. 
 


(d) Camping equipment and appurtenant equipment in the campground  may 
be allowed provided that the equipment is not permanently attached to the 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


ground or camping unit, is not used as a habitable structure, and must not 
obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase in flood levels during the 
occurrence of the regional flood.  Provisions for the removal of this equipment 
during flooding events shall be addressed within the written agreement with the 
municipality compliant with section 2.4(4). 


 
(e) Once a flood warning in the written agreement has been issued for the 


campground, the campground owner or the designated operator shall ensure that 
all persons, camping units, decks, camping equipment and appurtenant 
equipment in the campground shall be evacuated within the timelines specified 
within the written agreement with the municipality compliant with section 2.4(4). 


 
(12) A land use permit shall be obtained as provided under 30-71(b) before any 


development; repair, modification or addition to an existing structure; or change in the 
use of a building or structure, including sewer and water facilities, may be initiated. 


Secs. 30-25—30-30. Reserved. 


 
 
 
 
 
 


ARTICLE III. FLOODWAY DISTRICT (FW) 


Sec. 30-31. Applicability. 
This section applies to all floodway areas on the floodplain zoning maps and those 


identified pursuant to section 30-54.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-32. Permitted uses. 
The following open space uses are allowed in the floodway district and the floodway areas 


of the general floodplain district, if:  


• They are not prohibited by any other ordinance;  


• They meet the standards in sections 30-33 and 30-34; and  


• All permits or certificates have been issued according to section 30-71:  


(1) Agricultural uses, such as: farming, outdoor plant nurseries, horticulture, 
viticulture and wild crop harvesting.  


(2) Nonstructural industrial and commercial uses, such as loading areas, parking areas 
and airport landing strips.  







 


 


 
    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 19 of 50 


(3) Nonstructural recreational uses, such as golf courses, tennis courts, archery 
ranges, picnic grounds, boat ramps, swimming areas, parks, wildlife and nature 
preserves, game farms, fish hatcheries, shooting, trap and skeet activities, hunting and 
fishing areas and hiking and horseback riding trails, subject to the fill limitations of 
subsection 30-33(d).  


(4) Uses or structures accessory to open space uses, or classified as historic structures 
that comply with sections 30-33 and 30-34.  


(5) Extraction of sand, gravel or other materials that comply with subsection 30-
33(d).  


(6) Functionally water-dependent uses, such as docks, piers or wharves, dams, 
flowage areas, culverts, navigational aids and river crossings of transmission lines, and 
pipelines that comply with Wis. Stats., chs. 30, 31.  


(7) Public utilities, streets and bridges that comply with subsection 30-33(c).  


(8) Portable latrines that are removed prior to flooding and systems associated with 
recreational areas and Department-approved campgrounds that meet the applicable 
provisions of local ordinances and ch. SPS 383, Wis. Adm. Code. 


(9) Public or private wells used to obtain potable water for recreational areas that 
meet the requirements of local ordinances and chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. 
Code. 


(10) Wastewater treatment ponds or facilities permitted under s. NR 110.15(3)(b), Wis. 
Adm. Code. 


(11) Sanitary sewer or water supply lines to service existing or proposed development 
located outside the floodway that complies with the regulations for the floodplain area 
occupied. 


 
(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-33. Standards for developments in floodway areas. 
(a) General. 


(1) Any development in the floodway shall comply with article II and have low flood 
damage potential.  


(2) Applicants shall provide  the following data to determine the effects of the 
proposal according to section 30-21 and 30-71(b)(3):   an analysis calculating the 
effects of this proposal on the regional flood height to determine the effects of the 
proposal according to section 30-21 and section 30-71(b)(3). The analysis must be 
completed by a registered professional engineer in the state of Wisconsin. 
a. A cross-section elevation view of the proposal, perpendicular to the watercourse, 


showing if the proposed development will obstruct flow; or  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


b. An analysis calculating the effects of this proposal on regional flood height.  


(3) The zoning administrator shall deny the permit application if the project will 
cause any increase in the flood elevations upstream or downstream, based on the data 
submitted for subsection (2) above.  


Any encroachment in the regulatory floodway is prohibited unless the data 
submitted for section 30-33(a)(2) above demonstrates that the encroachment will cause 
no increase in flood elevations in flood events up to the base flood at any location or 
removes the encroached area from the regulatory floodway as  provided in section 30-
5(e). 


(b) Structures: Structures accessory to permanent open space uses or functionally dependent 
on a waterfront location may be allowed by permit if the structures comply with the 
following criteria:  


(1) The structures are not designed for human habitation and do not have a high flood 
damage potential and is constructed to minimize flood damage;  


(2) Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or flood proofed to or above 
the flood protection elevation;  


(3) The structures must be anchored to resist floatation, collapse, and lateral 
movement; and  


(4) The structure must not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase in 
flood levels during the occurrence of the regional flood.  


(5) The structure shall have a minimum of two openings on different walls having a 
total net area not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area, and 
the bottom of all such openings being no higher than one foot above grade. The 
openings shall be equipped with screens, louvers, or other coverings or devices 
provided they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.  


For a structure designed to allow the automatic entry of floodwaters below 
the Regional Flood Elevation, the applicant shall submit a plan that meets s. 
3.3(2)(a) through 3.3(2)(e) and meets or exceeds the following standards: 


a. the lowest floor must be elevated to or above the regional flood 
elevation; 


b. a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than 
one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding; 


c. the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above the 
lowest adjacent grade; openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, 
valves, or other coverings or devices provided that they permit the 
automatic entry and exit of floodwaters, otherwise must remain open. 







 


 


d. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited 
storage. 


 


(6) The structure shall either have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood 
protection elevation or shall meet all the following standards: 


a. Have the lowest floor elevated to or above the regional flood elevation and be dry 
floodproofed so that the structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to 
the passage of water and completely dry to the flood protection elevation without 
human intervention during flooding; 


b. Have structural components capable of meeting all provisions of Section 3.3(2)(g) 
and; 


c. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect, through the use of a 
Federal Emergency Management Agency Floodproofing Certificate, that the design 
and methods of construction are in accordance with Section 3.3(2)(g). 


 


(7) Certification: Whenever floodproofing measures are required, a registered 
professional engineer or architect shall certify that the following floodproofing 
measures will be utilized, where appropriate, and are adequate to withstand the flood 
depths, pressures, velocities, impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with 
the regional flood: 


     a. Reinforcement of floors and walls to resist rupture, collapse, or lateral movement 
caused by water pressures or debris buildup; 


b. Construction of wells, water supply systems and waste treatment systems so as to 
prevent the entrance of flood waters in such systems and must be in accordance with 
provisions in Sections 3.4(4) and 3.4(5); 


c. Subsurface drainage systems to relieve external pressures on foundation walls and 
basement floors; 


d. Cutoff valves on sewer lines or the elimination of gravity flow basement drains; 
and 


e. Placement of utilities to or above the flood protection elevation. 
 
(c) Public utilities, streets and bridges may be allowed by permit, if:  


(1) Adequate floodproofing measures are provided to the flood protection elevation; 
and  


(2) Construction meets the development standards of section 30-21.  


(d) Fills or deposition of materials may be allowed by permit, if:  


(1) The requirements of section 30-21 are met;  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(2) No material is deposited in the navigable waters unless a permit is issued by the 
DNR pursuant to Wis. Stats., ch. 30, and a permit pursuant to § 404 of the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1344 has been issued, if 
applicable, and all other requirements have been met;  


(3) The fill or other materials will be protected against erosion by riprap, vegetative 
cover, sheet piling or bulkheading; and  


(4) The fill is not classified as a solid or hazardous material.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-31-2013, § 1, 12-10-2013; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 
9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-34. Prohibited uses. 
All uses not listed as permitted uses in section 30-32 are prohibited, including the following 


uses:  


(1) Habitable structures, structures with high flood damage potential, or those not 
associated with permanent open-space uses;  


(2) Storing materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, injurious to property, 
water quality, or human, animal, plant, fish or other aquatic life;  


(3) Uses not in harmony with or detrimental to uses permitted in the adjoining 
districts;  


(4) Any private or public sewage systems, except portable latrines that are removed 
prior to flooding and systems associated with recreational areas and DNR-approved 
campgrounds that meet the applicable provisions of local ordinances and ch. SPS 383, 
Wis. Adm. Code;  


(5) Any public or private wells which are used to obtain potable water, except those 
for recreational areas that meet the requirements of local ordinances and chs. NR 811 
and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code;  


(6) Any solid or hazardous waste disposal sites;  


(7) Any wastewater treatment ponds or facilities, except those permitted under § NR 
110.15(3)(b), Wis. Adm. Code; and  


(8) Any sanitary sewer or water supply lines, except those to service existing or 
proposed development located outside the floodway which complies with the 
regulations for the floodplain area occupied.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Secs. 30-35—30-40. Reserved. 


ARTICLE IV. FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT (FF) 







 


 


 
    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:15 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 23 of 50 


Sec. 30-41. Applicability. 
This section applies to all floodfringe areas shown on the floodplain zoning maps and those 


identified pursuant to section 30-54.  
(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-42. Permitted uses. 
Any structure, land use, or development is allowed in the floodfringe district if the standards 


in section 30-43 are met, the use is not prohibited by this or any other ordinance or regulation 
and all permits or certificates specified in section 30-71 have been issued.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008) 


Sec. 30-43. Standards for development in the floodfringe. 
(a) All of the provisions of section 30-21 shall apply according to the use requested. Any 


existing structure in the floodfringe must meet the requirements of Article VII Non-
conforming Uses;  


(b) Residential uses. Any structure, including a manufactured home, which is to be newly 
constructed or moved into the floodfringe area, shall meet or exceed the following 
standards. Any existing structure in the floodfringe must meet the requirements of Article 
VII, Non-conforming Uses;  


(1) The elevation of the lowest floor shall be at or above the flood protection 
elevation on fill unless the requirements of sec. 30-43(b)(2) can be met. The fill shall 
be one foot or more above the regional flood elevation extending at least 15 feet 
beyond the limits of the structure;  


All new construction, including placement of manufactured homes, and 
substantial improvement of residential structures, shall have the lowest floor 
elevated to or above the flood protection elevation on fill. The fill around the 
structure shall be one foot or more above the regional flood elevation extending at 
least 15 feet beyond the limits of the structure. No area may be removed from      
the floodfringe district unless it can be shown to meet section 30-5(e). 


 


(2) The basement or crawlway floor may be placed at the regional flood elevation if it 
is dry floodproofed to the flood protection elevation. No basement or crawlway floor is 
allowed below the regional flood elevation;  


Notwithstanding section 30-43(b)(1) a basement or crawlspace floor may be 
placed at the regional flood elevation if the basement or crawlspace is designed to 
make all portions of the structure below the flood protection elevation watertight with 
walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and 
effects of buoyancy. No floor of any kind is allowed below the regional flood elevation; 


(3) Contiguous dryland access shall be provided from a structure to land outside of 
the floodplain, except as provided in subsection (4) (below).  


(4) In developments where existing street or sewer line elevations make compliance 
with subsection (3) (above) impractical, the municipality may permit new development 
and substantial improvements where roads are below the regional flood elevation, if:  


a. The municipality has written assurance from police, fire and emergency services 
that rescue and relief will be provided to the structure(s) by wheeled vehicles 
during a regional flood event; or  


b. The municipality has a DNR approved emergency evacuation plan that follows 
acceptable hazard mitigation planning guidelines.  


(c) Accessory structures or uses. 


(1) In addition to Article II, new construction and substantial improvements of 
Aaccessory structures shall be constructed on fill with the lowest floor at or above the 
regional flood elevation.  


(d) Commercial uses. Any commercial structure which is erected, altered or moved into the 
floodfringe shall meet the requirements of sec. 30-43 (b). Subject to the requirements of sec. 
30-43 (f), storage yards, surface parking lots and other such uses may be placed at lower 
elevations if an adequate warning system exists to protect life and property.  


(e) Manufacturing and industrial uses. Any manufacturing or industrial structure which is 
erected, altered or moved into the floodfringe shall have the lowest floor elevated to or 
above the flood protection elevation or meet the floodproofing standards in sec. 30-75. 
Subject to the requirements of subsection (f) below, storage yards, surface parking lots and 
other such uses may be placed at lower elevations if an adequate warning system exists to 
protect life and property.  


(f) Storage of materials. Materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or injurious to 
property, water quality or human, animal, plant, fish or aquatic life shall be stored at or 
above the flood protection elevation or floodproofed in compliance with section 30-75. 
Adequate measures shall be taken to ensure that such materials will not enter the water body 
during flooding.  


(g) Public utilities, streets and bridges. All utilities, streets and bridges shall be designed to 
be compatible with comprehensive floodplain development plans; and  


(1) When failure of public utilities, streets and bridges would endanger public health 
or safety, or where such facilities are deemed essential, construction or repair of such 
facilities shall only be permitted if they are designed to comply with sec. 30-75;  


(2) Minor roads or nonessential utilities may be constructed at lower elevations if 
they are designed to withstand flood forces to the regional flood elevation.  







 


 


(h) Sewage systems. All sewage disposal systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 
infiltration of flood water into the system, pursuant to section 30-75(c), to the flood 
protection elevation and meet the provisions of all local ordinances and ch. SPS 383, Wis. 
Adm. Code.  


(i) Wells. All wells shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters 
into the system, pursuant to section 30-75(c), to the flood protection elevation and shall 
meet the provisions of chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code.  


(j) Solid waste disposal sites. Disposal of solid or hazardous waste is prohibited in 
floodfringe areas.  


(k) Deposition of materials. Any deposited material must meet all the provisions of this 
ordinance.  


(l) Manufactured homes. 


(1) Owners or operators of all manufactured home parks and subdivisions shall 
provide adequate surface drainage to minimize flood damage, and prepare, secure 
approval and file an evacuation plan, indicating vehicular access and escape routes, 
with local emergency management authorities.  


(2) In existing manufactured home parks, all new homes, replacement homes on 
existing pads, and substantially improved homes shall:  


a. Have the lowest floor elevated to the flood protection elevation; and  


b. Be anchored so they do not float, collapse or move laterally during a flood.  


(3) Outside of existing manufactured home parks, including new manufactured home 
parks and all single units outside of existing parks, all new, replacement and 
substantially improved manufactured homes shall meet the residential development 
standards for the floodfringe in subsection (b) above.  


(m) Mobile recreational vehicles. All mobile recreational vehicles must be that are on site for 
less than 180 consecutive days and be either or more or are not fully licensed and ready for 
highway use or shall meet the elevation and anchoring requirements in subsection 30-
43(l)(2) and (3) above.  


A mobile recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking 
system, is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect utilities and security devices and has 
no permanently attached additions.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-44. Other floodplain districts. 
Other floodplain districts may be established under the ordinance and reflected on the 


floodplain zoning map. These districts may include general floodplain districts and flood storage 
districts.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Secs. 30-45—30-50. Reserved. 


ARTICLE V. GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT (GFP) 


Sec. 30-51. Applicability. 
The provisions for this district shall apply to all floodplains mapped as A, AE, AO or AH 


zones within which a floodway is not delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps identified in 
section 30-5. 


Floodway Boundaries: For proposed development in zone A, or in zone AE within 
which a floodway is not delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Map identified in section 
30-5(b), the boundaries of the regulatory floodway shall be determined pursuant to section 
30-54. If the development is proposed to encroach upon the regulatory floodway, the 
development is subject to the standards of Article III. If the development is located entirely 
within the floodfringe, the development is subject to the standards of Article IV. 


  
(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-52. Permitted uses. 
Pursuant to section 30-54, it shall be determined whether the proposed use is located within 


the floodway or floodfringe.  


Those uses permitted in the floodway (section 30-32) and floodfringe (section 30-42) 
districts are allowed within the general floodplain district, according to the standards of section 
30-53, provided that all permits or certificates required under section 30-71 have been issued.  
(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-53. Standards for development in the general floodplain district. 
Article III applies to floodway areas, determined pursuant to section 30-54; article IV 


applies to floodfringe areas determined pursuant to section 30-54. The rest of this ordinance 
applies to either district.  


(1) New construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AO shall 
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated:  In AO/AH zones, the structure's 
lowest floor must meet one of the conditions listed below whichever is higher:  


a. to or above the depth, in feet, as shown on the FIRM, to or above the highest 
adjacent natural grade; or  at or above the flood protection elevation; or  


b. if the depth is not specified on the FIRM, to or above two (2) feet above the 
highest adjacent grade. around the structure; or  


c. the depth as shown on the FIRM.  


(2) In AO/AH zones, provide plans showing adequate drainage paths to guide 
floodwaters around structures.  







 


 


 
    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:16 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 27 of 50 


(3) New Construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AH shall 
have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the flood protection 
elevation. 


(4) All development in zones AO and zone AH shall meet the requirements of Article 
IV applicable to flood fringe areas. 


 


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-54. Determining floodway and floodfringe limits. 
Upon receiving an application for development within zone A, or within zone AE where a 


floodway has not been delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps, the general floodplain 
district, the zoning administrator shall:  


(1) Require the applicant to submit two copies of an aerial photograph or a plan 
which shows the proposed development with respect to the general floodplain district 
limits, stream channel, and existing floodplain developments, along with a legal 
description of the property, fill limits and elevations, building floor elevations and 
flood proofing measures; and the flood zone as shown on the FIRM and flood proofing 
measures;  


(2) Require the applicant to furnish any of the following information deemed 
necessary by the DNR to evaluate the effects of the proposal upon flood height and 
flood flows, regional flood elevation and to determine floodway boundaries:  


a. A hydrologic and hydraulic study as specified in sec. 30-71(b)(3);  


b. Plan (surface view) showing elevations or contours of the ground; pertinent 
structure, fill or storage elevations; size, location and layout of all proposed and 
existing structures on the site; location and elevations of streets, water supply, and 
sanitary facilities; soil types and other pertinent information;  


c. Specifications for building construction and materials, floodproofing, filling, 
dredging, channel improvement, storage, water supply and sanitary facilities.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


ARTICLE VI. FLOOD STORAGE DISTRICT 


Sec. 30-55. Flood storage district. 
The flood storage district delineates that portion of the floodplain where storage of 


floodwaters has been taken into account and is relied upon to reduce the regional flood 
discharge. The district protects the flood storage areas and assures that any development in the 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


storage areas will not decrease the effective flood storage capacity which would cause higher 
flood elevations.  


(Ord. No. 0-15-2014, 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-56. Applicability. 
The provisions of this section apply to all areas within the flood storage district (FSD), as 


shown on the official floodplain zoning maps.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009) 


Sec. 30-57. Permitted uses. 
Any use or development which occurs in a flood storage district must meet the applicable 


requirements in section 30-43.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009) 


Sec. 30-58. Standards for development in flood storage districts. 
(a) Development in a flood storage district shall not cause an increase equal or greater than 


0.00 of a foot in the height of the regional flood.  


(b) No development shall be allowed which removes flood storage volume unless an equal 
volume of storage as defined by the pre-development ground surface and the regional flood 
elevation shall be provided in the immediate area of the proposed development to 
compensate for the volume of storage which is lost, (compensatory storage). Excavation 
below the groundwater table is not considered to provide an equal volume of storage.  


(c) If compensatory storage cannot be provided, the area may not be developed unless the 
entire area zoned as flood storage district - on this waterway - is rezoned to the floodfringe 
district. This must include a revision to the floodplain study and map done for the waterway 
to revert to the higher regional flood discharge calculated without floodplain storage, as per 
Article IX Amendments of this ordinance.  


(d) No area may be removed from the flood storage district unless it can be shown that the 
area has been filled to the flood protection elevation and is contiguous to other lands lying 
outside of the floodplain.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Secs. 30-59, 30-60. Reserved. 


ARTICLE VII. NONCONFORMING USES1 


                                                 
1Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, adopted Dec. 8, 2009, renumbered Art. VI as Art. VII.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


Sec. 30-61. General. 
(a) Applicability.  If these standards conform with Wis. Stats., § 62.23(7)(h), for cities, they 


shall apply to all modifications or additions to any nonconforming use or structure and to 
the use of any structure or premises which was lawful before the passage of this ordinance 
or any amendment thereto.  


(1) The standards in this section shall apply to all uses and buildings that do not 
conform to the provisions contained within a floodplain zoning ordinance or with s. 
87.30, Stats. and § NR 116.12-14, Wis. Adm. Code and 44 CFR 59-72., these standards 
shall apply to all modifications or additions to any nonconforming use or structure and to 
the use of any structure or premises which was lawful before the passage of this 
ordinance or any amendment thereto. A party asserting existence of a lawfully 
established nonconforming use or structure has the burden of proving that the use or 
structure was compliant with the floodplain zoning ordinance in effect at the time the 
use or structure was created. 


 
(2) As permit applications are received for additions, modifications, or 
substantial improvements to nonconforming buildings in the floodplain, 
municipalities shall develop a list of those nonconforming buildings, their present 
equalized assessed value and a list of the costs of those activities associated with 
changes to those buildings. 


 


(b) The existing lawful use of a structure or its accessory use which is not in conformity with 
the provisions of this ordinance may continue subject to the following conditions:  


(1) No modifications or additions to a nonconforming use or structure shall be 
permitted unless they comply with this ordinance. The words "modification" and 
"addition" include, but are not limited to, any alteration, addition, modification, 
structural repair, rebuilding or replacement of any such existing use, structure or 
accessory structure or use. Maintenance is not considered a modification this includes 
painting, decorating, paneling and other nonstructural components and the 
maintenance, repair or replacement of existing private sewage or water supply systems 
or connections to public utilities. Any costs associated with the repair of a damaged 
structure are not considered maintenance.  


The construction of a deck that does not exceed 200 square feet and that is adjacent to 
the exterior wall of a principal structure is not an extension, modification or addition. 
The roof of the structure may extend over a portion of the deck in order to provide safe 
ingress and egress to the principal structure.  


(2) If a nonconforming use or the use of a nonconforming structure is discontinued 
for 12 consecutive months, it is no longer permitted and any future use of the property, 
and any structure or building thereon, shall conform to the applicable requirements of 
this ordinance;  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(3) The municipality shall keep a record which lists all nonconforming uses and 
nonconforming structures, their present equalized assessed value, the cost of all 
modifications or additions which have been permitted, and the percentage of the 
structure's total current value those modifications represent;  


(4) No modification or addition to any nonconforming structure or any structure with 
a nonconforming use, which over the life of the structure would equal or exceed 50 
percent of its present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire 
structure is permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in 
compliance with the applicable requirements of this ordinance. Contiguous dry land 
access must be provided for residential and commercial uses in compliance with 
subsection 30- 43(b). The costs of elevating the lowest floor of a nonconforming 
building or a building with a nonconforming use to the flood protection elevation are 
excluded from the 50 percent provisions of this paragraph;  


(5) No maintenance on a per event basis to any nonconforming structure or any 
structure with a nonconforming use, the cost of which would equal or exceed 50 
percent of its present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire 
structure is permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in 
compliance with the applicable requirements of this ordinance. Contiguous dry land 
access must be provided for residential and commercial uses in compliance with sec. 
30-43 (b).  Maintenance to any nonconforming structure, which does not exceed 50% 
of its present equalized assessed value on a per event basis, done not count against the 
cumulative calculations over the life of the structure for substantial improvement 
calculations. 


(6) If on a per event basis the total value of the work being done under (4) and (5) 
above equals or exceeds 50 percent of the present equalized assessed value of the work 
shall not be permitted unless the entire structure is permanently changed to a 
conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable 
requirements of the ordinance. Contiguous dry land access must be provided for 
residential and commercial uses in compliance with sec. 30-43(b).  


(7) Except as provided in this sec. (8) below, if any nonconforming structure or any 
structure with a nonconforming use is destroyed or is substantially damaged, it cannot 
be replaced, reconstructed or rebuilt unless the use and the structure meet the current 
ordinance requirements. A structure is considered substantially damaged if the total 
cost to restore the structure to its pre-damaged condition equals or exceeds 50 percent 
of the structure's equalized assessed value.  


(8) For nonconforming buildings that are substantially damaged or destroyed by a 
non-flood disaster, the repair or reconstruction of any such nonconforming building 
shall be permitted in order to restore it to the size and use in effect prior to the damage 
event, provided that the minimum federal code requirements below are met and all 
required permits have been granted prior to the start of construction.  


a. Residential structures. 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


1. Shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the 
base flood elevation using fill, pilings, columns, posts or perimeter walls. 
Perimeter walls must meet the requirements of sec. 30-75(b).  


2. Shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the 
structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the 
effects of buoyancy and shall be constructed with methods and materials 
resistant to flood damage.  


3. Shall be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air 
conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are designed and/or 
elevated so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the 
components during conditions of flooding.  


4. In A zones, obtain, review and utilize any flood data available from a 
federal, state or other source.  


5. In AO zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, 
including basement, meet the standards in sec. 30-53.  


6. In AO zones, shall have adequate drainage paths around structures on 
slopes to guide floodwaters around and away from the structure.  


b. Nonresidential structures. 


1. Shall meet the requirements of sec. 30-61(b)(8)a.1—6.  


2. Shall either have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or 
above the regional flood elevation; or, together with attendant utility and 
sanitary facilities, shall meet the standards in sec. 30-75(a) or (b).  


3. In AO zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, 
including basement, meet the standards in sec. 30-53.  


c. A nonconforming historic structure may be altered if the alteration will not 
preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure, the alteration 
will comply with subsection 30-33(a), flood resistant materials are used, and 
construction practices and floodproofing methods that comply with section 30-75 
are used. Repair or rehabilitation of historic structures shall be exempt from the 
development standards of sec. 30-61(b)(8)a if it is determined that the proposed 
repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a 
historic structure and is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character 
and design of the structure.  


d. Notwithstanding anything in this chapter to the contrary, modifications, additions, 
maintenance, and repairs to a nonconforming building shall not be prohibited 
based on cost and the building’s nonconforming use shall be permitted to continue 
if: 


 
1. Any living quarters in the nonconforming building are elevated to be at or 


above   the flood protection elevation; 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


 
2. The lowest floor of the nonconforming building, including the basement, 


is elevated to or above the regional flood elevation; 
 


3. The nonconforming building is permanently changed to conform to the                    
applicable requirements of 2.0;  
 


4. If the nonconforming building is in the floodway, the building is 
permanently changed to conform to the applicable requirements of 3.3(1), 
3.3(2)(b) through (e), 3.3(3), 3.3(4), and 6.2.  Any development that adds 
additional fill or creates an encroachment in the floodplain from beyond the 
original nonconforming structure’s 3-D building envelope must determine the 
floodway in accordance with section 5.1(5).  If the encroachment is in the 
floodway it must meet the standards in section 3.3(4); 
 


5. If the nonconforming building is in the floodfringe, the building is 
permanently       changed to conform to the applicable requirements of 4.3 and 
6.3; 
 


6. Repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and substantial 
improvements of residential buildings in zones A1-30, AE, and AH must have 
the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to or above the base flood 
elevation; 
 


7. Repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and substantial 
improvements of non-residential buildings in zones A1-30, AE, and AH must 
have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to or above the base flood 
elevation, or (together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities) be 
designed so that below the base flood elevation the building is watertight with 
walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural 
components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and 
effects of buoyancy: 


 
i.   Where a non-residential structure is intended to be made watertight 


below the base flood elevation, a registered professional engineer or 
architect must develop and/or review structural design, specifications, and 
plans for the construction, and must certify that the design and methods of 
construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for 
meeting the provisions of s. 6.1(4)(g) above. 
 


ii.    The community must maintain a record of such certification including 
the specific elevation to which each such structure is floodproofed; 


 
8. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor of repair or reconstruction of  


nonconforming structures and substantial improvements in zones A1-30, AE, 
and AH that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


storage, must be designed to adequately equalize hydrostatic forces on 
exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters.  Subsequent 
improvements to repaired or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not 
increase the degree of their nonconformity.  Designs for meeting this 
requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or 
architect, or meet the following criteria: 


 
i.    A minimum of two openings into each enclosed area must be located 


below the base flood elevation and provide a total net area of not less than 
one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area. 
 


ii.   The bottom of all openings must be no higher than one foot above the 
adjacent grade. 


 
iii.    Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other 


coverings if they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters; 
 
9. Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within 


zones A1-30, AE, and AH outside of a manufactured home park or 
subdivision, in a new manufactured home park or subdivision, in an expansion 
to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, or in an existing 
manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home has 
incurred substantial damage as a result of flood, must be elevated on a 
permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is 
at or above the base flood elevation, and be securely anchored to an 
adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 
movement; 
 


10. Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within 
zones A1-30, AE, and AH on existing sites in an existing manufactured home 
park that is not undergoing expansion and on which a manufactured home has 
not incurred substantial damage as a result of flood must be elevated so that 
either the lowest floor of the manufactured home is at or above the base flood 
elevation, or the manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers 
or other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less 
than 36 inches in height above grade, and be securely anchored to an 
adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 
movement; 
 


11. Recreational vehicles placed on sites within zones A1-30, AH, and AE 
must either: 


 
i.    Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or 


 
ii.    Be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle is 


ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and 
has no permanently attached additions); or 
 


iii.    Meet the elevation and anchoring requirements for manufactured homes 
in  s. 6.1(4)(i) above; 


 
12. In a regulatory floodway that has been delineated on the FIRM in zone 


A1-30 or AE, encroachments, including repair or reconstruction of 
nonconforming structures , substantial improvement, or other development 
(including fill) must be prohibited unless it has been demonstrated through 
hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard 
engineering practice that the proposed encroachment will not result in any 
increase in flood levels within the community during the occurrence of the 
base flood discharge. Subsequent improvements to repair or reconstructed 
nonconforming structures must not increase the degree of their 
nonconformity; 
 


13. In zone A, the community must obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any 
base flood elevation and floodway data available from a federal, state, or other 
source as criteria for requiring repair or reconstruction of nonconforming 
structures, substantial improvement, and other development to meet  ss. 
6.1(4)(f) through (l) (inclusive) above. Any development that adds additional 
fill or creates an encroachment in the floodplain from beyond the original 
nonconforming structure’s 3-D building envelope must determine the 
floodway in accordance with section 5.1(5).  If the encroachment is in the 
floodway it must meet the standards in section 3.3(4). Subsequent 
improvements to repair or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not 
increase the degree of their nonconformity;   


 
14. In zones A1-30 or AE where a regulatory floodway has not been 


delineated on the FIRM, repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures, 
substantial improvement, or any development that adds additional fill or 
creates an encroachment in the floodplain from beyond the original 
nonconforming structure’s 3-D building envelope must determine the 
floodway in accordance with section 5.1(5). If the encroachment is in the 
floodway it must meet the standards in section 3.3(4). Subsequent 
improvements to repair or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not 
increase the degree of their nonconformity;  


 
15. In zone AO, repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and 


substantial improvements of residential structures must have the lowest floor 
(including basement) elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as 
high as the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM (at least two feet if no 
depth number is specified). Subsequent improvements to repair or 
reconstructed nonconforming structures must not increase the degree of their 
nonconformity; or 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 
16. In zone AO, repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and 


substantial improvements of nonresidential structures must have the lowest 
floor (including basement) elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least 
as high as the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM (at least two feet if 
no depth number is specified), or (together with attendant utility and sanitary 
facilities) be structurally dry-floodproofed to that level according to the 
standard specified in  s. 6.1(4)(g) above. Subsequent improvements to repair 
or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not increase the degree of 
their nonconformity. 


 


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-62. Floodway district. 
(a) No modification or addition shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any 


structure with a nonconforming use in the floodway district, unless such modification or 
addition:  


(1) Has been granted a permit or variance which meets all ordinance requirements;  


(2) Meets the requirements of section 30-61;  


(3) Shall not increase the obstruction to flood flows or regional flood height;  


(4) Any addition to the existing structure shall be floodproofed, pursuant to section 
30-75, by means other than the use of fill, to the flood protection elevation; and  


(5) If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation is enclosed, the 
following standards shall apply:  


a. The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow 
for the efficient entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention. A 
minimum of two openings must be provided with a minimum net area of at least 
one square inch for every one square foot of the enclosed area. The lowest part of 
the opening can be no more than 12 inches above the adjacent grade;  


b. The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be 
constructed of flood resistant materials;  


c. Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above 
the flood protection elevation; and  


d. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage.  


(b) No new on-site sewage disposal system, or addition to an existing on-site sewage 
disposal system, except where an addition has been ordered by a government agency to 
correct a hazard to public health, shall be allowed in the floodway district. Any replacement, 
repair or maintenance of an existing on-site sewage disposal system in a floodway area shall 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


meet the applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, sec. 30-75(c). and ch. SPS 
383 Wis. Adm. Code.  


(c) No new well or modification to an existing well used to obtain potable water shall be 
allowed in the floodway district. Any replacement, repair or maintenance of an existing well 
in the floodway district shall meet the applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, 
sec. 30-75(c) and chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014, 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-63. Floodfringe district. 
(a) No modification or addition shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any 


structure with a nonconforming use unless such modification or addition has been granted a 
permit or variance by the municipality, and meets the requirements of sec. 30-43 except 
where sec. 30-63(b) is applicable.  


(b) Where compliance with the provisions of subsection (a) above would result in 
unnecessary hardship and only where the structure will not be used for human habitation or 
be associated with a high flood damage potential, the board of appeals, using the procedures 
established in section 30-73, may grant a variance from those provisions of subsection (a) 
above for modifications or additions, using the criteria listed below. Modifications or 
additions which are protected to elevations lower than the flood protection elevation may be 
permitted if:  


(1) No floor is allowed below the regional flood elevation for residential or 
commercial structures;  


(2) Human lives are not endangered;  


(3) Public facilities, such as water or sewer, shall not be installed;  


(4) Flood depths shall not exceed two feet;  


(5) Flood velocities shall not exceed two feet per second; and  


(6) The structure shall not be used for storage of materials as described in subsection 
30- 43(f).  


(c) All new private sewage disposal systems or addition to, replacement, repair or 
maintenance of a private sewage disposal system, shall meet all the applicable provisions of 
all local ordinances, sec. 30-75(c) and ch. SPS 383, Wis. Adm. Code.  


(d) All new wells, or addition to, replacement, repair or maintenance of a well shall meet the 
applicable provisions of this ordinance, sec. 30-75(c) and ch. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. 
Adm. Code.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 







 


 


 
    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:16 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 37 of 50 


Sec. 30-64. Flood storage district. 
No modifications or additions shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure in a flood 


storage area unless the standards outlined in section 30-58 are met.  
(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Secs. 30-65—30-69. Reserved. 


ARTICLE VIII. ADMINISTRATION2 


                                                 
2Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, adopted Dec. 8, 2009, renumbered Art. VII as Art. VIII.  


Sec. 30-70. Administration. 
Where a zoning administrator, planning agency or a board of adjustment/appeals has 


already been appointed to administer a zoning ordinance adopted under § 62.23(7), Stats., these 
officials shall also administer this ordinance.  


(Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-71. Zoning administrator. 
(a) The zoning administrator is authorized to administer this ordinance and shall have the 


following duties and powers:  


(1) Advise applicants of the ordinance provisions, assist in preparing permit 
applications and appeals, and assure that the regional flood elevation for the proposed 
development is shown on all permit applications.  


(2) Issue permits and inspect properties for compliance with provisions of this 
ordinance and issue certificates of compliance where appropriate.  


(3) Inspect and assess all damaged floodplain structures to determine if substantial 
damage to the structures has occurred.  


(4) Keep records of all official actions such as:  


a. All permits issued, inspections made, and work approved;  


b. Documentation of certified lowest floor and regional flood elevations;  


c. Water surface profiles, floodplain zoning maps and ordinances, nonconforming 
uses and structures including changes, appeals, variances and amendments;  


d. All substantial damage assessment reports for floodplain structures;  


e. Floodproofing certificates.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


f. List of nonconforming structures and uses.  


(5) Submit copies of the following items to the DNR regional office:  


a. Within ten days of the decision, a copy of any decisions on variances, appeals for 
map or text interpretations, and map or text amendments;  


b. Copies of case-by-case analyses, and other required information including an 
annual summary of floodplain zoning actions taken.  


c. Copies of substantial damage assessments performed and all related 
correspondence concerning the assessments.  


(6) Investigate, prepare reports, and report violations of this ordinance to the 
municipal zoning agency and attorney for prosecution. Copies of the reports shall also 
be sent to the DNR regional office.  


(7) Submit copies of amendments to the FEMA Regional office.  


(b) Land use permit. A land use permit shall be obtained before any new development; 
repair, modification or addition to an existing structure; or change in the use of a building or 
structure, including sewer and water facilities, may be initiated. Application to the zoning 
administrator shall include:  


(1) General information. 


a. Name and address of the applicant, property owner and contractor;  


b. Legal description, proposed use, and whether it is new construction or a 
modification;  


(2) Site development plan. A site plan drawn to scale shall be submitted with the 
permit application form and shall contain:  


a. Location, dimensions, area and elevation of the lot;  


b. Location of the ordinary highwater mark of any abutting navigable waterways;  


c. Location of any structures with distances measured from the lot lines and street 
center lines;  


d. Location of any existing or proposed on-site sewage systems or private water 
supply systems;  


e. Location and elevation of existing or future access roads;  


f. Location of floodplain and floodway limits as determined from the official 
floodplain zoning maps;  


g. The elevation of the lowest floor of proposed buildings and any fill using the 
vertical datum from the adopted study - either National Geodetic Vertical Datum 
(NGVD) or North American Vertical Datum (NAVD);  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


h. Data sufficient to determine the regional flood elevation in NGVD or NAVD at 
the location of the development and to determine whether or not the requirements 
of article III or IV are met; and  


i. Data to determine if the proposed development will cause an obstruction to flow 
or an increase in regional flood height or discharge according to section 30-21. 
This may include any of the information noted in subsection 30-33(a).  


(3) Hydraulic and hydrologic studies to analyze development. All hydraulic and 
hydrologic studies shall be completed under the direct supervision of a professional 
engineer registered in the State. The study contractor shall be responsible for the 
technical adequacy of the study. All studies shall be reviewed and approved by the 
DNR.  


(a) Zone A floodplains and in AE zones within which a floodway is not delineated:  


(1) Hydrology. 


a. The appropriate method shall be based on the standards in ch. NR 
116.07(3), Wis. Admin. Code, Hydrologic Analysis: Determination 
of Regional Flood Elevation Discharge. 


(2) Hydraulic modeling. The regional flood elevation shall be based on the 
standards in ch. NR 116.07(34), Wis Admin. Code, Hydraulic Analysis: 
Determination of Regional Flood Elevation and the following:  


a. Determination of the required limits of the hydraulic model shall 
be based on detailed study information for downstream structures 
(dam, bridge, culvert) to determine adequate starting WSEL for the 
study.  


b. Channel sections must be surveyed.  


c. Minimum four foot contour data in the overbanks shall be used for 
the development of cross section overbank and floodplain 
mapping.  


d. A maximum distance of 500 feet between cross sections is allowed 
in developed areas with additional intermediate cross sections 
required at transitions in channel bottom slope including a survey 
of the channel at each location.  


e. The most current version of HEC-RAS shall be used.  


f. A survey of bridge and culvert openings and the top of road is 
required at each structure.  


g. Additional cross sections are required at the downstream and 
upstream limits of the proposed development and any necessary 
intermediate locations based on the length of the reach if greater 
than 500 feet.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


h. Standard accepted engineering practices shall be used when 
assigning parameters for the base model such as flow, Manning's N 
values, expansion and contraction coefficients or effective flow 
limits. The base model shall be calibrated to past flooding data 
such as high water marks to determine the reasonableness of the 
model results. If no historical data is available, adequate 
justification shall be provided for any parameters outside standard 
accepted engineering practices.  


i. The model must extend past the upstream limit of the difference in 
the existing and proposed flood profiles in order to provide a tie-in 
to existing studies. The height difference between the proposed 
flood profile and the existing study profiles shall be no more than 
0.00 feet.  


(3) Mapping. A work map of the reach studied shall be provided, showing all 
cross section locations, floodway/floodplain limits based on the best 
available topographic data, geographic limits of the proposed development 
and whether the proposed development is located in the floodway.  


a. If the proposed development is located outside of the floodway, 
then it is determined to have no impact on the regional flood 
elevation.  


b. If any part of the proposed development is in the floodway, it must 
be added to the base model to show the difference between existing 
and proposed conditions. The study must ensure that all 
coefficients remain the same as in the existing model, unless 
adequate justification based on standard accepted engineering 
practices is provided.  


(b) Zone AE Floodplains. 


(1) Hydrology. If the proposed hydrology will change the existing study, the 
appropriate method to be used shall be based on ch. NR 116.07(3), Wis. 
Admin. Code, Hydrologic Analysis: Determination of Regional Flood 
Discharge. 


(2) Hydraulic model. The regional flood elevation shall be based on the 
standards in ch. NR 116.07(4), Wis. Admin. Code, Hydraulic Analysis: 
Determination of Regional Flood Elevation and the following:  


a. Duplicate Effective Model. The effective model shall be 
reproduced to ensure correct transference of the model data and to 
allow integration of the revised data to provide a continuous FIS 
model upstream and downstream of the revised reach. If data from 
the effective model is available, models shall be generated that 
duplicate the FIS profiles and the elevations shown in the 
Floodway Data Table in the FIS report to within 0.1 foot.  







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


b. Corrected Effective Model. The Corrected Effective Model shall 
not include any man-made physical changes since the effective 
model date, but shall import the model into the most current 
version of HEC-RAS for DNR review.  


c. Existing (Pre-Project Conditions) Model. The Existing Model shall 
be required to support conclusions about the actual impacts of the 
project associated with the Revised (Post-Project) Model or to 
establish more up-to-date models on which to base the Revised 
(Post-Project) Model.  


d. Revised (Post-Project Conditions) Model. The Revised (Post-
Project Conditions) Model shall incorporate the Existing Model 
and any proposed changes to the topography caused by the 
proposed development. This model shall reflect proposed 
conditions.  


e. All changes to the Duplicate Effective Model and subsequent 
models must be supported by certified topographic information, 
bridge plans, construction plans and survey notes.  


f. Changes to the hydraulic models shall be limited to the stream 
reach for which the revision is being requested. Cross sections 
upstream and downstream of the revised reach shall be identical to 
those in the effective model and result in water surface elevations 
and topwidths computed by the revised models matching those in 
the effective models upstream and downstream of the revised reach 
as required. The Effective Model shall not be truncated.  


(3) Mapping. Maps and associated engineering data shall be submitted to the 
DNR for review which meet the following conditions:  


a. Consistency between the revised hydraulic models, the revised 
floodplain and floodway delineations, the revised flood profiles, 
topographic work map, annotated FIRMs and/or Flood Boundary 
Floodway Maps (FBFMs), construction plans, bridge plans.  


b. Certified topographic map of suitable scale, contour interval, and a 
planimetric map showing the applicable items. If a digital version 
of the map is available, it may be submitted in order that the FIRM 
may be more easily revised.  


c. Annotated FIRM panel showing the revised 1 percent and 0.2 
percent annual chance floodplains and floodway boundaries.  


d. If an annotated FIRM and/or FBFM and digital mapping data (GIS 
or CADD) are used then all supporting documentation or metadata 
must be included with the data submission along with the 
Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) projection and State Plane 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Coordinate System in accordance with FEMA mapping 
specifications.  


e. The revised floodplain boundaries shall tie into the effective 
floodplain boundaries.  


f. All cross sections from the effective model shall be labeled in 
accordance with the effective map and a cross section lookup table 
shall be included to relate to the model input numbering scheme.  


g. Both the current and proposed floodways shall be shown on the 
map.  


h. The stream centerline, or profile baseline used to measure stream 
distances in the model shall be visible on the map.  


(4) Expiration. All permits issued under the authority of this ordinance shall expire 
no more than 180 days after issuance. The permit may be extended for a 
maximum of 180 days for good and sufficient cause. If the permitted work has not 
started within 180 days of the permit date, the development must comply with any 
regulation, including any revision to the FIRM or FIS that took effect after the 
permit date. 


(c) Certificate of compliance. No land shall be occupied or used, and no building which is 
hereafter constructed, altered, added to, modified, repaired, rebuilt or replaced shall be 
occupied until a certificate of compliance is issued by the zoning administrator, except 
where no permit is required, subject to the following provisions:  


(1) The certificate of compliance shall show that the building or premises or part 
thereof, and the proposed use, conform to the provisions of this ordinance;  


(2) Application for such certificate shall be concurrent with the application for a 
permit;  


(3) If all ordinance provisions are met, the certificate of compliance shall be issued 
within ten days after written notification that the permitted work is completed;  


(4) The applicant shall submit a certification signed by a registered professional 
engineer, architect or registered land surveyor that the fill, lowest floor and 
floodproofing elevations are in compliance with the permit issued. Floodproofing 
measures also require certification by a registered professional engineer or architect 
that the requirements of section 30-75 are met.  


(5) Where applicable pursuant to section 30-53, the applicant must submit a 
certification by a registered professional engineer or surveyor of the elevation of the 
bottom of the lowest horizontal structural member supporting the lowest floor 
(excluding pilings or columns), and an indication of whether the structure contains a 
basement. 


(6) Where applicable pursuant to section 30-53, the applicant must submit 
certifications by a registered professional engineer or architect that the structural design 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


and methods of construction meet accepted standards of practice as required by section 
30-53. 


(d) Other permits. Prior to obtaining a floodplain permit, the applicant must secure all 
necessary permits from federal, state, and local agencies, including but not limited to those 
required by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers under § 404 of the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1344.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-72. Zoning agency. 
(a) The city planning commission shall:  


(1) Oversee the functions of the office of the zoning administrator; and  


(2) Review and advise the governing body on all proposed amendments to this 
ordinance, maps and text.; 


(3) Publish adequate notice pursuant to Ch. 985, Stats., specifying the date, time, 
place and subject of the public hearing. 


(b) This zoning administrator or plan commission shall not:  


(1) Grant variances to the terms of the ordinance in place of action by the board of 
appeals; or  


(2) Amend the text or zoning maps in place of official action by the governing body.  
(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-73. Board of adjustment appeals. 
The board of adjustment/appeals, created under Wis. Stats., § 62.23(7)(e), for cities, is 


hereby authorized or shall be appointed to act for the purposes of this ordinance. The board shall 
exercise the powers conferred by Wisconsin Statutes and adopt rules for the conduct of business. 
The zoning administrator shall not be the secretary of the board.  


(1) Powers and duties: The board of adjustment/appeals shall:  


a. Appeals: Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error in any order, 
requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative official in the 
enforcement or administration of this ordinance.  


b. Boundary disputes: Hear and decide disputes concerning the district boundaries 
shown on the official floodplain zoning map.  


c. Variances: Hear and decide, upon appeal, variances from the ordinance standards.  


(2) Appeals to the board: 


a. Appeals to the board may be taken by any person aggrieved, or by any officer or 
department of the municipality affected by any decision of the zoning 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


administrator or other administrative officer. Such appeal shall be taken within 30 
days unless otherwise provided by the rules of the board, by filing with the 
official whose decision is in question, and with the board, a notice of appeal 
specifying the reasons for the appeal. The official whose decision is in question 
shall transmit to the board all records regarding the matter appealed.  


b. Notice and hearing for appeals including variances:  


1. Notice: The board shall:  


i. Fix a reasonable time for the hearing;  


ii. Publish adequate notice pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, specifying 
the date, time, place and subject of the hearing; and  


iii. Assure that notice shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the 
DNR regional office at least ten days in advance of the hearing.  


2. Hearing: Any party may appear in person or by agent or attorney. The 
board shall:  


i. Resolve boundary disputes according to subsection (3) below.  


ii. Decide variance applications according to subsection (4) below.  


iii. Decide appeals of permit denials according to section 30-74.  


c. Decision: The final decision regarding the appeal or variance application shall:  


1. Be made within a reasonable time;  


2. Be sent to the DNR regional office within ten days of the decision;  


3. Be a written determination signed by the chairman or secretary of the 
board;  


4. State the specific facts which are the basis for the board's decision;  


5. Either affirm, reverse, vary or modify the order, requirement, decision or 
determination appealed, in whole or in part, dismiss the appeal for lack of 
jurisdiction or grant or deny the variance application; and  


6. Include the reasons for granting an appeal, describing the hardship 
demonstrated by the applicant in the case of a variance, clearly stated in the 
recorded minutes of the board proceedings.  


(3) Boundary disputes. The following procedure shall be used by the board in hearing 
disputes concerning floodplain district boundaries:  


a. If a floodplain district boundary is established by approximate or detailed 
floodplain studies, the flood elevations or profiles shall prevail in locating the 
boundary. If none exist, other evidence may be examined.  







 


 


 


b. The person contesting the boundary location shall be given a reasonable 
opportunity to present arguments and technical evidence to the board; and  


c. If the boundary is incorrectly mapped, the board should inform the zoning 
committee or the person contesting the boundary location to petition the 
governing body for a map amendment according to article IX Amendments.  


(4) Variance. 


a. The board may, upon appeal, grant a variance from the standards of this ordinance 
if an applicant convincingly demonstrates that:  


1. Literal enforcement of the ordinance will cause unnecessary hardship;  


2. The hardship is due to adoption of the floodplain ordinance and unique 
property conditions, not common to adjacent lots or premises. In such case 
the ordinance or map must be amended;  


3. The variance is not contrary to the public interest; and  


4. The variance is consistent with the purpose of this ordinance in section 30-
3.  


b. In addition to the criteria in subsection (4)a. above, to qualify for a variance under 
FEMA regulations, the following criteria must be met:  


1. The variance shall not cause any increase in the regional flood elevation;  


2. The applicant has shown good and sufficient cause for issuance of the 
variance;  Variances can only be granted for lots that are less than one-half 
acre and are contiguous to existing structures constructed below the RFE; 
and  


3. Failure to grant a variance would result in an exceptional hardship; 
Variances shall only be granted upon a showing of good and sufficient cause, 
shall be the minimum relief necessary, shall not cause increased risks to 
public safety or nuisances, shall not increase costs for rescue and relief 
efforts and shall not be contrary to the purpose of the ordinance.  


4. Granting the variance will not result in additional threats to public safety, 
extraordinary expense, create a nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of 
the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances, and; 


5. The variance granted is the minimum necessary, considering the flood 
hazard, to afford relief. 


c. A variance shall not:  


1. Grant, extend or increase any use prohibited in the zoning district.  


2. Be granted for a hardship based solely on an economic gain or loss.  


3. Be granted for a hardship which is self-created.  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


4. Damage the rights or property values of other persons in the area.  


5. Allow actions without the amendments to this ordinance or map(s) 
required in article IX Amendments; and  


6. Allow any alteration of an historic structure, including its use, which 
would preclude its continued designation as an historic structure.  


d. When a floodplain variance is granted the board shall notify the applicant in 
writing that it may increase risks to life and property and flood insurance 
premiums could increase up to $25.00 per $100.00 of coverage. A copy shall be 
maintained with the variance record.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-74. To review appeals of permit denials. 
(a) The zoning agency (section 30-72) or board shall review all data related to the appeal. 


This may include:  


(1) Permit application data listed in subsection 30-71(b).  


(2) Floodway/floodfringe determination data in section 30-54.  


(3) Data listed in subsection 30-33(a)(2) where the applicant has not submitted this 
information to the zoning administrator; and  


(4) Other data submitted with the application, or submitted to the board with the 
appeal.  


(b) For appeals of all denied permits the board shall:  


(1) Follow the procedures of section 30-73;  


(2) Consider zoning agency recommendations; and  


(3) Either uphold the denial or grant the appeal.  


(c) For appeals concerning increases in regional flood elevation the board shall:  


(1) Uphold the denial where the board agrees with the data showing an increase in 
flood elevation. Increases may only be allowed after amending the flood profile and 
map and all appropriate legal arrangements are made with all adversely affected 
property owners as per the requirements of article IX Amendments; and  


(2) Grant the appeal where the board agrees that the data properly demonstrates that 
the project does not cause an increase provided no other reasons for denial exist.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-75. Floodproofing standards for nonconforming structures or uses. 
(a) No permit or variance shall be issued for a non-residential structure designed to be 


watertight below the regional flood elevation until the applicant submits a plan certified by 







 


 


 
    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:16 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 47 of 50 


a registered professional engineer or architect that the floodproofing measures will protect 
the structure or development to the flood protection elevation and submits a FEMA 
Floodproofing Certificate. Floodproofing is not an alternative to the development standards 
in Articles II, III, IV, or V. 


(b) For a structure designed to allow the entry of floodwaters, no permit or variance shall be 
issued until the applicant submits a plan either:  


(1) Certified by a registered professional engineer or architect; or  


(2) Meets or exceeds the following standards:  


Ia. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square 
inch for every foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;  


iib. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade; and  


iiic. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or 
devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.  


(c) Floodproofing measures shall be designed as appropriate, to:  


(1) Withstand flood pressures, depths, velocities, uplift and impact forces and other 
regional flood factors;  


(2) Protect structures to the flood protection elevation;  


(3) Anchor structures to foundations to resist flotation and lateral movement;  


(4) Minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters; and  


(5) Minimize or eliminate discharges into flood waters.  


(6) Placement of essential utilities to or above the flood protection elevation; and 


(7) If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation is enclosed, the 
following standards shall apply: 


    a. The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow 
for the efficient entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention. A minimum 
of two openings must be provided with a minimum net area of at least one square inch 
for every one square foot of the enclosed area. The lowest part of the opening can be 
no more than 12 inches above the adjacent grade; 


    b. The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be 
constructed of flood-resistant materials; 


    c. Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the 
flood protection elevation; and 


    d. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage. 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


 


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-76. Public information. 
(a) Place marks on structures to show the depth of inundation during the regional flood.  


(b) All maps, engineering data and regulations shall be available and widely distributed.  


(c) Real estate transfers should show what floodplain district any real property is in.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Secs. 30-77—30-79. Reserved. 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 
 
 
ARTICLE IX. AMENDMENTS 
 
Sec. 30-80. Amendments. 


Obstructions or increases may only be permitted if amendments are made to this ordinance, the 
official floodplain zoning maps, floodway lines and water surface profiles, in accordance with sec. 30-
81.  


(1) In AE Zones with a mapped floodway, no obstructions or increases shall be permitted 
unless the applicant receives a Conditional Letter of Map Revision from FEMA and 
amendments are made to this ordinance, the official floodplain zoning maps, floodway lines 
and water surface profiles, in accordance with sec. 30-81. Any such alterations must be 
reviewed and approved by FEMA and the DNR.  


(2) In A Zones increases equal to or greater than 1.0 foot may only be permitted if the 
applicant receives a Conditional Letter of Map Revision from FEMA and amendments are 
made to this ordinance, the official floodplain maps, floodway lines, and water surface 
profiles, in accordance with sec. 30-81.  


(Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014)  


Sec. 30-81. General. 


The governing body shall change or supplement the floodplain zoning district boundaries and this 
ordinance in the manner outlined in sec. 30-82. Actions which require an amendment to the ordinance 
and/or submittal of a Letter of Map Change (LOMC) include, but are not limited to, the following:  


(1) Any change to the floodplain boundaries and/or watercourse alterations on the FIRM;  


(2) Any fill or floodway encroachment that obstructs flow causing any increase in the 
regional flood height;  


(3) Any floodplain fill which raises the elevation of the filled area to a height at or above the 
flood protection elevation and is contiguous to land lying outside the floodplain;  


(4) Correction of discrepancies between the water surface profiles and floodplain maps;  


(5) Any upgrade to a floodplain zoning ordinance text required by § NR 116.05, Wis. Adm. 
Code, or otherwise required by law, or for changes by the municipality;  


(6) All channel relocations and changes to the maps to alter floodway lines or to remove an 
area from the floodway or the floodfringe that is based on a base flood elevation from a FIRM 
requires prior approval by FEMA; and  


(7) Any changes to any other officially adopted floodplain maps listed in 30-5(b)(2).  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 







 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2022 PACKETS\August 23, 2022\08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


Sec. 30-82. Procedures. 
Ordinance amendments may be made upon petition of any party according to the provisions of Wis. 


Stats., § 62.23, for cities. The petitions shall include all data required by section 30-54 and 30-71(b). The 
land use permit shall not be issued until a Letter of Map Revision is issued by FEMA for the proposed 
changes.  


(1) The proposed amendment shall be referred to the zoning agency for a public hearing and 
recommendation to the governing body. The amendment and notice of public hearing shall be 
submitted to the DNR regional office for review prior to the hearing. The amendment 
procedure shall comply with the provisions of Wis. Stats., § 62.23, for cities.  


(2) No amendments shall become effective until reviewed and approved by the DNR.  


(3) All persons petitioning for a map amendment that obstructs flow causing any increase in 
the regional flood height, shall obtain flooding easements or other appropriate legal 
arrangements from all adversely affected property owners and notify local units of government 
before the amendment can be approved by the governing body.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-14, 9-9-2014) 


 


 


 


 
This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication. 
 
 
The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a meeting 
held on                                                2022. 
 
 
        APPROVED: 
  


              
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Posted:                   
 


Published:                           
        Candee Christen, City Clerk 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\080822\Plan Info\Floodplain Ord Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the August 8, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
 
Floodplain Ordinance Amendments 
The Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources (WDNR) created a new floodplain model ordinance that 
became effective in March of 2022.  The Department’s record for the City shows that the most 
recent ordinance approved by the state is dated 2004.  FEMA expects the community to adopt the 
most current model.  Since there have been big changes in the model and federal/state requirements 
since 2004, the City must update their ordinance.   
 
Staff worked with WDNR staff to amend our ordinance to reflect the new model.  The ordinance is 
provided.  A public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Ch30 Floodplain Zoning Notice 2022\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Ch30 Floodplain Zoning Notice 2022.doc 


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Hybrid Public Hearing on Monday, 
August 8, 2022 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider 
proposed ordinance amendments to the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances – 
Chapter 30 Floodplain Zoning. 
 
See additional information at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
In-Person: Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81935560582?pwd=VFFwVWR2QWdZelhGb2VpUER4M2hXZz09 
 
Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 819 3556 0582  Passcode: 246042 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written 
comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-
646-0421.   
 
     
Published July 14, 2022 and July 21, 2022 Hub  
Posted at City Hall on July 1, 2022 
 
 
       
 
 
 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81935560582?pwd=VFFwVWR2QWdZelhGb2VpUER4M2hXZz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





  


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 30, Floodplain Zoning of the Municipal Code of the City of Stoughton.   


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends approval   - 0  


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -    - 2022 Dates 


Introduced:  


      


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, ordains as follows: 
 


ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF 


FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE,     TITLE AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 


 


Sec. 30-1. Statutory authorization. 


This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization in Wis. Stats., § 62.23 and the 


requirements in Wis. Stats., § 87.30.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-2. Finding of fact. 


Uncontrolled development and use of the floodplains and rivers of this municipality would 


impair the public health, safety, convenience, general welfare and tax base.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-3. Statement of purpose. 


This ordinance is intended to regulate floodplain development to:  


(1) Protect life, health and property;  


(2) Minimize expenditures of public funds for flood control projects;  


(3) Minimize rescue and relief efforts undertaken at the expense of the taxpayers;  


(4) Minimize business interruptions and other economic disruptions;  


(5) Minimize damage to public facilities in the floodplain;  


(6) Minimize the occurrence of future flood blight areas in the floodplain;  


(7) Discourage the victimization of unwary land and homebuyers;  


(8) Prevent increases in flood heights that could increase flood damage and result in 


conflicts between property owners; and  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(9) Discourage development in a floodplain if there is any practicable alternative to 


locate the activity, use or structure outside of the floodplain.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-4. Title. 


This ordinance shall be known as the Floodplain Zoning Ordinance for the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-5. General provisions. 


(a) Areas to be regulated. This ordinance regulates all areas that would be covered by the 


regional flood or base flood as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) or other 


maps approved by DNR. Base flood elevations are derived from the flood profiles in the 


flood insurance study (FIS) and are shown as AE, A1—30, and AH Zones on the FIRM. 


Other regulatory zones are displayed as A and AO zones. Regional flood elevations (RFE) 


may be derived from other studies. If more than one map or revision is referenced, the most 


restrictive information shall apply.  


(b) Official maps and revisions. The boundaries of all floodplain districts are designated as 


A, AE, AH, AO or A1—30 on the maps based on the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) listed 


below. Any change to the base flood elevations (BFE) or any changes to the boundaries of 


the floodplain or floodway in the flood insurance study (FIS) or on the flood insurance rate 


map (FIRM) must be reviewed and approved by the DNR and FEMA through the Letter of 


Map Change process (See Article IX) before it is effective. No changes to regional flood 


elevations (RFE's) on non-FEMA maps shall be effective until approved by the DNR. These 


maps and revisions are on file in the office of the Department of Planning and 


Development, City of Stoughton. If more than one map or revision is referenced, the most 


restrictive approved information shall apply.  


(1) Official maps: Based on flood insurance study (FIS).  


Flood insurance rate map's (FIRM) dated January 2, 2009 as follows: Panel numbers 


55025C0638G, and 55025C0645G and Flood Insurance Rate Maps dated September 


17, 2014 as follows: Panel numbers 55025C0609H, 55025C0620H, 55025C0628H, 


55025C0629H, 55025C0636H, 55025C0637H, 55025C0639H; with corresponding 


profiles that are based on the Dane County flood insurance study (FIS) dated June 16, 


2016, volumes 55025CV001D, 55025CV002D, 55025CV003D, 55025CV004D, and 


subsequent amendments. Approved by: The DNR and FEMA  


Approved by: The DNR and FEMA.  


(2) Official maps: Based on other studies.  


a. Wisconsin Wetland Inventory Map stamped "Final" on 9/5/1989 and subsequent 


revisions.  


Approved by: The DNR and FEMA.  







 


 


b. Dane County Flood Storage District Map - Panel numbers 8 and 12, dated 


September 17, 2014.  


Approved by: The DNR and FEMA.  


c. Yahara River, Fourth Street Dam failure analysis—including floodplain map, 


water surface profile, and floodway data table from dam failure analysis report 


dated November 2010, prepared by Mead & Hunt.  


Approved by: The DNR.  


(c) Establishment of floodplain zoning districts. The regional floodplain areas are divided 


into four districts as follows:  


(1) The floodway district (FW) is the channel of a river or stream and those portions 


of the floodplain adjoining the channel required to carry the regional floodwaters and 


are contained within AE Zones as shown on the FIRM, or within A Zones shown on 


the FIRM when determined in section 30-54. 


(2) The floodfringe district (FF) is that portion of the floodplain between the regional 


flood limits and the floodway and displayed as AE Zones on the FIRM, or, when 


floodway limits have been determined according to section 30-54, within A Zones 


shown of the FIRM.  


(3) The general floodplain district (GFP) is those areas that may be covered by 


floodwater during the regional flood and does not have a BFE or floodway boundary 


determined, including A, AH, and AO zones on the FIRM.  


(4) The flood storage district (FSD) is that area of the floodplain where storage of 


floodwaters is calculated to reduce the regional flood discharge.  


(d) Locating floodplain boundaries. Discrepancies between boundaries on the official 


floodplain zoning map and actual field conditions shall be resolved using the criteria in 


subsections (1) or (2) below. If a significant difference exists, the map shall be amended 


according to Article IX Amendments. The zoning administrator can rely on a boundary 


derived from a profile elevation to grant or deny a land use permit, whether or not a map 


amendment is required. The zoning administrator shall be responsible for documenting 


actual pre-development field conditions and the basis upon which the district boundary was 


determined and for initiating any map amendments required under this section. Disputes 


between the zoning administrator and an applicant over the district boundary line shall be 


settled according to section 30-73(e) and the criteria in subsections (1) and (2) below. 


Where the flood profiles are based on established base flood elevations from a FIRM, 


FEMA must approve any map amendment or revision pursuant to Article IX Amendments.  


(1) If flood profiles exist, the map scale and the profile elevations shall determine the 


district boundary. The regional or base flood elevations shall govern if there are any 


discrepancies.  


(2) Where flood profiles do not exist for projects, the location of the boundary shall 


be determined by the map scale.  


 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(e) Removal of lands from floodplain.  


(1) Compliance with the provisions of this ordinance shall not be grounds for 


removing land from the floodplain unless it is filled at least two feet above the regional 


or base flood elevation, the fill is contiguous to land outside the floodplain, and the 


map is amended pursuant to Article IX Amendments.  


(2) The delineation of any of the Floodplain Districts may be revised by the 


community where natural or man-made changes have occurred and/or where more 


detailed studies have been conducted. However, prior to any such change, approval 


must be obtained from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and 


Federal Emergency Management Agency. A completed Letter of Map Revision is 


a record of this approval. The floodplain administrator shall not sign a community 


acknowledgement form unless all criteria set forth in the following paragraphs are 


met: 


 


a. The land and/or land around the structure must be filled at least two feet 


above the regional or base flood elevation; 


 


b. The fill must be contiguous to land outside the floodplain; Applicant  shall 


obtain floodplain development permit before applying for a LOMR or 


LOMR-F; 


 


(3) Removal of lands from the floodplain may also occur by operation of 


§87.30(1)(e), Wis. Stat. if a property owner has obtained a letter of map amendment 


from the federal emergency management agency under 44 C.F.R. 70. 


 


(f) Compliance. Any development or use within the areas regulated by this ordinance shall 


be in compliance with the terms of this ordinance, and other applicable local, state, and 


federal regulations.  


(1) No structure or use within areas regulated by this ordinance shall hereafter be 


located, erected, constructed, reconstructed, repaired, extended, converted, enlarged, or 


altered without full compliance with the terms of these regulations and all other applicable 


regulations that apply to uses within the jurisdiction of these regulations. 


(2) Failure to obtain a floodplain development permit shall be a violation of these 


regulations and shall be punishable in accordance with section 30-6. 


(3) Floodplain development permits issued on the basis of plans and applications 


approved by the Floodplain Administrator authorize only the use, and arrangement, set forth 


in such approved plans and applications, or amendments thereto if approved by the 


Floodplain Administrator. Use, arrangement, or construction contrary to that authorized 


shall be deemed a violation of these regulations and punishable in accordance with section 


30-6. 


 







 


 


(g) Municipalities and state agencies regulated. Unless specifically exempted by law, all 


cities, villages, towns, and counties are required to comply with this ordinance and obtain 


all necessary permits. State agencies are required to comply if Wis. Stats., § 13.48(13), 


applies. The construction, reconstruction, maintenance and repair of state highways and 


bridges by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation is exempt when Wis. Stats., § 


30.2022, applies.  Although exempt from local zoning permit and permit fees, DOT must 


provide sufficient project documentation and analysis to ensure that the community is in 


compliance with Federal, State and local floodplain standards.  If a local transportation 


project is located within a Zone A floodplain and is not a WisDOT project under Wis. 


Stats., §  30.2022, then the road project design documents (including appropriate detailed 


plans and profiles) may be sufficient to meet the requirements for issuance of a local 


floodplain permit if the following apply: The applicant provides documentation to the 


Floodplain Administrator that the proposed project is a culvert replacement or bridge 


replacement under 20’ span at the same location, the project is exempt from a DNR permit 


under Wis. Stats., §  30.123(6)(d), the capacity is not decreased, the top road grade is not 


raised, and no floodway data is available from a federal, state, or other source.  If floodway 


data is available in the impacted area from a federal, state, or other source that existing data 


must be utilized by the applicant in the analysis of the project site. 


(h) Abrogation and greater restrictions. 


(1) This ordinance supersedes all the provisions of any municipal zoning ordinance 


enacted under Wis. Stats., § 59.69, 59.692 or 59.694 for counties; Wis. Stats., § 62.23 


for cities; or Wis. Stats., § 87.30, which relate to floodplains. If another ordinance is 


more restrictive than this ordinance, that ordinance shall continue in full force and 


effect to the extent of the greater restrictions, but not otherwise.  


(2) This ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate or impair any existing deed 


restrictions, covenants or easements. If this ordinance imposes greater restrictions, the 


provisions of this ordinance shall prevail.  


(i) Interpretation. In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this ordinance are 


the minimum requirements liberally construed in favor of the governing body and are not a 


limitation on or repeal of any other powers granted by the Wisconsin Statutes. If a provision 


of this ordinance, required by ch. NR 116, Wis. Adm. Code, is unclear, the provision shall 


be interpreted in light of the standards in effect on the date of the adoption of this ordinance 


or in effect on the date of the most recent text amendment to this ordinance.  


(j) Warning and disclaimer of liability. The flood protection standards in this ordinance are 


based on engineering experience and research. Larger floods may occur or the flood height 


may be increased by manmade or natural causes. This ordinance does not imply or 


guarantee that non-floodplain areas or permitted floodplain uses will be free from flooding 


and flood damages. This ordinance does not create liability on the part of, or a cause of 


action against, the municipality or any officer or employee thereof for any flood damage 


that may result from reliance on this ordinance.  


(k) Severability. Should any portion of this ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid 


by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected.  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(l) Annexed areas for cities and villages. The Dane County floodplain zoning provisions in 


effect on the date of annexation shall remain in effect and shall be enforced by the 


municipality for all annexed areas until the municipality adopts and enforces an ordinance 


which meets the requirements of ch. NR 116, Wis. Adm. Code and 44 CFR 59-72, National 


Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). These annexed lands are described on the municipality's 


official zoning map. County floodplain zoning provisions are incorporated by reference for 


the purpose of administering this section and are on file in the office of the municipal 


zoning administrator. All plats or maps of annexation shall show the regional flood 


elevation and the floodway location.  


(m) General development standards. The community shall review all permit applications to 


determine whether proposed building sites will be reasonably safe from flooding. If a 


proposed building site is in a flood-prone area, all new construction and substantial 


improvements shall be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 


movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads; be 


constructed with flood resistant materials; be constructed to minimize flood damages and to 


ensure that utility and mechanical equipment is designed and/or located so as to prevent 


water from entering or accumulating within the equipment during conditions of flooding.  


Subdivisions shall be reviewed for compliance with the above standards. All subdivision 


proposals (including manufactured home parks) shall include regional flood elevation and 


floodway data for any development that meets the subdivision definition of this ordinance and all 


other requirements in s. 30.71(b). Adequate drainage shall be provided to reduce exposure to 


flood hazards and all public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water 


systems are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damages.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-14-2008; Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009; Ord. No. 0-13-2011, § 1, 7-12-2011; Ord. 


No. 0-15-2014, 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-6. Enforcement and penalties. 


Any violation of the provisions of this ordinance by any person shall be unlawful and shall 


be referred to the municipal attorney who shall expeditiously prosecute all such violators. A 


violator shall, upon conviction, forfeit to the municipality a penalty per section 1-3, Municipal 


Code, together with a taxable cost of such action. Each day of continued violation shall 


constitute a separate offense. Every violation of this ordinance is a public nuisance and the 


creation may be enjoined and the maintenance may be abated by action at suit of the 


municipality, the state, or any citizen thereof pursuant to Wis. Stats., § 87.30, which limits 


penalties to no more than $50 per day per violation.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-14-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-7. Definitions. 


Unless specifically defined, words and phrases in this ordinance shall have their common 


law meaning and shall be applied in accordance with their common usage. Words used in the 


present tense include the future, the singular number includes the plural and the plural number 


includes the singular. The word "may" is permissive, "shall" is mandatory and is not 


discretionary.  







 


 


A zones: Those areas shown on the official floodplain zoning map which would be 


inundated by the regional flood. These areas may be numbered or unnumbered A zones. The A 


zones may or may not be reflective of flood profiles, depending on the availability of data for a 


given area.  


AH zones: See "AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING".  


AO zones: See "AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING".  


Accessory structure or use: A facility, structure, building or use which is accessory or 


incidental to the principal use of a property, structure or building. An accessory structure shall 


not be used for human habitation. 


Alteration: An enhancement, upgrading or substantial change or modifications other than an 


addition or repair to a dwelling or to electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating, air conditioning 


and other systems within a structure.  


Area of shallow flooding: A designated AO, AH, AR/AO, AR/AH, or VO zone on a 


community's Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with a 1 percent or greater annual chance of 


flooding to an average depth of 1 to 3 feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where 


the path of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flood may be evident. Such flooding is 


characterized by ponding or sheet flow.  


Base flood: Means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in 


any given year, as published by FEMA as part of a FIS and depicted on a FIRM.  


Basement: Any enclosed area of a building having its floor sub-grade, i.e., below ground 


level, on all sides.  


Building: See Structure.  


Breakaway wall – A wall that is not part of the structural support of the building and is 


intended through its design and construction to collapse under specific lateral loading forces, 


without causing damage to the elevated portion of the building or supporting foundation system. 


Bulkhead line: A geographic line along a reach of navigable water that has been adopted by 


a municipal ordinance and approved by the DNR pursuant to Wis. Stats., § 30.11, and which 


allows limited filling between this bulkhead line and the original ordinary highwater mark, 


except where such filling is prohibited by the floodway provisions of this ordinance.  


Campground: Any parcel of land which is designated, maintained, intended or used for the 


purpose of providing sites for nonpermanent overnight use by four or more camping units, or 


which is advertised or represented as a camping area.  


Camping unit: Any portable device, no more than 400 square feet in area, used as a 


temporary shelter, including but not limited to a camping trailer, motor home, bus, van, pick-up 


truck, or tent that is fully licensed, if required, and ready for highway use.  


Certificate of compliance: A certification that the construction and the use of land or a 


building, the elevation of fill or the lowest floor of a structure is in compliance with all of the 


provisions of this ordinance.  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Channel: A natural or artificial watercourse with definite bed and banks to confine and 


conduct normal flow of water.  


Crawlways or crawl space: An enclosed area below the first usable floor of a building, 


generally less than five feet in height, used for access to plumbing and electrical utilities.  


Deck: An unenclosed exterior structure that has no roof or sides, but has a permeable floor 


which allows the infiltration of precipitation.  


Department: The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR).  


Development: Any artificial change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but 


not limited to, the construction of buildings, structures or accessory structures; the construction 


of additions or alterations to buildings, structures or accessory structures; the repair of any 


damaged structure or the improvement or renovation of any structure, regardless of percentage of 


damage or improvement; the placement of buildings or structures; subdivision layout and site 


preparation; mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations; the 


storage, deposition or extraction of materials or equipment; and the installation, repair or 


removal of public or private sewage disposal systems or water supply facilities.  


Dryland access: A vehicular access route which is above the regional flood elevation and 


which connects land located in the floodplain to land outside the floodplain, such as a road with 


its surface above regional flood elevation and wide enough for wheeled rescue and relief 


vehicles.  


Encroachment: Any fill, structure, equipment, building, use or development in the 


floodway.  


Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA): The federal agency that administers the 


National Flood Insurance Program.  


Flood insurance rate map (FIRM): A map of a community on which the Federal Insurance 


Administration has delineated both the floodplain and the risk premium zones applicable to the 


community. This map can only be amended by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.  


Flood or flooding: A general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of 


normally dry land areas caused by one of the following conditions:  


• The overflow or rise of inland waters,  


• The rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source,  


• The inundation caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated cyclical levels 


along the shore of Lake Michigan or Lake Superior, or  


• The sudden increase caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body of water, 


accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as a seiche, or 


by some similarly unusual event.  


Flood frequency: The probability of a flood occurrence which is determined from statistical 


analyses. The frequency of a particular flood event is usually expressed as occurring, on the 







 


 


average, once in a specified number of years or as a percent chance of occurring in any given 


year.  


Floodfringe: That portion of the floodplain outside of the floodway which is covered by 


flood waters during the regional flood and associated with standing water rather than flowing 


water.  


Flood hazard boundary map: A map designating approximate flood hazard areas. Flood 


hazard areas are designated as unnumbered A-zones and do not contain floodway lines or 


regional flood elevations. This map forms the basis for both the regulatory and insurance aspects 


of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) until superseded by a flood insurance study and 


a flood insurance rate map.  


Flood insurance study: A technical engineering examination, evaluation, and determination 


of the local flood hazard areas. It provides maps designating those areas affected by the regional 


flood and provides both flood insurance rate zones and base flood elevations and may provide 


floodway lines. The flood hazard areas are designated as numbered and unnumbered A-zones. 


Flood insurance rate maps, that accompany the flood insurance study, form the basis for both the 


regulatory and the insurance aspects of the National Flood Insurance Program.  


Floodplain: Land which has been or may be covered by flood water during the regional 


flood. It includes the floodway and the floodfringe, and may include other designated floodplain 


areas for regulatory purposes.  


Floodplain island: A natural geologic land formation within the floodplain that is 


surrounded, but not covered, by floodwater during the regional flood.  


Floodplain management: Policy and procedures to insure wise use of floodplains, including 


mapping and engineering, mitigation, education, and administration and enforcement of 


floodplain regulations.  


Flood profile: A graph or a longitudinal profile line showing the relationship of the water 


surface elevation of a flood event to locations of land surface elevations along a stream or river.  


Floodproofing: Any combination of structural provisions, changes or adjustments to 


properties and structures, water and sanitary facilities and contents of buildings subject to 


flooding, for the purpose of reducing or eliminating flood damage.  


Flood protection elevation: An elevation of two feet of freeboard above the water surface 


profile elevation designated for the regional flood. (Also see: Freeboard.)  


Flood storage: Those floodplain areas where storage of floodwaters has been taken into 


account during analysis in reducing the regional flood discharge.  


Floodway: The channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adjoining 


the channel required to carry the regional flood discharge.  


Freeboard: A safety factor expressed in terms of a specified number of feet above a 


calculated flood level. Freeboard compensates for any factors that cause flood heights greater 


than those calculated, including ice jams, debris accumulation, wave action, obstruction of bridge 


openings and floodways, the effects of watershed urbanization, loss of flood storage areas due to 


development and aggregation of the river or stream bed.  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Habitable structure: Any structure or portion thereof used or designed for human 


habitation.  


Hearing notice: Publication or posting meeting the requirements of Ch. 985, Wis. Stats. For 


appeals, a Class 1 notice, published once at least one week (seven days) before the hearing, is 


required. For all zoning ordinances and amendments, a Class 2 notice, published twice, once 


each week consecutively, the last at least a week (seven days) before the hearing. Local 


ordinances or bylaws may require additional notice, exceeding these minimums.  


High flood damage potential: Damage that could result from flooding that includes any 


danger to life or health or any significant economic loss to a structure or building and its 


contents.  


Highest adjacent grade: The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 


construction next to the proposed walls of a structure.  


Historic structure: Any structure that is either:  


• Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places or preliminarily determined 


by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the 


national register,  


• Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the 


historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined 


by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district,  


• Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic 


preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior, or  


• Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic 


preservation programs that have been certified either by an approved state program, as 


determined by the Secretary of the Interior; or by the Secretary of the Interior in states 


without approved programs.  


Increase in regional flood height: A calculated upward rise in the regional flood elevation, 


equal to or greater than 0.00 foot, based on a comparison of existing conditions and proposed 


conditions which is directly attributable to development in the floodplain but not attributable to 


manipulation of mathematical variables such as roughness factors, expansion and contraction 


coefficients and discharge.  


Land use: Any nonstructural use made of unimproved or improved real estate. (Also see 


Development.)  


Lowest adjacent grade: Elevation of the lowest ground surface that touches any of the 


exterior walls of a building.  


Lowest floor: The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement). An 


unfinished or flood resistant enclosure, usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access or 


storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor; provided 


that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-


elevation design requirements of 44 CFR 60.3.  







 


 


Maintenance: The act or process of restoring to original soundness, including redecorating, 


refinishing, nonstructural repairs, or the replacement of existing fixtures, systems or equipment 


with equivalent fixtures, systems or structures.  


Manufactured home: A structure transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a 


permanent chassis and is designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when 


connected to required utilities. The term "manufactured home" includes a mobile home but does 


not include a "mobile recreational vehicle."  


Mobile/Manufactured home park or subdivision: A parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land, 


divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.  


Mobile/Manufactured home park or subdivision, existing: A parcel of land, divided into two 


or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale, on which the construction of facilities for 


servicing the lots is completed before the effective date of this ordinance. At a minimum, this 


would include the installation of utilities, the construction of streets and either final site grading 


or the pouring of concrete pads.  


Mobile/Manufactured home park, expansion to existing: The preparation of additional sites 


by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be 


affixed. This includes installation of utilities, construction of streets and either final site grading, 


or the pouring of concrete pads.  


Mobile recreational vehicle: A vehicle which is built on a single chassis, 400 square feet or 


less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, designed to be self-propelled, carried or 


permanently towable by a licensed, light-duty vehicle, is licensed for highway use if registration 


is required and is designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling, but as temporary living 


quarters for recreational, camping, travel or seasonal use. Manufactured homes that are towed or 


carried onto a parcel of land, but do not remain capable of being towed or carried, including park 


model homes, do not fall within the definition of "mobile recreational vehicles".  


Model, corrected effective: A hydraulic engineering model that corrects any errors that 


occur in the Duplicate Effective Model, adds any additional cross sections to the Duplicate 


Effective Model, or incorporates more detailed topographic information than that used in the 


current effective model.  


Model, duplicate effective: A copy of the hydraulic analysis used in the effective FIS and 


referred to as the effective model.  


Model effective: The hydraulic engineering model that was used to produce the current 


effective Flood Insurance Study.  


Model, existing (pre-project): A modification of the Duplicate Effective Model or Corrected 


Effective Model to reflect any man made modifications that have occurred within the floodplain 


since the date of the effective model but prior to the construction of the project for which the 


revision is being requested. If no modification has occurred since the date of the effective model, 


then this model would be identical to the Corrected Effective Model or Duplicate Effective 


Model.  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Model, revised (post-project): A modification of the Existing or Pre-Project Conditions 


Model, Duplicate Effective Model or Corrected Effective Model to reflect revised or post-project 


conditions.  


Municipality or municipal: The county, city or village governmental units enacting, 


administering and enforcing this zoning ordinance.  


NAVD or North American Vertical Datum: Elevations referenced to mean sea level datum, 


1988 adjustment.  


NGVD or National Geodetic Vertical Datum: Elevations referenced to mean sea level 


datum, 1929 adjustment.  


New construction: For floodplain management purposes, "new construction" means 


structures for which the start of construction commenced on or after the effective date of 


floodplain zoning regulations adopted by this community and includes any subsequent 


improvements to such structures. For the purpose of determining flood insurance rates, it 


includes any structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the effective 


date of an initial FIRM or after December 31, 1974, whichever is later, and includes any 


subsequent improvements to such structures.  


Nonconforming structure: An existing lawful structure or building which is not in 


conformity with the dimensional or structural requirements of this ordinance for the area of the 


floodplain which it occupies. (For example, an existing residential structure in the floodfringe 


district is a conforming use. However, if the lowest floor is lower than the flood protection 


elevation, the structure is nonconforming.)  


Nonconforming use: An existing lawful use or accessory use of a structure or building 


which is not in conformity with the provisions of this ordinance for the area of the floodplain 


which it occupies. (Such as a residence in the floodway.)  


Non-flood disaster – A fire or an ice storm, tornado, windstorm, mudslide or other 


destructive act of nature, but excludes a flood. 


Obstruction to flow: Any development which blocks the conveyance of floodwaters such 


that this development alone or together with any future development will cause an increase in 


regional flood height.  


Official floodplain zoning map: That map, adopted and made part of this ordinance, as 


described in subsection 30-5(b), which has been approved by the DNR and FEMA.  


Open space use: Those uses having a relatively low flood damage potential and not 


involving structures.  


Ordinary high-water mark: The point on the bank or shore up to which the presence and 


action of surface water is so continuous as to leave a distinctive mark such as by erosion, 


destruction or prevention of terrestrial vegetation, predominance of aquatic vegetation, or other 


easily recognized characteristic.  


Person: An individual, or group of individuals, corporation, partnership, association, 


municipality or state agency.  







 


 


Private sewage system: A sewage treatment and disposal system serving one structure with 


a septic tank and soil absorption field located on the same parcel as the structure. It also means 


an alternative sewage system approved by the Department of Safety and Professional Services, 


including a substitute for the septic tank or soil absorption field, a holding tank, a system serving 


more than one structure or a system located on a different parcel than the structure.  


Public utilities: Those utilities using underground or overhead transmission lines such as 


electric, telephone and telegraph, and distribution and collection systems such as water, sanitary 


sewer and storm sewer.  


Reasonably safe from flooding: Means base flood waters will not inundate the land or 


damage structures to be removed from the floodplain and that any subsurface waters related to 


the base flood will not damage existing or proposed buildings.  


Regional flood: A flood determined to be representative of large floods known to have 


occurred in Wisconsin. A regional flood is a flood with a one percent chance of being equaled or 


exceeded in any given year, and if depicted on the FIRM, the RFE is equivalent to the BFE.  


Start of construction: The date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of 


construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement 


was within 180 days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first placement of 


permanent construction on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the installation of piles, 


the construction of columns, or any work beyond initial excavation, or the placement of a 


manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include land preparation, 


such as clearing, grading and filling, nor does it include the installation of streets and/or 


walkways, nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers or foundations or the 


erection of temporary forms, nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory 


buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main 


structure. For an alteration, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, 


ceiling, floor or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the 


external dimensions of the building.  


Structure: Any manmade object with form, shape and utility, either permanently or 


temporarily attached to, placed upon or set into the ground, stream bed or lake bed, including, 


but not limited to, roofed and walled buildings, gas or liquid storage tanks, bridges, dams and 


culverts.  


Subdivision: Has the meaning given in § 236.02(12), Wis. Stats.  


Substantial damage: Damage of any origin sustained by a structure, whereby the cost of 


restoring the structure to its pre-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the 


equalized assessed value of the structure before the damage occurred.  


Substantial improvement: Any repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or 


improvement of a building or structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the 


equalized assessed value of the structure before the improvement or repair is started. If the 


structure has sustained substantial damage, any repairs are considered substantial improvement 


regardless of the work performed. The term does not, however, include either any project for the 


improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary or safety code violations 


identified by the building official and that are the minimum necessary to assure safe living 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


conditions; or any alteration of a historic structure provided that the alteration will not preclude 


the structure's continued designation as a historic structure.  


Unnecessary hardship: Where special conditions affecting a particular property, which were 


not self-created, have made strict conformity with restrictions governing areas, setbacks, 


frontage, height or density unnecessarily burdensome or unreasonable in light of the purposes of 


the ordinance.  


Variance: An authorization by the board of adjustment/appeals for the construction or 


maintenance of a building or structure in a manner which is inconsistent with dimensional 


standards (not uses) contained in the floodplain zoning ordinance.  


Violation: The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the 


floodplain zoning ordinance. A structure or other development without required permits, lowest 


floor elevation documentation, flood-proofing certificates or required floodway encroachment 


calculations is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.  


Watershed: The entire region contributing runoff or surface water to a watercourse or body 


of water.  


Water surface profile: A graphical representation showing the elevation of the water surface 


of a watercourse for each position along a reach of river or stream at a certain flood flow. A 


water surface profile of the regional flood is used in regulating floodplain areas.  


Well: An excavation opening in the ground made by digging, boring, drilling, driving or 


other methods, to obtain groundwater regardless of its intended use.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Secs. 30-8—30-1920. Reserved. 


ARTICLE II. GENERAL STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ALL FLOODPLAIN 


DISTRICTS 


Sec. 30-20.  General Standards. 


(a)  The community shall review all permit applications to determine whether the proposed 


building sites will be reasonably safe from flooding and assure that all necessary permits have 


been received from those governmental agencies whose approval is required by federal or state 


law. 


 (1)       If a proposed building site is in a flood-prone area, all new construction and 


substantial improvements shall: 


  a. be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 


movement of the structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic 


loads, including the effects of buoyancy; 


b. be constructed with flood-resistant materials; 


c. be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damages; and 


d. be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, and air 


conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are designed and/or 


located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the 


components during conditions of flooding. 







 
 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 
  


 


 (2) If a subdivision or other proposed new development is in a flood-prone area, the 


community shall assure that: 


a. such proposed subdivision or other proposed new development is 


consistent with the need to minimize flood damage within the flood-prone 


area; 


b. public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water 


systems are located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood 


damage; and 


c. adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards. 


 


All subdivision proposals (including manufactured home parks) shall include regional 


flood elevation and floodway data for any development that meets the subdivision 


definition of this ordinance and all other requirements in section 30-71(b). 


 


Sec. 30-21. Hydraulic and hydrologic analyses. 


(a) No floodplain development shall:  


(1) Obstruct flow, defined as development which blocks the conveyance of 


floodwaters by itself or with other development, causing any increase in the regional 


flood height; or  


(2) Cause any increase in the regional flood height due to floodplain storage area lost.  


(b) The zoning administrator shall deny permits if it is determined the proposed development 


will obstruct flow or cause any increase in the regional flood height, based on the officially 


adopted FIRM or other adopted map, unless the provisions of Article IX Amendments are 


met.  


Sec. 30-22. Watercourse alterations. 


No land use permit to alter or relocate a watercourse in a mapped floodplain shall be issued 


until the City of Stoughton Department of Planning and Development has notified in writing 


including all adjacent municipalities, the DNR and FEMA regional offices, and requires the 


applicant to secure all necessary state and federal permits. The standards of sec. 30-21 must be 


met and the flood carrying capacity of any altered or relocated watercourse shall be maintained.  


As soon as is practicable, but not later than six months after the date of the watercourse 


alteration or relocation and pursuant to Article IX Amendments, the community shall apply for a 


Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) from FEMA. Any such alterations must be reviewed and 


approved by FEMA and the DNR through the LOMC process.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-23. Chapter 30, 31, Wis. Stats., Development. 


Development which requires a permit from the DNR, under Wis. Stats., chs. 30 and 31, 


such as docks, piers, wharves, bridges, culverts, dams and navigational aids, may be allowed if 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


the necessary permits are obtained and amendments to the floodplain zoning ordinance are made 


according to Article IX Amendments.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, adopted Apr. 12, 2016, changed the title of § 30-23 from "Development" to 


read as set out herein.  


Sec. 30-24. Public or private campgrounds. 


Public or private campgrounds shall have low flood damage potential and shall meet the 


following provisions:  


(1) The campground is approved by the Department of health and family services 


Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection;  


(2) A land use permit for the campground is issued by the zoning administrator;  


(3) The character of the river system and the elevation of the campground are such 


that a 72-hour warning of an impending flood can be given to all campground 


occupants;  


(4) There is an adequate flood warning procedure for the campground that offers the 


minimum notice required under this section to all persons in the campground. This 


procedure shall include a written agreement between the campground owner, the 


municipal emergency government coordinator and the chief law enforcement official 


which specifies the flood elevation at which evacuation shall occur, personnel 


responsible for monitoring flood elevations, types of warning systems to be used and 


the procedures for notifying at-risk parties, and the methods and personnel responsible 


for conducting the evacuation;  


(5) This agreement shall be for no more than one calendar year, at which time the 


agreement shall be reviewed and updated, by the officials identified in subsection (4) 


above, to remain in compliance with all applicable regulations, including those of the 


state department of health services and all other applicable regulations;  


(6) Only camping units that are fully licensed, if required, and ready for highway use 


are allowed;  All mobile recreational vehicles placed on the site must meet one of the 


following: 


  a. Be fully licensed, if required, and ready for highway use; or  


  b. Not occupy any site in the campground for more than 180 consecutive 


days, at which time the camping unit must be removed from the floodplain for a 


minimum of 24 hours; or 


  c. Meet the requirements of either Article III, IV or V for the floodplain 


district in which the structure is located; 


A mobile recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or 


jacking system, is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect utilities and security 


devices and has no permanently attached additions. 







 


 


 


(7) The camping units shall not occupy any site in the campground for more than 180 


consecutive days, at which time the camping unit must be removed from the floodplain 


for a minimum of 24 hours;  


(78) All camping units that remain on site for more than 30 days shall be issued a 


limited authorization by the campground operator, a written copy of which is kept on 


file at the campground. Such authorization shall allow placement of a camping unit for 


a period not to exceed 180 days consistent with section 30-24(6) and shall ensure 


compliance with all the provisions of this section;  


(89) The municipality shall monitor the limited authorizations issued by the 


campground operator to assure compliance with the terms of this section;  


(10) All camping units that remain in place for more than 180 consecutive days must 


meet the applicable requirements in either article III, IV or V for the floodplain district 


in which the structure is located;  


(91) The campground shall have signs clearly posted at all entrances warning of the 


flood hazard and the procedures for evacuation when a flood warning is issued;  


(102) All service facilities, including but not limited to refuse collection, electrical 


service, gas lines, propane tanks, sewage systems and wells shall be properly anchored 


and placed at or floodproofed to the flood protection elevation.  


 


(11) Standards for structures in a campground: 


 


(a)  All structures must comply with section 30-24 or meet the applicable 


requirements in ss. Article III, Article IV, or Article V for the floodplain district 


in which the structure is located; 


 


(b)  Deck / landing-a portable landing may be allowed for a camping unit for each 


entry provided that the landing is not permanently attached to the ground or 


camping unit, is no more than 200 square feet in size, shall be portable, contain 


no walls or roof, and can be removed from the campground by a truck and/or 


trailer. Sections of such portable landings may be placed together to form a single 


deck not greater than 200 square feet at one entry point.  Provisions for the 


removal of these temporary landings during flood events must be addressed 


within the written agreement with the municipality compliant with section 2.4(4).  


Any such deck/landing structure may be constructed at elevations lower than the 


flood protection elevation but must not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any 


increase in flood levels during the occurrence of the regional flood. 


 


(c)  Decks/patios that are constructed completely at grade may be allowed, but must 


also comply with applicable shoreland zoning standards. 


 


(d) Camping equipment and appurtenant equipment in the campground  may 


be allowed provided that the equipment is not permanently attached to the 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


ground or camping unit, is not used as a habitable structure, and must not 


obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase in flood levels during the 


occurrence of the regional flood.  Provisions for the removal of this equipment 


during flooding events shall be addressed within the written agreement with the 


municipality compliant with section 2.4(4). 


 


(e) Once a flood warning in the written agreement has been issued for the 


campground, the campground owner or the designated operator shall ensure that 


all persons, camping units, decks, camping equipment and appurtenant 


equipment in the campground shall be evacuated within the timelines specified 


within the written agreement with the municipality compliant with section 2.4(4). 


 


(12) A land use permit shall be obtained as provided under 30-71(b) before any 


development; repair, modification or addition to an existing structure; or change in the 


use of a building or structure, including sewer and water facilities, may be initiated. 


Secs. 30-25—30-30. Reserved. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


ARTICLE III. FLOODWAY DISTRICT (FW) 


Sec. 30-31. Applicability. 


This section applies to all floodway areas on the floodplain zoning maps and those 


identified pursuant to section 30-54.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-32. Permitted uses. 


The following open space uses are allowed in the floodway district and the floodway areas 


of the general floodplain district, if:  


• They are not prohibited by any other ordinance;  


• They meet the standards in sections 30-33 and 30-34; and  


• All permits or certificates have been issued according to section 30-71:  


(1) Agricultural uses, such as: farming, outdoor plant nurseries, horticulture, 


viticulture and wild crop harvesting.  


(2) Nonstructural industrial and commercial uses, such as loading areas, parking areas 


and airport landing strips.  







 


 


 


    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:15 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 19 of 50 


(3) Nonstructural recreational uses, such as golf courses, tennis courts, archery 


ranges, picnic grounds, boat ramps, swimming areas, parks, wildlife and nature 


preserves, game farms, fish hatcheries, shooting, trap and skeet activities, hunting and 


fishing areas and hiking and horseback riding trails, subject to the fill limitations of 


subsection 30-33(d).  


(4) Uses or structures accessory to open space uses, or classified as historic structures 


that comply with sections 30-33 and 30-34.  


(5) Extraction of sand, gravel or other materials that comply with subsection 30-


33(d).  


(6) Functionally water-dependent uses, such as docks, piers or wharves, dams, 


flowage areas, culverts, navigational aids and river crossings of transmission lines, and 


pipelines that comply with Wis. Stats., chs. 30, 31.  


(7) Public utilities, streets and bridges that comply with subsection 30-33(c).  


(8) Portable latrines that are removed prior to flooding and systems associated with 


recreational areas and Department-approved campgrounds that meet the applicable 


provisions of local ordinances and ch. SPS 383, Wis. Adm. Code. 


(9) Public or private wells used to obtain potable water for recreational areas that 


meet the requirements of local ordinances and chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. 


Code. 


(10) Wastewater treatment ponds or facilities permitted under s. NR 110.15(3)(b), Wis. 


Adm. Code. 


(11) Sanitary sewer or water supply lines to service existing or proposed development 


located outside the floodway that complies with the regulations for the floodplain area 


occupied. 


 


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-33. Standards for developments in floodway areas. 


(a) General. 


(1) Any development in the floodway shall comply with article II and have low flood 


damage potential.  


(2) Applicants shall provide  the following data to determine the effects of the 


proposal according to section 30-21 and 30-71(b)(3):   an analysis calculating the 


effects of this proposal on the regional flood height to determine the effects of the 


proposal according to section 30-21 and section 30-71(b)(3). The analysis must be 


completed by a registered professional engineer in the state of Wisconsin. 


a. A cross-section elevation view of the proposal, perpendicular to the watercourse, 


showing if the proposed development will obstruct flow; or  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


b. An analysis calculating the effects of this proposal on regional flood height.  


(3) The zoning administrator shall deny the permit application if the project will 


cause any increase in the flood elevations upstream or downstream, based on the data 


submitted for subsection (2) above.  


Any encroachment in the regulatory floodway is prohibited unless the data 


submitted for section 30-33(a)(2) above demonstrates that the encroachment will cause 


no increase in flood elevations in flood events up to the base flood at any location or 


removes the encroached area from the regulatory floodway as  provided in section 30-


5(e). 


(b) Structures: Structures accessory to permanent open space uses or functionally dependent 


on a waterfront location may be allowed by permit if the structures comply with the 


following criteria:  


(1) The structures are not designed for human habitation and do not have a high flood 


damage potential and is constructed to minimize flood damage;  


(2) Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or flood proofed to or above 


the flood protection elevation;  


(3) The structures must be anchored to resist floatation, collapse, and lateral 


movement; and  


(4) The structure must not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase in 


flood levels during the occurrence of the regional flood.  


(5) The structure shall have a minimum of two openings on different walls having a 


total net area not less than one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area, and 


the bottom of all such openings being no higher than one foot above grade. The 


openings shall be equipped with screens, louvers, or other coverings or devices 


provided they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.  


For a structure designed to allow the automatic entry of floodwaters below 


the Regional Flood Elevation, the applicant shall submit a plan that meets s. 


3.3(2)(a) through 3.3(2)(e) and meets or exceeds the following standards: 


a. the lowest floor must be elevated to or above the regional flood 


elevation; 


b. a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than 


one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding; 


c. the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above the 


lowest adjacent grade; openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, 


valves, or other coverings or devices provided that they permit the 


automatic entry and exit of floodwaters, otherwise must remain open. 







 


 


d. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited 


storage. 


 


(6) The structure shall either have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood 


protection elevation or shall meet all the following standards: 


a. Have the lowest floor elevated to or above the regional flood elevation and be dry 


floodproofed so that the structure is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to 


the passage of water and completely dry to the flood protection elevation without 


human intervention during flooding; 


b. Have structural components capable of meeting all provisions of Section 3.3(2)(g) 


and; 


c. Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect, through the use of a 


Federal Emergency Management Agency Floodproofing Certificate, that the design 


and methods of construction are in accordance with Section 3.3(2)(g). 


 


(7) Certification: Whenever floodproofing measures are required, a registered 


professional engineer or architect shall certify that the following floodproofing 


measures will be utilized, where appropriate, and are adequate to withstand the flood 


depths, pressures, velocities, impact and uplift forces and other factors associated with 


the regional flood: 


     a. Reinforcement of floors and walls to resist rupture, collapse, or lateral movement 


caused by water pressures or debris buildup; 


b. Construction of wells, water supply systems and waste treatment systems so as to 


prevent the entrance of flood waters in such systems and must be in accordance with 


provisions in Sections 3.4(4) and 3.4(5); 


c. Subsurface drainage systems to relieve external pressures on foundation walls and 


basement floors; 


d. Cutoff valves on sewer lines or the elimination of gravity flow basement drains; 


and 


e. Placement of utilities to or above the flood protection elevation. 


 


(c) Public utilities, streets and bridges may be allowed by permit, if:  


(1) Adequate floodproofing measures are provided to the flood protection elevation; 


and  


(2) Construction meets the development standards of section 30-21.  


(d) Fills or deposition of materials may be allowed by permit, if:  


(1) The requirements of section 30-21 are met;  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(2) No material is deposited in the navigable waters unless a permit is issued by the 


DNR pursuant to Wis. Stats., ch. 30, and a permit pursuant to § 404 of the Federal 


Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1344 has been issued, if 


applicable, and all other requirements have been met;  


(3) The fill or other materials will be protected against erosion by riprap, vegetative 


cover, sheet piling or bulkheading; and  


(4) The fill is not classified as a solid or hazardous material.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-31-2013, § 1, 12-10-2013; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 


9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-34. Prohibited uses. 


All uses not listed as permitted uses in section 30-32 are prohibited, including the following 


uses:  


(1) Habitable structures, structures with high flood damage potential, or those not 


associated with permanent open-space uses;  


(2) Storing materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, injurious to property, 


water quality, or human, animal, plant, fish or other aquatic life;  


(3) Uses not in harmony with or detrimental to uses permitted in the adjoining 


districts;  


(4) Any private or public sewage systems, except portable latrines that are removed 


prior to flooding and systems associated with recreational areas and DNR-approved 


campgrounds that meet the applicable provisions of local ordinances and ch. SPS 383, 


Wis. Adm. Code;  


(5) Any public or private wells which are used to obtain potable water, except those 


for recreational areas that meet the requirements of local ordinances and chs. NR 811 


and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code;  


(6) Any solid or hazardous waste disposal sites;  


(7) Any wastewater treatment ponds or facilities, except those permitted under § NR 


110.15(3)(b), Wis. Adm. Code; and  


(8) Any sanitary sewer or water supply lines, except those to service existing or 


proposed development located outside the floodway which complies with the 


regulations for the floodplain area occupied.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Secs. 30-35—30-40. Reserved. 


ARTICLE IV. FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT (FF) 







 


 


 


    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:15 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 23 of 50 


Sec. 30-41. Applicability. 


This section applies to all floodfringe areas shown on the floodplain zoning maps and those 


identified pursuant to section 30-54.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-42. Permitted uses. 


Any structure, land use, or development is allowed in the floodfringe district if the standards 


in section 30-43 are met, the use is not prohibited by this or any other ordinance or regulation 


and all permits or certificates specified in section 30-71 have been issued.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008) 


Sec. 30-43. Standards for development in the floodfringe. 


(a) All of the provisions of section 30-21 shall apply according to the use requested. Any 


existing structure in the floodfringe must meet the requirements of Article VII Non-


conforming Uses;  


(b) Residential uses. Any structure, including a manufactured home, which is to be newly 


constructed or moved into the floodfringe area, shall meet or exceed the following 


standards. Any existing structure in the floodfringe must meet the requirements of Article 


VII, Non-conforming Uses;  


(1) The elevation of the lowest floor shall be at or above the flood protection 


elevation on fill unless the requirements of sec. 30-43(b)(2) can be met. The fill shall 


be one foot or more above the regional flood elevation extending at least 15 feet 


beyond the limits of the structure;  


All new construction, including placement of manufactured homes, and 


substantial improvement of residential structures, shall have the lowest floor 


elevated to or above the flood protection elevation on fill. The fill around the 


structure shall be one foot or more above the regional flood elevation extending at 


least 15 feet beyond the limits of the structure. No area may be removed from      


the floodfringe district unless it can be shown to meet section 30-5(e). 


 


(2) The basement or crawlway floor may be placed at the regional flood elevation if it 


is dry floodproofed to the flood protection elevation. No basement or crawlway floor is 


allowed below the regional flood elevation;  


Notwithstanding section 30-43(b)(1) a basement or crawlspace floor may be 


placed at the regional flood elevation if the basement or crawlspace is designed to 


make all portions of the structure below the flood protection elevation watertight with 


walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and 


effects of buoyancy. No floor of any kind is allowed below the regional flood elevation; 


(3) Contiguous dryland access shall be provided from a structure to land outside of 


the floodplain, except as provided in subsection (4) (below).  


(4) In developments where existing street or sewer line elevations make compliance 


with subsection (3) (above) impractical, the municipality may permit new development 


and substantial improvements where roads are below the regional flood elevation, if:  


a. The municipality has written assurance from police, fire and emergency services 


that rescue and relief will be provided to the structure(s) by wheeled vehicles 


during a regional flood event; or  


b. The municipality has a DNR approved emergency evacuation plan that follows 


acceptable hazard mitigation planning guidelines.  


(c) Accessory structures or uses. 


(1) In addition to Article II, new construction and substantial improvements of 


Aaccessory structures shall be constructed on fill with the lowest floor at or above the 


regional flood elevation.  


(d) Commercial uses. Any commercial structure which is erected, altered or moved into the 


floodfringe shall meet the requirements of sec. 30-43 (b). Subject to the requirements of sec. 


30-43 (f), storage yards, surface parking lots and other such uses may be placed at lower 


elevations if an adequate warning system exists to protect life and property.  


(e) Manufacturing and industrial uses. Any manufacturing or industrial structure which is 


erected, altered or moved into the floodfringe shall have the lowest floor elevated to or 


above the flood protection elevation or meet the floodproofing standards in sec. 30-75. 


Subject to the requirements of subsection (f) below, storage yards, surface parking lots and 


other such uses may be placed at lower elevations if an adequate warning system exists to 


protect life and property.  


(f) Storage of materials. Materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or injurious to 


property, water quality or human, animal, plant, fish or aquatic life shall be stored at or 


above the flood protection elevation or floodproofed in compliance with section 30-75. 


Adequate measures shall be taken to ensure that such materials will not enter the water body 


during flooding.  


(g) Public utilities, streets and bridges. All utilities, streets and bridges shall be designed to 


be compatible with comprehensive floodplain development plans; and  


(1) When failure of public utilities, streets and bridges would endanger public health 


or safety, or where such facilities are deemed essential, construction or repair of such 


facilities shall only be permitted if they are designed to comply with sec. 30-75;  


(2) Minor roads or nonessential utilities may be constructed at lower elevations if 


they are designed to withstand flood forces to the regional flood elevation.  







 


 


(h) Sewage systems. All sewage disposal systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 


infiltration of flood water into the system, pursuant to section 30-75(c), to the flood 


protection elevation and meet the provisions of all local ordinances and ch. SPS 383, Wis. 


Adm. Code.  


(i) Wells. All wells shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters 


into the system, pursuant to section 30-75(c), to the flood protection elevation and shall 


meet the provisions of chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code.  


(j) Solid waste disposal sites. Disposal of solid or hazardous waste is prohibited in 


floodfringe areas.  


(k) Deposition of materials. Any deposited material must meet all the provisions of this 


ordinance.  


(l) Manufactured homes. 


(1) Owners or operators of all manufactured home parks and subdivisions shall 


provide adequate surface drainage to minimize flood damage, and prepare, secure 


approval and file an evacuation plan, indicating vehicular access and escape routes, 


with local emergency management authorities.  


(2) In existing manufactured home parks, all new homes, replacement homes on 


existing pads, and substantially improved homes shall:  


a. Have the lowest floor elevated to the flood protection elevation; and  


b. Be anchored so they do not float, collapse or move laterally during a flood.  


(3) Outside of existing manufactured home parks, including new manufactured home 


parks and all single units outside of existing parks, all new, replacement and 


substantially improved manufactured homes shall meet the residential development 


standards for the floodfringe in subsection (b) above.  


(m) Mobile recreational vehicles. All mobile recreational vehicles must be that are on site for 


less than 180 consecutive days and be either or more or are not fully licensed and ready for 


highway use or shall meet the elevation and anchoring requirements in subsection 30-


43(l)(2) and (3) above.  


A mobile recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking 


system, is attached to the site only by quick-disconnect utilities and security devices and has 


no permanently attached additions.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-44. Other floodplain districts. 


Other floodplain districts may be established under the ordinance and reflected on the 


floodplain zoning map. These districts may include general floodplain districts and flood storage 


districts.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Secs. 30-45—30-50. Reserved. 


ARTICLE V. GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT (GFP) 


Sec. 30-51. Applicability. 


The provisions for this district shall apply to all floodplains mapped as A, AE, AO or AH 


zones within which a floodway is not delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps identified in 


section 30-5. 


Floodway Boundaries: For proposed development in zone A, or in zone AE within 


which a floodway is not delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Map identified in section 


30-5(b), the boundaries of the regulatory floodway shall be determined pursuant to section 


30-54. If the development is proposed to encroach upon the regulatory floodway, the 


development is subject to the standards of Article III. If the development is located entirely 


within the floodfringe, the development is subject to the standards of Article IV. 


  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-52. Permitted uses. 


Pursuant to section 30-54, it shall be determined whether the proposed use is located within 


the floodway or floodfringe.  


Those uses permitted in the floodway (section 30-32) and floodfringe (section 30-42) 


districts are allowed within the general floodplain district, according to the standards of section 


30-53, provided that all permits or certificates required under section 30-71 have been issued.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-53. Standards for development in the general floodplain district. 


Article III applies to floodway areas, determined pursuant to section 30-54; article IV 


applies to floodfringe areas determined pursuant to section 30-54. The rest of this ordinance 


applies to either district.  


(1) New construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AO shall 


have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated:  In AO/AH zones, the structure's 


lowest floor must meet one of the conditions listed below whichever is higher:  


a. to or above the depth, in feet, as shown on the FIRM, to or above the highest 


adjacent natural grade; or  at or above the flood protection elevation; or  


b. if the depth is not specified on the FIRM, to or above two (2) feet above the 


highest adjacent grade. around the structure; or  


c. the depth as shown on the FIRM.  


(2) In AO/AH zones, provide plans showing adequate drainage paths to guide 


floodwaters around structures.  







 


 


 


    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:16 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 27 of 50 


(3) New Construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AH shall 


have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the flood protection 


elevation. 


(4) All development in zones AO and zone AH shall meet the requirements of Article 


IV applicable to flood fringe areas. 


 


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-54. Determining floodway and floodfringe limits. 


Upon receiving an application for development within zone A, or within zone AE where a 


floodway has not been delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps, the general floodplain 


district, the zoning administrator shall:  


(1) Require the applicant to submit two copies of an aerial photograph or a plan 


which shows the proposed development with respect to the general floodplain district 


limits, stream channel, and existing floodplain developments, along with a legal 


description of the property, fill limits and elevations, building floor elevations and 


flood proofing measures; and the flood zone as shown on the FIRM and flood proofing 


measures;  


(2) Require the applicant to furnish any of the following information deemed 


necessary by the DNR to evaluate the effects of the proposal upon flood height and 


flood flows, regional flood elevation and to determine floodway boundaries:  


a. A hydrologic and hydraulic study as specified in sec. 30-71(b)(3);  


b. Plan (surface view) showing elevations or contours of the ground; pertinent 


structure, fill or storage elevations; size, location and layout of all proposed and 


existing structures on the site; location and elevations of streets, water supply, and 


sanitary facilities; soil types and other pertinent information;  


c. Specifications for building construction and materials, floodproofing, filling, 


dredging, channel improvement, storage, water supply and sanitary facilities.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


ARTICLE VI. FLOOD STORAGE DISTRICT 


Sec. 30-55. Flood storage district. 


The flood storage district delineates that portion of the floodplain where storage of 


floodwaters has been taken into account and is relied upon to reduce the regional flood 


discharge. The district protects the flood storage areas and assures that any development in the 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


storage areas will not decrease the effective flood storage capacity which would cause higher 


flood elevations.  


(Ord. No. 0-15-2014, 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-56. Applicability. 


The provisions of this section apply to all areas within the flood storage district (FSD), as 


shown on the official floodplain zoning maps.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009) 


Sec. 30-57. Permitted uses. 


Any use or development which occurs in a flood storage district must meet the applicable 


requirements in section 30-43.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009) 


Sec. 30-58. Standards for development in flood storage districts. 


(a) Development in a flood storage district shall not cause an increase equal or greater than 


0.00 of a foot in the height of the regional flood.  


(b) No development shall be allowed which removes flood storage volume unless an equal 


volume of storage as defined by the pre-development ground surface and the regional flood 


elevation shall be provided in the immediate area of the proposed development to 


compensate for the volume of storage which is lost, (compensatory storage). Excavation 


below the groundwater table is not considered to provide an equal volume of storage.  


(c) If compensatory storage cannot be provided, the area may not be developed unless the 


entire area zoned as flood storage district - on this waterway - is rezoned to the floodfringe 


district. This must include a revision to the floodplain study and map done for the waterway 


to revert to the higher regional flood discharge calculated without floodplain storage, as per 


Article IX Amendments of this ordinance.  


(d) No area may be removed from the flood storage district unless it can be shown that the 


area has been filled to the flood protection elevation and is contiguous to other lands lying 


outside of the floodplain.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Secs. 30-59, 30-60. Reserved. 


ARTICLE VII. NONCONFORMING USES1 


                                                 
1Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, adopted Dec. 8, 2009, renumbered Art. VI as Art. VII.  







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


Sec. 30-61. General. 


(a) Applicability.  If these standards conform with Wis. Stats., § 62.23(7)(h), for cities, they 


shall apply to all modifications or additions to any nonconforming use or structure and to 


the use of any structure or premises which was lawful before the passage of this ordinance 


or any amendment thereto.  


(1) The standards in this section shall apply to all uses and buildings that do not 


conform to the provisions contained within a floodplain zoning ordinance or with s. 


87.30, Stats. and § NR 116.12-14, Wis. Adm. Code and 44 CFR 59-72., these standards 


shall apply to all modifications or additions to any nonconforming use or structure and to 


the use of any structure or premises which was lawful before the passage of this 


ordinance or any amendment thereto. A party asserting existence of a lawfully 


established nonconforming use or structure has the burden of proving that the use or 


structure was compliant with the floodplain zoning ordinance in effect at the time the 


use or structure was created. 


 


(2) As permit applications are received for additions, modifications, or 


substantial improvements to nonconforming buildings in the floodplain, 


municipalities shall develop a list of those nonconforming buildings, their present 


equalized assessed value and a list of the costs of those activities associated with 


changes to those buildings. 


 


(b) The existing lawful use of a structure or its accessory use which is not in conformity with 


the provisions of this ordinance may continue subject to the following conditions:  


(1) No modifications or additions to a nonconforming use or structure shall be 


permitted unless they comply with this ordinance. The words "modification" and 


"addition" include, but are not limited to, any alteration, addition, modification, 


structural repair, rebuilding or replacement of any such existing use, structure or 


accessory structure or use. Maintenance is not considered a modification this includes 


painting, decorating, paneling and other nonstructural components and the 


maintenance, repair or replacement of existing private sewage or water supply systems 


or connections to public utilities. Any costs associated with the repair of a damaged 


structure are not considered maintenance.  


The construction of a deck that does not exceed 200 square feet and that is adjacent to 


the exterior wall of a principal structure is not an extension, modification or addition. 


The roof of the structure may extend over a portion of the deck in order to provide safe 


ingress and egress to the principal structure.  


(2) If a nonconforming use or the use of a nonconforming structure is discontinued 


for 12 consecutive months, it is no longer permitted and any future use of the property, 


and any structure or building thereon, shall conform to the applicable requirements of 


this ordinance;  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


(3) The municipality shall keep a record which lists all nonconforming uses and 


nonconforming structures, their present equalized assessed value, the cost of all 


modifications or additions which have been permitted, and the percentage of the 


structure's total current value those modifications represent;  


(4) No modification or addition to any nonconforming structure or any structure with 


a nonconforming use, which over the life of the structure would equal or exceed 50 


percent of its present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire 


structure is permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in 


compliance with the applicable requirements of this ordinance. Contiguous dry land 


access must be provided for residential and commercial uses in compliance with 


subsection 30- 43(b). The costs of elevating the lowest floor of a nonconforming 


building or a building with a nonconforming use to the flood protection elevation are 


excluded from the 50 percent provisions of this paragraph;  


(5) No maintenance on a per event basis to any nonconforming structure or any 


structure with a nonconforming use, the cost of which would equal or exceed 50 


percent of its present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire 


structure is permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in 


compliance with the applicable requirements of this ordinance. Contiguous dry land 


access must be provided for residential and commercial uses in compliance with sec. 


30-43 (b).  Maintenance to any nonconforming structure, which does not exceed 50% 


of its present equalized assessed value on a per event basis, done not count against the 


cumulative calculations over the life of the structure for substantial improvement 


calculations. 


(6) If on a per event basis the total value of the work being done under (4) and (5) 


above equals or exceeds 50 percent of the present equalized assessed value of the work 


shall not be permitted unless the entire structure is permanently changed to a 


conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable 


requirements of the ordinance. Contiguous dry land access must be provided for 


residential and commercial uses in compliance with sec. 30-43(b).  


(7) Except as provided in this sec. (8) below, if any nonconforming structure or any 


structure with a nonconforming use is destroyed or is substantially damaged, it cannot 


be replaced, reconstructed or rebuilt unless the use and the structure meet the current 


ordinance requirements. A structure is considered substantially damaged if the total 


cost to restore the structure to its pre-damaged condition equals or exceeds 50 percent 


of the structure's equalized assessed value.  


(8) For nonconforming buildings that are substantially damaged or destroyed by a 


non-flood disaster, the repair or reconstruction of any such nonconforming building 


shall be permitted in order to restore it to the size and use in effect prior to the damage 


event, provided that the minimum federal code requirements below are met and all 


required permits have been granted prior to the start of construction.  


a. Residential structures. 







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


1. Shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the 


base flood elevation using fill, pilings, columns, posts or perimeter walls. 


Perimeter walls must meet the requirements of sec. 30-75(b).  


2. Shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the 


structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the 


effects of buoyancy and shall be constructed with methods and materials 


resistant to flood damage.  


3. Shall be constructed with electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air 


conditioning equipment and other service facilities that are designed and/or 


elevated so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the 


components during conditions of flooding.  


4. In A zones, obtain, review and utilize any flood data available from a 


federal, state or other source.  


5. In AO zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, 


including basement, meet the standards in sec. 30-53.  


6. In AO zones, shall have adequate drainage paths around structures on 


slopes to guide floodwaters around and away from the structure.  


b. Nonresidential structures. 


1. Shall meet the requirements of sec. 30-61(b)(8)a.1—6.  


2. Shall either have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or 


above the regional flood elevation; or, together with attendant utility and 


sanitary facilities, shall meet the standards in sec. 30-75(a) or (b).  


3. In AO zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, 


including basement, meet the standards in sec. 30-53.  


c. A nonconforming historic structure may be altered if the alteration will not 


preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure, the alteration 


will comply with subsection 30-33(a), flood resistant materials are used, and 


construction practices and floodproofing methods that comply with section 30-75 


are used. Repair or rehabilitation of historic structures shall be exempt from the 


development standards of sec. 30-61(b)(8)a if it is determined that the proposed 


repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a 


historic structure and is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character 


and design of the structure.  


d. Notwithstanding anything in this chapter to the contrary, modifications, additions, 


maintenance, and repairs to a nonconforming building shall not be prohibited 


based on cost and the building’s nonconforming use shall be permitted to continue 


if: 


 


1. Any living quarters in the nonconforming building are elevated to be at or 


above   the flood protection elevation; 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


 


2. The lowest floor of the nonconforming building, including the basement, 


is elevated to or above the regional flood elevation; 


 


3. The nonconforming building is permanently changed to conform to the                    


applicable requirements of 2.0;  


 


4. If the nonconforming building is in the floodway, the building is 


permanently changed to conform to the applicable requirements of 3.3(1), 


3.3(2)(b) through (e), 3.3(3), 3.3(4), and 6.2.  Any development that adds 


additional fill or creates an encroachment in the floodplain from beyond the 


original nonconforming structure’s 3-D building envelope must determine the 


floodway in accordance with section 5.1(5).  If the encroachment is in the 


floodway it must meet the standards in section 3.3(4); 


 


5. If the nonconforming building is in the floodfringe, the building is 


permanently       changed to conform to the applicable requirements of 4.3 and 


6.3; 


 


6. Repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and substantial 


improvements of residential buildings in zones A1-30, AE, and AH must have 


the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to or above the base flood 


elevation; 


 


7. Repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and substantial 


improvements of non-residential buildings in zones A1-30, AE, and AH must 


have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to or above the base flood 


elevation, or (together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities) be 


designed so that below the base flood elevation the building is watertight with 


walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural 


components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and 


effects of buoyancy: 


 


i.   Where a non-residential structure is intended to be made watertight 


below the base flood elevation, a registered professional engineer or 


architect must develop and/or review structural design, specifications, and 


plans for the construction, and must certify that the design and methods of 


construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for 


meeting the provisions of s. 6.1(4)(g) above. 


 


ii.    The community must maintain a record of such certification including 


the specific elevation to which each such structure is floodproofed; 


 


8. Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor of repair or reconstruction of  


nonconforming structures and substantial improvements in zones A1-30, AE, 


and AH that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or 







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


storage, must be designed to adequately equalize hydrostatic forces on 


exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters.  Subsequent 


improvements to repaired or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not 


increase the degree of their nonconformity.  Designs for meeting this 


requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or 


architect, or meet the following criteria: 


 


i.    A minimum of two openings into each enclosed area must be located 


below the base flood elevation and provide a total net area of not less than 


one square inch for every square foot of enclosed area. 


 


ii.   The bottom of all openings must be no higher than one foot above the 


adjacent grade. 


 


iii.    Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other 


coverings if they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters; 


 


9. Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within 


zones A1-30, AE, and AH outside of a manufactured home park or 


subdivision, in a new manufactured home park or subdivision, in an expansion 


to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, or in an existing 


manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home has 


incurred substantial damage as a result of flood, must be elevated on a 


permanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is 


at or above the base flood elevation, and be securely anchored to an 


adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 


movement; 


 


10. Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within 


zones A1-30, AE, and AH on existing sites in an existing manufactured home 


park that is not undergoing expansion and on which a manufactured home has 


not incurred substantial damage as a result of flood must be elevated so that 


either the lowest floor of the manufactured home is at or above the base flood 


elevation, or the manufactured home chassis is supported by reinforced piers 


or other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less 


than 36 inches in height above grade, and be securely anchored to an 


adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral 


movement; 


 


11. Recreational vehicles placed on sites within zones A1-30, AH, and AE 


must either: 


 


i.    Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or 


 


ii.    Be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle is 


ready for highway use if it is on its wheels or jacking system, is attached 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and 


has no permanently attached additions); or 


 


iii.    Meet the elevation and anchoring requirements for manufactured homes 


in  s. 6.1(4)(i) above; 


 


12. In a regulatory floodway that has been delineated on the FIRM in zone 


A1-30 or AE, encroachments, including repair or reconstruction of 


nonconforming structures , substantial improvement, or other development 


(including fill) must be prohibited unless it has been demonstrated through 


hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard 


engineering practice that the proposed encroachment will not result in any 


increase in flood levels within the community during the occurrence of the 


base flood discharge. Subsequent improvements to repair or reconstructed 


nonconforming structures must not increase the degree of their 


nonconformity; 


 


13. In zone A, the community must obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any 


base flood elevation and floodway data available from a federal, state, or other 


source as criteria for requiring repair or reconstruction of nonconforming 


structures, substantial improvement, and other development to meet  ss. 


6.1(4)(f) through (l) (inclusive) above. Any development that adds additional 


fill or creates an encroachment in the floodplain from beyond the original 


nonconforming structure’s 3-D building envelope must determine the 


floodway in accordance with section 5.1(5).  If the encroachment is in the 


floodway it must meet the standards in section 3.3(4). Subsequent 


improvements to repair or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not 


increase the degree of their nonconformity;   


 


14. In zones A1-30 or AE where a regulatory floodway has not been 


delineated on the FIRM, repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures, 


substantial improvement, or any development that adds additional fill or 


creates an encroachment in the floodplain from beyond the original 


nonconforming structure’s 3-D building envelope must determine the 


floodway in accordance with section 5.1(5). If the encroachment is in the 


floodway it must meet the standards in section 3.3(4). Subsequent 


improvements to repair or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not 


increase the degree of their nonconformity;  


 


15. In zone AO, repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and 


substantial improvements of residential structures must have the lowest floor 


(including basement) elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as 


high as the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM (at least two feet if no 


depth number is specified). Subsequent improvements to repair or 


reconstructed nonconforming structures must not increase the degree of their 


nonconformity; or 







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


16. In zone AO, repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and 


substantial improvements of nonresidential structures must have the lowest 


floor (including basement) elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least 


as high as the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM (at least two feet if 


no depth number is specified), or (together with attendant utility and sanitary 


facilities) be structurally dry-floodproofed to that level according to the 


standard specified in  s. 6.1(4)(g) above. Subsequent improvements to repair 


or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not increase the degree of 


their nonconformity. 


 


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-62. Floodway district. 


(a) No modification or addition shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any 


structure with a nonconforming use in the floodway district, unless such modification or 


addition:  


(1) Has been granted a permit or variance which meets all ordinance requirements;  


(2) Meets the requirements of section 30-61;  


(3) Shall not increase the obstruction to flood flows or regional flood height;  


(4) Any addition to the existing structure shall be floodproofed, pursuant to section 


30-75, by means other than the use of fill, to the flood protection elevation; and  


(5) If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation is enclosed, the 


following standards shall apply:  


a. The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow 


for the efficient entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention. A 


minimum of two openings must be provided with a minimum net area of at least 


one square inch for every one square foot of the enclosed area. The lowest part of 


the opening can be no more than 12 inches above the adjacent grade;  


b. The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be 


constructed of flood resistant materials;  


c. Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above 


the flood protection elevation; and  


d. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage.  


(b) No new on-site sewage disposal system, or addition to an existing on-site sewage 


disposal system, except where an addition has been ordered by a government agency to 


correct a hazard to public health, shall be allowed in the floodway district. Any replacement, 


repair or maintenance of an existing on-site sewage disposal system in a floodway area shall 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


meet the applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, sec. 30-75(c). and ch. SPS 


383 Wis. Adm. Code.  


(c) No new well or modification to an existing well used to obtain potable water shall be 


allowed in the floodway district. Any replacement, repair or maintenance of an existing well 


in the floodway district shall meet the applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, 


sec. 30-75(c) and chs. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. Adm. Code.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014, 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-63. Floodfringe district. 


(a) No modification or addition shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any 


structure with a nonconforming use unless such modification or addition has been granted a 


permit or variance by the municipality, and meets the requirements of sec. 30-43 except 


where sec. 30-63(b) is applicable.  


(b) Where compliance with the provisions of subsection (a) above would result in 


unnecessary hardship and only where the structure will not be used for human habitation or 


be associated with a high flood damage potential, the board of appeals, using the procedures 


established in section 30-73, may grant a variance from those provisions of subsection (a) 


above for modifications or additions, using the criteria listed below. Modifications or 


additions which are protected to elevations lower than the flood protection elevation may be 


permitted if:  


(1) No floor is allowed below the regional flood elevation for residential or 


commercial structures;  


(2) Human lives are not endangered;  


(3) Public facilities, such as water or sewer, shall not be installed;  


(4) Flood depths shall not exceed two feet;  


(5) Flood velocities shall not exceed two feet per second; and  


(6) The structure shall not be used for storage of materials as described in subsection 


30- 43(f).  


(c) All new private sewage disposal systems or addition to, replacement, repair or 


maintenance of a private sewage disposal system, shall meet all the applicable provisions of 


all local ordinances, sec. 30-75(c) and ch. SPS 383, Wis. Adm. Code.  


(d) All new wells, or addition to, replacement, repair or maintenance of a well shall meet the 


applicable provisions of this ordinance, sec. 30-75(c) and ch. NR 811 and NR 812, Wis. 


Adm. Code.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 







 


 


 


    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:16 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 37 of 50 


Sec. 30-64. Flood storage district. 


No modifications or additions shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure in a flood 


storage area unless the standards outlined in section 30-58 are met.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, 12-8-2009; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Secs. 30-65—30-69. Reserved. 


ARTICLE VIII. ADMINISTRATION2 


                                                 
2Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-23-09, § 1, adopted Dec. 8, 2009, renumbered Art. VII as Art. VIII.  


Sec. 30-70. Administration. 


Where a zoning administrator, planning agency or a board of adjustment/appeals has 


already been appointed to administer a zoning ordinance adopted under § 62.23(7), Stats., these 


officials shall also administer this ordinance.  


(Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-71. Zoning administrator. 


(a) The zoning administrator is authorized to administer this ordinance and shall have the 


following duties and powers:  


(1) Advise applicants of the ordinance provisions, assist in preparing permit 


applications and appeals, and assure that the regional flood elevation for the proposed 


development is shown on all permit applications.  


(2) Issue permits and inspect properties for compliance with provisions of this 


ordinance and issue certificates of compliance where appropriate.  


(3) Inspect and assess all damaged floodplain structures to determine if substantial 


damage to the structures has occurred.  


(4) Keep records of all official actions such as:  


a. All permits issued, inspections made, and work approved;  


b. Documentation of certified lowest floor and regional flood elevations;  


c. Water surface profiles, floodplain zoning maps and ordinances, nonconforming 


uses and structures including changes, appeals, variances and amendments;  


d. All substantial damage assessment reports for floodplain structures;  


e. Floodproofing certificates.  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


f. List of nonconforming structures and uses.  


(5) Submit copies of the following items to the DNR regional office:  


a. Within ten days of the decision, a copy of any decisions on variances, appeals for 


map or text interpretations, and map or text amendments;  


b. Copies of case-by-case analyses, and other required information including an 


annual summary of floodplain zoning actions taken.  


c. Copies of substantial damage assessments performed and all related 


correspondence concerning the assessments.  


(6) Investigate, prepare reports, and report violations of this ordinance to the 


municipal zoning agency and attorney for prosecution. Copies of the reports shall also 


be sent to the DNR regional office.  


(7) Submit copies of amendments to the FEMA Regional office.  


(b) Land use permit. A land use permit shall be obtained before any new development; 


repair, modification or addition to an existing structure; or change in the use of a building or 


structure, including sewer and water facilities, may be initiated. Application to the zoning 


administrator shall include:  


(1) General information. 


a. Name and address of the applicant, property owner and contractor;  


b. Legal description, proposed use, and whether it is new construction or a 


modification;  


(2) Site development plan. A site plan drawn to scale shall be submitted with the 


permit application form and shall contain:  


a. Location, dimensions, area and elevation of the lot;  


b. Location of the ordinary highwater mark of any abutting navigable waterways;  


c. Location of any structures with distances measured from the lot lines and street 


center lines;  


d. Location of any existing or proposed on-site sewage systems or private water 


supply systems;  


e. Location and elevation of existing or future access roads;  


f. Location of floodplain and floodway limits as determined from the official 


floodplain zoning maps;  


g. The elevation of the lowest floor of proposed buildings and any fill using the 


vertical datum from the adopted study - either National Geodetic Vertical Datum 


(NGVD) or North American Vertical Datum (NAVD);  







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


h. Data sufficient to determine the regional flood elevation in NGVD or NAVD at 


the location of the development and to determine whether or not the requirements 


of article III or IV are met; and  


i. Data to determine if the proposed development will cause an obstruction to flow 


or an increase in regional flood height or discharge according to section 30-21. 


This may include any of the information noted in subsection 30-33(a).  


(3) Hydraulic and hydrologic studies to analyze development. All hydraulic and 


hydrologic studies shall be completed under the direct supervision of a professional 


engineer registered in the State. The study contractor shall be responsible for the 


technical adequacy of the study. All studies shall be reviewed and approved by the 


DNR.  


(a) Zone A floodplains and in AE zones within which a floodway is not delineated:  


(1) Hydrology. 


a. The appropriate method shall be based on the standards in ch. NR 


116.07(3), Wis. Admin. Code, Hydrologic Analysis: Determination 


of Regional Flood Elevation Discharge. 


(2) Hydraulic modeling. The regional flood elevation shall be based on the 


standards in ch. NR 116.07(34), Wis Admin. Code, Hydraulic Analysis: 


Determination of Regional Flood Elevation and the following:  


a. Determination of the required limits of the hydraulic model shall 


be based on detailed study information for downstream structures 


(dam, bridge, culvert) to determine adequate starting WSEL for the 


study.  


b. Channel sections must be surveyed.  


c. Minimum four foot contour data in the overbanks shall be used for 


the development of cross section overbank and floodplain 


mapping.  


d. A maximum distance of 500 feet between cross sections is allowed 


in developed areas with additional intermediate cross sections 


required at transitions in channel bottom slope including a survey 


of the channel at each location.  


e. The most current version of HEC-RAS shall be used.  


f. A survey of bridge and culvert openings and the top of road is 


required at each structure.  


g. Additional cross sections are required at the downstream and 


upstream limits of the proposed development and any necessary 


intermediate locations based on the length of the reach if greater 


than 500 feet.  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


h. Standard accepted engineering practices shall be used when 


assigning parameters for the base model such as flow, Manning's N 


values, expansion and contraction coefficients or effective flow 


limits. The base model shall be calibrated to past flooding data 


such as high water marks to determine the reasonableness of the 


model results. If no historical data is available, adequate 


justification shall be provided for any parameters outside standard 


accepted engineering practices.  


i. The model must extend past the upstream limit of the difference in 


the existing and proposed flood profiles in order to provide a tie-in 


to existing studies. The height difference between the proposed 


flood profile and the existing study profiles shall be no more than 


0.00 feet.  


(3) Mapping. A work map of the reach studied shall be provided, showing all 


cross section locations, floodway/floodplain limits based on the best 


available topographic data, geographic limits of the proposed development 


and whether the proposed development is located in the floodway.  


a. If the proposed development is located outside of the floodway, 


then it is determined to have no impact on the regional flood 


elevation.  


b. If any part of the proposed development is in the floodway, it must 


be added to the base model to show the difference between existing 


and proposed conditions. The study must ensure that all 


coefficients remain the same as in the existing model, unless 


adequate justification based on standard accepted engineering 


practices is provided.  


(b) Zone AE Floodplains. 


(1) Hydrology. If the proposed hydrology will change the existing study, the 


appropriate method to be used shall be based on ch. NR 116.07(3), Wis. 


Admin. Code, Hydrologic Analysis: Determination of Regional Flood 


Discharge. 


(2) Hydraulic model. The regional flood elevation shall be based on the 


standards in ch. NR 116.07(4), Wis. Admin. Code, Hydraulic Analysis: 


Determination of Regional Flood Elevation and the following:  


a. Duplicate Effective Model. The effective model shall be 


reproduced to ensure correct transference of the model data and to 


allow integration of the revised data to provide a continuous FIS 


model upstream and downstream of the revised reach. If data from 


the effective model is available, models shall be generated that 


duplicate the FIS profiles and the elevations shown in the 


Floodway Data Table in the FIS report to within 0.1 foot.  







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


b. Corrected Effective Model. The Corrected Effective Model shall 


not include any man-made physical changes since the effective 


model date, but shall import the model into the most current 


version of HEC-RAS for DNR review.  


c. Existing (Pre-Project Conditions) Model. The Existing Model shall 


be required to support conclusions about the actual impacts of the 


project associated with the Revised (Post-Project) Model or to 


establish more up-to-date models on which to base the Revised 


(Post-Project) Model.  


d. Revised (Post-Project Conditions) Model. The Revised (Post-


Project Conditions) Model shall incorporate the Existing Model 


and any proposed changes to the topography caused by the 


proposed development. This model shall reflect proposed 


conditions.  


e. All changes to the Duplicate Effective Model and subsequent 


models must be supported by certified topographic information, 


bridge plans, construction plans and survey notes.  


f. Changes to the hydraulic models shall be limited to the stream 


reach for which the revision is being requested. Cross sections 


upstream and downstream of the revised reach shall be identical to 


those in the effective model and result in water surface elevations 


and topwidths computed by the revised models matching those in 


the effective models upstream and downstream of the revised reach 


as required. The Effective Model shall not be truncated.  


(3) Mapping. Maps and associated engineering data shall be submitted to the 


DNR for review which meet the following conditions:  


a. Consistency between the revised hydraulic models, the revised 


floodplain and floodway delineations, the revised flood profiles, 


topographic work map, annotated FIRMs and/or Flood Boundary 


Floodway Maps (FBFMs), construction plans, bridge plans.  


b. Certified topographic map of suitable scale, contour interval, and a 


planimetric map showing the applicable items. If a digital version 


of the map is available, it may be submitted in order that the FIRM 


may be more easily revised.  


c. Annotated FIRM panel showing the revised 1 percent and 0.2 


percent annual chance floodplains and floodway boundaries.  


d. If an annotated FIRM and/or FBFM and digital mapping data (GIS 


or CADD) are used then all supporting documentation or metadata 


must be included with the data submission along with the 


Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) projection and State Plane 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


Coordinate System in accordance with FEMA mapping 


specifications.  


e. The revised floodplain boundaries shall tie into the effective 


floodplain boundaries.  


f. All cross sections from the effective model shall be labeled in 


accordance with the effective map and a cross section lookup table 


shall be included to relate to the model input numbering scheme.  


g. Both the current and proposed floodways shall be shown on the 


map.  


h. The stream centerline, or profile baseline used to measure stream 


distances in the model shall be visible on the map.  


(4) Expiration. All permits issued under the authority of this ordinance shall expire 


no more than 180 days after issuance. The permit may be extended for a 


maximum of 180 days for good and sufficient cause. If the permitted work has not 


started within 180 days of the permit date, the development must comply with any 


regulation, including any revision to the FIRM or FIS that took effect after the 


permit date. 


(c) Certificate of compliance. No land shall be occupied or used, and no building which is 


hereafter constructed, altered, added to, modified, repaired, rebuilt or replaced shall be 


occupied until a certificate of compliance is issued by the zoning administrator, except 


where no permit is required, subject to the following provisions:  


(1) The certificate of compliance shall show that the building or premises or part 


thereof, and the proposed use, conform to the provisions of this ordinance;  


(2) Application for such certificate shall be concurrent with the application for a 


permit;  


(3) If all ordinance provisions are met, the certificate of compliance shall be issued 


within ten days after written notification that the permitted work is completed;  


(4) The applicant shall submit a certification signed by a registered professional 


engineer, architect or registered land surveyor that the fill, lowest floor and 


floodproofing elevations are in compliance with the permit issued. Floodproofing 


measures also require certification by a registered professional engineer or architect 


that the requirements of section 30-75 are met.  


(5) Where applicable pursuant to section 30-53, the applicant must submit a 


certification by a registered professional engineer or surveyor of the elevation of the 


bottom of the lowest horizontal structural member supporting the lowest floor 


(excluding pilings or columns), and an indication of whether the structure contains a 


basement. 


(6) Where applicable pursuant to section 30-53, the applicant must submit 


certifications by a registered professional engineer or architect that the structural design 







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


and methods of construction meet accepted standards of practice as required by section 


30-53. 


(d) Other permits. Prior to obtaining a floodplain permit, the applicant must secure all 


necessary permits from federal, state, and local agencies, including but not limited to those 


required by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers under § 404 of the Federal Water Pollution 


Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1344.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-72. Zoning agency. 


(a) The city planning commission shall:  


(1) Oversee the functions of the office of the zoning administrator; and  


(2) Review and advise the governing body on all proposed amendments to this 


ordinance, maps and text.; 


(3) Publish adequate notice pursuant to Ch. 985, Stats., specifying the date, time, 


place and subject of the public hearing. 


(b) This zoning administrator or plan commission shall not:  


(1) Grant variances to the terms of the ordinance in place of action by the board of 


appeals; or  


(2) Amend the text or zoning maps in place of official action by the governing body.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-73. Board of adjustment appeals. 


The board of adjustment/appeals, created under Wis. Stats., § 62.23(7)(e), for cities, is 


hereby authorized or shall be appointed to act for the purposes of this ordinance. The board shall 


exercise the powers conferred by Wisconsin Statutes and adopt rules for the conduct of business. 


The zoning administrator shall not be the secretary of the board.  


(1) Powers and duties: The board of adjustment/appeals shall:  


a. Appeals: Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error in any order, 


requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative official in the 


enforcement or administration of this ordinance.  


b. Boundary disputes: Hear and decide disputes concerning the district boundaries 


shown on the official floodplain zoning map.  


c. Variances: Hear and decide, upon appeal, variances from the ordinance standards.  


(2) Appeals to the board: 


a. Appeals to the board may be taken by any person aggrieved, or by any officer or 


department of the municipality affected by any decision of the zoning 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


administrator or other administrative officer. Such appeal shall be taken within 30 


days unless otherwise provided by the rules of the board, by filing with the 


official whose decision is in question, and with the board, a notice of appeal 


specifying the reasons for the appeal. The official whose decision is in question 


shall transmit to the board all records regarding the matter appealed.  


b. Notice and hearing for appeals including variances:  


1. Notice: The board shall:  


i. Fix a reasonable time for the hearing;  


ii. Publish adequate notice pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, specifying 


the date, time, place and subject of the hearing; and  


iii. Assure that notice shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the 


DNR regional office at least ten days in advance of the hearing.  


2. Hearing: Any party may appear in person or by agent or attorney. The 


board shall:  


i. Resolve boundary disputes according to subsection (3) below.  


ii. Decide variance applications according to subsection (4) below.  


iii. Decide appeals of permit denials according to section 30-74.  


c. Decision: The final decision regarding the appeal or variance application shall:  


1. Be made within a reasonable time;  


2. Be sent to the DNR regional office within ten days of the decision;  


3. Be a written determination signed by the chairman or secretary of the 


board;  


4. State the specific facts which are the basis for the board's decision;  


5. Either affirm, reverse, vary or modify the order, requirement, decision or 


determination appealed, in whole or in part, dismiss the appeal for lack of 


jurisdiction or grant or deny the variance application; and  


6. Include the reasons for granting an appeal, describing the hardship 


demonstrated by the applicant in the case of a variance, clearly stated in the 


recorded minutes of the board proceedings.  


(3) Boundary disputes. The following procedure shall be used by the board in hearing 


disputes concerning floodplain district boundaries:  


a. If a floodplain district boundary is established by approximate or detailed 


floodplain studies, the flood elevations or profiles shall prevail in locating the 


boundary. If none exist, other evidence may be examined.  







 


 


 


b. The person contesting the boundary location shall be given a reasonable 


opportunity to present arguments and technical evidence to the board; and  


c. If the boundary is incorrectly mapped, the board should inform the zoning 


committee or the person contesting the boundary location to petition the 


governing body for a map amendment according to article IX Amendments.  


(4) Variance. 


a. The board may, upon appeal, grant a variance from the standards of this ordinance 


if an applicant convincingly demonstrates that:  


1. Literal enforcement of the ordinance will cause unnecessary hardship;  


2. The hardship is due to adoption of the floodplain ordinance and unique 


property conditions, not common to adjacent lots or premises. In such case 


the ordinance or map must be amended;  


3. The variance is not contrary to the public interest; and  


4. The variance is consistent with the purpose of this ordinance in section 30-


3.  


b. In addition to the criteria in subsection (4)a. above, to qualify for a variance under 


FEMA regulations, the following criteria must be met:  


1. The variance shall not cause any increase in the regional flood elevation;  


2. The applicant has shown good and sufficient cause for issuance of the 


variance;  Variances can only be granted for lots that are less than one-half 


acre and are contiguous to existing structures constructed below the RFE; 


and  


3. Failure to grant a variance would result in an exceptional hardship; 


Variances shall only be granted upon a showing of good and sufficient cause, 


shall be the minimum relief necessary, shall not cause increased risks to 


public safety or nuisances, shall not increase costs for rescue and relief 


efforts and shall not be contrary to the purpose of the ordinance.  


4. Granting the variance will not result in additional threats to public safety, 


extraordinary expense, create a nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of 


the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances, and; 


5. The variance granted is the minimum necessary, considering the flood 


hazard, to afford relief. 


c. A variance shall not:  


1. Grant, extend or increase any use prohibited in the zoning district.  


2. Be granted for a hardship based solely on an economic gain or loss.  


3. Be granted for a hardship which is self-created.  







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


4. Damage the rights or property values of other persons in the area.  


5. Allow actions without the amendments to this ordinance or map(s) 


required in article IX Amendments; and  


6. Allow any alteration of an historic structure, including its use, which 


would preclude its continued designation as an historic structure.  


d. When a floodplain variance is granted the board shall notify the applicant in 


writing that it may increase risks to life and property and flood insurance 


premiums could increase up to $25.00 per $100.00 of coverage. A copy shall be 


maintained with the variance record.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-74. To review appeals of permit denials. 


(a) The zoning agency (section 30-72) or board shall review all data related to the appeal. 


This may include:  


(1) Permit application data listed in subsection 30-71(b).  


(2) Floodway/floodfringe determination data in section 30-54.  


(3) Data listed in subsection 30-33(a)(2) where the applicant has not submitted this 


information to the zoning administrator; and  


(4) Other data submitted with the application, or submitted to the board with the 


appeal.  


(b) For appeals of all denied permits the board shall:  


(1) Follow the procedures of section 30-73;  


(2) Consider zoning agency recommendations; and  


(3) Either uphold the denial or grant the appeal.  


(c) For appeals concerning increases in regional flood elevation the board shall:  


(1) Uphold the denial where the board agrees with the data showing an increase in 


flood elevation. Increases may only be allowed after amending the flood profile and 


map and all appropriate legal arrangements are made with all adversely affected 


property owners as per the requirements of article IX Amendments; and  


(2) Grant the appeal where the board agrees that the data properly demonstrates that 


the project does not cause an increase provided no other reasons for denial exist.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 


Sec. 30-75. Floodproofing standards for nonconforming structures or uses. 


(a) No permit or variance shall be issued for a non-residential structure designed to be 


watertight below the regional flood elevation until the applicant submits a plan certified by 







 


 


 


    Created: 2021-12-03 12:42:16 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 62) 


 
Page 47 of 50 


a registered professional engineer or architect that the floodproofing measures will protect 


the structure or development to the flood protection elevation and submits a FEMA 


Floodproofing Certificate. Floodproofing is not an alternative to the development standards 


in Articles II, III, IV, or V. 


(b) For a structure designed to allow the entry of floodwaters, no permit or variance shall be 


issued until the applicant submits a plan either:  


(1) Certified by a registered professional engineer or architect; or  


(2) Meets or exceeds the following standards:  


Ia. A minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square 


inch for every foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;  


iib. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade; and  


iiic. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or 


devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters.  


(c) Floodproofing measures shall be designed as appropriate, to:  


(1) Withstand flood pressures, depths, velocities, uplift and impact forces and other 


regional flood factors;  


(2) Protect structures to the flood protection elevation;  


(3) Anchor structures to foundations to resist flotation and lateral movement;  


(4) Minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters; and  


(5) Minimize or eliminate discharges into flood waters.  


(6) Placement of essential utilities to or above the flood protection elevation; and 


(7) If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation is enclosed, the 


following standards shall apply: 


    a. The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow 


for the efficient entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention. A minimum 


of two openings must be provided with a minimum net area of at least one square inch 


for every one square foot of the enclosed area. The lowest part of the opening can be 


no more than 12 inches above the adjacent grade; 


    b. The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be 


constructed of flood-resistant materials; 


    c. Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the 


flood protection elevation; and 


    d. The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage. 







\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


 


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Sec. 30-76. Public information. 


(a) Place marks on structures to show the depth of inundation during the regional flood.  


(b) All maps, engineering data and regulations shall be available and widely distributed.  


(c) Real estate transfers should show what floodplain district any real property is in.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014) 


Secs. 30-77—30-79. Reserved. 







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


 


 


 


ARTICLE IX. AMENDMENTS 


 


Sec. 30-80. Amendments. 


Obstructions or increases may only be permitted if amendments are made to this ordinance, the 


official floodplain zoning maps, floodway lines and water surface profiles, in accordance with sec. 30-


81.  


(1) In AE Zones with a mapped floodway, no obstructions or increases shall be permitted 


unless the applicant receives a Conditional Letter of Map Revision from FEMA and 


amendments are made to this ordinance, the official floodplain zoning maps, floodway lines 


and water surface profiles, in accordance with sec. 30-81. Any such alterations must be 


reviewed and approved by FEMA and the DNR.  


(2) In A Zones increases equal to or greater than 1.0 foot may only be permitted if the 


applicant receives a Conditional Letter of Map Revision from FEMA and amendments are 


made to this ordinance, the official floodplain maps, floodway lines, and water surface 


profiles, in accordance with sec. 30-81.  


(Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014)  


Sec. 30-81. General. 


The governing body shall change or supplement the floodplain zoning district boundaries and this 


ordinance in the manner outlined in sec. 30-82. Actions which require an amendment to the ordinance 


and/or submittal of a Letter of Map Change (LOMC) include, but are not limited to, the following:  


(1) Any change to the floodplain boundaries and/or watercourse alterations on the FIRM;  


(2) Any fill or floodway encroachment that obstructs flow causing any increase in the 


regional flood height;  


(3) Any floodplain fill which raises the elevation of the filled area to a height at or above the 


flood protection elevation and is contiguous to land lying outside the floodplain;  


(4) Correction of discrepancies between the water surface profiles and floodplain maps;  


(5) Any upgrade to a floodplain zoning ordinance text required by § NR 116.05, Wis. Adm. 


Code, or otherwise required by law, or for changes by the municipality;  


(6) All channel relocations and changes to the maps to alter floodway lines or to remove an 


area from the floodway or the floodfringe that is based on a base flood elevation from a FIRM 


requires prior approval by FEMA; and  


(7) Any changes to any other officially adopted floodplain maps listed in 30-5(b)(2).  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-2014; 9-9-2014; Ord. No. 0-3-2016a, 4-12-2016) 







 


\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 30 Floodplain\Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022.doc 


Sec. 30-82. Procedures. 


Ordinance amendments may be made upon petition of any party according to the provisions of Wis. 


Stats., § 62.23, for cities. The petitions shall include all data required by section 30-54 and 30-71(b). The 


land use permit shall not be issued until a Letter of Map Revision is issued by FEMA for the proposed 


changes.  


(1) The proposed amendment shall be referred to the zoning agency for a public hearing and 


recommendation to the governing body. The amendment and notice of public hearing shall be 


submitted to the DNR regional office for review prior to the hearing. The amendment 


procedure shall comply with the provisions of Wis. Stats., § 62.23, for cities.  


(2) No amendments shall become effective until reviewed and approved by the DNR.  


(3) All persons petitioning for a map amendment that obstructs flow causing any increase in 


the regional flood height, shall obtain flooding easements or other appropriate legal 


arrangements from all adversely affected property owners and notify local units of government 


before the amendment can be approved by the governing body.  


(Ord. No. 0-28-08, § 1, 12-15-2008; Ord. No. 0-15-14, 9-9-2014) 


 


 


 


 


This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication. 


 


 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a meeting 


held on                                                2022. 


 


 


        APPROVED: 


  


              


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Posted:                   


 


Published:                           


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 





		08 O-18-2022 Stoughton Floodplain Zoning Amendment 2022

		ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE,     TITLE AND GENERAL PROVISIONS

		ARTICLE II. GENERAL STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS

		Sec. 30-20.  General Standards.

		(a)  The community shall review all permit applications to determine whether the proposed building sites will be reasonably safe from flooding and assure that all necessary permits have been received from those governmental agencies whose approval is ...

		ARTICLE III. FLOODWAY DISTRICT (FW)

		ARTICLE IV. FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT (FF)

		ARTICLE V. GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT (GFP)

		ARTICLE VI. FLOOD STORAGE DISTRICT

		ARTICLE VII. NONCONFORMING USES0F

		ARTICLE VIII. ADMINISTRATION1F

		ARTICLE IX. AMENDMENTS

		Sec. 30-80. Amendments.





		08a Floodplain Zoning Amendment










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine the parcels at 1000 and 1022 East Street into 
one parcel 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval 7 – 0  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
N/A  


File Number: 
 
R -169- 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
August 23, 2022 


RECITALS 
 
1. Chris Adams of Williams Surveying is requesting approval of a CSM to combine the lots at 1000 


and 1022 East Street to prepare for a future building addition. 
 


2. The CSM has been referred to the Plan Commission for review and recommendation to the City 
Council. 
 


3. The Plan Commission reviewed the CSM on August 8, 2022 and determined the CSM is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 


4. The Plan Commission recommends approval of the CSM by the Common Council as presented. The 
Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s recommendation. 
 


RESOLUTION 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the CSM, subject to: 
• The CSM being recorded at Dane County Register of Deeds and a copy being provided to the 


City of Stoughton Department of Planning & Development; 
 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
    
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\1000 East Street CSM 2022.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\080822\Plan Info\1000 East Street Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  August 1, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the August 8, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Request by Chris Adams of Williams Surveying to combine the lots at 1000 and 1022 East 
Street by Certified Survey Map (CSM). 
This CSM is proposed to combine the parcels to prepare for a future building addition.  Historically, 
some properties were not required to combine parcels when building over a lot line while currently 
that is not allowed.  The resolution and application information are provided.  A recommendation to 
the Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/























		09 R-169-2022 000 East Street CSM 2022

		09a CSM for 1000 East Street










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2022 adopted budget for Arts Council Fund 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022 


Fiscal Impact:   Zero 


File Number: R-170-2022 Date 8/23/2022  
044/26/24/02020


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has tracked Stoughton Arts Council activity in a special 
revenue fund (Fund 239) since 2010; and, 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Arts Council expenditures are fully paid for by donations which 
have averaged $1,250 over the last twelve years; and, 


WHEREAS, expenditures from 2014 through 2021 have averaged $1,079 per year with 
the highest year (2019) at $3,411; and, 


WHEREAS, remaining fund balance in the Stoughton Arts Council Fund at December 31, 
2021 was $6,441.88; and, 


WHEREAS, Baker Tilly US, LLP has consistently reported the General Fund and 
Stoughton Arts Council as a combined fund in the audited financial statements due to materiality 
of the activity in the Stoughton Arts Council Fund; and, 


WHEREAS, Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures (GAAP) for governmental 
accounting dictates that there should be consistency between the audited financial statements, 
general ledger and the adopted/amended budget; and, 


WHEREAS, the City’s financial software (BS&A) can be easily configured to track the 
Stoughton Arts Council activity within the General Fund as a division within the City Council’s 
budget; and, 


WHEREAS, the 2022 adopted budget for the Stoughton Arts Council Fund included a 
planned increase in the fund balance of $2,000; and, 


WHEREAS, the classification of activity that the City of Stoughton reports for the 
Stoughton Arts Council to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue for Form C (Municipal 
Financial Report) should be corrected to report the activity under Culture, Recreation, and 







Education rather than Conservation and Development; 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the 2022 adopted budget be amended 
to transfer a balanced budget consisting of $1,500 in expenditures and donations from the 
Stoughton Arts Council Fund to the City Council’s budget in the General Fund; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 adopted budget be amended to transfer the 
Stoughton Arts Council fund balance of $6,441.88 to the General Fund as Fund Balance 
Restricted; and, 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the allowed expenditures in the 2022 budget be 
increased by $6,442 as indicated below: 


 
Account Account


Number Description Increase Decrease Increase Decrease


City Council ‐Arts Council


100‐51110‐48550 Donations 1,500        


100‐51110‐50215 Outside services / contracts 1,000        


100‐51110‐50315 Ads and publications 500            


100‐51110‐49740 Fund closure transfer 6,442        


100‐51110‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers (6,442)        


     General Fund totals 1,500         1,500        


Stoughton Arts Council Fund


239‐00000‐48550 Donations (3,500)        


239‐56400‐50340 Operating expenses (1,500)        


239‐00000‐49920 Fund balance applied ‐ transfers 6,442        


239‐00000‐59740 Fund closure transfer 6,442


     Fund totals 2,942         4,942        


Grand totals 4,442         6,442        


Revenue Expenditures


Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require two-thirds (2/3) vote of members elected. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/03/2022 03:50 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


Period Ending 12/31/2022


                                     Fund 239 STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL


Balance
Current Year
Beg. BalanceDescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


6,444.02 6,441.88 PRIMARY CHECKING239-00000-11100


6,444.02 6,441.88 Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


0.00 0.00 Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


6,441.88 6,441.88 FUND BALANCE239-00000-39000


6,441.88 6,441.88 Total Fund Balance


6,441.88 Beginning Fund Balance


2.14 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
6,444.02 Ending Fund Balance
6,444.02 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance







REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/03/2022 03:49 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORM (ABNORM)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/22


INCR (DECR)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022


NORM (ABNORM)
2022


AMENDED BUDGET


2022
ORIGINAL


BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 239 - STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL
Revenues
Dept 00000 - REVENUE


100.00 (2.14)0.00 2.14 0.00 0.00 INTEREST239-00000-48110
0.00 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 DONATIONS239-00000-48550


0.06 3,497.86 0.00 2.14 3,500.00 3,500.00 Total Dept 00000 - REVENUE


0.06 3,497.86 0.00 2.14 3,500.00 3,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Expenditures
Dept 56400 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT


0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 OPERATING EXPENSES239-56400-50340


0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Total Dept 56400 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT


0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES


0.11 1,997.86 0.00 2.14 2,000.00 2,000.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.06 3,497.86 0.00 2.14 3,500.00 3,500.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 239 - STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL:







REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/1Page:08/03/2022 04:15 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORM (ABNORM)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/22


INCR (DECR)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022


NORM (ABNORM)
2022


AMENDED BUDGET


2022
ORIGINAL


BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Dept 51100 - CITY COUNCIL


100.00 0.00 0.00 46,483.00 46,483.00 0.00 PROPERTY TAX - OPERATIONS100-51100-41110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 43,200.00 SALARIES100-51100-50110


61.11 16,800.00 0.00 26,400.00 43,200.00 0.00 SALARIES100-51100-50110-41000000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,283.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51100-50151


61.52 1,263.40 0.00 2,019.60 3,283.00 0.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51100-50151-41000000
100.00 (9.79)0.00 9.79 0.00 0.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51100-50310
100.00 (506.79)0.00 506.79 0.00 0.00 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT (NONCAPITAL)100-51100-50409


(17,546.82)0.00 17,546.82 0.00 (46,483.00)Net - Dept 51100 - CITY COUNCIL


Dept 51105 - SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
100.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND100-51105-48930


0.00 5,900.00 0.00 0.00 5,900.00 0.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-51105-50315
0.00 4,100.00 0.00 0.00 4,100.00 0.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES100-51105-50405


(10,000.00)0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 51105 - SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE


Dept 51110 - ARTS COUNCIL
0.00 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 DONATIONS100-51110-48550


100.00 0.12 0.00 6,441.88 6,442.00 0.00 FUND CLOSURE TRANSFER100-51110-49740
0.00 (6,442.00)0.00 0.00 (6,442.00)0.00 FUND BAL APPLIED - TRANSFERS100-51110-49920
0.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-51110-50215
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-51110-50315


(6,441.88)0.00 6,441.88 0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 51110 - ARTS COUNCIL


100.00 (33,988.70)0.00 33,988.70 0.00 (46,483.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


49.90 29,046.82 0.00 28,936.18 57,983.00 46,483.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
108.52 (4,941.88)0.00 62,924.88 57,983.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND:





		10 R-170-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for Arts Council Fund

		10a Stoughton Arts Council documentation

		Fund 239 bal.pdf

		fund 239 revexp.pdf

		Council.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amend 2022 adopted budget for Fire Pension Fund and Fire Equipment Fund 


Committee 
Action: 


Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 08/09/2022 


Fiscal Impact:   None 


File Number: R-171-2022 Date 8/23/2022  
044/26/24/02020


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


RECITALS: 


WHEREAS, the Fire Department reports activity in the General Fund as well as a special 
revenue fund (Fund 243 Fire Pension Fund) and a capital projects fund (Fund 221 Fire Equipment 
Fund); and, 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton budgets each year for an annual payment from the 
Wisconsin Department of Revenue for Fire Dues Distribution; and, 


WHEREAS, The Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services indicates that 
Wis. Stat. 101.573 specifies the distribution can only be used for (a) purchase of fire protection 
equipment, (b) fire inspection and public education, (c) training for fire fighters and fire inspectors 
and (d) wholly or partially fund fire fighters pension funds; and, 


WHEREAS, the past practice of the City of Stoughton has been to account for pension 
expenditure in both the General Fund and Fire Pension Fund; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends all pension activity be 
accounting for in one fund with the Fire Dues Distribution revenues being allocated between the 
General Fund and Fire Pension Fund; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends that Fund 243 Fire Pension 
Fund shall receive revenue for Fire Dues Distributions equal to the total annual pension 
expenditures less any investment earnings; and, 


WHEREAS, the only revenue activity in Fund 221 Fire Equipment Fund since calendar 
year 2016 has been interest earnings on the fund’s investment balance; and; 


WHEREAS, the only expenditure activity in Fund 221 Fire Equipment Fund since 
calendar year 2016 was an expenditure of $4,246 in calendar year 2020; and, 


WHEREAS, the last budgeted activity in Fund 221 Fire Equipment Fund was for budget 
year 2008; and, 







 WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller recommends transferring all remaining 
balances in Fund 221 Fire Equipment Fund into Fund 100 General Fund; 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the 2022 budget be amended to account 
for all fire pension activity be accounted for within Fund 243 Fire Pension Fund; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 budget be amended to split the Wisconsin 
Department of Revenues payment for Fire Dues Distributions be allocated as recommended by the 
Director of Finance/Comptroller; and, 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the 2022 budget be amended to transfer all 
remaining cash and investments in Fund 221 Fire Equipment Fund to Fund 100 General Fund; 
and, 


 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the total expenditures and revenues be increased by 
$16,612 as indicated on the following table: 


Account Account


Number Description Increase Decreased Increase Decreased


243‐00000‐48110 Interest (200)               A


243‐00000‐48114 Dividends (300)               A


243‐52200‐48110 Interest 500             A


243‐00000‐48900 Pension contribution (600)              


243‐00000‐48930 Transfer from General Fund (14,000)        


243‐52200‐49910 Fund balance applied tax levy (500)              


243‐52200‐43420 Fire insurance rebate 42,000 B


243‐52200‐50130 Fire pension benefit 42,000       C


Fund 243 subtotals 26,900       42,000      


221‐52200‐49920 Fund bal applied ‐ transfers 16,612       D


221‐52200‐59740 Fund closure transfer 16,612       E


Fund 221 subtotals 16,612       16,612      


100‐00000‐43420 Fire insurance rebate (51,400)         B


100‐52200‐43420 Fire insurance rebate 9,400         B


100‐52200‐50130 Fire pension benefit (42,000)         C


100‐88888‐49920 Fund bal applied ‐ transfers (16,612)         D


100‐88888‐49740 Fund closure transfer 16,612       E


Fund 100 subtotals (42,000)         (42,000)        


Grand total 1,512         16,612      


The variance of $15,100 is because the adopted budget for Fund 243 was not in balance.


Revenue Expenditures


 


 







Fiscal note:  Budget amendments require two-thirds (2/3) vote of members elected. 


 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/2Page:08/03/2022 05:04 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


Period Ending 12/31/2022


                                     Fund 221 FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND


Balance
Current Year
Beg. BalanceDescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


(8,376.52)8,248.50 PRIMARY CHECKING221-00000-11100
8,386.60 8,363.52 WISC INVESTMENT FUND221-00000-11302


10.08 16,612.02 Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


0.00 0.00 Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


0.00 16,612.02 FUND BALANCE221-00000-39000
16,612.02 0.00 FUND BALANCE ASSIGNED221-00000-39800


16,612.02 16,612.02 Total Fund Balance


16,612.02 Beginning Fund Balance


(16,601.94)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
10.08 Ending Fund Balance
10.08 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance







BALANCE SHEET FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/2Page:08/03/2022 05:04 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton


Period Ending 12/31/2022


                                     Fund 243 FIRE PENSION FUND


Balance
Current Year
Beg. BalanceDescriptionGL Number


*** Assets ***


50,679.87 103,270.38 PRIMARY CHECKING243-00000-11100
51,797.83 58,342.76 FIREMENS PENSION INVESTMENTS243-00000-11200
844,470.22 742,396.27 WISC INVESTMENT FUND243-00000-11302


946,947.92 904,009.41 Total Assets


*** Liabilities ***


0.00 0.00 Total Liabilities


*** Fund Balance ***


0.00 904,009.41 FUND BALANCE243-00000-39000
904,009.41 0.00 FUND BALANCE RESTRICTED243-00000-39600


904,009.41 904,009.41 Total Fund Balance


904,009.41 Beginning Fund Balance


42,938.51 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
946,947.92 Ending Fund Balance
946,947.92 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance







REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/2Page:08/03/2022 05:08 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORM (ABNORM)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/22


INCR (DECR)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022


NORM (ABNORM)
2022


AMENDED BUDGET


2022
ORIGINAL


BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 221 - FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND
Dept 00000 - REVENUE


100.00 (10.08)0.00 10.08 0.00 0.00 INTEREST221-00000-48110


(10.08)0.00 10.08 0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 00000 - REVENUE


Dept 52200 - FIRE DEPT
0.00 16,612.00 0.00 0.00 16,612.00 0.00 FUND BAL APPLIED - TRANSFERS221-52200-49920


100.00 (0.02)0.00 16,612.02 16,612.00 0.00 FUND CLOSURE TRANSFER221-52200-59740


16,612.02 0.00 (16,612.02)0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 52200 - FIRE DEPT


100.00 16,601.94 0.00 (16,601.94)0.00 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


100.00 (0.02)0.00 16,612.02 16,612.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.06 16,601.92 0.00 10.08 16,612.00 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 221 - FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND:


Fund 243 - FIRE PENSION FUND
Dept 00000 - REVENUE


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 INTEREST243-00000-48110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 DIVIDENDS243-00000-48114
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 PENSION CONTRIBUTION243-00000-48900
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,000.00 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND243-00000-48930


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,100.00 Net - Dept 00000 - REVENUE


Dept 52200 - FIRE DEPT
127.65 (11,611.09)0.00 53,611.09 42,000.00 0.00 FIRE INSURANCE REBATE243-52200-43420
494.47 (1,972.35)0.00 2,472.35 500.00 0.00 INTEREST243-52200-48110
100.00 6,544.93 0.00 (6,544.93)0.00 0.00 INVESTMENT MARKET ADJUSTMENTS243-52200-48199


0.00 (500.00)0.00 0.00 (500.00)0.00 FUND BAL APPLIED - TAX LEVY243-52200-49910
0.00 42,000.00 0.00 0.00 42,000.00 0.00 FIRE PENSION BENEFIT243-52200-50130


100.00 (6,600.00)0.00 6,600.00 0.00 0.00 ACTUARIAL FEES243-52200-50404


(42,938.51)0.00 42,938.51 0.00 0.00 Net - Dept 52200 - FIRE DEPT


100.00 (42,938.51)0.00 42,938.51 0.00 15,100.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


15.71 35,400.00 0.00 6,600.00 42,000.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
117.95 (7,538.51)0.00 49,538.51 42,000.00 15,100.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 243 - FIRE PENSION FUND:


84.54 9,063.41 0.00 49,548.59 58,612.00 15,100.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS







REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/2Page:08/03/2022 05:08 PM
User: DAVE
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2022


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORM (ABNORM)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/22


INCR (DECR)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2022


NORM (ABNORM)
2022


AMENDED BUDGET


2022
ORIGINAL


BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


100.00 (26,336.57)0.00 26,336.57 0.00 15,100.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


39.60 35,399.98 0.00 23,212.02 58,612.00 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS





		11 R-171-2022 - Amend 2022 adopted budget for Fire Pension Fund and Fire Equipment Fund

		11a - Fire Dept documentation

		Fire bal.pdf

		fire revexp.pdf





